
 

 

North Bay Village 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, North Bay Village, FL 33141 
Tel: (305) 756-7171 | Fax: (305) 756-7722 | www.nbvillage.com 

 

1 

 OFFICIAL AGENDA 
REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 

VILLAGE HALL 
TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2019 

6:30 P.M. 
 

NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES THAT IF ANY PERSON SHOULD DECIDE TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE AT THE 
FORTHCOMING MEETING OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE 
OR SHE WILL NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND 
EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE VILLAGE FOR THE INTRODUCTION 
OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW.   
 
TO REQUEST THIS MATERIAL IN ACCESSIBLE FORMAT, SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS, INFORMATION ON ACCESS FOR PERSON WITH 
DISABILITIES, AND/OR ANY ACCOMMODATION TO REVIEW ANY DOCUMENT OR PARTICIPATE IN ANY VILLAGE-SPONSORED PROCEEDING, PLEASE 
CONTACT (305) 756-7171 FIVE DAYS IN ADVANCE TO INITIATE YOUR REQUEST.  TTY USERS MAY ALSO CALL 711 (FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE). 
 
 

1. Opening Items 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

B. Invocation  
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

D. Roll Call 
 

2. A.  Presentations, Proclamations and Awards 
 

1. Swearing in of Village Clerk 
2. Education and Sharing Day Proclamation 

 
B. Citizen Presentations To The Commission 

 
1. Pelican Harbor Seabird Station Budget and Annual Report 

 
C. Additions and Deletions (Order of Business) 
 

3. Good & Welfare (Open Forum) 
 

4. Village Commission’s Report 
 

5. Grant Writer’s Report 
 

6. Advisory Board Reports 
  

A. Animal Control Advisory Board 
i. Board Chair Cecilia Veloz  

 
B. Business Development Advisory Board 

i. Board Chair Timothy Dennis 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 9, 2019 
 

2 

C. Citizens Budget & Oversight Board 
i. Board Chair Jack Rattner  

 
D. Planning & Zoning Board 

i. Board Chair Bud Farrey  
 

E. Sustainability and Resiliency Task Force  
i. Board Chair Denise O’Brien 

 
7. Village Attorney’s Report 

 
8. Village Manager’s Report 

 
A. 2019 Projects Progress Report  

 
9. Consent Agenda: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are not expected to require 

discussion or review. Items will be adopted by one motion. If discussion is desired by any member of the 
Commission, that item must be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 

 
A. FIND Grant Application 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COMMISSIONERS OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO SUBMIT A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE FLORIDA INLAND 
NAVIGATION DISTRICT WATERWAYS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE BAYWALK DESIGN AND PERMITTING – PHASE IB; 
PROVIDING CERTIFICATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE MANAGER RALPH ROSADO) 
 

B. Neat Streets Miami Grant 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND VILLAGE COMMISSION OF NORTH 
BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE NEAT STREETS MIAMI 
MATCHING GRANT AWARD FROM MIAMI DADE COUNTY PARKS, 
RECREATION, AND OPEN SPACES DEPARTMTNT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$5,007.00; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE TO 
EXECUTE THE TREE PLANTING AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE MANAGER RALPH 
ROSADO) 

 
C. Mayor’s Climate Pledge 

 
A PLEDGE OF THE MUNICIPALITIES OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
COUNTY ENDORSING THE MAYORS’ CLIMATE ACTION PLEDGE, 
AFFIRMING SUPPORT FOR THE SOUTHEAST FLORIDA REGIONAL 
CLIMATE CHANGE COMPACT, AGREEING TO CONSIDER 
IMPLEMENTING THE REGIONAL CLIMATE ACTION PLAN IN WHOLE 
OR IN PART AS APPROPRIATE FOR EACH MUNICIPALITY, AND 
URGING ALL MAYORS OF [INSERT NAME] COUNTY TO SUPPORT 
THE MAYORS’ CLIMATE ACTION PLEDGE. 

 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 9, 2019 
 

3 

 
10. Ordinances for First Reading and Resolutions: Please be advised that if you wish to comment 

upon any of these quasi-judicial items, please inform the Mayor when public comment is open. An opportunity for persons 
to speak on each item will be made available after the applicant and staffs have made their presentations on each item. All 
testimony, including public testimony and evidence, will be made under oath or affirmation.  Additionally, each person who 
gives testimony may be subject to cross-examination.  If you refuse to be cross-examined or sworn-in, your testimony will 
be given its due weight. The general public will not be permitted to cross-examine witnesses, but the public may request 
the Commission ask questions of staff or witnesses on their behalf. Persons representing organizations must present 
evidence of their authority to speak for the organization. Further, details of the quasi-judicial procedures may be obtained 
from the Village Clerk. 
 

A. Planning and Zoning Board Composition 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING TITLE IV, CHAPTER 32, ENTITLED “DEPARTMENTS AND 
BOARDS,” OF THE VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND CHAPTER 4, 
“ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT,” BY MODIFYING THE 
COMPOSITION OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION 
IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE MANAGER 
ROSADO) 
 

B. Amend the Stipulation Adopted in Resolution 92-39 for Property Generally 
Located at 7601 East Treasure Drive to Amend the Parking Requirements 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 
APPROVING A REQUEST TO AMEND THE STIPULATION ADOPTED IN 
RESOLUTION 92-39 FOR PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 7601 EAST 
TREASURE DRIVE TO AMEND THE PARKING REQUIREMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE 
MANAGER ROSADO) 
 

C. Establishing a Moratorium for a Period of One Hundred Eighty (180) Days 
from the Effective Date of this Ordinance on the Acceptance of Applications 
for Administrative Review, Site Plan Approval, and Building Permits for the 
Use of Land for New Public Self Storage Facilities 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 
ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM FOR A PERIOD OF ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY 
(180) DAYS FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE ON THE 
ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW, SITE PLAN 
APPROVAL, AND BUILDING PERMITS FOR THE USE OF LAND FOR NEW 
PUBLIC SELF STORAGE FACILITIES; PROVIDING FOR WAIVERS; 
PROVIDING FOR VESTED RIGHTS; PROVIDING FOR APPEALS; PROVIDING 
FOR MODIFICATIONS TO VESTED DEVELOPMENTS; REQUIRING 
EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE  REMEDIES; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE MANAGER 
ROSADO) 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 9, 2019 
 

4 

D. Mitigation Process for Code Enforcement Fines 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING TITLE XV, CHAPTER 153, ENTITLED “CODE ENFORCEMENT,” OF 
THE VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY CLARIFYING THE MITIGATION 
PROCESS FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES, THE ROLE OF THE VILLAGE 
ATTORNEY, THE ENFORCEMENT OF LIENS AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
VILLAGE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING 
FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE MANAGER ROSADO) 
 

E. Approval of Deputy Village Clerk Position 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE JOB DESCRIPTION, APPLICABLE SALARY SCALE, 
AND APPLICABLE PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND METRICS FOR THE 
DEPUTY VILLAGE CLERK;  PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE 
MANAGER ROSADO) 
 

11. Public Hearings Including Ordinance(s) for Second Reading 
Please be advised that if you wish to comment upon any of these quasi-judicial items, please inform the Mayor 
during public comments. An opportunity for persons to speak on each item will be made available after the 
applicant and staff have made their presentations on each item. All testimony, including public testimony and 
evidence, will be made under oath or affirmation.  Additionally, each person who gives testimony may be subject 
to cross-examination.  If you refuse to be cross-examined or sworn-in, your testimony will be given its due weight. 
The general public will not be permitted to cross-examine witnesses, but the public may request the Commission 
ask questions of staff or witnesses on their behalf. Persons representing organizations must present evidence of 
their authority to speak for the organization. Further, details of the quasi-judicial procedures may be obtained from 
the Village Clerk.  

 
A. AN APPLICATION BY BARANOF HOLDINGS, LLC AND GRANDVIEW PALACE 

CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
1850 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY AND 7601 EAST TREASURE DRIVE, TREASURE 
ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, FOR: 

 
1. A WAIVER ACCORDING TO SECTION 9.3(D) OF THE NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ALLOW 
REDUCTION OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES 
REQUIRED BY THE 1992 STIPULATED AGREEMENT FROM 1,119 
TO 1,057 PARKING SPACES, BASED ON SHARED PARKING AND 
PARKING UTILIZATION ANALYSIS.  

 
2. A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 7.3 OF THE NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ALLOW 
REDUCTION OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES 
REQUIRED BY THE 1992 STIPULATED AGREEMENT FROM 1,119 
TO 1,057 PARKING SPACES, BASED ON SHARED PARKING AND 
PARKING UTILIZATION ANALYSIS. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM 
VILLAGE MANAGER ROSADO) 

 
 



Agenda 
Regular Village Commission Meeting 

April 9, 2019 
 

5 

B. AN APPLICATION BY BARANOF HOLDINGS, LLC CONCERNING PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1850 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, TREASURE ISLAND, NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTION 
5.4(C) OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A 98 FOOT TALL, 142,530 SQUARE FOOT SELF 
STORAGE FACILITY WITH 4,000 SQUARE FEET OF GROUND FLOOR RETAIL 
SPACE AND OFF-SITE PARKING INCLUDED FOR GRANDVIEW PALACE. 
(INTRODUCED BY INTERIM VILLAGE MANAGER ROSADO)  

 
C. AN APPLICATION BY HILDA PELAYO TRUST, CONCERNING PROPERTY AT 

7544 WEST TREASURE DRIVE, TREASURE ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, FOR A WAIVER, PURSUANT TO SECTION 9.12(B) OF THE VILLAGE 
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A DOCK 
WITH A BOATLIFT WHICH WILL EXTEND BEYOND THE D-5 TRIANGLE; 
PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; 
PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
INTERIM VILLAGE MANAGER ROSADO) 

 
12. Unfinished Business  

 
13. New Business 

 
A. Citibike Discussion 
B. Miami Beach/North Bay Village Restaurant Crawl 

 
14. Approval of Minutes  

 
None. 
 

15. Adjournment      



 

Proclamation 
 

WHEREAS, excellence in education is vital to the success of our nation and our city; and in North 
Bay Village we seek the betterment of our citizens, and look to instill each child and adolescent with a good 
education 

WHEREAS, by preparing our students for the responsibilities and opportunities of the future, 
education develops the intellect through lessons in literacy, math, and science; 

WHEREAS, one shining example for all people of what education ought to be was provided by the 
Rebbe, Rabbi Menachem Schneerson, of righteous memory, a global spiritual leader who dedicated his life 
to the betterment of mankind. A tireless advocate for youth around the world, the Rebbe emphasized the 
importance of education and good character, and instilled the hope for a brighter future into the lives of 
countless people in America and across the globe, 

WHEREAS, the Rebbe taught that education, in general, should not be limited to the acquisition 
of knowledge and preparation for a career, nor should its sole focus be on making a better living; and 

WHEREAS the educational system must also focus on building character by emphasizing the 
cultivation of universal moral and ethical values that have been the bedrock of society from the dawn of 
civilization, including the values known as the Seven Noahide Laws, which have often been cited as a 
guarantee of fundamental human rights; and 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the Rebbe's outstanding and lasting contributions toward 
improvements in world education, morality, and acts of charity, he has been awarded the Congressional 
Gold Medal, and the United States Congress has established his birth date as a national day to raise 
awareness and strength the education of our children, 

WHEREAS, the President of the United States has paid recognition to the Rebbe's vision each year 
on that day by proclaiming it "Education & Sharing Day USA", 

WHEREAS, the character of our young people is strengthened by serving a cause greater than self 
and by the anchor of virtues, including courage and compassion. By instilling a spirit of service in our 
children, we create a more optimistic future for them and our State 

 Now, THEREFORE, I, Brent Latham, Mayor of North Bay Village proclaim Tuesday, April 16, 
2019, as: EDUCATION AND SHARING DAY and call upon government officials, educators, volunteers, 
and citizens to reach out to young people and work to create a better, brighter, and more hopeful future for 
all. 

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and caused the Seal of North Bay Village 
to be affixed at the City Council this 16th day of April in the year two thousand and nineteen. 

 
 
 
__________________________________   _____________________________     
Brent Latham, Village Mayor        Elora Riera, CMC, Village Clerk 

Page 1



  Monday, March 11, 2019 06:23 AM GMT-7   1/1

Pelican Harbor Seabird Station
BUDGET OVERVIEW: 2019 BUDGET - FY19 P&L

January - December 2019

TOTAL

Income

1600 Donations - General 199,810.00

1610 Special Events 1 181,133.00

1625 Donations from Patient Intakes 5,621.00

1630 Grants 1 247,199.00

1635 Fish Drive 18,541.00

1640 Donations received from educational 
programming

6,136.00

1645 Donations Cash Box 4,014.00

1650 Donations related to Promo Items 1 3,700.00

1670 Adopt a Bird 3,695.00

1675 Sponsor a Release 750.00

1680 Behind the Scenes Tour 1,263.00

Total Income $671,862.00

GROSS PROFIT $671,862.00

Expenses

1000 Advertising/Promotional 14,777.00

1200 Patient Food 15,588.00

1270 Occupancy 1 16,465.00

1280 Insurance 1 11,249.00

1320 Office Expenses 39,297.00

1360 Labor Costs 379,835.00

1380 Administrative Expenses 4,785.00

1390 Professional Services 23,776.00

1420 Special Event Expenses 55,259.00

1440 Staff Expense 17,764.00

1480 Auto & Boat Expense 8,189.00

1490 Veterinary Clinic Expenses 44,611.00

1520 Fund raising 4,218.00

1550 Educational Programming 34,342.00

1570 Volunteer Expense 348.81

Total Expenses $670,503.81

NET OPERATING INCOME $1,358.19

Other Income

1700 Interest Income 1 10,000.00

Total Other Income $10,000.00

NET OTHER INCOME $10,000.00

NET INCOME $11,358.19

Page 2



Rescuing and caring for Miami’s wildlife since 1980

2017 Annual Report Page 3



2

Seabirds/Waterbirds 513
American Bittern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
American Coot  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
American White Pelican  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Anhinga   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Black Skimmer   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Black-Bellied Plover  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Black-Crowned Night Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Brown Booby  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Brown Pelican  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 130
Caspian Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Cattle Egret  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10
Common Gallinule  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Common Tern   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Cory’s Shearwater  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Double-Crested Cormorant  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 39
Great Blue Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Great Egret   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 11
Green Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 12
Herring Gull  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10
Killdeer  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Laughing Gull   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 118
Least Bittern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Least Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Lesser Black-Backed Gull  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Long-Billed Dowitcher   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Magnificent Frigatebird   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Mallard  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Mottled Duck  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Northern Gannet  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7
Pied-Billed Grebe   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Purple Gallinule  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Red-Breasted Merganser  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Ring-Billed Gull  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 20
Royal Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 26
Ruddy Turnstone   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Sandhill Crane  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Sandwich Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Snowy Egret   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Sooty Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Sora  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
White Ibis  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 42
Yellow-Crowned Night Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 13

Passerines  438
Black-Throated Blue Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8
Black-and-White Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Blue Jay   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 85
Blue-Grey Gnatcatcher  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Boat-Tailed Grackle  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 13
Canada Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Chestnut-Sided Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Chimney Swift  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Chuck-Will’s-Widow  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 25
Common Grackle  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 42
Common Nighthawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Common Yellowthroat .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Fish Crow   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 23
Grey Catbird   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Grey Kingbird  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Indigo Bunting  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Mourning Dove   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 32
Northern Cardinal   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Northern Mockingbird   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 88
Northern Parula  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Northern Waterthrush  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Ovenbird  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 15
Painted Bunting  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Palm Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Prairie Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Red-Bellied Woodpecker   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 18
Red-Eyed Vireo   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Ruby-Throated Hummingbird   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
White-Crowned Pigeon  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
White-Winged Dove  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 12
Worm-Eating Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4

 
Yellow-Bellied Sapsucker  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Yellow-Billed Cuckoo  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 12
Yellow-Throated Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1

Birds of Prey  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 140
American Kestrel  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Barn Owl  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Black Vulture  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Broad-Winged Hawk   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7
Burrowing Owl  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Cooper’s Hawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 36
Eastern Screech Owl  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 49
Merlin  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Osprey   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10
Peregrine Falcon   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8
Red-Shouldered Hawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8
Red-Tailed Hawk   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Sharp-Shinned Hawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Swallow-Tailed Kite   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Turkey Vulture  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 11

Mammals 322
Grey Squirrel  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 156
Marsh Rabbit  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Virginia Opossum   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 165

Reptiles 13
Florida Box Turtle  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Florida Softshell Turtle  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Gopher Tortoise  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Peninsula Cooter  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Red-Bellied Cooter   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2

2017 Patient Admissions
Total Admissions: 1,484

Known Injury Causes 
for 2017 Patients

40%
Orphaned

17%
Collision 
(Window 
or Auto)

15%
Cat/Dog 
Attack

13%
Fishing Line, 

Hooks, or  
Tackle8%

Other**

7%
Poisoning*

  *Botulism, Rodenticide, Other 
**Disease, Electrocution, Entanglement, Glue Trap, Gunshot, Starvation, etc. 

Page 4



PelicanHarbor.org 3

Pelican Harbor Seabird Station is dedicated to the rescue, rehabilitation and release of  
sick, injured or orphaned brown pelicans, seabirds and other native wildlife; and the  

preservation and protection of these species through educational and scientific means.  

In 2017, we were proud to have:

•  Reached over over 8,700 students 
and residents through tours, 

presentations and community events .

•  Provided hands-on professional training for 

over 75 volunteers and interns, 
who collectively logged 9,000 hours.

•  Hosted our 38th Annual Pelican Party Gala 

that was attended by 260 guests.

Page 5



4

193 Native Bird Species Treated 
at Pelican Harbor Seabird Station

CAPITALIZED entries denote vagrant species that are not expected to occur in Southeastern Florida.

1980–2017

American Avocet  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
American Bittern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 16
American Coot  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 46
American Crow   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
American Flamingo   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
American Kestrel  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 37
American Oystercatcher  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
American Redstart  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 33
American White Pelican  .  .  .  .  .  . 22
American Woodcock   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Anhinga .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 111
Arctic Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Audubon’s Shearwater  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Baltimore Oriole   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Band-Rumped Storm-Petrel  .  .  .  . 1
Barn Owl  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8
Barn Swallow   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Barred Owl   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Belted Kingfisher  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 18
Black Rail  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Black Scoter  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Black Skimmer   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 37
Black Vulture  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 44
Black-and-White Warbler  .  .  .  .  . 21
Black-Bellied Plover  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7
Black-Bellied Whistling-Duck  .  .  . 1
Blackburnian Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Black-Capped Petrel   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Black-Crowned Night Heron  .  .  . 81
Black-Necked Stilt  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Blackpoll Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7
Black-Throated Blue Warbler  .  .  . 35
Black-Whiskered Vireo  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Blue Grosbeak  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Blue Jay   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 812
Blue-Gray Gnatcatcher  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Blue-Headed Vireo  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Blue-Winged Teal  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Blue-Winged Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Boat-Tailed Grackle  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 256
Bobolink  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Bonaparte’s Gull  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Bridled Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Broad-Winged Hawk   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 29
Brown Booby  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 31
Brown Noddy  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Brown Pelican  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8,739
Brown Thrasher   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2

Budgerigar  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 11
Bufflehead   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Burrowing Owl  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 14
Canada Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Cape May Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Caspian Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Cattle Egret  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 102
Cedar Waxwing   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Chestnut-Sided Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Chimney Swift  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 78
Chuck-Will’s-Widow  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 257
Clapper Rail   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8
Common Gallinule/Moorhen   .  . 71
Common Grackle  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 187
Common Ground-Dove  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 88
Common Loon  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 135
Common Nighthawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 36
Common Tern   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Common Yellowthroat .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 87
Cooper’s Hawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 214
Cory’s Shearwater  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 19
Double-Crested Cormorant  .  .  . 631
Downy Woodpecker  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Eastern Kingbird   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Eastern Meadowlark   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Eastern Screech-Owl  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 252
Fish Crow   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 171
FLAMMULATED OWL  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Forster’s Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Fulvous Whistling-Duck   .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Glossy Ibis   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Gray Catbird   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 47
Gray Kingbird  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 29
Great Black Backed Gull   .  .  .  .  .  . 8
Great Blue Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 192
Great Egret   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 116
Great Horned Owl   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Great White Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Greater Shearwater  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7
Green Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 179
Green-Winged Teal  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Ground Dove  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Herring Gull  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 132
Hooded Merganser   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Hooded Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Horned Grebe  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Indigo Bunting  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Killdeer  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 30

Laughing Gull   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1,327
Least Bittern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Least Sandpiper   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Least Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 76
Lesser Black-Backed Gull  .  .  .  .  . 22
Lesser Scaup  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Limpkin  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8
Little Blue Heron  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 12
Loggerhead Shrike  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 51
Long-Billed Dowitcher   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Louisiana Waterthrush  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Magnificent Frigatebird   .  .  .  .  .  . 28
Mallard  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 33
Mangrove Cuckoo   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7
Manx Shearwater  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Masked Booby  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Merlin  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7
Mottled Duck  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Mourning Dove   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 892
Northern Bobwhite  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 22
Northern Cardinal   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 48
Northern Flicker  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Northern Gannet  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 390
Northern Mockingbird   .  .  .  . 1,171
Northern Parula  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 38
Northern Pintail  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Northern Rough-Wing Swallow  .  . 1
Northern Waterthrush  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Osprey   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 55
Ovenbird  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 117
Painted Bunting  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Palm Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 14
Parasitic Jaeger  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Peregrine Falcon   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 40
Pied-Billed Grebe   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 47
Pine Warbler   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Pomarine Jaeger   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Prairie Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Prothonotary Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Purple Gallinule  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 33
Purple Martin   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 16
RAZORBILL   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Red Phalarope  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Red-Bellied Woodpecker   .  .  .  . 216
RED-BILLED TROPICBIRD  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Red-Breasted Merganser  .  .  .  .  . 25
Reddish Egret   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Red-Eyed Vireo   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2

Red-Footed Booby  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Red-Shouldered Hawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 61
Red-Tailed Hawk   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Red-Winged Blackbird  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Ring-Billed Gull  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 460
Roseate Spoonbill  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Roseate Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Rose-Breasted Grosbeak  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Royal Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 449
Ruby-Throated Hummingbird   .  .  . 4
Ruddy Turnstone   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 9
Sanderling .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 17
Sandhill Crane  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 5
Sandwich Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Savannah Sparrow  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Scarlet Tanager   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Semipalmated Sandpiper   .  .  .  .  . 2
Sharp-Shinned Hawk  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10
Shiny Cowbird  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Short-Billed Dowitcher  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Short-Eared Owl   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Short-Tailed Hawk   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Smooth Billed Ani  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Snowy Egret   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 15
Sooty Shearwater   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Sooty Tern  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 24
Sora Rail  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 52
SOUTH POLAR SKUA  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2
Swainson’s Thrush  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Swainson’s Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Swallow-Tailed Kite   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
THICK-BILLED MURRE   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Tricolored Heron .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10
Turkey Vulture  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 69
Virginia Rail  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
White Ibis  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 315
White-Crowned Pigeon  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 8
WHITE-TAILED TROPICBIRD  .  .  .  .  . 2
Wilson’s Snipe  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3
Wilson’s Storm Petrel  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4
Wood Duck  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Wood Stork  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6
Worm-Eating Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 14
Yellow-Bellied Flycatcher   .  .  .  .  .  . 1
Yellow-Bellied Sapsucker  .  .  .  .  . 20
Yellow-Billed Cuckoo  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 57
Yellow-Crowned Night Heron  .  .  . 75
Yellow-Throated Warbler  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 6

Page 6



PelicanHarbor.org 5

2017 Board of Directors
Dedication and expertise to help us soar higher

Marilyn MagillKathryn Comer, PhD Carol Keys . Esq . Harvey Ruvin Julia Zaias, DVM, PhD

Christopher Boykin
Executive Director

Linda Gregard, DVM
Veterinarian

Yaritza Acosta
Rehabilitation Manager

Douglas Giraldo
Wildlife Rehabilitator

Hannah McDougall
Wildlife Rehabilitator

Pam Stephens
Administrative Assistant

Sarah Curry
Education & Communications Coordinator

Mary Diddle
Accounting Coordinator

CAPITALIZED entries denote vagrant species that are not expected to occur in Southeastern Florida.

Staff

James McCoy, DVM
Board Chair

Astrid Garcia
Secretary

Darren Steinbook
Treasurer

Harry Kelton
Founder

Page 7



6

2017 Financials
65% of our annual budget is raised through donations

Revenue Expenses

n  Individuals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $257,873 . . . 45%

n  Grants & Foundations . . . . . . $198,280 . . . 35%

n  Special Events . . . . . . . . . . . $101,822 . . . 18%

n  Promotional Items  . . . . . . . . . . $5,132 . . . . .1%

n  Program Fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5,157 . . . . .1%

TOTAL REVENUE  . . . . . . . . . . . . $568,264 . . 100%

Pelican Harbor Seabird Station is a 501 C(3) non-profit . We strive to keep our fundraising and administrative costs to a minimum,  

so that we can stretch our dollars and provide the best care possible . Roughly one third of our revenue comes from foundations,  

with the remaining balance from individual donors . Below is a snapshot of our revenue and expenditures for 2017:*

n  Wildlife Treatment . . . . . . . . . $356,166 . . . 64%

n  Education . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $116,987 . . . 21%

n  Fundraising  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $44,532 . . . . .8%

n  Administration . . . . . . . . . . . . $38,966 . . . . .7%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . $556,651 . . 100%

*Investment activity, capital campaign gifts, in-kind contributions, and bequests are not reflected in this report.

Page 8



PelicanHarbor.org 7

n  Donate
You can give online, with cash, or check . All donations 
are tax deductible . As a non-profit 501(c)(3) charity 
we are proud to operate without government funding . 
The generous support of our private donors makes 
our work possible . 

n  Volunteer  
Our dedicated volunteers are critical to our daily 
operations and assist with light cleaning, patient 
feeding, event support, and office administration .

n  Apply for an Internship
We offer a variety of internship opportunities in animal 
care, outreach and social media, and education for high 
school, college, and graduate students . Earn course 
credits and training within a professionally supervised 
learning environment .

n� Attend an Event
We continuously present educational events at the 
Seabird Station as well as throughout the community .

n Tell Your Friends About Us

Ways You Can Help
There are many ways to be a Pelican Pal!

Legacy Society
The Pelican Harbor Seabird Station Legacy Society is a new, 
distinguished group reserved for those generous supporters 
who have chosen to include a gift to the Seabird Station in 
their will or estate plans . 

You can join the Legacy Society through a will, trust, 
designation or other planned gift . Too often these gifts 
are unrecognized because we are unaware of them until 
the donor has passed . Our Legacy Society allows us to 
celebrate you and recognize your gift while you are here with 
us . Legacy Society members receive complimentary tickets 
to all of our events . Additionally, a special Legacy Society 
luncheon will be held each year . 

Please contact us at info@pelicanharbor .org or call us  
at 305 .762 .7633 to notify us of your intent to leave a 
specific or residuary (percentage-based) bequest .

 

n  Thank you to our Legacy Society members:
Christopher Boykin & Stratton Pollitzer 
Victoria Brandi
Carol Garvin 
Kathy Hull  
Harry Kelton 
Mary Newman 
Howard & Patricia Rosen
Jon & Kate Sage 
Dr. David B. Thornburgh

Page 9



AR-02-06/18-REV

Printed on paper that contains post-consumer recycled paper and meets current triple-green standards.

Pelican Harbor Seabird Station is a registered 501(c)(3) non-profit. Our registration # is CH17487. 
A copy of the official registration and financial information may be obtained from the Division of 
Consumer Services by calling 800.435.7352 toll-free within the State.

Federal Tax ID # 59-2137331

A special thanks to our volunteers, interns,  
and donors who made our work in 2017 possible.

We are grateful to Miami-Dade County for providing our 
facility space and paying our utilities in order for us to better 
focus on our mission and the well-being of our patients. 

Page 10



NORTH BAY VILLAGE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

Board Members:  

Tim Dennis (Chair), Paul Jacob (Secretary), Denise O’Brien (Member), Nick Quay (Vice Chair), James 
Rosenberg (Member) 

Date: 

3/25/2019 

Call to Order: 

6:39pm 

Roll Call: 

Present: Tim Dennis (Chair), Paul Jacob (Secretary), Denise O’Brien (Member), Nick Quay (Vice Chair), 

Absent: James Rosenberg (Member) 

Quorum Present: 

Yes 

Previous Business: 

- Status update that the items from the previous NBVBDAB agenda to have been presented to the 
Commission were not presented due to an emergency. The Mission Statement, SWOT analysis, 
Survey, SUP event. 

- 3/25/2019 Agenda consisted of a recap of the February agenda due to the transition from 
former Village Clerk to current Village Clerk. 

- Nick Quay discussed the opportunity to have a SUP event in the October timeframe due to the 
cancellation of one of the events in a well known SUP series. Tim Dennis made a motion to 
move forward with recommending the event. The motion was second by Paul Jacob. 

- Public Comment from Rich Holden, citizen and member of the Planning and Zoning Board. 

o General comments on concerns over how Planning and Zoning and Business
Development Advisory Boards can cohesively work together regarding the Bay walk,
Boardwalk, Benihana Renovations and two significant complexes in the current WIOD
location and the current Shuckers locations. The Village has only one chance “to get it
right” on these significant properties.
DRAFT

Page 11



NORTH BAY VILLAGE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

Page 2 of 2. 

 

 

- Public Comment from Julianna Strout, citizen and Village Commissioner 
o Relayed support for the NBV Business Development Boards efforts 

 Helped in any way she can assist 
o Discussed supporting current local Businesses as well as attracting new businesses. 
o Challenged the NBVBDAB to each bring 5 new people to the NBV Bingo night. 
o Discussed “Restaurant Crawl”, Celebrity Soccer event in the June timeframe 

 
- Public Comment from Sophia Liebowitz: 

o Relayed support for the NBVBAB and wished that more citizens would get involved in 
the process to improve the Village. 

Future Meeting Date: 

April 22, 2019 @ 630pm 

Motion to Adjourn:   

Tim Dennis made a motion to adjourn @ 803pm with Denise O’Brien Second. 

 

DRAFT

Page 12



    

 

 

North Bay Village 
 

1 

SUSTAINABILITY AND RESILIENCY TASK FORCE 
MEETING 

  

MINUTES 
Monday, March 26, 2019 - 6:00 P.M. 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, FL 33141 
 
    

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order at 6:40 p.m. 

Richard Chervony, Denise O’Brien, Rachel Streitfeld, Nick Quay present. Celia Veloz absent.   

Ralph Rosado as Non-Voting Member also present.  Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth and Scott 
Greenwald (non-voting members) absent.  Elora Riera, Village Clerk also present. 

Guests:  Sophie Lebowitz and Gudrun Volker (both residents).  

2. Approval of Meeting Minutes: March 5, 2019 

Motion made by Denise Obrien and seconded by Nick Quay to approve the Minutes of   the 
meeting of March 6th. .  Approved 4/0 

3. Old Business  
 
a) Presentation of Vulnerability Analysis for North Bay Village (by Office of Resilience Miami Dade 

County) 
 

Presentation of the Vulnerability Analysis for North Bay Village by the Office of Resiliency of 
Miami-Dade County was deferred until the next meeting. 

 
b) Work Plan for Task Force: 

i. Mission Statement: Provide technical assistance and advice to the North Bay Village 
Commission for mitigation and adaptation  measures to respond to global warming 
climate change (Resolution #2019-011, section 2) 

ii. Undertaking Analysis 
iii. Awareness Raising for Sea Rise Threats to NBV 
iv. Developing and Adopting Planning Policies 
v. Pursuing Outside Funding 

 
Presentation and Discussion of the Work Plan for the Task Force ensued.  The work plan 
encompasses four steps: 
 

Page 13



Agenda 
Sustainability and Resiliency Task Force 

March 26, 2019 
 

2 
 

1.- Analysis 
2.- Public Awareness 
3.- Developing and Adopting Planning Policies 
4.-  Pursuing Outside Funding  
 
It was decided that the task force will work diligently in analyzing and creating information 
derived from same in the main areas of City Planning, Ecosystem Based Initiatives, 
Infrastructure, Zoning and Land Development, Disaster Management and Municipal 
Government Environmental Footprint.  The task force will also work on creating a Public 
Awareness Campaign. 
 
Once these two steps have been completed or well underway, the task force will commence 
in creating and adopting policies and once identified the need we will pursue funding.   
 
The final product that was created at this meeting of the work plan will be sent to each 
member for any correction.  These will be submitted to the Village Clerk for a final Work Plan 
to be ready to be approved at the next meeting 
 
The TF would like a request to be presented to Commission that when creating the RFP/RFQ 
for the final total paving of the streets (after all the infrastructure repairs underway are 
completed) there be inclusion of considerations related to sea level raise and storm surge 
such as permeable product(s)  and that  the opportunity for green infrastructure(s) be 
explored.  Motion made by Denise Obrien and seconded by Richard Chervony.  Approved 4/0 

 
c) Discussion items 

i. Reporting to IPCC Initiative Local Governments for Sustainability and Disclosure 
Insight Action (invitation sent to Mayor Lathan) 

ii. City of Miami Presentation on Sea Level Raise (Richard Chervony) 
iii. How to Communicate as a Task Force 
iv. Ethics Training 
v. NBV policies on TF/AB Minutes and Recommendations to the Commission 

 
 Request made that the Commission appoint a member of the NBVSRT (North Bay Village 
Sustainability and Resiliency Task Force) to participate in the judging and approval of bids for the 
Final Paving of the streets.  Motion made by Denise Obrien and seconded by Richard Chervony.  
Approved 4/0  
 
Brief update by Rachel Streitfeld of the upcoming Local TAU competition, Motion made by Rachel 
Streitfeld and seconded by Nick Quay to appoint Denise O’Brien as the official representative of 
North Bay Village to the competition. 
 
Interim Village Manager Rosado discussed that Daniel Espino, Village Attorney will be briefing the 
NBVSTR on policies and procedures of transmittal to the Commission for their necessary approval 
of any items that require the same.  Mr. Espino will briefly go over Ethics requirements as well 
even though the four voting members have acknowledged attending the required Ethics Training. 
 
It was further decided and affirmed that NBVSTR will meet at least every FOURTH TUESDAY 
commencing at 6:30 PM.  Next meeting is scheduled for April 23rd. 
 

Page 14



Agenda 
Sustainability and Resiliency Task Force 

March 26, 2019 
 

3 
 

The invitation for NBV to join a reporting initiative of the IPCC for Local Governments and 
Sustainability and Disclosure Insight Action was discussed. While reiterating the importance of 
reporting initiatives, the TF believes that this step must be taken after a clear strategy and action 
plan have been established for NBV. 
 

4. New Business  
  

a) Deferral of Ordinance requested by Vice Mayor Wilmoth for our discussion until our next 
meeting to give Legal Counsel enough time to review and update it. 

 
As per the Vice Mayor’s request the ordinance requested for discussion was deferred to the 
next meeting or as soon as the item is ready for discussion. 

 
b) Discussion and Adoption by Board joins the Southeast Florida Climate Compact becoming the 

newest group in the organization, until the Village creates and adopts the formal Resolution. 
 

Motion made for the NBVSTR to join the Southeast Florida Climate Compact as the newest 
group or organization.  Motion made by Denise Obrien and seconded by Nick Quay.  Approved 
4/0 

 
c) Discussion and Adoption of the Southeast Florida Compact Unified Sea Level Rise Projection 

for 2015 and subsequent changes that may be made as the accepted projections of Sea Level 
Rise. 

 
Motion made to adopt the Southeast Florida Compact Unified Sea Level Rise Projection for 
2015 and subsequent changes as the accepted projections of Sea Level Rise.  Motion made 
by Richard Chervony and seconded by Nick Quay.  Approved 4/0 

 
d) Request to Invite the PURA Group 

 
Discussion on PURA Group request.  Was decided that we are the wrong group at present to 
hear this item and it should be referred to Village Manager, Purchasing and Public Works.  
Village Manager to set up a meeting with PURA Group and Public Works to get the ball rolling.  
It was also suggested by a member of the audience if available, sample packets be distributed 
to interested households for testing of the product. 
 
Rachel Streitfeld also commented that we need to set an example and look for solutions in 
replacing the single use mini water bottles that are disseminated at public meetings by the 
Village. 

 
5. Public Comments 

 
Meeting was opened to the floor for comments.  Several suggestions were issued in regards to 
other cities and villages work in fighting Sea Level Rise with the use of Master Gardeners and 
plants that absorb the excess water. 
 

6. Adjournment 
 
 Motion to adjourn by Denise O’Brien, seconded by Richard Chervony.  Approved 4/0. 
 

Page 15



Agenda 
Sustainability and Resiliency Task Force 

March 26, 2019 
 

4 
 

 Meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
 Prepared by: Richard Chervony, Secretary 
 
 Approved by the Sustainability and Resiliency Task Force 
 
 This _______ day of ____________________, 2019. 
 
  
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Denise O’Brien, Chair 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



RESOLUTION NO.  19-____ 
 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND VILLAGE 

COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, 
APPROVING THE NEAT STREETS MIAMI MATCHING 
GRANT AWARD FROM MIAMI DADE COUNTY PARKS, 
RECREATION, AND OPEN SPACES DEPARTMTNT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $5,007.00; AUTHORIZING THE 
VILLAGE MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE 
THE TREE PLANTING AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY INTERIM 
VILLAGE MANAGER RALPH ROSADO) 
 

 
WHEREAS, the 2019 Neat Streets Miami Matching Grant Program (the “Program”) 

made funds available to municipalities and organizations to plant street trees as part the Miami-
Dade County’s efforts to reach the Million Trees Miami goal of achieving a 30% tree canopy; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, Miami Dade County has granted funds in the total amount of $5,007.00 to 

North Bay Village; and 
  
WHEREAS, the funds will be used to supplement the purchase of thirteen (13) trees 

throughout the Village in accordance with the Tree Planting Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Program requires a cost share of $5,007.00 or 50% of the total cost of 

the purchase and installation of the trees; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Village desires to allocate funds from the tree replacement trust fund in 

the amount of $5,007.00 or 50% of the total cost of the purchase and installation of the trees; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Village finds that this resolution will promote the health, safety and 

welfare of the Village’s Police Officers.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND VILLAGE 

COMMISSIONERS OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Recitals Adopted.  That each of the above stated recitals is hereby adopted and 
confirmed. 

  
Section 2. Grant Accepted.  The acceptance of the award of a 2019 Neat Streets 

Miami Matching Grant in the amount of $5,007.00 is hereby approved in substantially the form as 
attached in Exhibit “A”.    
  

Section 3.  Village Manager Authorized.  The Village Manager is authorized to 
execute the contract documents accepting funding in the amount of $5,007.00 and provide the 
required match. 

Page 51



2 
 

 
Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption. 
 

 PASSED and ADOPTED this _______day of April 2019. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was offered by _____________________, who moved for its 
adoption.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner __________________, and upon being 
put to vote as follows: 
 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Brent Latham   __________ 
Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth  __________ 
Commissioner Jose Alvarez  __________ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson __________ 
Commissioner Juliana Strout  __________ 
 
  PASS AND ADOPTED this ______ day of February 2019. 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Brent Latham, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Elora Riera, CMC 
Village Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
__________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, PL 
INTERIM VILLAGE ATTORNEY     
       

Page 52



1 
 

 

 

Miami‐ Dade County 
Parks, Recreation, and Open Spaces Department 

STREET TREE MATCHING GRANT PROGRAM 
 

TREE PLANTING AGREEMENT 
 

Grantee: ____________________ 

 

Amount: ___________________       

 

Grant Description:  To plant trees with municipalities and organizations on Miami‐Dade’s corridors as 

part of our efforts to reach the Million Trees Miami goal of achieving a 30% tree canopy. 

 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”), made and entered into this ____ day of _________, 20___, by and 

between ________________________ (the “Grantee”) and Miami‐Dade County (the “County”), 

hereinafter called the “County” through its Parks, Recreation, Open Spaces Department (the 

“Department”). 

The County and Grantee have agreed to partner on the implementation of 

___________________________________   (project name) to be completed by ________________.    

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the County desires to  increase the tree canopy  in Miami‐Dade County and to reach 

the Million Trees Miami goal of achieving a 30% tree canopy ; and 

WHEREAS, the County has provided a subaccount to the tree trust fund for the procurement of 

street trees along county and  local roads and of this amount $__________ (the “Grant Funds”) will be 

provided to the Grantee on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS,  the Grantee wishes  to undertake  such  activities provided  in  the  scope of work  in 

Exhibit A of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee is responsible for the maintenance of the street trees after completion of 

the project; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the County and Grantee agree as follows: 

   

Page 53

e37417
Typewritten Text

e37417
Typewritten Text
North Bay Village

e37417
Typewritten Text
$5,007.00

e37417
Typewritten Text
North Bay Village

e37417
Typewritten Text
July 26, 2019

e37417
Typewritten Text
5,007.00

e37417
Typewritten Text

e37417
Typewritten Text

e37417
Typewritten Text
North Bay Village Tree Planting Project



2 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT 

A. Requirements for approval of Grant Award Agreement: As a prerequisite to its receipt of the 
Grant Funds, the Grantee shall meet the requirements set forth below to the County’s 
satisfaction.  Requirements for this grant are listed below.  
 

1. Timeline: The following grant project start date, end date and reporting dates must be 
adhered to.  
 
Start date: _Contract Execution Date 
End date: ___________________ 
Final report date: ____________________ 
 

2. Scope of Work: It is mutually agreed and understood that the scope of work shall be as 
provided in Exhibit A (Grant Application Package). Scope of Work must adhere to: 

- All trees must be canopy natives or Florida Friendly trees. 

- Trees shall have a minimum overall height of 12 feet and 2‐inch caliper at time 
of installation, unless under overhead power lines. 

- When installed in roadways, trees shall have a maximum average spacing of 35’ 
on center and be placed within 7’ of the edge of the roadway pavement and/or 
where present, within 7’ of the sidewalk. 

- If trees are proposed under overhead power lines, these shall have a minimum 
overall height of 8 feet and a minimum caliper of 1½‐inch at time of planting. 
The maximum average spacing in this case shall be 25 feet. 

- Ensure that trees are installed in a way that complies with site triangle 
regulations and are not planted within no planting zones. 

- All trees shall have and be maintained with a trunk clearance of 4 feet. 

- All trees must conform to the standards for a Florida No. 1 or better, as 
provided in the most current edition of the “Florida Grades and Standards for 
Nursery Plants”. 

- Each Grantee is encouraged to review the Miami Dade County Landscape 
Ordinance, Chapter 18 A, to ensure that the tree installation will be in full 
compliance with the County’s requirements 
 

3. Budget: It is mutually agreed and understood that the project costs shall be as provided 
in Exhibit A (Grant Application Package).  The match amount has to equal or exceed the 
grant amount.  If matching requirement will be met through the provision of in‐kind 
service, the County shall approve the value or cost or the in‐kind services to be provided 
to fulfill the matching requirements.  Match must remain the same or exceed the 
percent referenced in the original application.     
 

4. Promotions: All promotions must adhere to the Neat Streets Miami Media Release 
Guidelines.  The grantee will agree to prepare a draft of a Press Release which describes 
its project and acknowledges Neat Streets Miami and Million Trees Miami, which shall 
be subject to the County’s approval in advance of publication. The County shall also be 
acknowledged in any subsequent media releases or in any printed, website, social media 
or other communication materials related to the project. Copies of any other publicity 
as well as copies of any major work products generated in connection with this grant 

Page 54

e37417
Typewritten Text
July 26, 2019

e37417
Typewritten Text
August 16, 2019



3 
 

shall be forwarded to the County for review. Miami‐Dade County, Million Trees Miami 
and Neat Streets Miami logos should be included in all printed materials.  
 

5. Miami‐Dade County Tree Trust Fund:  Funds allocated to projects by the Street Tree 

Matching Grant come from mitigation funds collected by the Division of Environmental 

Resources Management, i.e. the Tree Trust Fund, and as such are encumbered for the 

planting of trees on public property. These funds shall not be used to satisfy tree 

mitigation per permitting or enforcement requirements. 

 

6. Conditions and Contingencies: The Grantee agrees that the Grant Funds will be used 

only for the purpose as stated in this Agreement, as described in the Scope of Work  and 

with no substantial variance to the approved Budget (See Exhibit A) unless prior 

approval in writing is obtained from the County. The Grantee certifies that the grantee 

organization operates under a tax‐exempt status. If grantee determines that Grant 

Funds cannot be expended by _____________(end date), the grantee must notify 

liaison immediately and no later than______________. 

 
 

B. Additional Requirements due throughout the funding period:   
 

1. Reporting: Final Report must be submitted electronically by _ __________. Refer to 
Exhibit B for reporting guidelines. 

2. Data Tracking: All trees planted must be mapped according to County specifications.   
3. Organizational Status Changes: The Grantee must notify the County liaison within two 

weeks of changes in organizational status, including but not limited to: key personnel 
such as senior or project staff, organizational name, tax status, and organizational 
address. 

4. Other Organizational Changes: The Grantee will notify the County’s liaison of any 
organizational changes, such as new address or contact information 

 
C. Indemnification of County 

 
Subject to the limitations on liability set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statues (to the extent the 
entity is a State or local government), the Grantee agrees to indemnify, save, and hold the County 
harmless from all liability, loss, cost, and expense, including attorneys' fees and court costs at all 
trial  and  appellate  levels, which may  be  sustained  by  the  County,  to  any  person,  natural  or 
artificial, by reason of the death of or injury to any person or damage to any property, whether or 
not due to or caused by the negligence of the Grantee, arising from or  in connection with the 
Grantee’s  (or  its  employees,  agents,  contractors,  subcontractors,  licensees,  or  invitees) 
installation and/or maintenance of trees on County property or in the County right‐of‐way.  The 
Grantee agrees to defend, at its sole cost and expense, but at no cost and expense to the County, 
any and all suits or actions instituted against the County for the imposition of such liability, loss, 
cost, and expense arising  from or  in connection with  the Grantee’s  (or  its employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors,  licensees, or  invitees)  installation and/or maintenance of trees on 
County property or in the County right‐of‐way. 

 
 

Page 55

e37417
Typewritten Text
July 26, 2019

e37417
Typewritten Text
June 1, 2019

e37417
Typewritten Text

e37417
Typewritten Text
August 16, 2019



4 
 

Primary Grant Contract: 
Provide the information below for the primary contact person for this grant.  This is the person to whom 
all correspondence will be directed. 
 
Name: ________________________________ 

Title:__________________________________ 

Mailing Address:_________________________ 

City, State, Zip:___________________________ 

Phone:_________________________________ 

Email:__________________________________ 

Website:________________________________ 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these present to be executed on the 

day and year first written above. 

 

NAME OF GRANTEE: ____________________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

BY: ___________________________________________  DATE: ___________________________ 

Grantee Representatives’ Signature 

 

PRINT NAME ___________________________________  TITLE: ___________________________ 

 

 

MIAMI‐DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

BY: ___________________________________________  DATE: ______________________ 

Director Parks, Recreation, and Open Spaces 

 

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: _______________________________  DATE: ___________________________ 

County Attorney 

   

Page 56

lakee
Typewritten Text
Ralph Rosado

lakee
Typewritten Text
Interim Village Manager

lakee
Typewritten Text
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300

lakee
Typewritten Text
North Bay Village, FL 33141

lakee
Typewritten Text
305-756-7171 Ext.24

lakee
Typewritten Text
rrosado@nbvillage.com

lakee
Typewritten Text
nbvillage.com

lakee
Typewritten Text
North Bay Village

lakee
Typewritten Text
1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village, FL 33141

lakee
Typewritten Text
Ralph Rosado

lakee
Typewritten Text
Interim Village Manager



5 
 

 
 
EXHIBIT A:  GRANT APPLICATION PACKAGE SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 
 
 
 

[INSERT GRANT APPLICATION PACKAGE HERE] 

 

   

Page 57



2/18/2019 The Easiest Online Form Builder | JotForm

https://www.jotform.com/myforms/ 1/2

Submission Date 2019-01-31 16:03:07

Name of Organization North Bay Village

Address Street Address: 1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300
 City: North Bay Village

 State / Province: FL
 Postal / Zip Code: 33141

 Country: United States
 

Municipality, Non-Profit or
Community Group

Municipality

Contact Name (Person filling out
application)

LaKeesha Morris

Job Title Grants Consultant

E-mail info@belltowergroup.org

Phone Number (786) 232-0771

Project Manager (If awarded) Tim Smith

E-mail timsmith@nbvillage.com

Phone Number (305) 756-7171

Project Title North Bay Village Tree Planting Project

Location of Planting North Bay Village has identified two street corridors and one park to plant fifteen (15) street trees.
Corridor 1: 1735 North Treasure Drive in the center median between Mutiny Ave and Hispaniola Ave.
Corridor 2: 7900 Harbor Island Drive in bulb outs along East Drive Park 1: Along walking path at Dr.
Paul Vogel Park 7920 West Drive

Miami-Dade County Commission
District (project location)

4

County or Local Road? Local Road

Please confirm you have received
permission from governing
jurisdiction of project location?

Please state the local jurisdiction North Bay Village

Description of Trees The Village will plant twelve (12) Quercus virginiana (Cathedral Live Oak) and three (3) Bursera
simaruba (Gumbo Limbo). Both tree species are Florida Native canopy trees and of grade #1 quality.
The size of the trees will range from 15-65 gallons. The trees will be planted by Village Staff and
therefore the Village will get quotes from local nurseries, and plant the largest size tree for the amount
identified in the attached budget. Following right tree, right place guidelines all trees are planted in areas
where there is no interference with overhead power lines.

Target area’s existing tree canopy 10%

Is the project area low-to-
moderate income?

No

Goals of Project The goal of this project is to increase tree canopy and encourage residents to walk for short distance
trips. This project will benefit all residents of North Bay Village. The Village is a small three island
community with little green space. Although the Village is not identified as a low-moderate income
community, there is one public school in the Village - Treasure Island Elementary, a Title I school with

Page 58



2/18/2019 The Easiest Online Form Builder | JotForm

https://www.jotform.com/myforms/ 2/2

89% students receiving free-reduced lunch. Trees planted along the corridor of East Drive and Treasure
Island Drive provide canopy for residents as they walk to access public transit or walk to school. Paul
Vogel Park is one of only two parks located in the Village. Shade trees along the walking path of the
park provides residents with shade as they exercise on the outdoor fitness equipment.

Project Impact and Enhancements Fifteen (15) total trees will be planted: twelve (12) Quercus virginiana (Cathedral Live Oak) and three
(3) Bursera simaruba (Gumbo Limbo). The Village is not designated as a Tree City; however, Village
staff has reviewed the eligibility requirements and is researching the feasibility of joining and
maintaining the status. This project will enhance trees at our local park and tot lot, a waterfront park
where trees were lost following Hurricane Irma.

Community Engagement Plan The Village's primary methods of communicating with residents is through the website, social media,
and delivering flyers through direct mail (utility bill) or door to door canvassing. The Village has a
Beautification Advisory Board that has expressed a desire for more shade trees throughout the Village.
The Village's elected officials host monthly live chats on social media, and our efforts to increase tree
canopy will be discussed. Finally, the Village will send out a press release to local news outlets
promoting the project.

Maintenance Plan In the short-term the trees will be monitored daily and watered during the 60 day grow-in period. No
fertilizer will be used unless recommended by a licensed arborist to minimize pollutants to Biscayne
Bay. The Village's public works staff will continue to monitor the trees weekly and prune the trees as
necessary. If a tree is not thriving, a licensed arborist will inspect the tree and recommend the next
course of action. The Village has a tree maintenance allowance in the approved budget, and these trees
will be maintained until they reach the end of life.

Three Anticipated Measurable
Outcomes

1. Plant 15 Florida Native Trees by June 30, 2019. 2. Educate 1,000 residents on the proper maintenance
of trees and right tree right place principles by August 30, 2019. 3. Host one ceremonial tree planting in
celebration of Earth Day/Arbor Day to kick off the tree planting efforts.

Does the municipality /
organization agree to enter into an
Interlocal Agreement for periodic
reporting for tree plantings by
January 31, 2019?

Yes

Project Timeline Contract Execution with Neat Streets and procurement of trees - 3/1/2019 - 3/30/2019 Finalize planting
sites and notify residents-4/1/2019 - 4/30/2019 Plant Trees - 5/1/2019-6/30/2019 Monitor Newly Planted
Trees - 6/30/2019-8/30/2019 Submit Final Reports - 9/1/2019-9/30/2019

Amount of Grant Funds
Requested in $

5007.00

Amount of Matched Funds in $ 0

In-kind / Grant / Donations in $ 5007.00

Please describe in-kind, grants or
donations, if any

In-Kind includes cost for force account labor, force account equipment, and supplies.

Total Budget 10014.00

Additional comments? The Village Manager and Attorney is reviewing the reporting agreement to determine if Commission
approval is necessary. The Village will send it to Neat Streets once it is signed.

Landscape Rendering: Neat Streets Tree Plan-NBV.pdf
 

Before Photos NBV-Images of Tree Sites.pdf
 

Detailed Budget NBV-Neat Streets 2019-Budget.pdf
 

If the Interlocal Agreement has
not been signed by grantee by the
submission deadline, when do you
anticipate your organization
signing the Interlocal Agreement?

02-28-2019

Page 59

https://www.jotform.com/uploads/ycamejo/83026358559162/4247777865411554782/Neat%20Streets%20Tree%20Plan-NBV.pdf
https://www.jotform.com/uploads/ycamejo/83026358559162/4247777865411554782/NBV-Images%20of%20Tree%20Sites.pdf
https://www.jotform.com/uploads/ycamejo/83026358559162/4247777865411554782/NBV-Neat%20Streets%202019-Budget.pdf


DETAILED BUDGET 

REQUIRED TEMPLATE

Cost Estimate Per 

Tree

Number of 

Trees
Grant Funds Match Funds

Total Estimated 

Budget

DIRECT COSTS:

Quercus virginiana (Cathedral Live Oak)  700.00$     12 4,200.00$    4,200.00$    8,400.00$    

Bursera simaruba (Gumbo Limbo) 500.00$     3 807.00$    693.00$    1,500.00$    

-$    

Total number of trees 15 -$    

INDIRECT COSTS -$    

Inkind Labor* -$    114.00$    114.00$    

TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS: 5,007.00$    5,007.00$    10,014.00$    

PROPOSED BUDGET

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING PROJECT

*In-Kind = Village staff to inspect trees prior to planting - $28.50/hr x 4 hours.

Tree size will range from 14' to 16'

Page 60



 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING PROJECT 

                                                           

Three (3) Cathedral Oak Trees  
1735 North Treasure Drive- center median between Mutiny Ave and Hispaniola Ave   

Power lines are located on the south side of street 35 feet from planting area. 
 

 

 

 

Page 61



 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING PROJECT 

 

 

 

 

 

Nine (9) Cathedral Oak Trees 
7900 Harbor Island Drive in bulb outs along East Drive. 

Power lines located across the street from planting area, no interference. 
 

Page 62



 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING PROJECT 

  

 

Three (3) Gumbo Limbo Trees   
Dr. Paul Vogel Park 7920 West Drive 

Power located front of park 150 feet east of the planting area, No interference. 

Page 63



 
 

Page 1 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

1735 North Treasure Drive 

 

Page 64



 
 

Page 2 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 65



 
 

Page 3 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Harbor Island Drive Bulb Outs 

 

 

Page 66



 
 

Page 4 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 67



 
 

Page 5 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 68



 
 

Page 6 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 69



 
 

Page 7 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 70



 
 

Page 8 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 71



 
 

Page 9 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 72



 
 

Page 10 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Dr. Paul Vogel Park 

 

Page 73



 
 

Page 11 of 11 
 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE TREE PLANTING SITES 

 

Page 74



6 
 

Exhibit B:  GRANTEE FINAL REPORT 
20__  Matching Street Trees Grants Program    

 

Organization’s name: ________________________________ 
Person completing report and title: _____________________ 
Phone: ____________________________________________ 
Email:_____________________________________________ 
 
 
Submit Final Report by __________________. 
 
Narrative:  In no more than two pages, please share the information below about the program 
supported by Miami‐Dade County and Neat Streets Miami.  
 

1. Summarize in a few sentences what you have accomplished to date: What you have done; for 
whom and how many; how they have benefitted? How many trees planted using grant funds 
and matched funds? 
 

2. Have you accomplished to date what you expected to in terms of implementing the project? If 
not, why not? Did you encounter any unexpected challenges and if so what adjustments did you 
need to make? 
 

3. Has this project had an impact on the broader community issue or systems you seek to 
improve? If so, how? Do you plan to sustain this program when our grant ends, and if so, what 
are your plans for doing so? Has our grant helped you secure other dollars or resources you 
need to sustain it? If so, please explain. 

 
Optional: Tell us a story about the program’s impact ‐ one that reflects how this program is making a 
difference in people’s lives or an accomplishment that makes you particularly proud. 
 
Outcomes: Refer to Three Anticipated Outcomes, as described in awardee’s grant application.  What 
were the top three outcomes you wanted to achieve for those you reached and served that would show 
how participants were better off as a result of the program? What results did you achieve? 
 

What was the desired outcome?  What were your results? 

   

   

   

 

Did this project shade a bus or trolley stop?  If so, please provide the location(s). 
_____________________________________________________________________________________  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Did this project shade a gateway or transit corridor? If so, please provide the location(s). 
_____________________________________________________________________________________  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 75



7 
 

 
Did this project shade a street leading to a park or a school? Did this project shade a park or school?  If 
so, please provide the location and name of the park and/or school. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Did the organization enter into an interlocal agreement to report tree planting with Miami‐Dade 
County? If so, provide a copy of the executed agreement.  If not, please explain.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Outreach and Activities: List the main activities listed in your outreach plan in the grant application and 
provide information related to each 
 

What was the activity? 
(Include where, when and how often activities 

took place.) 

How many did you reach? 

   

   

   

 
 
Financial Reporting: List invoice, invoice date, description of services, check number and check date 
associated with this project.   
 

Invoice 
Number 

Invoice 
Date 

Description of 
Services 

Check 
Number 

Check 
Date 

Check 
Amount 

           

           

           

 
Required Attachments: 

- Final Approved Budget 

- Invoices 

- Proof of Payment 

- Final Approved Landscape Plan 

-  “After” photos illustrating how corridor was transformed.   

- Data Tracking Report: include DBH and latitude/longitude coordinates for each tree planted with 
grant and match funds 

- Outreach Efforts: Press Release, educational materials and photos of outreach efforts or other 
materials that reflect your work, its impact and any references to Miami‐Dade County and Neat 
Streets Miami support.   

 
Please submit this Exhibit B Grantee Final Report and related attachments by email in one PDF 
document to: Jennifer.Llorente@miamidade.gov 
 

Page 76



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

 

MAYORS’ CLIMATE ACTION PLEDGE    
 

A PLEDGE OF THE MUNICIPALITIES OF [INSERT NAME] 
COUNTY ENDORSING THE MAYORS’ CLIMATE ACTION 
PLEDGE, AFFIRMING SUPPORT FOR THE SOUTHEAST 
FLORIDA REGIONAL CLIMATE CHANGE COMPACT, 
AGREEING TO CONSIDER IMPLEMENTING THE 
REGIONAL CLIMATE ACTION PLAN IN WHOLE OR IN 
PART AS APPROPRIATE FOR EACH MUNICIPALITY, 
AND URGING ALL MAYORS OF [INSERT NAME] COUNTY 
TO SUPPORT THE MAYORS’ CLIMATE ACTION PLEDGE. 
 
 

WHEREAS, Florida is considered one of the most vulnerable areas of the 

country to the consequences of global climate change with Southeast Florida being at 

the frontline to experience the impacts of a changing climate, especially sea level rise; 

and  

WHEREAS, in recognition of the need for immediate, coordinated and visionary 

action to address the impacts of a changing climate and provide for economic and 

environmental resilience in Southeast Florida, in 2010 the counties of Palm Beach, 

Broward, Miami-Dade and Monroe (Compact Partners) entered into the Southeast 

Florida Regional Climate Change Compact (Compact); and  

WHEREAS, further recognizing the role of State water managers and local 

governments in this regional initiative, the South Florida Water Management District and 

one municipal representative from each participating county were invited to participate 

in this early phase; and    

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Compact commitment and through a two 

year collaborative process involving nearly 100 subject matter experts representing  

public and private sectors, universities, and not-for-profit organizations, the Compact 

Partners developed the Regional Climate Action Plan (RCAP); and  

Page 77



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the RCAP offers recommendations that provide the common 

integrated framework for a stronger and more resilient Southeast Florida, including: 

• Providing the common framework for Sustainable Communities and 

Transportation Planning to be aligned across the region 

• Recognizing the need to protect and address vulnerable Water Supply, 

Management and Infrastructure and preserve fragile Natural Systems and 

Agricultural resources 

• Providing steps to move towards resilience and reducing emissions 

through exploring alternatives and decreasing the use of Energy and Fuel 

• Building upon strength as effective emergency responders and integrating 

climate change hazards in Risk Reduction and Emergency Management 

Planning 

• Providing for effective Public Outreach initiatives to educate the public on 

the consequences of climate change and providing guidance for 

developing and influencing Public Policies related to climate change; and 

WHEREAS, recognizing that there are more than 100 municipalities within the 

region that will play an important role in the implementation of the RCAP, the Compact 

Partners included municipalities in the development of the RCAP; and   

WHEREAS, municipalities individually have been working to achieve 

sustainability, and the RCAP presents an opportunity to align these individual local 

efforts with the regional framework and vision; and  

WHEREAS, municipalities and Leagues of Cities played a key role in the annual 

Regional Climate Leadership Summits, participated in RCAP Working Groups and now 

is the time to solidify local government support to advance the RCAP; and 

Page 78



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

 

3 
 

WHEREAS, the RCAP does not provide a mandate but rather serves as a living 

document (guidance) with options that each regional and local government may align to 

their own plans and adopt and utilize based on their interests and vision for the future; 

and  

WHEREAS, the willingness of counties and municipalities to jointly develop and 

advocate for mutually beneficial agreements, policies and strategies intended to 

influence regional, state and national resilience efforts advances “Good Neighbor” 

relationships; and 

WHEREAS, in 2005 the U.S. Conference of Mayors adopted the U.S. Mayors’ 

Climate Protection Agreement (Mayors’ Agreement) that became a national model for 

effective collaboration and the framework for more than 1,000 municipalities throughout 

the nation to take actions to reduce global warming and address the impacts of a 

changing climate (climate disruption); and  

WHEREAS, in 2012 the need exists for Mayors within the region of Southeast 

Florida to collaborate on a renewed agreement that will advance regional climate action 

planning within Southeast Florida efforts while continuing to advance the national goals 

of the U.S. Mayors’ Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, utilizing the U.S. Mayors’ Agreement as a model for influencing 

regional climate policies and effective public outreach, all municipalities throughout the 

Southeast Florida region are invited to sign on to the 2012 South Florida Mayors’ 

Climate Action Pledge and to collaborate on implementation of the RCAP starting today 

and for tomorrow; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT PLEDGED THAT:  

Page 79



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

 

4 
 

 

Section 1. The municipality of ___________ endorses the Mayors’ Climate 

Action Pledge. 

Section 2.    The municipality of ____________ affirms support for the Southeast 

Florida Regional Climate Change Compact. 

Section 3.    The municipality of  ____________ agrees to consider integrating 

the Regional Climate Action Plan framework in whole or in part as appropriate for each 

municipality into existing and future municipal sustainability action plans, 

comprehensive plans and/or climate action plans where and when appropriate and 

financially feasible.  

           Section 4.  The municipality of ___________ urges all Mayors within [INSERT 

NAME] County to join the Mayors’ Climate Action Pledge.  

            Section 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 This Pledge shall become effective upon adoption. 

  

 ADOPTED this                day                                       , 2013. 

 

 

Page 80



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-    

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AMENDING TITLE IV, CHAPTER 32, 
ENTITLED “DEPARTMENTS AND BOARDS,” OF THE 
VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND CHAPTER 4, 
“ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT,” BY 
MODIFYING THE COMPOSITION OF THE PLANNING AND 
ZONING BOARD; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission of North Bay Village (the “Village”) wishes to increase 

resident participation in the Village’s land development process; and 

WHEREAS, to accomplish that objective, the Village Commission desire to change 

the composition of the Planning and Zoning Board by increasing its membership by two 

(2) members; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Commission finds that this amendment improves the 

quality of life within the Village and is in the best interest of its residents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated. The above-stated recitals are hereby 

confirmed, adopted, and incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference.  

Section 2. Village Code of Ordinances Amended.  The North Bay Village 

Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read, as follows: 

 
Chapter 4 – ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
 

Page 81



*  *  * 
DIVISION 2. – COMMISSION, BOARD, AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS 
 

*  *  * 
§ 4.10  Planning and Zoning Board. 

*  *  * 
C.  Board membership. 

*  *  * 
2.   Membership of the board will consist of five seven members to be appointed by 

the Village Commission. Members shall be appointed for a term of two years, 
coinciding with the term of office of Village Commissioners. 

 

*  *  * 
E.   Quorum and voting. 

The presence of three four members constitutes a quorum. A majority vote of the 
board shall be required on all decisions and recommendations to be made to the 
Village Commission.  

*  *  * 
 

Chapter 32 – DEPARTMENTS AND BOARDS 

*  *  * 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

§ 32.30 - Creation; members. 

(A) Created; composition. A Planning & Zoning Board is hereby created which shall 
be composed of five seven members to be appointed by the Village 
Commission. The Board shall be composed of one member from North Bay 
Island, one member from Harbor Island, one member from Treasure Island and 
two four at-large members. 

 
*  *  * 

 
Section 3. Conflict.  All Sections or parts of Sections of the Code of 

Ordinances, all ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, or parts of 

Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 

Page 82



any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 

they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 

Section 5. Inclusion in Code. The provisions of this Ordinance shall become 

and be made a part of the City Code, that the sections of this Ordinance may be 

renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intentions, and that the word Ordinance 

shall be changed to Section or other appropriate word 

Section 6. Implementation.  The Village Manager, Village Attorney, and Village 

Clerk are hereby authorized to take such further action as may be needed to implement 

the purpose and provisions of this Ordinance  

Section 7. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon adoption on second reading.  

 
  

Page 83



The foregoing Ordinance was offered by Commissioner __________________, 
who moved its adoption on first reading.  This motion was seconded by Commissioner 
______________ and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
Mayor Brent Latham    ______ 
Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth   ______ 
Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez   ______ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson   ______ 
Commissioner Julianna Strout   ______ 
 
 
 PASSED on first reading on this   of April, 2019. 
  
 PASSED AND ENACTED on second reading on this   day of ____________, 2019.    
      

       _____________________________ 
       Brent Latham, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elora Riera, 
Village Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
__________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, PL 
INTERIM VILLAGE ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 84



Page 1 of 4 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST TO AMEND THE STIPULATION 
ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION 92-39 FOR PROPERTY GENERALLY 
LOCATED AT 7601 EAST TREASURE DRIVE TO AMEND THE 
PARKING REQUIREMENTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY) 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 28, 1992, the Village entered into a Stipulation (the 

“Stipulation”) for the purposes of settlement and resolution of litigation with the then property 

owner of property generally located at 7601 East Treasure Drive, now known as Grandview Palace 

Condominiums (“Grandview Palace”) for the purposes of setting parking requirements; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Commission of North Bay Village (the “Village Commission”) 

approved the Stipulation pursuant to Resolution No. 92-39 on December 22, 1992; and   

WHEREAS, the Stipulation set a parking requirement for Grandview Palace 

Condominium of 1,119 parking spaces based on the number and mix of residential units, the 

existing retail area, and boat slips that were in place or approved for completion at that time; and 

WHEREAS, Paragraph 6 of the Stipulation provided that if off-site parking was obtained 

by Grandview Palace, a covenant running with the land would be required and that said covenant 

would be subject to release or modification only by resolution of the Village Commission; and  

WHEREAS¸ on September 8, 1995, the property located at 1850 79th Street Causeway 

(the K-Lot) was dedicated to provide off-site parking for Grandview Palace through the recording 

of a Covenant Running with the Land in the Official Records Book of Miami-Dade County at BK 

16914, Page 0870 (the “Covenant”) pursuant to the Stipulation; and 

WHEREAS, subsequently, a 2012 Final Judgment confirmed that the requirements of the 

Page 85



stipulation and covenant were open for revision stating “Nothing in this Order prevents… 

modification of the stipulation and the covenant running with the land, nor the elimination of it 

entirely if the parties agree”; and  

WHEREAS, The Atkinson Trust, LLC, is the current owner of the K-Lot; and  

WHEREAS, Baranof Holdings, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability Company, (K-Lot 

Contract Owner) is the contract purchaser of the K-Lot; and 

WHEREAS, K-Lot Contract Owner has filed, and the Village Commission has approved, 

applications for site plan for the K-Lot and parking waiver for Grandview Palace1 have been 

approved providing for redevelopment on the K-Lot upon the completion of the purchase, which 

redevelopment will include retail and public storage, parking for Grandview Palace and parking 

available for the public (the “2019 Approval”) and  

WHEREAS, the 2019 Approval requires modification of the Stipulation to address the 

amount of required parking, pursuant to the Village Code of Ordinances for Grandview Palace ; 

and 

WHEREAS, upon completion of the purchase of the K-Lot property, K-Lot Contract 

Owner and Grandview Palace desire, consistent with the 2019 Approval, to enter into the 

Stipulation with the Village addressing the Grandview on-site and off-site (K-Lot) parking 

requirement; and  

WHEREAS, all other parts of the Stipulation will remain in full force and effect; and  

WHEREAS, the amended Stipulation will preserve the necessary required parking for 

Grandview Palace, as approved by the 2019 Approval, while supporting redevelopment, the 

Village goals for community revitalization, and provide much needed public parking. 

                                            
1 Grandview Place is a co- applicant for the parking waiver. 

Page 86



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. Recitals.  
 

The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this Resolution by this reference.  
 
Section 2. Approval. 
 
Paragraph 1 of the Stipulation as adopted by the Village in Resolution No. 92-39 is hereby 
amended as follows2: 

 
Section 3. Stipulation Ratification.  
 
The Stipulation, as adopted on December 22, 1992 in Resolution No. 92-39, and executed on 
December 28, 1992, as amended by this Resolution, remains in full force and effect in 
accordance with the terms and conditions thereof.   All other terms, covenants, stipulations and 
Resolutions not otherwise amended are hereby confirmed and ratified. 
 
Section 4. Other Approvals.     
 
Approval of this request does not constitute a development approval and does not in any way create 
a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not 
create liability on the part of the Village for approval if the applicant fails to obtain requisite 
approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that 
result in a violation of federal or state law. 
 
Section 5.  Authorization.    Upon transfer of title of the K-Lot from The Atkinson Trust, LLC, 
to Baranof Holdings, LLC, the Village Manager is directed to execute the First Amendment to the 
Stipulation, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, subject to such changes as to form as may 
be acceptable to the Village Attorney.  It is understood and agreed that no Party to the First 
Amendment to the Stipulation will execute the agreement until after Baranof Holdings, LLC has 
obtained title to the K-Lot. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date.   

 
This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.  The Stipulation shall become 
effective only upon execution by the Village, Grandview Palace Condominium Association, and 
Baranof Holdings, LLC upon conveyance of title of the K-Lot off-site parking parcel located at 
1850 Kennedy Causeway to Baranof Holdings, LLC. 

 
 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by __________, who moved for its adoption.  This 
                                            
 
 

Page 87



motion was seconded by __________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as 
follows: 
 
 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Brent Latham    __________   
Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth   __________ 
Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez  __________ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson  __________ 
Commissioner Julianna Strout  __________  
 

    PASSED and ADOPTED this _____ day of April, 2019. 
 

 
____________________________ 
MAYOR BRENT LATHAM  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
ELORA RIERA 
Village Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Village Attorney 

Page 88



Page 5 of 4 
 
 

First Amendment to Stipulation 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 28, 1992, the Village entered into a Stipulation (the 

“Stipulation”) for the purposes of settlement and resolution of litigation in Case No. 10330-CA-

28, Eleventh Judicial Circuit Dade County, Florida, with the then property owner of property 

generally located at 7601 East Treasure Drive, now known as Grandview Palace Condominiums 

(“Grandview Palace”) for the purposes of setting parking requirements; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Commission of North Bay Village (the “Village Commission”) 

approved the Stipulation pursuant to Resolution No. 92-39 on December 22, 1992; and   

WHEREAS, the Stipulation set a parking requirement for Grandview Palace 

Condominium of 1,119 parking spaces based on the number and mix of residential units, the 

existing retail area, and boat slips that were in place or approved for completion at that time; and 

WHEREAS, Paragraph 6 of the Stipulation provided that if off-site parking was obtained 

by Grandview Palace, a covenant running with the land would be required and that said covenant 

would be subject to release or modification only by resolution of the Village Commission; and  

WHEREAS¸ on September 8, 1995, the property located at 1850 79th Street Causeway 

(the K-Lot) was dedicated to provide off-site parking for Grandview Palace through the recording 

of a Covenant Running with the Land in the Official Records Book of Miami-Dade County at BK 

16914, Page 0870 (the “Covenant”) pursuant to the Stipulation; and 

WHEREAS, subsequently, a 2012 Final Judgment confirmed that the requirements of the 

stipulation and covenant were open for revision stating “Nothing in this Order prevents… 

modification of the stipulation and the covenant running with the land, nor the elimination of it 

entirely if the parties agree”; and  

Page 89



WHEREAS, Baranof Holdings, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability Company, (K-Lot 

Contract Owner) is the contract purchaser of the K-Lot; and 

WHEREAS, K-Lot Contract Owner has filed, and the Village Commission has approved1, 

applications for site plan for the K-Lot and parking waiver for Grandview Palace have been 

approved providing for redevelopment on the K-Lot upon the completion of the purchase, which 

redevelopment will include retail and public storage, parking for Grandview Palace and parking 

available for the public (the “2019 Approval”) and  

WHEREAS, the 2019 Approval requires modification of the Stipulation to address the 

amount of required parking pursuant to Village Code of Ordinances and the provision of 75 off-

site parking spaces on the K-Lot for Grandview Palace by K-Lot Contract Owner; and 

WHEREAS, this First Amendment to the Stipulation will preserve required parking for 

Grandview Palace while supporting redevelopment, the Village goals for community 

revitalization, and providing much needed public parking. 

WHEREAS, all other parts of the Stipulation will remain in full force and effect. 

NOW, Then, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants this day entered into 

the parties hereby agree the following Stipulation paragraphs are amended and all other provisions 

of the Stipulation remain in full force and effect2:  

1. The Project requires 1119 1057 parking spaces based on the number and mix of 
residential units, the existing retail area, and boat slips presently in place or 
approved for completion. Of said 1119  1057 spaces, all legally required 
handicapped spaces 22 shall conform to applicable City Code requirements for 
handicapped parking.  
 

2. Said 1119 spaces shall conform to current City Code requirements as relates to the 
percentage of allowable spaces that may be classified as “compact spaces.  Of the 

                                            
1 Grandview Palace was a co-applicant for the 2019 parking waiver application which waived the amount of off-site 
required parking for the Grandview Palace provided on the K-Lot from require 75 parking spaces off-site. 
2 Additions to the 1992 Stipulation are shown in underline.  Deletions to the 1992 Stipulation are shown in 
strikethrough.  

Page 90



approved  1057 required spaces, as provided by Village Code of Ordinances, 975 
spaces are located on-site and conform to the existing configuration and dimensions 
as provided in the “Grand View Palace – Existing Parking Layout” dated March 
2017, by Moino/Fernandez Architects, limited to Sheets A-1, A-2, A-5, A-6, A-7, 
and A-8, recognizing G2-457 is configured as two parking spaces and accounting 
for the elimination, or infeasible use, of spaces A82, E90, A-106, L-161, l-164, L-
160A, G1-384, and P-3.  Pursuant to the requirements of the Village Code, 
reconfiguration of the on-site parking requires written approval by the Village 
Manager.  The written approval from the Village amending the on-site 
configuration shall have the effect of modifying this paragraph.  In addition to the 
on-site parking, 75 parking spaces shall be provided off-site on the property located 
at 1850 Kennedy Causeway which spaces shall be dedicated for the use of 
Grandview Palace as provided for and as shown in the site plan submitted to the 
Village dated February 15, 2019.  Said off-site parking spaces shall conform to 
current City Code requirements for standard parking spaces.    

      
 
Baranof Holdings, LLC 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Andrew Aiken 
Managing Partner 
 
 
Grandview Palace 
Condominium Association 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
 
By:__________________________________ 

 
 

 North Bay Village 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Elora Riera 
Village Clerk Dr. Ralph Rosado 
 Interim Village Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Village Attorney 

Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______________ 1 
  2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 3 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, DECLARING A MORATORIUM FOR A 4 
PERIOD OF ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY (180) DAYS ON THE 5 
ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE 6 
REVIEW, SITE PLAN APPROVAL, AND BUILDING PERMITS 7 
FOR THE USE OF LAND FOR NEW PUBLIC SELF STORAGE 8 
FACILITIES; PROVIDING FOR WAIVERS; PROVIDING FOR 9 
VESTED RIGHTS; PROVIDING FOR APPEALS; PROVIDING 10 
FOR MODIFICATIONS TO VESTED DEVELOPMENTS; 11 
REQUIRING EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES; 12 
PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; PROVIDING FOR 13 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 14 
(INTRODUCED BY MAYOR BRENT LATHAM) 15 
 16 

WHEREAS, in recent years, the self-storage industry has proven to be one of the sectors 17 
with the most rapid growth in the Florida commercial real estate industry; and  18 

 19 
WHEREAS, to prevent the proliferation of self-storage facilities spreading too far, too 20 

fast, it is necessary to study the issue to determine the number and locations appropriate for 21 
North Bay Village (the “Village”) ; and 22 

 23 
WHEREAS, the Village’s desires a commercial corridor with interactive and dynamic 24 

uses that promote a vibrant and active lifestyle for Village residents; and 25 
 26 
WHEREAS, the Village continuously monitors and reviews the Village’s 27 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code to ensure appropriate development within the 28 
Village, and from time to time recognizes the need to study and amend aspects of same; and 29 

 30 
WHEREAS, the Village Mayor and Commission now desire to exercise its right to 31 

research and study the zoning standards necessary to appropriately locate and regulate public 32 
self-storage facilities within its jurisdictional boundaries, and therefore directs the Village 33 
Manager to return within one hundred twenty (120) days of this action with a report detailing the 34 
zoning recommendations for regulation of public self-storage facilities and a draft ordinance that 35 
provides revised zoning standards for public self-storage facilities; and  36 

 37 
WHEREAS, pending the adoption of the amended regulations, the Village desires to 38 

invoke a moratorium or pending ordinance doctrine as referenced in Smith v. City of Clearwater, 39 
383 So.2d 681 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1980), with respect to the Village’s Code of Ordinances and 40 
Unified Land Development Code, thereby deferring the acceptance, processing and approval of 41 
all applications for public self-storage facilities for a period of 180 days, or until the Commission 42 
adopts on second reading, the amendments under review and such amendments become 43 
effective, whichever occurs earlier, except as provided in this Ordinance; and 44 

 45 

Page 106



  

Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS, the Commission finds that this moratorium is in the best interest and 46 
welfare of the residents of the Village. 47 

 48 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 49 

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  50 
 51 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The above Recitals are confirmed, adopted, and incorporated 52 

herein and made a part hereof by this reference. 53 
 54 
Section 2.   Moratorium Imposed.  During the time that this Ordinance is in 55 

effect as specified herein, there shall be imposed a moratorium upon the submission and acceptance 56 
of applications for administrative review, site plan approval, and building permits for, and the 57 
issuance of any development orders and development permits that include provisions for the 58 
construction of, new public self-storage facilities within the corporate limits of the Village, unless 59 
otherwise excepted herein.   60 

 61 
Section 3. Term.  The moratorium imposed by this Section is temporary and, unless 62 

lifted earlier or extended by the Mayor and Commission, shall automatically expire six (6) months 63 
from the date of adoption of this Ordinance.  This moratorium will also be lifted upon the adoption 64 
of new land development regulations in the Village, the formulation of which shall be expeditiously 65 
pursued. 66 

 67 
Section 4.   Waivers.  The Mayor and Commission after a public hearing, may grant a 68 

waiver to the moratorium provided above and authorize the issuance of building permits for, and 69 
development orders and development permits that include provisions for the construction of,  new 70 
public self-storage facilities within the Village, where it is determined that the specific activity will 71 
not detrimentally affect the outcome and implementation of the comprehensive study process being 72 
undertaken by the Village for the development of appropriate and effective new public self-storage 73 
facilities regulations. 74 

 75 
Section 5. Vested Rights.  Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed or applied to 76 

abrogate the vested rights of a property owner to begin or complete development where the property 77 
owner can demonstrate each of the following: 78 
  (1)   An application(s) for administrative review, site plan approval, and/or 79 

building permits for public self-storage facilities was filed before, and/or  a 80 
governmental approval or issuance of same obtained prior to, the earlier of the 81 
issuance of a notice of zoning in progress or the effective date of this 82 
Ordinance; 83 

  (2)  Upon which the owner has detrimentally relied, in good faith, by making 84 
substantial expenditures; and 85 

  (3)  That it would be highly inequitable to deny the property owner the right to 86 
complete the development of the new public self-storage facilities. 87 

Any property owner claiming to have vested rights under this Section (4) must file an application 88 
with the Village Mayor and Commission for a vested rights determination within ninety (90) days 89 
of the effective date of this section. The application shall be accompanied by a fee of $500.00 and 90 
contain a sworn statement as to the basis upon which the vested rights are asserted, together with 91 

Page 107



  

Page 3 of 4 

documentation required by the Village and other documentary evidence supporting the claim. The 92 
Village Mayor and Commission shall hold a public hearing on the application and based upon the 93 
evidence submitted shall make a determination as to whether the sign owner has established vested 94 
rights. 95 
 96 
 Section 6. Appeals.  Appeals from final decisions by the Village Mayor and 97 
Commission under Sections (3) or (4) of this Ordinance shall be by the filing of a notice of appeal in 98 
the Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County in accordance with 99 
the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure for the review of the rulings of commissions or boards. 100 
 101 
 Section 7. Modification to Vested Development.  Within one hundred (120) days of a 102 
final determination of vested rights under Section (4), a property owner shall have the right to file an 103 
application requesting a modification to the vested development, notwithstanding the moratorium 104 
imposed by this section. In considering the applications, the Village Mayor and Commission shall 105 
apply all established criteria and land development regulations then in effect, including applicable 106 
concurrency regulations, and zoning in progress.  This right to apply for modification does not in 107 
any manner vest any rights, and such application shall be considered a new application subject to de 108 
novo proceedings. 109 
 110 
 Section 8. Exhaustion of administrative remedies.  No property owner claiming that 111 
this section as applied constitutes or would constitute a temporary or permanent taking of private 112 
property or an abrogation of vested rights may pursue such claim in court unless he or she has first 113 
exhausted the administrative remedies provided in this section. 114 
 115 
 Section 9.  Implementation.   The Village Manager, Village Clerk, and Village 116 
Attorney are hereby authorized and directed to implement the provisions of this Ordinance and to 117 
take any and all necessary administrative actions as may be appropriate by their position to 118 
execute the purpose of this Ordinance.  119 
  120 

Section 10.  Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 121 
severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for any reason be 122 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 123 
sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but they shall remain in effect, it 124 
being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity of any 125 
part.   126 

 127 
  Section 11.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 128 
adoption.   129 
 130 
 131 

[Remaining Page Left Blank] 132 
 133 
 134 
 135 
 136 
 137 

Page 108



  

Page 4 of 4 

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by _____________________________, who moved its 138 
adoption.  The motion was seconded by ____________________________, and upon being put 139 
to a vote, the vote was as follows: 140 
 141 
 142 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 143 
 144 
Mayor Brent Latham    ____________ 145 
Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth   ____________ 146 
Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez  ____________ 147 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson  ____________ 148 
Commissioner Julianna Strout  ____________ 149 
 150 
 151 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on FIRST READING THIS ___ day of __________ 2019.  152 
  153 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on SECOND READING THIS ___ day of __________ 2019.  154 
  155 
 156 
  157 
             __________________________________  158 
            BRENT LATHAN 159 
       MAYOR  160 
  161 
ATTEST: 162 
 163 
 164 
_______________________________ 165 
ELORA RIERA, CMC 166 
Village Clerk 167 
 168 
 169 
APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE SOLE USE 170 
AND RELIANCE OF THE VILLAGE: 171 
 172 
 173 
_______________________________ 174 
JAMES D. STOKES, BCS 175 
Special Counsel for the Village 176 
 177 
 178 
 179 
 180 
 181 
 182 
 183 

Page 109



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-    

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AMENDING TITLE XV, CHAPTER 
153, ENTITLED “CODE ENFORCEMENT,” OF THE 
VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY CLARIFY INGTHE 
MITIGATION PROCESS FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT 
FINES, THE ROLE OF THE VILLAGE ATTORNEY, THE 
ENFORCEMENT OF LIENS AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
VILLAGE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission of North Bay Village (the “Village”) wishes to clarify 

the procedures in its Code for mitigating code enforcement fines; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Attorney is authorized to represent the Village in all code 

enforcement hearings and may pursue other legal remedies to gain compliance with the 

Code; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Florida Supreme Court’s decision in City of Palm Bay 

v. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., 114 So. 3d 924 (2013), code enforcement liens do not have 

superiority status as special assessment liens; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 162.13, Florida Statutes, the Village is not 

prohibited from enforcing its Code by any other means; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 162.11, Florida Statutes, an aggrieved party, 

including the Village, may pursue an appeal of the Special Master’s order; and     

WHEREAS, the Village Commission finds that this amendment improves the 

quality of life within the Village and is in the best interest of its residents. 

Page 110



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated. The above-stated recitals are hereby 

confirmed, adopted, and incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference.  

Section 2. Village Code of Ordinances Amended.  Chapter 153 of the North 

Bay Village Code of Ordinances, entitled “Code Enforcement,” is hereby amended to 

read, as follows: 

*  *  * 
 

Chapter 153 - CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 

*  *  * 
 

§ 153.02 – Code Enforcement Officers, Special Masters and Village Attorney 
 

*  *  * 
 

(B) Special Masters. 

*  *  * 
 

(4)  The Special Master shall have the powers to: 

*  *  * 
(g)  Mitigate fines and costs previously assessed as provided by this 

Chapter.  

(h)  Take any action that is necessary to effectuate the powers of the 
Special Master consistent with the intent of this Code. 

 
(C) Village Attorney. 
 
 (1) The Village Attorney shall serve as counsel to the Village in the defense of 
appeals to the Special Mastercode enforcement hearings. The Village Attorney shall have 
the power, upon approval by the Village Commission, to initiate civil actions to enforce 
compliance with the Village Codefor declaratory and injunctive relief, and orders to 
compel, and to commence any other action to enforce civil fines, correction orders and 
orders of the Special Master, and to compromise and settle fines and penalties. 
 
§ 153.03 - Code enforcement procedures. 

Page 111



 
*  *  * 

 
(G) Liens; priority and foreclosure of liens. 
 
 (1) A certified copy of an order imposing a fine may be recorded in the public 
records of Miami-Dade County and shall, upon recording, constitute a lien against the 
land on which the violation exists and upon any other real or personal property owned by 
the violator. 
 
 (2) Liens shallmay be enforced by foreclosure in circuit court and subject to the 
provisions contained in F.S. § 162.09(3), as amended; provided, however, that the lien 
shall have the same priority, effect and duration as a special assessment lien. Liens shall 
have a duration of 20 years. 
 
 (3) Nothing contained in this chapter shall prohibit the Village from enforcing its 
Code by any other means. The enforcement procedures outlined herein are cumulative 
to all others and shall not be deemed to be prerequisites to filing suit for the enforcement 
of any section of this Code. 
 
(H)  Appeals. 
  
 (1) An aggrieved party, including the violator, property owner, local governing body, 
and property owners and tenants within 300 feet of the property that is subject to an order 
of violation by the Special Master, may appeal thea final order to the Circuit Court. In the 
case of property owners and tenants, they shall have standing to appeal to the circuit 
court only if they appeared at the hearing before the Special Master and presented 
evidence in substantial opposition to the final order of the special master. The appeal shall 
not be a hearing de novo but shall be limited to appellate review of the record. An appeal 
shall be filed within 30 days of rendition of the order. 
 

*  *  * 
 
§ 153.05 – Mitigation of fines. 
 
(A)  The violator, or the violator's successors or assigns who have an ownership 
interest in the property encumbered by a lien pursuant to this article, may request a 
mitigation hearing to reduce the fines only after the violations encompassed within 
the code enforcement case have been corrected. Upon receipt of a written request for a 
mitigation hearing, the clerk for the Special Master shall set the matter for a hearing before 
the Special Master. 
 
(B)  A mitigation hearing is not an appeal or a de novo review of the code enforcement 
case. The formal quasi-judicial procedures shall not apply. 
 
(C)  At the mitigation hearing, the Special Master may consider the following criteria: 

Page 112



 
(1) Good cause for a reduction of the fines. 

 
(2) The cooperation of the violator, including whether the violator appeared before 

the Special Master at the original hearing. 
 
(3) The gravity of the violation. 

 
(4) The actions taken by the violator to correct the violation. 

 
 (5) Whether there was an extraordinary hardship, which affected compliance. 
  
 (6) Whether the violator is a repeat violator. 
  
 (7) The total or estimated costs incurred by the Village for the handling of the case. 
  
 (8) The amount of the proposed reduction. 
  
 (9) Any equitable considerations raised by the violator or the Village relating to the 
amount of the reduction. 
  
 (10) The number of days that the violation existed. 
 
(D) In no event shall the fines be reduced below the costs incurred by the Village in its 
prosecution of the violations. 
 
(E) The Special Master has the discretion to grant or deny a request for mitigation. 
 

*  *  * 
 

Section 3. Conflict.  All Sections or parts of Sections of the Code of 

Ordinances, all ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, or parts of 

Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 

any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 

Page 113



they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 

Section 5. Inclusion in Code. The provisions of this Ordinance shall become 

and be made a part of the City Code, that the sections of this Ordinance may be 

renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intentions, and that the word Ordinance 

shall be changed to Section or other appropriate word 

Section 6. Implementation.  The Village Manager, Village Attorney, and Village 

Clerk are hereby authorized to take such further action as may be needed to implement 

the purpose and provisions of this Ordinance  

Section 7. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon adoption on second reading.  

 
  

Page 114



The foregoing Ordinance was offered by Commissioner __________________, 
who moved its adoption on first reading.  This motion was seconded by Commissioner 
______________ and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
Mayor Brent Latham    ______ 
Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth   ______ 
Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez   ______ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson   ______ 
Commissioner Julianna Strout   ______ 
 
 
 PASSED on first reading on this   of April, 2019. 
  
 PASSED AND ENACTED on second reading on this   day of ____________, 2019.    
      

       _____________________________ 
       Brent Latham, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elora Riera, 
Village Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
__________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, PL 
INTERIM VILLAGE ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 115



Page 116



Res. No. 19-  
Page 1 of 3 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 19- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COMMISSION OF NORTH 
BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE JOB DESCRIPTION, 
APPLICABLE SALARY SCALE, AND APPLICABLE 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND METRICS FOR THE DEPUTY 
VILLAGE CLERK;  PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

WHEREAS, the approved and adopted 2019 Fiscal Year Budget for North Bay 

Village (the “Village”) contemplated the creation, and provided funding for, various 

employment positions; and  

WHEREAS,  the Village Clerk and Interim Village Manager have recommended 

the creation of a Deputy Village Clerk position to assist in the performance of various 

Village functions; and 

WHEREAS, Staff has recommended the approval of the job description, salary 

scale, and performance measures and metrics, associated with the Deputy Clerk, as 

provided in the memorandum attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein and 

made a part hereof by this reference.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COMMISSION 

OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and incorporated 

herein and made a part hereof by this reference. 

Section 2. Approval.   The job descriptions, salary scales, and performance 

measures and metrics, associated with the position of Deputy Village Clerk as identified 

in Exhibit “A” is hereby approved. 

Page 117



Res. No. 19-  
Page 2 of 3 

Section 3. Implementation.  The Village Manager, Village Attorney and the 

Village Clerk are hereby authorized to take such other action as is necessary to implement 

the provisions of this Resolution.  

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by ________________ who moved its 
adoption.  The motion was seconded by ___________________ and upon being put to 
a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
 Mayor Brent Latham   ______ 
Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth   ______ 
Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez   ______ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson   ______ 
Commissioner Julianna Strout   ______ 
 
 
 PASSED on first reading on this __  of April, 2019. 
  
 PASSED AND ENACTED on second reading on this   day of ____________, 2019.    
      

       _____________________________ 
       Brent Latham, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elora Riera, 
Village Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
__________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, PL 
INTERIM VILLAGE ATTORNEY 
 
  

Page 118



Res. No. 19-  
Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Deputy Village Clerk 
Job Descriptions, Salary Scales, and Performance Measures and Metrics  

Page 119



Position Description 

                   Deputy Village Clerk 

 

                                              Classification Identification: Exempt/Non bargaining unit 

 

Starting Salary $57,466.65 -$79,547.29                              Pay Grade:  Twenty (21) 

General Purpose  

Provides administrative support to the Village Clerk and acts in the capacity of the Village 

Clerk in her absence. Performs a variety of complex analytical, report writing, record 

keeping, maintaining of; confidential records, official documents of the Village and action of 

the Village Commission, to devise the most efficient and effective methods of accomplishing 

the work of Village government. 

Essentia l Duties and Responsibi li t ies  

 Performs advanced secretarial and administrative work for the Village Clerk and 

Commission. 

 Assists the Village Commission with travel arrangements, meetings, conferences, 

and other related events 

 Responsible for all Village Boards and Committees meetings by recording meeting 

attendance, meeting audio and preparation of minutes. 

 Prepares Village Boards and Committee meeting agendas and  materials  for 

distribution. 

 Assists Village Clerk in preparation and finalizing of Commission agenda packets and 

their distribution 

 Prepares Commission Chambers prior to meetings 

 Prepares standard sign-in, voting record and other forms for use during Village 

Commission and other meetings 

 Attends all Commission Meetings 

 Assists the Village Clerk and other departments with enhancement and 

implementation of a comprehensive Village records retention and disposition 

program in accordance with State records schedules and municipal requirements. 

 Assists with determining proper categorization of records, location for optimal 

access, most effective form of retention and process records appropriate for 

disposition. 

 Process responses to public records requests and maintain the record of such 

requests. 

 Assists with the overall bid process including attending bid openings. 

 Maintains centralized files of executed Village contracts, agreements, and other 

related documents. 

 Assists in performing activities connected with municipal elections 

 Advises the Village Clerk of Board and Committee vacancies and advertise openings. 

Distribute, accept and process Board and Committee applications. Assists in the 

preparation and distribution of informational packages to newly appointed members. 

 Handles municipal correspondence as directed by the Village Clerk 

Page 120



 Assists in the preparation of legal advertisements and public notification letters for 

public hearings; notarize documents, certify copies in the absence of the Village 

Clerk 

Required Knowledge, Ski lls and Abil i t ies  

 Considerable knowledge of governmental law and documents such as Village Charter, 
Code of Ordinances, policies and procedures.  

 Good knowledge of legal requirements, rules of order and procedures of Village 
Commission meetings.  

 Good knowledge of municipal government organization, functions and activities, 
including election laws and procedures and records management requirements.  

 Working knowledge of the principles and practices of modern public administration 

 Working knowledge of research methods and techniques and methods of report 
presentation 

 Considerable knowledge of the use of computers for varied applications 
 Ability to accurately record and maintain records 
 Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with employees, 

supervisors, other departments, officials and the public 
 Ability to communicate effectively verbally and in writing 
 Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in 

situations where only limited standardization exists 
 Ability to write clear and concise reports, memoranda, directives and letters 
 Ability to exercise judgment and initiative in the performance of work 
 Must be able to work independently 

 

Desired Minimum Quali f ication  

 Associate (A.A.) Degree in Public Administration, Business, Political Science, English or a 

related field. 
 3+ years of experience as an Assistant or Deputy Village Clerk in the performance of 

records management and supervision of employees. 
 Local, state or federal records management or other similar experience, as well as 

experience with the business of an elected governmental body, highly preferred. 
 Two years of full-time administrative work experience and considerable knowledge of 

computer systems and applications. 
 Village Commission at their discretion may choose to mitigate education requirements 

with experience. 

Tools And Equipment Used 

Computer and various office equipment  

Physical Demands  

 The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by 

an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 
essential functions.  

 While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit and 
talk or hear, use hands to fingers, handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls; and 

reach with hands and arms. The employee is occasionally required to walk. 

Page 121



 The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 15 pounds. Specific vision 
abilities required by this job include close vision, depth perception and the ability to 
adjust focus.  

 

 

Page 122



N
O

RT
H 

BA
Y 

VI
LL

AG
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 N
O

N
-B

AR
G

AI
N

IN
G

 E
M

PL
O

YE
ES

 P
AY

 P
LA

N
 ( 

FY
 1

8-
19

 ) 
 1

.5
 %

 C
.O

.L
.A

. &
 3

.0
 %

 S
TE

P 
IN

CR
EA

SE
  

Po
sit

io
n

Pa
y 

G
ra

de
St

ep
 

(c
ur

re
nt

 
em

pl
oy

ee
)

An
nu

al
 - 

M
in

An
nu

al
 - 

M
ax

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Ai

de
5

1
31

,8
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

39
,2

37
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Co
de

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r

17
1

50
,3

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
68

,6
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Co

de
 E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r
19

5
62

,8
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

73
,9

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Fr
on

t D
es

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 S

up
er

vi
so

r
20

7
66

,1
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

76
,6

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Co
de

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t S
up

er
vi

so
r (

Va
ca

nt
)

20
11

74
,4

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
76

,6
71

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t
20

6
65

,3
89

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

76
,6

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

De
pu

ty
 V

ill
ag

e 
Cl

er
k 

(V
ac

an
t)

21
1

57
,4

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
79

,5
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
HR

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

/P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
21

6
66

,6
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

79
,5

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ch
ie

f o
f S

ta
ff 

to
 V

ill
ag

e 
M

an
ag

er
/ E

xe
c 

As
sis

ta
nt

 
to

 V
ill

ag
e 

Co
m

m
isi

on
 (V

ac
an

t)
21

1
57

,4
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

79
,5

47
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Se
ni

or
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

t 
23

12
61

,8
57

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

85
,6

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
As

sis
ta

nt
 to

 P
ol

ic
e 

Ch
ie

f
23

12
61

,8
57

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

85
,6

25
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Vi
lla

ge
 C

le
rk

31
1

78
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
11

4,
95

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
Vi

lla
ge

 C
le

rk
 (F

or
m

er
)

31
10

10
6,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

11
4,

95
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Fi
na

nc
e 

Di
re

ct
or

31
12

11
3,

25
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

11
4,

95
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 D
ire

ct
or

 (V
ac

an
t)

32
1

88
,7

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
11

9,
26

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
Hu

m
an

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Di

re
ct

or
 (V

ac
an

t)
34

1
95

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

12
8,

37
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

As
sis

ta
nt

 V
ill

ag
e 

M
an

ag
er

 (V
ac

an
t)

34
1

95
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
12

8,
37

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
Ch

ie
f o

f P
ol

ic
e 

(V
ac

an
t)

37
1

10
3,

56
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
3,

36
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Vi
lla

ge
 M

an
ag

er
 (V

ac
an

t)
39

1
12

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
15

4,
31

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
In

te
rim

 V
ill

ag
e 

M
an

ag
er

39
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
Be

rt
 W

ra
in

s  
  A

pr
il 

2,
 2

01
9

Page 123

ERiera
Highlight



 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Staff Report   
Parking Waiver  

 

 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village,  
Commission 

Applicant:    Baranof Holdings, LLC  

       Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

Site Address:  1850 Kennedy Causeway 

Request: Parking Waiver to allow reduction of the 
total number of parking spaces required 

    

Page 124



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC.  
Parking Waiver   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  1 

General Information 
 

Owner: The Atkinson Trust, LLC 

Applicant: Baranof Holdings, LLC 

Applicant Address: 2305 Cedar Spring Road, Suite 200, Dallas, TX 75201 

Site Address: 1850 Kennedy Causeway 

Contact Person: Andrew Aiken 

Phone Number: 972-402-5707 

E-mail Address aaiken@baranofholdings.com 

 
 Existing 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG 

Use of Property Off-site Parking for Grandview Palace 

Acreage 1.93 acre (84,128 sq ft) 
 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 125

mailto:aaiken@baranofholdings.com
mailto:aaiken@baranofholdings.com


Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC.  
Parking Waiver   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  2 

Adjacent Land Use Map Classifications and Zoning District 

North 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Multifamily Residential 

   

East 
Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Retail Commercial 

   

South 

Future Land Use  Educational Recreational 

Zoning District RS-2 Medium Density Single Family Residential 

Existing Land Use Elementary School 

   

West 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Multifamily Residential 

 

Description of Request 
The applicant is requesting a parking waiver according to section 9.3(d) of the North Bay Village 
Unified Land Development Code to allow reduction of the total number of parking spaces 
required by the 1992 stipulated agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on 
shared parking and parking utilization analysis.  
 
The Applicant is also requesting a site plan approval and a parking variance. Staff reports for 
the site plan and parking variance request have been provided in addition to this parking waiver 
staff report. 
 

Staff Analysis 
 
The Applicant is proposing to develop the property known as the K-lot at 1850 Kennedy 
Causeway. Parking spaces at the K-lot are leased by the Grandview Palace Condominium 
Association according to a 1992 stipulated agreement which was approved by the Village in 
Resolution 92-39. An additional covenant requires that the K-lot provide parking for Grandview 
Palace in perpetuity. At the time of the stipulated agreement, Grandview Palace was known as 
North Bay Landings and is referred to as “the Project” in the stipulated agreement. The 
stipulated agreement also makes reference to “FHP”, which was the owner of North Bay 
Landings. North Bay Village is referred to as “the City”. Some of the important requirements of 
the stipulated agreement are as follows: 
 

• The Project requires 1119 parking spaces based on the number and mix of residential units, the existing 

Page 126



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC.  
Parking Waiver   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  3 

retail area, and boat slips presently in place or approved for completion. Of said 1119 spaces, 22 shall 

conform to applicable City Code requirements for handicap parking. 

• Said 1119 spaces shall conform to current City Code requirements as relates to the percentage of 

allowable spaces that may be classified as “compact” spaces. 

• The parties understand and agree that the number and mix of parking spaces as set forth above will not 

entitle FHP, including its successors and assigns, to additional project growth (such as, for example, 

additional residential units, retail facilities, or marina slips) without subsequent application and other 

compliance with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive master plan, zoning code, building code, 

ordinances, and other requirements as then in effect. This stipulation shall not serve to bind the City to the 

grant of any future variances or special use exceptions which may be applied for by FHP, its successors or 

assigns. 

 
The stipulated agreement allowed for 506 two-bedroom dwelling units, 670 square feet of office 
space, 15,200 square feet of retail commercial, and 119 boat slips to be accommodated 
(grandfathered) by 1,119 parking spaces. If a facility with those uses were to be proposed 
under the current parking standards, the minimum number of required parking spaces would be 
1,312. 
 
Since the time of the stipulated agreement, the uses at Grandview Palace have been altered. 
The Applicant conducted a parking study, including a site visit to verify the existing mix of land 
uses, and provided a summary of the use alterations as follows: 
 

 
 
 
The Applicant has also provided a calculation of the current Village parking requirements for 
the uses which were expanded above that which was grandfathered by the stipulated 
agreement as follows: 
 

Page 127



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC.  
Parking Waiver   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  4 

 
 
 
Staff has verified the calculations and confirmed that an additional 71 parking spaces, for a 
total of 1,190 parking spaces, is an accurate parking requirement for Grandview Palace, 
considering the uses grandfathered by the stipulated agreement. However, if a facility with the 
current mix and intensity of uses, as reported by the Applicant’s site visit, were to be proposed 
under the current parking standards, the minimum number of required parking spaces would be 
1,383. 
 
The Applicant has also provided a survey of the parking facilities which are provided on-site at 
Grandview Palace. That survey depicts: 
 

• 652 Village standard size parking spaces (9 feet by 18 feet) 
• 43 Dade County standard size parking spaces (8.5 feet by 18 feet) 
• 261 compact size parking spaces (8 feet by 16 feet) 
• 26 ADA parking spaces (12 feet by 18 feet, plus access aisle) 
• 52 motorcycle parking spaces 
• Total of 982 parking spaces designed for cars (Village standard, Dade standard, 

compact, and ADA) 
 
Every page of that survey includes the following notations: 
 

1. THIS DRAWING IS NOT A BUILDING SURVEY, AND IS FOR THE PURPOSE OF DOCUMENTING AND 

ANALYZING EXISTING PARKING CONDITIONS, AND PRESENTING POTENTIAL PARKING LAYOUTS 

ONLY. 

2. INFORMATION AND DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE BASED ON ORIGINAL CONSTRUCTION 

DRAWINGS, ARCHIVE DRAWINGS, AND LIMITED FIELD VERIFICATION. WHERE POSSIBLE PARKING 

STALL DIMENSIONS ARE GIVEN AS CLEAR DIMENSIONS FREE FROM OBSTRUCTIONS AND TAKING 

INTO CONSIDERATION EXISTING STRIPING. 

 

Page 128



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC.  
Parking Waiver   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  5 

3. PROPOSED CHANGES TO PARKING LAYOUT MAY REQUIRE STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS TO CONFIRM 

MAXIMUM LOADING OF EXISTING STRUCTURE, AND ANY PHYSICAL CHANGES REQUIRED TO THE 

STRUCTURE. THIS ESPECIALLY APPLIES TO PARKING LEVEL E AT THE NORTH GARAGE. 

4. THE PRESENT CONDITION OF THE PARKING GARAGE LAYOUTS AT GRAND VIEW PALACE ARE NOT 

IN MANY AREAS CODE COMPLIANT. ADDITIONAL PARKING AND CHANGES PROPOSED TO 

EXISTING SPACES MAY NOT FALL WITHIN COMPLIANT PARAMETERS DUE TO PRE-EXISTING 

CONDITIONS. 

5. CERTIFICATION BY THE ARCHITECT IS UNDERSTOOD TO BE AN EXPRESSION OF PROFESSIONAL 

OPINION BY THE ARCHITECT BASED ON THE ARCHITECT’S KNOWLEDGE AND INFORMATION, AND 

IS NOT A GUARANTEE OR WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED. 

 
Coupled with staff’s knowledge of various unpermitted modifications of the Grandview Palace 
parking facilities in the past years, these qualifying notations bring to question the accuracy of 
the provided survey. The Applicant’s parking study also states that there are 982 on-site parking 
spaces at Grandview but there is no mention in the parking study of the dimensions of those 
982 spaces. 
 
The Village Code Enforcement Officer also performed a site visit at Grandview Palace and 
reported a count of 998 on-site parking spaces, though the officer did not have the time or 
resources to provide the dimensions of those parking spaces. 
 
Additionally, it’s come to Staff’s attention that the North Bay Village Building Inspector was 
recently called to inspect severe structural issues in the Grandview Palace parking garage 
facilities. The inspection report dated January 24, 2019 is as follows: 
 

Visited the site with CAP GOVERNMENT engineer and observed multiple areas with severe 
spalling and delamination of concrete slabs, vertical cracks in concrete structural columns, 
horizontal cracks in structural beams and walls. Most have already been previously 
identified as is evident from the paint markings, some others did not have paint markings 
which we assume may have developed after the initial investigation. Observed affected 
areas still occupied by vehicles and pedestrian access. Engineer and Inspector have 
determined that there is danger to life and property from potential falling debris from affected 
area and recommends that all affected areas be closed to pedestrians and vehicle access 
immediately. 

 
There exists a matter of urgency to have this matter corrected. An engineer evaluation and a 
report must be submitted to the building department as within 30 days to assess current 
condition as well as further actions to be taken. Failure to submit the report in a timely 
manner will result in the parking area and possibly the entire building deemed an unsafe 
structure. 

 
It should also be noted that there exists an expired permit 16-386 9/15/2016 for repairs to 
Post Tension cables which work has not been done or inspected. This is a matter that has 
been developing for over 2 years with out action. A copy of this inspection report delivered 
to condominium management office. 

 
These structural issues could be the result of modifications to the parking layouts as is warned 
against in Notation 3 (as shown above) of the Applicant provided Grandview Palace parking 
survey. Due to these structural concerns at the Grandview Palace parking facility, it does not 
seem appropriate to consider allowing any reduction in the K-lot parking requirement, as it is 

Page 129



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC.  
Parking Waiver   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  6 

likely that the full capacity of the K-lot parking facility will be required until repairs are completed. 
 
The Applicant has also provided a survey of the K-lot. That survey depicts 181 existing striped 
parking spaces, with an additional area that is likely used to accommodate a couple extra 
vehicles, for a total of 183 available parking spaces. There are no measurements of the K-lot 
parking space dimensions depicted on the survey. However, some scaled measurements of the 
survey indicate that many of the K-lot spaces do not meet the Village minimum standard size 
parking dimensions of 9 feet by 18 feet, though it is difficult to accurately determine how many 
are substandard. 
 
One of staff’s main concerns regarding the parking facilities at Grandview Palace and the K-lot 
is the potential deficiency in the number of standard size parking spaces. The 1992 stipulated 
agreement required that the original 1,119 parking spaces, that were intended to serve the 
grandfathered uses, “conform to current City Code requirements as relates to the percentage of 
allowable spaces that may be classified as “compact” spaces”. The Village Code has a 
provision which allows for up to 20% of required parking spaces to be compact spaces not less 
than 8 feet by 16 feet in size. This means that, of the 1,119 required parking spaces, only 223 
would be permitted to be less than standard size. And since the Village Commission has not 
approved any additional compact parking for Grandview Palace, the 71 parking spaces required 
for the uses that were expanded since the 1992 stipulated agreement must all meet the 
standard size parking dimensions. Thus, of the 1,190 parking spaces currently required, at least 
967 standard size parking spaces should be provided, with the remainder being at least 8 feet 
by 16 feet. The survey provided by the Applicant of the Grandview Palace parking facilities 
shows only 652 standard size parking spaces and 26 ADA parking spaces (though the 
dimensions of the ADA spaces are not provided, and potentially do not all conform to ADA 
standards). Assuming that survey to be accurate, only 678 of the on-site Grandview Palace 
parking spaces meet the minimum size for standard parking spaces. And it is difficult to 
determine exactly how many of the K-lot parking spaces do not meet the minimum standard 
size parking dimensions. 
 
Another main concern is that the total number of parking spaces provided between the 
Grandview Palace facility (982) and the K-lot facility (183) is only 1,165, which falls short of the 
required 1,190 spaces by 25 spaces.  
 
What should be provided is an accurate survey of the entire Grandview Palace property and the 
K-lot, which provides accurate counts and dimensions of all parking spaces and an accurate 
figure of commercial square footage, boat slips, and dwelling units (including number of 
bedrooms). 
 
Finally, though the shared parking analysis and utilization analysis performed by the Applicant 
provides a thorough review of the current underutilization of the parking facilities, it cannot be 
known at this time whether a change in utilization will occur at some time in the future. If this 
parking waiver request were to be granted and the demand for parking were to increase at 
Grandview Palace, then the demand for already limited street parking on Treasure Island could 
increase and impact Treasure Island residents. 
 
  

Page 130



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC.  
Parking Waiver   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  7 

Planning & Zoning Board 
 
All three of the Applicant’s requests (site plan, parking variance, parking waiver) were heard by 
the Village Planning & Zoning Board at their February 5, 2019 meeting. 
 
There was a significant amount of testimony and input from the Applicant’s team, the public, and 
the Grandview Palace property manager. Additionally, some of the statements made by a 
Grandview Palace board member (J. De Faro) are particularly relevant:  

• Approximately 70 units at Grandview Palace have not been sold. 

• One parking space is deeded to each condominium unit, and additional parking spaces 
are only available by purchase. 

 
Though the Grandview Condominium Association is bound by the stipulated agreement to lease 
the additional K-lot spaces, only one parking space is provided to each unit, unless the owner 
buys additional parking spaces. It is likely that many owners choose not to purchase additional 
parking spaces, and instead utilize Treasure Island street parking. This policy of charging for 
additional parking spaces is likely contributing to the parking underutilization that is shown in the 
Applicant’s parking study. Additionally, whenever the 70 unsold condominium units are sold, the 
demand for parking will increase. 
 
The Board recommended denial of all three requests (including the parking waiver) by a vote of 
4-0. 
 
 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff finds that it is not appropriate or prudent at this time to allow a reduction in the 
required parking for Grandview Palace, or the ability of the K-lot to provide the required 
parking for Grandview Palace. Staff cannot recommend approval of the requested 
parking waiver. 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
March 26, 2019 
 
 

Hearing: Commission, April 9, 2019 

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



VARIANCE REQUEST APPLICATION EOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 3 of 3

Office Use Only:

Date Submitted: ( 2^ 2b

Tentative Meeting Date:_ Feb
Fee Paid; $ . OO

Cash T or Cheek^# \ OQ^

Mayor Vice Mayor Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Brent Latham Andreana Jackson Jose R. Alvarez Julianna Strout Marvin Wilmoth

Page 134



BARANOF HOLDINGS LLC
2305 CEDAR SPRINGS RD, STE 200

DALLAS, TX 75201

;! PAY TO THE /" l „ , ,
j  ORDER OF VAVa,

Tioo s:v i„n
9 "<

@ Texas Capital Bank®
Dallas, Texas

|J FOR ^

FL

i>r>

DATE ^^/l°t/lg

.Prof<!Clioafa-ikt5r>:^

32-1797/1110

-DOLLARS ? ■

Page 135



 
200 E. Broward Blvd., Suite 1900, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301  |  954-763-4242  |  www.wsh-law.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

KATHRYN MEHAFFEY, ESQ. 
KMEHAFFEY@WSH-LAW.COM 

 
 

December 28, 2018 
 
 
 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Interim Village Clerk 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, 3rd Floor 
North Bay Village, FL 33141 
 
VIA EMAIL 

Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
LaRue Planning and Management 
Village Planning 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, 3rd Floor 
North Bay Village, FL 33141 

 Re:  Parking Waiver Application for property generally located at 7601 East Treasure 
Drive, Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Master Folio 23-3209-011-0010  
 
Dear Ms. Mariot, Mr. LaRue, and Mr. Smith: 
 
 This is an application by Baranof Holdings, LLC (“Baranof” or the “Applicant”) for property 
located at 1850 79th Street Causeway, as off-site parking provider for Grandview Palace 
Condominiums (“Grandview Palace”) located at 7601 East Treasure Drive in North Bay Village.  This 
letter shall serve as the Applicant’s letter of intent for waiver to the parking requirements of 9.3.C 
based on shared parking and actual usage or, in the alternative, a variance to the parking requirements 
of 9.3.C. of the Village Code.  The reduction is requested in conjunction with an offer to provide public 
parking on the property at 1850 79th Street Causeway, the “K-Lot” and contingent on the sale of the 
K-Lot to Baranof Holdings, LLC (“Baranof”).  Upon sale of the K-Lot to Baranof Holdings, LLC, the 
waiver/variance is intended to run with the land and, pursuant to the Covenant and Stipulation as 
discussed below, the Grandview parking requirement on the K-Lot will be binding on Baranof and its 
successors in perpetuity unless modified by the Village.  Grandview Palace is in the process of 
completing a final review of supporting documentation referenced herein and verifying the accuracy 

Page 136



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 2 of 11 
 

 

of the numbers set forth and reserves the right to modify, correct, or respond with additional 
information or otherwise join or amend this application. 

Baranof presents this information based on its independent evaluation of the Grandview Palace 
property, historical documents and the K-Lot property, which information and analysis is under review 
by Grandview Palace. 

The Property.  The Grandview Palace Condominium property, consisting of 4.14 acres and 
zoned RM-70 Multiple Family Residential, is located at 7601 East Treasure Drive on the south side 
of the Causeway.  The Grandview Palace property was built a number of years ago as North Bay 
Landing in conjunction with an adjacent property (currently known as Caribbean Towers) under a 
shared parking arrangement.   For purposes of this application, the North Bay Landing/Grandview 
Palace property will be referred to as “Grandview Palace.”   As a result of a 1992 foreclosure action, 
the Grandview Palace property was separated from the adjacent property with which it shared parking 
and became non-conforming as to parking.  Litigation ensued during which the Court determined the 
legal number of parking spaces required for Grandview Palace, based on the then existing uses and 
Village Code parking requirements.   

The parties, including the City of North Bay Village, entered into a stipulated settlement agreement 
(the “Stipulation”), later ratified by the City in Resolution 92-39.  Based on the then existing uses and 
Village Code requirements, the Stipulation set a parking requirement of 1,119 spaces for Grandview 
Palace including handicapped and compact parking spaces.  The Stipulation, recognizing that the 
1,119 required parking spaces were not provided on-site, also acknowledged the anticipated purchase 
of a nearby property which would be utilized for additional off-site parking for Grandview Palace in 
order to provide the required 1,119 parking spaces.   The Stipulation required that in the event a 
property was purchased for off-site parking, a covenant committing the off-site property to provide 
the additional required parking for Grandview Palace in perpetuity would be required.   

Later, the property located at 1850 79th Street Causeway, the “K-Lot,” was purchased by the 
developer of the Grandview Palace and a covenant committing the K-Lot to provide off-site parking 
for Grandview Palace was executed.   In contrast to the requirements of the Stipulation, the covenant 
limited the K-Lot “solely” to parking for Grandview Palace, preventing the addition of any other uses 
on the property.   The covenant was recently amended to delete the word “solely” to allow 
redevelopment of the property in addition to the parking required for Grandview Palace.  The 
Resolution, Stipulation, Covenant and recent Covenant Amendment are attached as Exhibit A.    

Page 137



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 3 of 11 
 

 

Subsequent private litigation from 2012-2014, which the Village was not a party to, required 
the Grandview Palace Condominium Association to continue  paying rent to the owner of the K-Lot 
for all of the spaces in the K-Lot at a rate specified by the court.1 

The Stipulation required 1,119 parking spaces based on the following uses: 

 
Grandview Palace 1992 Uses 

 
1992 Stipulation Use 
(“Stipulation Use”) 

Square Foot/ 
Units/Slips 

Office 670 sq.ft. 
Retail/Shopping 15,200 sq.ft. 
Residential Condo – 2 Bedroom 506 units 
Marina 119 slips * 
*  In 1992 there were 106 slips plus 32 davits, which were located in 13 

additional slips (119 slips total) 

As with any property, over the years, changes occurred with tenants and uses since the original project 
development and since the 1992 Stipulation.   A number of the business uses have changed over the 
years consistent with the designated commercial use of the spaces and subject to permit review by the 
Village.  Additional changes, including a small number of residential reconfigurations, the addition of 
the health spa, club room, café, and various recreational features, occurred during the redevelopment 
period from 1996 to 2003 consistent with the Development Agreement approved by the Village in 
1996.  No substantive changes to the structural or floor plan layout of the property have occurred since 
the final creation of the condominium entity in 2003 which was all related to the Development 
Agreement.   The Grandview Palace property manager completes an annual survey of residential units 
to ensure no units have been improperly subdivided and has, when inappropriate changes have been 
found, worked with the Village Code Enforcement Department to address the changes and ensure the 
return of the unit to its approved condition.   

Current Grandview Palace Parking.  Grandview Palace currently provides 1,165 parking 
spaces consisting of 982 on-site parking spaces as striped, and 183 off-site parking spots located on 
the K-Lot. While subsequent engineering reports demonstrate that many additional parking spaces 
meeting all legal requirements could be added on the Grandview Palace site, no changes are proposed 
at this time.  (The existing Parking Survey is attached as Exhibit B).  Many of Grandview Palace’s 
residents use motor scooters or motorcycles rather than cars for transportation.  As such Grandview 

                                                 
1 Of the 1,119 required parking spaces, 982 are provided on-site, requiring 137 off-site parking spaces.  The K-Lot provides 
183 parking spaces. 

Page 138



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 4 of 11 
 

 

Palace’s existing on-site parking includes 52 designated motorcycle parking spaces, which are 
provided in addition to the 982 on-site automobile parking spaces discussed herein.2 

The 1,119 parking spaces required by the 1992 Stipulation were calculated based on the 1992 
Stipulation Use, as provided above.  Those uses are grandfathered at that parking requirement.  Based 
on various types of Village approvals for modifications, it may be helpful to evaluate the parking needs 
under today’s code considering the 1992 Stipulation approvals and the subsequent 1996 Development 
Agreement.  Based on Baranof’s understanding of these documents and its own current investigations 
an addition 71 parking spaces would be required if the same 1996 redevelopment occurred under 
today’s Code requirements, resulting in a Code based 1,190 spaces.   

Current Village Code parking requirements were applied to the Development Agreement changes in 
use, using the highest potentially applicable parking requirement and to all uses regardless of their 
accessory status3, and the resulting parking requirements for the Development Agreement use changes 
were added to the 1992 Stipulation required parking.    

       Parking Reduction Request.  The Applicant is requesting, pursuant to Section 9.3.D. 
Exceptions to parking requirements, a waiver from the parking requirements of Section 9.3.C of the 
Village Code based on shared parking and actual utilization (“Waiver Request”), or in the alternative, 
a variance of the parking requirements of Section 9.3.C. of the Village Code pursuant to Section 7.3 
Procedure for consideration of a hardship variance (“Variance Request”), to reduce the Grandview 
Palace parking requirement to 1057 parking spaces, including 75 off-site parking spaces provided on 
the K-Lot.  This request is for 14 spaces more than the need identified by the Parking Analysis study 
and significantly more than actual usage surveys indicate are required in order to ensure all parking 
needs are met at all times.  The Request is a companion application to the Site Plan Application by 
Baranof Holdings, LLC, for the K-Lot Redevelopment Proposal, briefly described below.  The K-Lot 
parking reconfiguration and availability of parking for public use is dependent on the sale of the 
property to Baranof Holdings, LLC and approval of the Site Plan Application.     

Approval of both of the companion Applications will permit redevelopment of the K-Lot in a 
way that will contribute to the Village’s economic base, improve the streetscape, accommodate 
Grandview Palace’s off-site parking, and provide up to 26 additional parking spaces available hourly 
or monthly to the public.  This Waiver Request or Variance Request is only related to required 
Grandview Palace parking.  There are no restriping or revisions to the Grandview Palace on-site 
parking configuration proposed at this time.  The K-Lot Redevelopment Proposal includes all required 
parking on-site for the new uses on the K-Lot without any reduction or shared parking request.   The 

                                                 
2 Motorcycle spaces are not included in the required parking count but are above and beyond all requirements. 
3 As an example, the Health Club was included, even though it is primarily used by residents. 

Page 139



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 5 of 11 
 

 

self-storage and first-floor retail parking requirements are met on-site and these uses will not utilize 
parking on the Grandview Palace property.   

The K-Lot Redevelopment Proposal.  The Site Plan Application for the K-Lot consists of a 
142,530 square foot Extra Space self-storage facility, with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail 
space.   In addition, the Project will include parking for the proposed on-site improvements, a number 
of parking spaces open to the public, and as required by the Stipulation and Covenant, off-site parking 
for Grandview.  The proposed uses are permitted by right under the Village Zoning Code and the 
Project complies with all Code requirements.    See the companion Site Plan application for more 
information. 

 Analysis Summary.  Approval of the request to reduce the Grandview Palace required 
parking, either by approval of the Waiver Request or the Variance Request, in conjunction with the 
proposed K-Lot redevelopment project, will allow the Village to utilize shared parking concepts and 
make adjustments in a manner that will provide new public parking spaces, a need frequently 
expressed by the Village.  The Village has the unique opportunity to analyze the request with the best 
possible real-time information – an already developed and operating property, evaluated under current 
industry shared parking standards, with parking needs that have been verified and validated by a 
current study of actual usage.  The study does not propose changes on the Grandview Palace property 
but demonstrates why the existing parking set-up works and fewer spaces are needed on the surplus 
K-Lot. 

In summary, the shared parking analysis, attached as Exhibit C, based on the Applicant’s 
understanding of current uses on the Grandview Palace property, demonstrates a need for a total of 
1,043 spaces for the Grandview Palace.  Under the reduction request, as supported by the parking 
analysis and the actual usage survey, 982 parking spaces are provided on-site (plus 52 extra motorcycle 
spots) which leaves 61 off-site parking spaces required to accommodate Peak Hour demand (7 p.m. 
weekday in February).  This Application proposes to provide not 61 parking spaces on the K-Lot, but 
75 parking spaces on the K-Lot.  The K-Lot Site Plan application provides 101 extra parking spaces 
above the required parking for the new on-site development.   If 75 of those 101 spaces are dedicated 
for Grandview Palace use, 26 spaces can be made available for public parking.  K-Lot development 
parking is provided entirely on the K-Lot and those uses will not be utilizing parking on the Grandview 
Palace Property. 

Parking Waiver Analysis.  Section 9.3.D.2 of the Village Code provides for a Waiver or 
reduction of parking requirements in any district whenever the character or use of the building makes 

Page 140



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 6 of 11 
 

 

the full provision of parking facilities unnecessary.4  The Applicant requests a waiver of the 
requirements from the 1,119 spaces, acknowledging the Village authorized changes pursuant to the 
1996 Development Agreement, to provide 1,057 parking spaces (982 on-site and 75 off-site), based 
on shared parking and actual usage. 

 Shared Parking.   Shared parking is a parking management system when a property is 
utilized by several different types of uses – for instance, residential, retail, and office.  Most parking 
spaces are only used part time by any particular group of users, leaving a number of spaces open at 
any given time.   These cycles of usage are predictable following daily, weekly, and annual cycles, 
which when evaluated together allows parking spaces to be shared by multiple users in order to 
increase efficiency.   

 Shared parking methodology was developed in the 1980s and has been a widely-
accepted industry standard for rightsizing parking facilities over the past 30+ years. 
Adopted by cities throughout the U.S., and codified in zoning ordinances as an 
acceptable practice, shared parking is endorsed by the Urban Land Institute (ULI), the 
American Planning Association (APA), the National Parking Association (NPA), and 
International Council of Shopping Centers (ICSC), as an acceptable method of parking 
planning and management. 

 Shared parking allows for the sharing of parking spaces among uses in a mixed-use 
environment—in lieu of providing a minimum number of parking spaces for each 
individual use. 

Shared Parking Analysis Extra Space Storage, North Bay Village, Florida, 11/24/2018 
pg.4, Walker Consultants. 

A shared parking analysis was completed for Grandview Palace as well as the K-Lot Project.  
For Grandview Palace, the calculation starts with the base 1992 Stipulation required parking (1,119 
spaces), adds the parking that today’s Code would require for changes in use described above (+71 
spaces), and, using the total required parking of 1,190 parking spaces, evaluates the shared parking 
needs based on the normal hours and patterns of parking space utilization for each of the existing land 
                                                 
4 Village Code Section 9.3 - Off-street parking requirements. 
* * * 
D.  Exceptions to parking requirements.  
* * * 

2.  Waiver or reduction of parking requirements: To waive or reduce the parking and loading requirements 
in any district whenever the character or use of the building is such as to make unnecessary the full provision of 
parking or loading facilities. 

 

Page 141



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 7 of 11 
 

 

uses.  The methodology assumed a 100% occupancy and did not apply a vacancy rate reduction for 
any uses.   Peak Hour demand was determined to be at 7:00 p.m. on a weekday in February.  The 
shared parking analysis for Grandview Palace demonstrates a need for 1,043 parking spaces during 
the Peak Hour demand.   With 982 of those parking spaces located on-site, the analysis demonstrates 
a need for 61 additional spaces, which must be provided off-site.  The Applicant requests to reduce 
the off-site parking to 75 as opposed to 61 to alleviate any concerns of parking shortage.  

The shared parking analysis for the K-Lot was conducted in the same manner, although no 
reduction in the parking requirement is requested for that application.  The K-Lot and Grandview 
Palace shared parking analyses provided in the study were not linked together because the application 
does not anticipate the K-Lot uses sharing or utilizing the  Grandview Property in any way.   The 
required parking for the proposed redevelopment on the K-Lot is 38 parking spaces.  The shared 
parking analysis demonstrated a Peak Hour demand5 of 17 parking spaces.  However, to address the 
Village’s concerns with parking, this is not included in the Grandview Palace shared parking analysis 
and no reduction in the K-Lot redevelopment required parking is proposed.  The K-Lot Redevelopment 
Project provides all 38 required parking spaces, plus 101 spaces dedicated to Grandview Palace off-
site parking and public parking.  The public parking is available only with purchase of the property by 
Baranof Holdings, LLC and approval of the Baranof K-Lot site plan. 

 Actual Utilization.  An on-site parking usage survey was conducted on November 1, 
2018.  Counts were taken at 9:30 a.m. and 1:30 p.m.  On-site Grandview Palace parking was 43% 
occupied at 9:30 a.m. and 29% occupied at 1:30 p.m.  The K-Lot had 35 vehicles at 9:30 a.m. and 40 
vehicles at 1:30 p.m.; however, 12 of those parking spaces are leased to a neighboring property.  Not 
including the leased spaces, Grandview Palace was utilizing 23 parking spaces at 9:30 a.m. and 28 
parking spaces at 1:30 p.m., all of which could easily have been parked on-site at Grandview Palace.  

Based on the actual parking usage of the K-Lot and of the on-site Grandview Palace parking, 
there is an ample supply of parking for the uses at Grandview Palace on-site, and the proposed 75 off-
site parking spaces is sufficient to handle all Peak Hour demand. 

Variance Analysis.   In the event the Village Commission determines a Waiver of the parking 
requirements is not the appropriate mechanism to address a parking reduction, the Applicant 
respectfully requests approval of a variance from the requirements of Section 9.3.C to require 1,057 
parking spaces for Grandview Palace.   The current 1992 Stipulation requirement is 1,119 parking 
spaces.  However, in recognition of changes related to the 1996 Development Agreement, which 
although consistent with prior Village authorizations may not have been incorporated into prior 
parking calculations, 1,190 parking spaces is consistent with the current Code requirements as 
                                                 
5 Peak Hour demand for the K-Lot on-site redevelopment project, based on the uses, is 11:00 a.m. on a weekday in 
February. 

Page 142



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 8 of 11 
 

 

discussed above.  Section 7.3.C. provides procedures and criteria for consideration of a hardship 
variance.   

The criteria the Planning and Zoning Board and Village Commission must evaluate when 
considering a variance are discussed below: 

1. That there are special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to the land, 
structure, or building involved and which are not generally applicable to other lands, structures, or 
buildings in the same zoning district.  

 
Applicant response:  The off-site parking requirement creates a unique burden 

restricting the use of the off-site property, the K-Lot.  No other property in the Village is 
burdened in a similar way.  The K-Lot cannot transfer the Grandview Palace burden 
elsewhere and there is not available land that the Grandview Palace may move its off-site 
parking to.  The K-Lot must, unlike any other property in the village, add the Grandview 
Palace’s off-site parking burden to its own development and parking requirements.  When 
combined with the on-site development and the related on-site parking requirement, it adds 
a significant burden making redevelopment virtually impossible, given the other 
development parameters on the lot. 

2.  That the special circumstances and conditions were not self-created by any person having 
an interest in the property.  

Applicant response:  The special circumstances were not self-created, nor were they 
created by any person having an interest in the property.   The circumstances were created 
by financial failures and the resulting subdivision of the Grandview Palace and Caribbean 
Towers buildings that occurred more than 30 years ago, which forced the creation of alternate 
parking arrangements.   

 
3.  That the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the applicant of 

the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building for which the variance is sought; and would 
involve an unnecessary hardship for the applicant.  

Applicant response:  This Variance Request is submitted in conjunction with the K-
Lot Site Plan Application and is a unique situation where the Grandview Palace parking 
requirement creates an unreasonable burden not just for Grandview Palace, but for the off-
site K-Lot as well.  Redevelopment of the K-Lot is severely compromised by the requirement 
to provide such a large number of parking spaces for Grandview Palace in addition to any 
redevelopment and the on-site parking for that redevelopment.  The proposed K-Lot self-

Page 143



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 

storage facility, given its low parking need and requirement, also allows for the tremendous 
benefit of public parking. 

4.  That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by the Unified Land Development Code to other land, structures, or buildings in the 
same zoning district.  

Applicant response: Granting the variance will not confer on the Applicant any 
special privilege that is denied to other land, structures or buildings in the same zoning 
district.  Granting the variance will not confer on Grandview Palace any special privilege.  
In actuality, Grandview Palace has, since it began utilizing the K-Lot, provided more than 
its required parking.  Based on the uses and parking requirements at the time, Grandview 
Palace was required to provide 1,119 parking spaces, but was providing 1,165 parking spaces 
with the K-Lot.  Approval of the variance will not allow Grandview Palace to make any 
changes, nor will it eliminate its requirement to provide adequate parking.  The reduction, 
simply, acknowledges the blend of uses located on the Property and actual parking usage 
rates.  The Variance Request reduces the parking requirement, but still requires Grandview 
Palace to pay monthly for 75 off-site parking spaces, which is above actual usage and 14 
spaces more than the need demonstrated in the Parking Analysis, but ensures it can, at all 
times, meet its worst-case scenario Peak Hour demand. 

5.  That the variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable 
use of the land, structure, or building.  

Applicant response:  The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make 
possible the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building.   Approval of the variance and 
the Baranof Site Plan will allow redevelopment of the K-Lot in a way that allows for the 
provision of new public parking, which can alleviate parking shortages in the surrounding 
neighborhood without creating any shortage on the Grandview Palace property. 

6.  That granting the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
chapter, and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to 
the public welfare.  

Applicant response: Approval of the variance is in harmony with the general intent 
and purpose of the Village Zoning Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or 
otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.  The approval of the variance in conjunction 
with the redevelopment of the K-Lot will still provide sufficient Grandview Palace parking 
to meet their Peak Hour demand, but will also provide a significant benefit to the 

Page 144



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 

neighborhood and improve the public welfare by providing 26 new parking spaces available 
to the public. 

7.  The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of 
development.  

Applicant response:  Approval of the variance is not based exclusively upon a desire 
to reduce the cost of development.  It is true that the reduction of the parking requirement 
will reduce annual costs for the Grandview Palace Condominium members; however, the 
more crucial element is the ability of the Baranof Site Plan to provide for redevelopment of 
the K-Lot in a manner that improves the streetscape, Village economic base, and most 
significantly, provides critically needed publicly available parking.    

Other Documentation.  As described above, the K-Lot is subject to the 1992 Stipulation 
adopted by Resolution of the Village Commission.  The Stipulation will require revision and provides 
that the number of parking spaces may be revised upon approval by Resolution of the Village 
Commission.  In addition, a Covenant running with the land may be revised to incorporate the 
Resolution changing the stipulated number of parking spaces.  Both of these documents will need to 
be revised by the Village Commission concurrent with approval of the parking waiver or variance, 
and effective upon sale of the property to Baranof Holdings, LLC.  That request will be a separate 
application for consideration at the same meeting, but only after approval of this application. 

Conclusion.  The K-Lot has been utilized for years for off-site parking for Grandview Palace.  
The Property has gone through various stages of disrepair and recovery, but has never contributed 
more to the Village than to provide minimal parking for Grandview Palace guests and occasionally, 
random public users who wrongly assume they can use the open parking which is currently not allowed 
under the Village approvals.  Parking on the K-Lot is severely underutilized.  Much of it is not needed 
by Grandview Palace but excess spaces cannot be made available to the public.  The property 
contributes only minimally to the tax base and provides no social benefit to the Village.  Approval of 
the Waiver Request, or alternatively, the Variance Request to require 1,057 parking spaces for 
Grandview Palace would not only permit Grandview Palace to still provide sufficient off-site parking 
to accommodate Peak Hour demand, but will also allow redevelopment on the K-Lot to provide 26 
parking spaces for public use. Additionally, it will allow for redevelopment of the property with a use 
that will contribute more positively to the tax base, improve the streetscape, and provide ground floor 
neighborhood commercial in addition to the self-storage which will provide a service to Village 
residents and draw in consumers from the beach communities.   

Therefore, based on: (1) the aforementioned analyses and inventories; (2) the difficulty of 
providing 183 parking spaces on the K-Lot in conjunction with redevelopment, and; (3) Grandview 

Page 145



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 11 of 11 
 

 

Palace’s contention (validated by the attached study) that the majority of the 183 parking spaces on 
the K-Lot are not utilized, the Applicant respectfully requests a reduced parking requirement of 1,057 
parking spaces for Grandview Palace, conditionally tied to the K-Lot Redevelopment Site Plan 
application by Baranof Holdings which provides the off-site parking for Grandview Palace and will, 
as a result of this approval, provide 26 parking spaces available for public use.  With this Application, 
of the 1057 required spaces, 982 spaces will be provided on-site at Grandview Palace and 75 spaces 
will be provided off-site on the K-Lot.  An additional 52 motorcycle spaces will also be provided on-
site.     

Based on the forgoing, we look forward to your favorable recommendation.  Should you have 
any questions or concerns regarding this Application, please do not hesitate to call me at 954-763-
4242. 

     Very truly yours, 
 

 

Kathryn M. Mehaffey 

 

Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



16914_870_1.tif

EXHIBIT A

Page 161



16914_870_2.tif

Page 162



16914_870_3.tif

Page 163



16914_870_4.tif

Page 164



16914_870_5.tif

Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



 

 

SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 
 
 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE  
North Bay Village, Florida 
 
12/27/2018 
 
Baranof Holdings 
2305 Cedar Springs Road, Suite 200 
Dallas, TX  75201 
 

Page 178



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS  

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

  

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ii 
 Findings and Conclusions ii 
 1992 Stipulation Parking Allocation – 1,119 Spaces iii 

   
 SECTION 1-INTRODUCTION 1 
 
 SECTION 2-SHARED PARKING 4 

 Shared Parking Methodology 4 
 Shared Parking Analysis  6 

 Land Use Units:  Building Program Description 6 
Base Parking Ratios and Minimum Parking Requirements 7 

 Presence Factors 8 
 Driving Ratio Adjustment 9 
 Non-Captive Adjustment Ratio 10 
 Summary and Overall Recommendations 12 

     LIST OF EXHIBITS  
 Exhibit 1: Grandview Palace Condominiums and –  
 Proposed Extra Space Storage Development Land Use Quantities  1 
 Exhibit 2: Minimum Off-Street Parking Requirements –  
 North Bay Village 2 
 Exhibit 3: Shared Parking Analysis 5 
 List of Shared Parking Steps 6 
 Exhibit 4: Summary of Grandview Palace Condominium –   
 Land Uses 7 
 Exhibit 5: Summary of Extra Space Storage Land Uses 7 
 Exhibit 6: Minimum Parking Requirements 8 
 Exhibit 7: Grandview Palace Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table 11 
 Exhibit 8: Extra Space Storage Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table  11 
 Exhibit 9: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekday 12 
 Exhibit 10: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekend 13 
 Exhibit 11: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekday 14 
 Exhibit 12: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekend  14  
  
 

Page 179



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS  

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

  

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  ii 

 
FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

 

• The preliminary development plans for the Extra Space Storage development include a proposed 40± 
space parking structure and 99± surface parking spaces for a total planned parking inventory of 139± 
parking spaces.  
 

• A Grandview Palace legal stipulation dated December 28, 1992 required 1,119 parking spaces be 
available for the existing and approved for completion land uses.  As of the date of the stipulation, the 
land uses included: 

▪ 506 two-bedroom apartment units 
▪ 670 sf of office space 
▪ 15,200 sf of retail space 
▪ Marina facility with 106 slips and 32 davits in an additional 13 slips, for a total of 119 slips   

 

• A Walker site visit on Thursday, November 1, 2018 revealed the following land use changes to the 
original 1992 stipulation: 
 

Summary of Grandview Palace Condominium Land Use    
 

Land Use Type 1992 Stipulation 
Current Unit/ 

Square Footage 
(sf) 

Change (+/-) 

Office  600-sf 5,239-sf +4,569-sf 

Retail/Shopping 15,200-sf 7,685-sf -7,515-sf 

Fine/Casual Dining (Includes Yacht Club) 0-sf 3,626-sf +3,626-sf 

Health Club 0-sf 4,444-sf +4,444-sf 

Specialty Grocery 0-sf 2,014-sf +2,014-sf 

Marina 119 Slips 117 Slips -2 Slips 

Residential Condo    

1-bedroom  15 units +15 units 

2-bedroom 506 units 479 units -27 units 

3-bedroom  12 units +12 units 

Source: Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Inc; Walker Consultants, 2018 
 

• The proposed land use quantities for the Extra Space Storage development site are defined as follows: 
 

Summary of Extra Space Storage Land Use   
 

Land Use Type Unit/Square Foot 

Office  900-sf 

Retail/Shopping 4,000-sf 

Mini-Storage Warehouse 141,900-sf 

Source: Baranof Holdings; Walker Consultants, 2018 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 180



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | iii 

• To remain current with North Bay Village parking code requirements, the following minimum base 
parking ratios have been used to calculate the typical peak demand for new uses, and any expansions of 
use, above the grandfathered uses identified in the 1992 Stipulation. 
 

Minimum Off-Street Parking Requirements – North Bay Village 

 
Residential Uses:  

Multi-family: 1.5 parking spaces for each efficiency unit 

 2 parking spaces for 1- and 2-bedroom units 

 3 parking spaces for 3-bedroom units 

Residential Guest 10% of total required residential spaces 

Commercial Uses:  

Fitness Center 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Retail 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Restaurant 1 parking space for every 75-sf (CSA)  

Office 1 parking space for every 300-sf (GFA) 

Marina 1 parking space for every boat slip or berth 

 
Source: North Bay Village, Florida – Unified Land Development Code; Chapter 9 - Off-Street Parking Requirements  

 
1992 STIPULATION PARKING ALLOCATIONS – 1,119 SPACES 
 

Land Use Type 
Allocation of 

1992 Stipulation Spaces 

Additional (or 
Reduced) 

Requirement 
Based on 
Change 

Total (Unadjusted 
Demand) 1992 Stipulation 

adjusted for subsequent land use 
changes 

Office  2 Spaces +15 Spaces 17 Spaces 

Retail/Shopping 76 Spaces -37 Spaces 39 Spaces 

Fine/Casual Dining (Includes Yacht Club)  +49 Spaces 49 Spaces 

Health Club  +22 Spaces 22 Spaces 

Specialty Grocery  +10 Spaces 10 Spaces 

Marina 29 Spaces 0 Spaces 29 Spaces 

Residential Condo    

1-bedroom    

2-bedroom 1,012 Spaces   

3-bedroom  +12 Spaces 1,024 Spaces 

Total 1,119 Spaces  1,190 Spaces 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 
 

Page 181



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | iv 

• Based on the model for Grandview Palace Condominiums, projected typical peak hour demand is 
projected to occur on a weekday in February during the 7:00pm hour.  
 

Grandview Palace Condominiums Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak (Weekday)  
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 
 

Key Finding: When typical peak weekday parking projections for Grandview Palace Condominiums (1,043± 
spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 1,165± spaces, Walker’s analysis provides a parking 
surplus of 122± spaces. 
 

• Walker assumes 100% occupancy for all land use quantities in this analysis. It is understood that an 
additional 50% to 70% vacancy rate reduction may apply to residential utilization as a factor of seasonal 
occupancy and expected turnover. It should be recognized that we have not factored the 50% to 70% 
reduction into our model result as our model is designed to represent the busiest hour of the year, 
busiest day of the year, and busiest month of the year, at an 85th percentile level relative to similar 
properties with reasonable means of transportation available to the site users. 
 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio February February

Land Use Demand February 7:00 PM Evening Evening 7:00 PM 5:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 39 100% 95% 85% 98% 31 33

Specialty Grocery 10 100% 27% 80% 98% 2 2

Fine/Casual Dining 49 100% 100% 80% 98% 38 29

Health Club 22 95% 90% 40% 98% 7 7

   Residential Reserved - Condo 522 100% 100% 100% 95% 498 498

   Residential Unreserved - Condo 502 100% 97% 100% 95% 464 407

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 0 100% 2% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 17 100% 10% 100% 85% 1 6

Marina 29 100% 25% 22% 98% 2 4

Subtotal Customer/Guest 149 80 71

Subtotal Employee/Resident 519 465 413

Subtotal Reserved Resident - Condo 522 498 498

Total Parking Spaces Required 1,190 1,043 986

% reduction 12%

Weekday

Page 182



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | v 

• Based on the model for Extra Space Storage, projected typical peak hour demand is projected to occur on 
a weekday in February during the 11:00am hour. 
 

Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak (Weekday)  

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Key Finding: When typical peak weekday parking projections for Extra Space Storage (17± spaces) are 
compared against the planned inventory of 140± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 123± 
spaces. Overlaying projected weekday peak hour demand for Extra Space Storage on projected weekday 
peak hour demand for Grandview Palace Condominiums adds 7± additional spaces at the 7:00pm hour for 
a total projected need of 1,050± spaces. 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio January January

Land Use Demand January 12:00 PM Daytime Daytime 12:00 PM 6:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 12 95% 25% 100% 98% 3 3

  Employee 3 95% 100% 100% 75% 2 2

Mini-Storage Warehouse 20 91% 55% 100% 98% 10 4

  Employee 0 95% 100% 100% 75% 0 0

Office <25,000sq ft 0 100% 15% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 3 100% 90% 100% 80% 2 1

Subtotal Customer/Guest 32 13 7

Subtotal Employee 6 4 3

Total Parking Spaces Required 38 17 10

% reduction 55%

Weekday

Page 183



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | vi 

 

• The following exhibits reflect time of day usage for the Extra Space Storage development on a weekday in 
February. 
 

Extra Space Storage Estimated Peak Hour Demand by Time of Day (Weekday)    

 
 

 
 

 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

• During a site visit to the Grandview Palace property on Thursday, November 1st, Walker observed the 
following onsite parking occupancy levels, to include the use of the existing 183± parking spaces in the 
neighboring K-lot. 

Extra Space Storage 6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM

Consumer/Patron 0 4 6 6 6 12 13 10 7

Employee 0 1 3 4 4 4 4 4 4

0 5 9 10 10 16 17 14 11

Extra Space Storage 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM 10:00 PM 11:00 PM 12:00 AM

Consumer/Patron 6 9 8 7 6 6 5 2 1 0

Employee 4 4 3 3 1 0 0 0 0 0

10 13 11 10 7 6 5 2 1 0

Page 184



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | vii 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Key Finding: Utilization levels captured at this time reflect resident and retail levels consistent with 50% in 
the main building and resident and tenant levels consistent with 30% in the north building. K lot utilization 
was observed at 13% to 15% when third-party lease spaces with the neighboring property were removed 
from utilization levels. 

 

Nov. 1 Nov. 1

Observed Percent Observed Percent

9:30am Occupied 1:30pm Occupied

Promenade

(ADA and Time Limited) 11 5 45% 9 82%

Garage 

Main Buliding

Tenant (Gated) 517 249 48% 145 28%

Garage

North Building

Retail (Non-gated) 81 40 49% 42 52%

Tenant (Gated) 306 98 32% 63 21%

South Lot

(Permit) 67 30 45% 25 37%

Subtotal 982 422 43% 284 29%

K-Lot¹ 183 35 19% 40 22%

(Guest Permit)

Total 1165 457 39% 324 28%

¹Grandview Palace leases twelve (12) permitted spaces to neighboring property

Location Inventory

Grandview Palace Parking Inventory 

Page 185



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Introduction 

Section 
 

01 

Page 186



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  1 

Baranoff Holdings (Client) is in the process of preparing a preliminary development plan for submittal to the City 
of North Bay Village, Florida. Located at 1850 79th Street Causeway in North Bay Village, Florida, the 
development plan is being designed to include the requirements outlined in the K-lot parking covenent from the 
neighboring Grandview Palace Condominiums (GVP) located at 7601 East Treasure Drive. At full build-out, the 
development plan will not only consider the Grandview Palace overflow parking needs, but also provide parking 
needs for the list of new land use elements (shown on right) in the following exhibit. 
 
Exhibit 1: Grandview Palace Condominiums and Proposed Extra Space Storage Development Land Use Quantities 

 
 

Source: Baranof Holdings; Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Inc; and Walker Consultants 2018 

 
To assist with the plan submittal, Baranof Holdings is seeking the use of a shared parking analysis to help 
confirm the number of spaces that may be required to adequately serve the development and meet the 
covenant agreement of the Grandview Palace Condominium Association. This analysis consists of a review of the 
City’s land development code requirements and the development of a shared parking analysis consistent with 
the City of North Bay Village’s off-street parking requirements. 
 
  

Retail 
4,000 - sf 

Mini-Storage Warehouse 
141,900 - sf 

Office 
900 - sf 

Community Retail 
7,685 - sf 

Specialty Grocery 
2,014 - sf 

Fine/Casual Dining 
3,626 - sf 

Resident Condo 
1-bedroom (15) 

2-bedroom (479) 
3-bedroom (12) 

Office 
5,239 - sf 

Fitness Center 
4,444 - sf 

Marina 
117 Slips 

Page 187



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  2 

In accordance with Chapter 9 - General Site Design Standards; Division 2. – Off-Street Parking and Loading; 
Section 9-3. – Off-Street Parking Requirements; B. – Plan required; All proposed off-street parking facilities shall 
be subject to site plan review and approval. Whenever site plan review is otherwise required in conjunction with 
a specific use, that review shall satisfy the requirements of this section.1   
 

Site plans shall include the following:  

a.  All off-street parking facilities shall be designed with consideration given to surrounding street 
patterns, adjacent properties, and other neighborhood improvements. Consideration shall be given 
to the number of vehicles to be accommodated, hours of operation, and types of uses served.  

b.  All site plans shall show the location, size, dimensions, and design of:  

(1)  On-site buildings and structures.  

(2)  Parking spaces, loading spaces, driveways, and accessways.  

(3)  Directional markings, traffic-control devices, and signs.  

(4)  Walls, fences, pervious areas, berms, changes of grade, and planting materials.  

(5)  Number of parking spaces required, and number provided, amount of landscaping required, 
and amount of landscaping provided.  

(6)  Any other related information that may be reasonably required by the Village.  

c.  When off-street parking facilities are located within an enclosed structure or upon the roof of a 
building, the site plan shall also include interior circulation patterns, slope of ramps, and location of 
interior structural columns.  

 
Walker’s review of the City’s minimum number of off-street parking spaces required has revealed the following 
list of relevant uses and their parking requirements. 
 

Exhibit 2: Minimum Off-Street Parking Requirements – North Bay Village 

 
Residential Uses:  

Multi-family: 1.5 parking spaces for each efficiency unit 

 2 parking spaces for 1- and 2-bedroom units 

 3 parking spaces for 3-bedroom units 

Residential Guest 10% of total required residential spaces 

Commercial Uses:  

Fitness Center 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Retail 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Restaurant 1 parking space for every 75-sf (CSA)  

Office 1 parking space for every 300-sf (GFA) 

Marina 1 parking space for every boat slip or berth 

 
Source: North Bay Village, Florida – Unified Land Development Code; Chapter 9 - Off-Street Parking Requirements 

                                                           
1 City of North Bay Village Unified Land Development Code 

Page 188



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  3 

In accordance with Chapter 9 - General Site Design Standards; Division 2. – Off-Street Parking and Loading; 
Section 9-3. – Off-Street Parking Requirements; D. – Exceptions to parking requirements;2 Walker recognizes the 
following exceptions: 
 

 1.  Off-site parking areas adjacent to or within a reasonable distance (the reasonableness of the distance to 
be determined by the Village Commission) from the premises on which parking areas are required by the 
parking regulations of this subchapter, where practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships are 
encountered in locating such parking area on the premises and where the purpose of these regulations 
to relieve congestion in the streets would be best served by permitting such parking off the premises.  

2.  Waiver or reduction of parking requirements: To waive or reduce the parking and loading requirements in 
any district whenever the character or use of the building is such as to make unnecessary the full provision 
of parking or loading facilities.  

 
As defined by this section of the code, the Village Commission has the authority to waive or reduce parking 
requirements based upon the character or use of the building or property. 
 

                                                           
2 City of North Bay Village Unified Land Development Code 

Page 189



 

  

 

Shared Parking 

Section 
 

02 

Page 190



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  4 

 
SHARED PARKING METHODOLOGY 
 

Shared parking methodology was developed in the 1980s and has been a widely-accepted industry standard for 
rightsizing parking facilities over the past 30+ years. Adopted by cities throughout the U.S., and codified in 
zoning ordinances as an acceptable practice, shared parking is endorsed by the Urban Land Institute (ULI), the 
American Planning Association (APA), the National Parking Association (NPA), and International Council of 
Shopping Centers (ICSC), as an acceptable method of parking planning and management. 
 
Shared parking allows for the sharing of parking spaces among uses in a mixed-use environment—in lieu of 
providing a minimum number of parking spaces for each individual use. Shared parking commonly results in a 
reduction of required parking spaces. This reduction, which is sometimes significant, depends on the quantities 
and mix of uses and local code requirements. 
 
Shared Parking is defined as the ability to use the same parking resource by multiple nearby or adjacent land 
uses without encroachment. Shared parking takes into account the parking demand for more than 45 different 
land uses; the availability and use of alternative modes of transportation; captive market effects3; and daily, 
hourly, and seasonal variations. In the case of the Grand Palace Condominiums and the Extra Space Storage 
development, a shared parking analysis recognizes the interrelationship of parking among primary uses and on-
site, accessory uses such as retail, office and restaurant activity.  A shared parking model generates 456 parking 
demand computations as follows: 
 

• 19 hours during a day, beginning at 6 a.m. and concluding at midnight 

• 2 days per week, a weekday and a weekend day 

• 12 months of the year 

• 19 x 2 x 12 = 456 different calculations 
 
The recommended parking capacity is derived based on the highest figure generated from these 456 
computations. Therefore, the intent is to design for the busiest hour of the year, busiest day of the year, and 
busiest month of the year, at an 85th percentile level relative to similar properties. 
 

A shared parking analysis begins first by taking the land use quantities of each site, e.g., retail square footage, 
and multiplying by a base parking demand ratio and monthly and hourly adjustment factors. All base ratios and 
hourly and monthly adjustments are industry standards that are based on thousands of parking occupancy 
studies, vetted by leading parking consultants and real estate professionals, and documented within the Second 
Edition of ULI/ICSC’s Shared Parking. 
 

                                                           
3Recognition of a user group already on site for another primary purpose and not generating incremental parking demand 

for an accessory use. For example, a sandwich shop located in a residential tower generates very little, if any, outside 
parking demand. Since the parking demand for the Grandview Palace residents has already been accounted for, to avoid 
double counting, a non-captive adjustment factor is applied to the parking demand calculation for the sandwich shop. In 
this extreme example, the non- captive ratio may be 0 percent. 
  

SHARED PARKING SHARED PARKING 

Page 191



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  5 

Walker, as the analyst for this study and in accordance with standard shared-parking methodology, applies two 
additional adjustments to the base parking demand ratios, one to reflect an estimate of the local transportation 
modal split (called the driving ratio) and another to account for the best estimate of captive market effects4 
(called the non-captive ratio). These will all be described in more detail in the sections to follow. 
 

The following graphic provides an illustrative view of the steps involved in the shared parking analysis. This 
graphic is used within this document to help the reader understand the shared parking process and to also assist 
in communicating the step of the analysis that is being described within this report. The Shared Parking Analysis 
section of this report follows this graphic in consecutive order, moving from left to right, and in subsequent 
report sections, the gray highlighted section of the graphic (note: all sections are highlighted in Exhibit 3) 
designates the step that is being described. 
 

Exhibit 3: Shared Parking Analysis            

             

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 
square footage, etc.) 

X 
Standard or Base 
Parking Generation 
Ratio 

X 
Monthly 
Factor 

X 
Hourly 
Factor 

X 
Driving 
Ratio 

X 
Non-

Captive 
Ratio 

= TOTAL 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

For most land uses, shared parking is based on the 85th percentile of peak-hour observations, a standard 
espoused by the ITE, the NPA’s Parking Consultants Council, and renowned parking planners. This 85th 
percentile is a significant and high threshold to meet in terms of supplying parking capacity in that it is provides 
a parking supply that will not be needed by a majority of developments. The 85th percentile recommendation is 
informed by field data counts in the fourth edition of ITE’s Parking Generation4 and this threshold represents 
the 85th percentile of peak-hour observations supplied during the study.  
 

The key goal of a shared parking analysis is to find the balance between providing adequate parking to support a 
development from a commercial and operational standpoint and protect the interests of neighboring property 
owners, while minimizing the negative aspects of excessive land area or resources devoted to parking. The 
ultimate goal of a shared parking analysis is to find a peak period, reasonably predictable worst-case scenario, or 
design day condition. 
 

Allowing multiple land uses and entities to share parking spaces has allowed for and led to the creation of many 
popular real estate developments and districts, resulting in the combination of office, residential, retail, hotel, 
and entertainment districts that rely heavily on shared parking for economic viability while providing parking 
accommodations to meet the actual demand generated by the development. Traditional downtowns in large 
and small cities alike have depended on the practice in order to be compact, walkable and economically viable. 
In the same way, mixed-use projects have also benefited from the shared-parking principle, which offers 
multiple benefits to a community, not the least of which is a lesser environmental impact due to the reduction in 
required parking needed to serve commercial developments, as well as the ability to create a more desirable 
mix of uses at one location, all the while ensuring that parking supply is designed for the busiest hour of the 
year, busiest day of the year, and busiest month of the year, at an 85th percentile relative to similar properties. 

                                                           
4Captive market means attendees who are on-site for more than one reason and are not creating additive parking demand. 
  

Page 192



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  6 

SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 
 
In accordance with accepted shared-use methodology, this section of the report documents the steps taken to 
appropriately determine a recommended parking capacity for each of the sites. Base parking generation ratios, 
representing weekday and weekend conditions, are taken verbatim from the Second Edition of ULI/ICSC’s 
Shared Parking and multiplied by each site’s land use quantities, yielding a product which is then adjusted by 
multiplying by hourly and monthly factors for each of the development’s respective land uses. These are called 
“presence factors”. Two final adjustments are made to the standard or base parking generation ratios. One 
adjustment discounts the demand to account for local transportation modal split characteristics, recognizing 
that not everyone drives an automobile for every trip, and a second adjustment is made to avoid double 
counting attendees who are on-site for more than one reason and are therefore not creating additive parking 
demand. These last two calculations are referred to as the “driving ratio” and “non-captive” adjustments. The 
balance of this section of the report documents the math that underlies this analysis, following the steps listed 
below. 
 

List of Shared Parking Steps          Page 
 

Step 1:  Identification and Quantification of Project Land Use Components ............................................................ 6 
 
Step 2:  Application of Standard or Base Parking Generation Ratios ......................................................................... 6 
 
Step 3:  Application of Presence Factors .................................................................................................................... 7 
 
Step 4:  Application of Driving Ratio ........................................................................................................................... 8 
 
Step 5:  Application of Non-Captive Ratio .................................................................................................................. 8 
 

 
 
LAND USE UNITS:  BUILDING PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
 
The following exhibits document the proposed land uses associated with each of the project sites. Office 
building and residential amenities that will not generate additive parking demand have been excluded from the 
parking calculations and typically include the common areas in and around each building. These uses are 
typically defined as employee and guest amenities and, in this context, would not be expected to generate any 
outside demand for parking. 

Page 193



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 7 

Step 1: Identification and Quantification of Project Land Use Components 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 

Standard or 
Base Parking 
Generation 

Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Non- Captive 

Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 
TOTAL 

 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Exhibit 4: Summary of Grandview Palace Condominium Land Uses  
 

Land Use Type 1992 Stipulation 
Current Unit/ 

Square Footage 
(sf) 

Change (+/-) 

Office  600-sf 5,239-sf +4,569-sf 

Retail/Shopping 15,200-sf 7,685-sf -7,515-sf 

Fine/Casual Dining (Includes Yacht Club) 0-sf 3,626-sf +3,626-sf 

Health Club 0-sf 4,444-sf +4,444-sf 

Specialty Grocery 0-sf 2,014-sf +2,014-sf 

Marina 119 Slips 117 Slips -2 Slips 

Residential Condo    

1-bedroom  15 units +15 units 

2-bedroom 506 units 479 units -27 units 

3-bedroom  12 units +12 units 

Source: Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Inc; Walker Consultants, 2018 
 
Exhibit 5: Summary of Extra Space Storage Land Uses   

 
Land Use Type Unit/Square Foot 

Office  900-sf 

Retail/Shopping 4,000-sf 

Mini-Storage Warehouse 141,900-sf 

Source: Baranof Holdings; Walker Consultants, 2018 
 
BASE PARKING RATIOS AND MINIMUM PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
 

Simply put, the base parking ratios, or the minimum off-street parking requirements, represent how many 
spaces should be supplied to each use if the spaces are unshared, and the project is located in a context were 
the driving ratio is at or near 100 percent. The following exhibit documents the minimum parking requirements 
employed by North Bay Village.  
 

Page 194



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 8 

Step 2: Application of Standard or Base Parking Generation Ratios 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of 
rooms, square 
footage, etc.) 

 
 

X 

Standard or 
Base Parking 
Generation 

Ratio 

 
 

X 

 

Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 

Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 

Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Non- 

Captive 
Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 

TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

Exhibit 6: Minimum Parking Requirements  
 

Residential Uses:  

Multi-family: 1.5 parking spaces for each efficiency unit 

 2 parking spaces for 1- and 2-bedroom units 

 3 parking spaces for 3-bedroom units 

Residential Guest 10% of total required residential spaces 

Commercial Uses:  

Fitness Center 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Retail 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Restaurant 1 parking space for every 75-sf (CSA)  

Office 1 parking space for every 300-sf (GFA) 

Marina 1 parking space for every boat slip or berth 

 
Source: Shared Parking, Second Edition, Urban Land Institute and International Council of Shopping Centers, 2005; ITE Parking Generation 4th Edition, 2010. 

 
PRESENCE FACTORS 
 
After each site’s land uses have been quantified and standard or base parking generation ratios have been 
applied to these land use quantities, adjustments are made to account for parking demand variability by hour of 
day and month of year. This is referred to as a “presence” adjustment. 
 
Step 3: Application of Presence Factors 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 
Standard or Base 

Parking 
Generation Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Non- Captive 
Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 

TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Presence is expressed as a percentage of peak potential demand modified for both time of day and month of the 
year. The fact that parking demand for each component may peak at different times generally means that fewer 

Page 195



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 9 

parking spaces are needed for the project than would be required if each component were a freestanding 
development.  
 
DRIVING RATIO ADJUSTMENT 
 
A driving ratio adjustment is the percentage of patrons, employees, and residents that are projected to drive to 
the site in a personal vehicle, expressed as a ratio. This excludes all non- driving modes of transportation 
including shuttle bus, taxi, ride-hailing (Lyft/Uber), walking, and carpooling passengers. Driving-ratio 
adjustments were made to the base ratios based on U.S. Census data (American Community Survey). 
 
Step 4: Application of Driving Ratio 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 
Standard or Base 

Parking 
Generation Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Non- Captive 
Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 
TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
The employee driving ratios were derived from the 2016 Five-Year American Community Survey data set found 
through the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and Census 
Transportation Planning Products (CTPP). The Census data concluded that North Bay Village, Florida has an 
80.20 percent commuter drive ratio and therefore, we have modeled the drive ratio for employees at 80.20 
percent. We recognize in doing so, that in this type of development, some employees will bike to work, some 
will carpool, and some will take local transit to the nearest drop off/ pick up spot and then walk to the site.  
 
When combined with the Census data for residents (95 percent) and consumers (98 percent), we’ve modeled 
the comprehensive driving ratio for employees, residents and consumers at 91 percent, allowing for a nine (9) 
percent means of transportation reduction for the Grandview Palace Condominiums and the Extra Space 
Storage development site. 
 

Page 196



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 10 

NON-CAPTIVE ADJUSTMENT RATIO 
 
A shared parking analysis recognizes that people often visit two or more land uses housed within the same 
development site, without increasing their on-site parking use. For example, an office employee who dines at 
the restaurant and arrived by automobile creates parking demand for one, not two parking spaces. A non-
captive ratio allows for an adjustment to the shared parking analysis by taking into account the portion of on-
site visitors who are already accounted for as office employee parking demand and are therefore not creating 
additional parking demand. In this example, the restaurant demand is captive to the office employee demand 
and therefore care must be taken in the shared parking analysis to avoid double counting. This double counting 
is avoided by applying what is referred to as a “non-captive ratio.” 
 
Non-captive ratios can vary from one property to the next and from one function to the next within the same 
property. Typically, a reduction ranging from 20 to 50 percent has been used by parking and transportation 
professionals to fine tune the parking requirements for mixed-use accessory uses such as restaurants and retail 
shops. The non-captive ratios included herein are intended to be reasonable and appropriate adjustments. 
 
Step 5: Application of Non-Captive Ratio 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 

Standard or 
Base Parking 
Generation 

Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Non- Captive 

Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 

TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Since the Extra Spaces Storage patrons are modeled as the primary demand generator for the storage facility 
site, a 100 percent non-captive rate was applied for storage patrons and storage employees. This means that 
100 percent of storage patrons are arriving on site with the intention of visiting a storage unit. Additionally, 
Grandview Palace resident parking across all uses was kept at a 100 percent non-captive ratio because they 
would be arriving on site with the intention of occupying a residential unit. For accessory uses, including retail, 
dining, and health club, adjustments were applied. A summary of the non-captive ratios is shown in the 
following exhibit. 
 

Page 197



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 11 

Exhibit 7: Grandview Palace Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table5 
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Exhibit 8: Extra Space Storage Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table 
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

                                                           
5 Use of the onsite health club is estimated at 60% resident use, projecting a 40% non-captive ratio. 

Land Use Notes Quantity Daytime Evening Daytime Evening

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 7,685 GLA 90% 85% 90% 78%

  Employee 100% 100% 47% 0%

Specialty Grocery 2,014 GLA 85% 80% 85% 73%

  Employee 83% 83% 83% 83%

Fine/Casual Dining 3,626 GLA 80% 80% 66% 79%

  Employee 83% 83% 83% 83%

Health Club 4,444 GLA 40% 40% 40% 40%

  Employee 83% 83% 83% 83%

Residential Guest 506 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

Residential Condo 51% Reserved 100% 100% 100% 100%

  1 bedroom 15 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

  2 bedroom 479 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

  >3 bedroom 12 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 5,239 GFA 100% 100% 100% 100%

  Employee 85% 100% 100% 100%

Marina 117 slips 22% 22% 22% 22%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Non Captive Ratio

Weekday Weekend

Land Use Quantity Daytime Evening Daytime Evening

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 4,000 GLA 100% 100% 99% 100%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Mini-Storage Warehouse 141,900 GLA 100% 100% 100% 100%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Office <25,000sq ft 900 GFA 100% 100% 100% 100%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Non Captive Ratio

Weekday Weekend

506 

Page 198



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 12 

SUMMARY AND OVERALL RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
GRANDVIEW PALACE CONDOMINIUM 

Walker’s model evaluates the projected parking demand from 6:00am to midnight6 for each month of the year 
for a weekday and weekend. Based on the model for Grandview Palace Condominium, typical weekday peak 
hour demand is projected to occur in February during the 7:00pm hour and the typical weekend peak hour 
demand is projected to occur in March during the 8:00pm hour. The following exhibits provide a summary of 
Walker’s typical weekday and weekend peak hour parking projections for the existing Grandview Palace 
Condominium. 
 

Exhibit 9: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekday)  
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

Walker assumes 100% occupancy for all land use quantities in this analysis. It is understood that an additional 
50% to 70% vacancy rate reduction may apply to residential utilization as a factor of seasonal occupancy and 
expected turnover. It should be recognized that we have not factored the 50% to 70% reduction into our model 
result as our model is designed to represent the busiest hour of the year, busiest day of the year, and busiest 
month of the year, at an 85th percentile level relative to similar properties with limited means of transportation 
available to the site users. 
 
When typical peak weekday parking projections (1,043± spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 
1,165± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 122± spaces.  
 

                                                           
6 For this analysis, daytime hours are from 6:00am to 6:00pm and evening hours are from 6:00pm to midnight.  

  

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio February February

Land Use Demand February 7:00 PM Evening Evening 7:00 PM 5:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 39 100% 95% 85% 98% 31 33

Specialty Grocery 10 100% 27% 80% 98% 2 2

Fine/Casual Dining 49 100% 100% 80% 98% 38 29

Health Club 22 95% 90% 40% 98% 7 7

   Residential Reserved - Condo 522 100% 100% 100% 95% 498 498

   Residential Unreserved - Condo 502 100% 97% 100% 95% 464 407

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 0 100% 2% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 17 100% 10% 100% 85% 1 6

Marina 29 100% 25% 22% 98% 2 4

Subtotal Customer/Guest 149 80 71

Subtotal Employee/Resident 519 465 413

Subtotal Reserved Resident - Condo 522 498 498

Total Parking Spaces Required 1,190 1,043 986

% reduction 12%

Weekday

Page 199



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 13 

Exhibit 10: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekend)  
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 
 

When typical peak weekend parking projections (1,028± spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 
1,165± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 137± spaces. 
 
 
EXTRA SPACE STORAGE DEVELOPMENT SITE 

 
Based on the model for Extra Space Storage, typical weekday peak hour demand is projected to occur in January 
during the noon hour and the typical weekend peak hour demand is also projected to occur in January during 
the same noon hour. The following exhibits provide a summary of Walker’s typical weekday and weekend peak 
hour parking projections for the existing Extra Space Storage development site. 
 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio Mar February

Land Use Demand Mar 8:00 PM Evening Evening 8:00 PM 5:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 39 100% 65% 78% 98% 19 31

Specialty Grocery 10 100% 25% 73% 98% 2 2

Fine/Casual Dining 49 100% 100% 79% 98% 38 19

Health Club 22 85% 30% 40% 98% 2 8

   Residential Reserved - Condo 522 100% 100% 100% 95% 498 498

   Residential Unreserved - Condo 502 100% 98% 100% 95% 469 407

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 0 100% 0% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 17 100% 0% 100% 90% 0 1

Marina 29 100% 5% 22% 98% 0 4

Subtotal Customer/Guest 149 61 64

Subtotal Employee/Resident 519 469 408

Subtotal Reserved Resident - Condo 522 498 498

Total Parking Spaces Required 1,190 1,028 970

% reduction 14%

Weekend

Page 200



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 14 

Exhibit 11: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekday)  

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
When typical peak weekday parking projections (17± spaces) are compared against the planned inventory of 
140± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 123± spaces.  
 

Exhibit 12: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekend)  

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
When typical peak weekend parking projections (14± spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 140± 
spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 126± spaces. 
 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio January January

Land Use Demand January 12:00 PM Daytime Daytime 12:00 PM 6:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 12 95% 25% 100% 98% 3 3

  Employee 3 95% 100% 100% 75% 2 2

Mini-Storage Warehouse 20 91% 55% 100% 98% 10 4

  Employee 0 95% 100% 100% 75% 0 0

Office <25,000sq ft 0 100% 15% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 3 100% 90% 100% 80% 2 1

Subtotal Customer/Guest 32 13 7

Subtotal Employee 6 4 3

Total Parking Spaces Required 38 17 10

% reduction 55%

Weekday

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio February January

Land Use Demand February 12:00 PM Daytime Daytime 12:00 PM 6:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 13 100% 25% 99% 98% 3 3

  Employee 3 100% 100% 100% 80% 2 2

Mini-Storage Warehouse 16 100% 55% 100% 98% 9 3

  Employee 0 100% 100% 100% 80% 0 0

Office <25,000sq ft 0 100% 90% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 0 100% 90% 100% 85% 0 0

Subtotal Customer/Guest 29 12 6

Subtotal Employee 3 2 2

Total Parking Spaces Required 32 14 8

% reduction 56%

Weekend

Page 201



 

WALKERCONSULTANTS .COM 

 

Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Staff Report   
Waiver for Dock and Boat Lift 

 

 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village Commission 

Applicant:    Hilda Pelayo Trust 

Site Address: 7544 West Treasure Drive 

Request: Waiver for Dock and Boat Lift Construction 
Beyond the D-5 Triangle 

Page 211



Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   1 
 

General Information 

 
Owner Hilda Pelayo Trust 

Applicant Address 7544 West Treasure Dr 
North Bay Village, Fl. 33141 

Site Address 7544 West Treasure Drive 
Contact Person Henry Albelo 
Contact Phone Number 305-316-5032 
E-mail Address bibi@tridentenv.com 
Zoning District RS-2 
Use of Property Single Family Home 

 
 

General Description 
 
There is an existing 12-foot by 12-foot dock at the subject property, which is a residence 
in the RS-2 zoning district. The applicant is requesting a permit to construct a new dock 
which would extend from the existing dock and would include a 7,500 lb capacity boat 
lift. The existing and proposed dock extends 12 feet from the existing seawall into 
Biscayne Bay. The proposed boat lift will extend an additional 10.5 feet into the bay 
from the dock. The total length of the proposed structures will be 22.5 feet from the 
seawall. 
 
 

Applicable Code Provisions 
 

The construction or alteration of docks, piers, etc is governed by Section 9.12 of the Village 
Unified Land Development Code. Section 9.12(B) reads as follows:  

1. No person, firm, or corporation shall construct any docks, piers, dolphins, wharfs, pilings, boat lifts, or 
similar structures of any kind more than 25 feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline into any 
waterway within the corporate limits of the Village without first obtaining a waiver from the Village 
Commission after a public hearing.  However, the furthermost distance seaward from the seawall or 
shoreline shall not exceed 75 feet including all dolphins or pilings installed beyond the seaward most 
line of the dock or pier but not including required rip-rap. 

2. No dock, pier, wharf, dolphin, piling, or similar structure shall be erected in the Village unless the 
structure is set back at least 7½ feet from the lot line on each side. 

3. No person, firm, or corporation shall build, extend, or make any structural alteration on any building, 
dock, pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, seawall, or similar structure within the corporate limits of 

Page 212

mailto:bibi@tridentenv.com
mailto:bibi@tridentenv.com


Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   2 
 

the Village, or do any filling, excavating, or dredging in the waters without first obtaining a building 
permit to do so from the Village Building Department. 

4. Application for any permit or the transfer of any permit required by this section shall be made to the 
Village Building Department in writing on forms provided therefore. The permit shall constitute an 
agreement by the applicant to comply with all conditions imposed upon granting of the permit. The 
application shall be accompanied by plans and specifications setting forth in detail the work to be 
done. 

5. Permits for seawalls and dock structures can be approved administratively and do not require a hearing 
or approval of the Village Commission if:  

a. All proposed dock structures, including but not limited to boat lifts and mooring piles, are not 
placed more than 25 feet measured perpendicular from the seawall. 

b. All proposed dock structures, including but not limited to boat lifts and mooring piles, are 
entirely within the D-5 triangle as described in Section D5 of the Miami-Dade Public Works 
Manual. 

6. Applications for docks, boat lift, mooring piles or other similar structures that do not meet the 
administrative approval criteria of Section 6 above shall be heard by the Village Commission at a 
public hearing. If an applicant seeks a dock or pier length greater than 25 feet measured perpendicular 
from the seawall (including boat lifts, mooring piles or other structures), the Village Commission shall 
consider the following criteria to determine if a distance waiver shall be granted: 

a. If the Applicant has provided to the Village notarized letter(s) of consent from adjoining 
riparian property owners, and 

b. If the Village has received any letter(s) of objection from adjoining riparian property owners; 
and 

c. Any other factors relevant to the specific site. 

7. The Village Commission may deny, approve, or modify the request and/or impose conditions in the 
permit, or granting of a distance waiver, which it deems necessary to protect the waterways of the 
Village in accordance with the public safety and the general welfare. The requirement of approval by 
the Village Commission shall not include applications for repair of existing structures. 

8. A public hearing held pursuant to this Section shall be quasi-judicial. 

9. Repair or reconstruction of existing structures shall not require approval of the Village Commission 
but may be approved administratively. However, the provisions of subsections 4 and 5 above shall be 
complied with. 

10. A safety light shall be placed on the part of the structure (either dock, mooring pile, or boat lift) which 
is furthest from the seawall. The light shall be illuminated from one half hour prior to sunset to one 
half hour after sunrise. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 213



Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   3 
 

Staff Comments 

There is an existing unpermitted dock structure at the subject property. Historical aerials 
indicate that this dock was constructed between November 2007 and December 2009. 
The existing dock is 12 foot by 12 foot and is located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks 
from the property lines are met. 

The proposed dock and boat lift structures extend 22.5 feet from the seawall and are 
located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks from the property lines are met. 

Since the dock and boat lift extend outside the D-5 triangle, a waiver must be granted 
by the Village Commission at a public hearing in order for the VIlalg to grant approval of 
the Applicant’s proposed plans. It is the Commission’s decision to grant or deny a 
waiver for these plans. 

Miami-Dade DERM has provided pre-approval for the current plans. 

At this time, the Applicant has not provided any documentation regarding the state of 
the current seawall structures. However, a Village seawall inspection was performed for 
all waterfront properties in the Village in 2016. Notes from that inspection indicate that 
the seawall at this property had visible rust and cracking. 

No letters of consent or letters of objection from adjacent property owners have been 
submitted with the current application or submitted separately as of the writing of this 
report. 

 

Staff Recommendations 
 
The proposed dock meets applicable standards and staff has not received any 
objections to the Applicant’s request. However, if there are any objections submitted 
prior to the public hearing or at the public hearing, the Village Commission should 
consider those objections in their decision to approve or deny the Applicant’s plans, 
according to Village Code Section 9.12(B)(6). Additionally, the most recently available 
inspection of the seawall indicates that repairs should be made. If the Commission 
chooses to approve the Applicant’s request, the approval should be subject to the 
following conditions being met prior to the issuance of a building permit: 
1. A safety light shall be placed on at least one of the boat lift pilings which is furthest 

from the seawall. The light shall be illuminated from one half hour prior to sunset to 
one half hour after sunrise. 

2. Completion of any necessary seawall repairs and provision of a seawall inspection 
report verifying that the current seawall structures are in good repair. 

3. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited 
to, compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the 

Page 214



Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   4 
 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be 
obtained before commencement of construction. 

4. Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 
prior to commencement of construction. 

5. Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 5.12. Specifically, no new 
development application shall be accepted, and no building permit shall be issued 
for the property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees 
and fines related to the property (including fees related to any previous development 
proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

6. Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way 
create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal 
agency, and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the 
obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that results in 
a violation of federal or state law. 

 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP  
Planning Consultant 
March 28, 2019 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, April 9, 2019 
 
Attachments: Aerial of Subject Property 
 
 
 

Page 215



St
af

f R
ep

or
t 

 
Ap

pl
ic

an
t: 

H
ild

a 
Pe

la
yo

 T
ru

st
 

D
oc

k 
W

ai
ve

r R
eq

ue
st

  
 

75
44

 W
es

t T
re

as
ur

e 
D

riv
e 

 
 

 
5 

 A
er

ia
l o

f S
ub

je
ct

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
 

 
     

Page 216



St
af

f R
ep

or
t 

 
Ap

pl
ic

an
t: 

H
ild

a 
Pe

la
yo

 T
ru

st
 

D
oc

k 
W

ai
ve

r R
eq

ue
st

  
 

75
44

 W
es

t T
re

as
ur

e 
D

riv
e 

 
 

 
6 

 A
er

ia
l o

f S
ub

je
ct

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
 

 

Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



It ■ mm 'W North Bay Village
I ̂ B Administrative Offices

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village. FL 33141

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com

DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page I of3

Site Address

Owner Namedm cL ImWJ ^^/fowner Phone #

Owner Mailing Address

Applicant Name Applicant Phone #

Applicant Mailing Address

Contact Person /P! O Contact Phone # ^ ̂  3gi-

Contact Email Address

Legal Description of Property Pl^

Existing Zoning Lot Size Folio Number oL 3 "" 3 ~0'^c^€^

Legal Description Pf^ Syj (-(p-h /

Project Description ^
/ -hy i

Dock Length Measured Perpendicular from Seawall / cX

Mandatory Submittals (Applicant must check that each item is included with this application)

□ Site plans whicli depict: □ Property survey
North point □ Elevations
Scale at 1/16 inch to the foot, or larger □ DERM approval
Date of preparation □ Application fees
Dock structures □ recovery deposit
Any mechanical equipment
Any exterior lighting
Any other physical features

Mayor Vice Mayor Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Connie Leon-Kreps Eddie Lim Dr. Richard Chervony Wendy Duvall Jorge Gonzalez

Page 222



DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 2 of3

Applications are incomplete until all mandatory submittals have been received by the Village Clerk.

All requests for dock approval fix>m the North Bay Village Code shall be considered at Public Hearings before the
Village Commission. Notice of Hearing shall be given by publishing and posting on the property (which is the
subject of the request), the time, the place and the nature of the hearing at least 10 days before the hearing. The
Village Clerk shall certify that the petition is complete before the hearing is legally advertised. All applications shall
be submitted to the Village Clerk on or before the deadline implemented by the Village.

All persons, firms, or corporations requesting dock approval from the Village Commission necessitating the
publication of notices in the newspaper, and all relative thereto, dte payment of such money in advance to the
Village Clerk shall be deemed a condition precedent to the consideration of such a variance request, pursuant to
Section IS2.110 of the Village Code.

All new and substantial improvements must comply with the Florida Building Code, Department of Environmental
Resource Management (DERM), and FEMA regulations.

I (We) the undersigned, am (are) the (owner, tenant, agent, attorney) (designate one) of the subject property herein
described. I (We) acknowledge and agree that during the consideration of the application before the Staff of North
Bay Village, no rights shall vest on behalf of the applicant, which would be enforceable against the Village until
after a Public Meeting is held by the Village Commission has voted fovorable on the proposed request.

I (We) further acknowledge that I (We) have read and understand the conditions for appearance before the Planning
and ^ning Board and the Village Conrnai^n pursuant to the Village Code Section 152.096. Any person
submitting false information or misrepre^tipg In their presentation shall have all privileges granted to them by the
Village Commission revoked.

Authorized Signature

kPrint Name,

(In case of corporate ownership, the authorized signature shall be accompanied by a notation of the signer's position
in the corporation and embossed with the corporate seal.)

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF ' VctJ^

Sworn to and subscribed to before me this

by P<^l
P  day of _.20.

who is personally known to me or who has produced _

Notary Public Signature <r"

as identification.

Commission Number/Expiratii BIBIANAVILLAZON
MY COMMISSION jIFF 988184

EXPIRES: November 22.201«
Bonded Thru Public Underwritem

Mayor
Connie Leon-Kreps

Vice Mayor
Eddie Lim

Commissioner

Dr. Richard Chervony
Commissioner

Wendy Duvall
Commissioner

Jorge Gonzalez

Page 223



h->

C-4

CM
»;n

DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 3 of 3

Office Use Onlv;

Date Submitted: 'Ml
Tentative Meeting Date:_ .jyjSitaoB
Fee Paid: $

Cash or Check # in

Date Paid:

Mayor Vice Mayor Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Connie Leon-Kreps Eddie Lim Dr. Richard Chervony Wendy Duvall Jorge Gonzalez

Page 224



NBV Cost Recovery Transmittal Form

Property Address:

Name:

Mailing Address:

Email Address:

Date Received by

Clerk's Office:

Clerk Office

Signature:

7544 West Treasure Drive

Hilda Peiayo/Hllda Pelayo Rev Trust

7544 West Treasure Drive, Miami Beach, FL 33141

BIBI@TRIDENTENV.COM

Type of Request:

Application Amount: $300.00

Telephone:

Check Name:

Timber B

(305) 24

Jose S P

oat Dock and 7,500 Capacity Elevator Boatlift

Cost Recovery Fee: $2,000.00

4-0545

elayo, 1231 NE 88*^ St, Miami. FL 33138

Date Submitted to

02/22/2019 Finance: 02/22/2019

Finance Office

Signature:

Page 225



sr.

a.

CM
CM

CO
Ui

DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 3 of3

Office Use Only;

Date Submitted:

Tentative Meeting Date: <!3|
Fee Paid: $ 2..-0^co

-f-

Cash or Check #

Date Paid: 2-1
in

2-2-12£3\'^

JOSE S PELAYO
.\231NE88TH STREET
MIAMI, FL 33138 117

63-751/631 10931
1090007592915

VyelhFar9o8ank,NA
Fionda

wellsftrgcwrom

J $
'

-SoJlars

<03

':0"l075l3.:i090007S959ll; JO 117

Mayor
Connie Leon-Kreps

Vice Mayor
Eddie Lim

Commissioner

Dr. Richard Chervony
Commissioner

Wendy Duvall
Commissioner

Jorge Gonzalez

Page 226



Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 1

2

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 3

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY BARANOF 4

HOLDINGS LLC AND GRANDVIEW PALACE CONDOMINIUM 5

ASSOCIATION, INC CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6

1850 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY AND 7601 EAST TREASURE 7

DRIVE FOR A PARKING WAIVER PURSUANT TO SECTION 8

9.3(D)(2) OF THE VILLAGE UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 9

CODE TO ALLOW REDUCTION OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF 10

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED BY THE 1992 STIPULATED 11

AGREEMENT FROM 1,119 TO 1,057 PARKING SPACES, BASED 12

ON SHARED PARKING AND PARKING UTILIZATION 13

ANALYSIS; PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR 14

GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; 15

PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; 16

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 17

18

 WHEREAS, Baranof Holdings, LLC. and Grandview Palace Condominium Assoc. has 19 

applied to North Bay Village for a Parking Waiver pursuant to Section 9.3(D)(2) of the Village 20 

Unified Land Development Code in connection with the development of a 98 foot tall, 142,530 21 

square foot self-storage facility with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail space and off-site 22 

parking included for Grandview Palace to allow a reduction of the total number of parking spaces 23 

required by the 1992 stipulated agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on shared 24 

parking and parking utilization analysis; and 25 

26

 WHEREAS, Section 9.3(D)(2) of the Village Unified Land Development Code and 27 

Section 4.9 of the Unified Land Development Code sets forth the authority of the Village 28 

Commission to consider and act upon an application for a Parking Waiver; and 29 

30

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the North Bay Village Unified Land 31 

Development Code, a public hearing by the Planning and Zoning Board was noticed for February 32 

5, 2019 at 7:30 P.M. at Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, Florida 33 

33141 and the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application, conducted a public hearing 34 

and recommended denial of the request; and 35 

36

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the North Bay Village Unified Land 37 

Development Code, a public hearing by the Village Commission was noticed for April 9, 2019 at 38 

6:30 p.m. at Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 and 39 

all interested parties have had the opportunity to address their comments to the Village 40 

Commission; and  41 

42

WHEREAS, the Village Commission has reviewed the application, and considered the 43

Page 227



Page 2 of 3 

recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board and comments from the public, and 44 

determined that the existing uses at 7601 East Treasure Drive and the proposed uses at 1850 45 

Kennedy Causeway do not require the full provision of parking facilities as required by the 46 

stipulated agreement and the Village Unified Land Development Code; and 47 

48

 WHEREAS, the Village Commission has determined that the stipulated development 49 

agreement which was approved according to Village Resolution 92-39 should be modified to 50 

accommodate the requested Parking Waiver. 51 

52

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 53

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 54 

55

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this 56

Resolution by this reference. 57 

58

 Section 2. Finding.  In accordance with Section 9.3(D)(2) of the Village Unified 59 

Land Development Code, the Village Commission finds that the proposed Parking Waiver to 60 

allow a reduction of the total number of parking spaces required by the 1992 stipulated agreement 61 

from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on shared parking and parking utilization analysis, is 62 

appropriate for the existing uses at 7601 East Treasure Dr and the proposed uses at 1850 63 

Kennedy Causeway.  64 

65

 Section 3. Grant.  The Parking Waiver requested to allow a reduction of the total 66 

number of parking spaces required by the 1992 stipulated agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking 67 

spaces, based on shared parking and parking utilization analysis, in connection with the Site Plan 68 

submitted to the Village on March 22, 2019 is hereby approved. 69 

70

 Section 4. Appeal.  In accordance with Section 4.6 of the North Bay Village Unified 71 

Land Development Code, the Applicant, or any aggrieved property owner, may appeal the 72 

decision of the Village Commission by filing a Writ of Certiorari to the Circuit Court of Miami-73 

Dade County, Florida, in accordance with the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. 74 

75

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 76

77

78

[Remaining Page Left Blank] 79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

Page 228



Page 3 of 3 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by ___________, who moved for its adoption.  87

 88

This motion was seconded by ____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as 89 

follows: 90 

 91

FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 92 
93

Mayor Brent Latham  ____________ 94 

Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth  ____________ 95 

Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez ____________ 96 

Commissioner Andreana Jackson ____________ 97 

Commissioner Julianna Strout ____________ 98 

99

 100

PASSED and ADOPTED this ____ day of _______ 2019. 101 

102

103

104

____________________________ 105

BRENT LATHAM 106

MAYOR 107

108

 109

ATTEST: 110 
 111

_______________________________ 112 

ELORA RIERA, CMC 113 

Village Clerk 114 

115

 116

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE SOLE USE 117 

AND RELIANCE OF THE VILLAGE: 118 
 119

_______________________________ 120 

JAMES D. STOKES, BCS 121 

Special Counsel for the Village 122 

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

Page 229



THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Page 230



Staff Report  
Variance  

Prepared for:  North Bay Village, 
Commission 

Applicant: Baranof Holdings, LLC  

Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

Site Address:  1850 Kennedy Causeway 

Request: Variance to allow reduction of the total 
number of parking spaces required 

Page 231



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Variance for Parking   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  1 

General Information 
 

Owner: The Atkinson Trust, LLC 

Applicant: Baranof Holdings, LLC 

Applicant Address: 2305 Cedar Spring Road, Suite 200, Dallas, TX 75201 

Site Address: 1850 Kennedy Causeway 

Contact Person: Andrew Aiken 

Phone Number: 972-402-5707 

E-mail Address aaiken@baranofholdings.com 

 
 Existing 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG 

Use of Property Off-site Parking for Grandview Palace 

Acreage 1.93 acre (84,128 sq ft) 
 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 232

mailto:aaiken@baranofholdings.com
mailto:aaiken@baranofholdings.com


Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Variance for Parking   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  2 

Adjacent Land Use Map Classifications and Zoning District 

North 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Multifamily Residential 

   

East 
Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Retail Commercial 

   

South 

Future Land Use  Educational Recreational 

Zoning District RS-2 Medium Density Single Family Residential 

Existing Land Use Elementary School 

   

West 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Multifamily Residential 

 

Description of Request 
 

The applicant is requesting a variance pursuant to section 7.3 of the North Bay Village Unified 
Land Development Code to allow reduction of the total number of parking spaces required by 
the 1992 stipulated agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on shared parking 
and parking utilization analysis. 
 
 
The Applicant is also requesting a site plan approval and a parking waiver. Staff reports for the 
site plan and parking waiver request have been provided in addition to this variance staff report. 
 

Required Findings 
 
Section 7.3 requires that in order to authorize, recommend or grant any variance, the reviewing 
body(ies) must make an affirmative finding with respect to the criteria listed below: 
 
(1) That there are special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to the land, 

structure, or building involved and which are not generally applicable to other lands, 
structures, or buildings in the same zoning district. 

 
Applicant Response:  The off-site parking requirement creates a unique burden 
restricting the use of the off-site property, the K-Lot. No other property in the Village 
is burdened in a similar way. The K-Lot cannot transfer the Grandview Palace 

Page 233



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Variance for Parking   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  3 

burden elsewhere and there is not available land that the Grandview Palace may 
move its off-site parking to. The K-Lot must, unlike any other property in the Village, 
add the Grandview Palace’s off-site parking burden to its own development and 
parking requirements. When combined with the on-site development and the related 
on-site parking requirement, it adds a significant burden making redevelopment 
virtually impossible, given the other development parameters on the lot. 
 
Staff Comments:  The circumstances that are unique to this property relate to the 
nonconforming parking capacity at the time of the original development, clearly not 
related to hardships based in land size or lot irregularities. The requirements of a 
stipulated number of parking spaces to be provided allowed the original development 
to be built, and later qualified as a condominium. The burden was self-created 
because the original developers failed to provide adequate parking until a court 
ordered stipulated agreement was initiated. 

  
(2) That the special circumstances and conditions were not self-created by any person 

having an interest in the property. 
 

Applicant Response:  The special circumstances were not self-created, nor were 
they created by any person having an interest in the property. The circumstances 
were created by financial failures and the resulting subdivision of the Grandview 
Palace and Caribbean Towers buildings that occurred more than 30 years ago, 
which forced the creation of alternate parking arrangements. 
 
Staff Comments:  The burden, created by the financial failure of past developers for 
Grandview Palace, unfortunately was passed on to the present developers. Without 
the stipulated agreement for parking, Grandview Palace would not be a viable 
development. There was a self-created hardship that was passed on to current 
owners. 

(3) That the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the applicant of 
the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building for which the variance is sought; 
and would involve an unnecessary hardship for the applicant.  

 
Applicant Response:  This Variance Request is submitted in conjunction with the K-
Lot Site Plan Application and is a unique situation where the Grandview Palace 
parking requirement creates an unreasonable burden not just for Grandview Palace, 
but for the off-site K-Lot as well. Redevelopment of the K-Lot is severely 
compromised by the requirement to provide such a large number of parking spaces 
for Grandview Palace in addition to any redevelopment and the on-site parking for 
that redevelopment. The proposed K-Lot self-storage facility, given its low parking 
need and requirement, also allows for the tremendous benefit of public parking. 
 
Staff Comments:  The owners of the K-lot are financially compensated for the lease 
of the K-lot to the Grandview Palace Association and are not kept from a reasonable 
use of the land if the variance is not granted. The K-lot can still be developed, as 
long as parking is still provided to Grandview Palace and the other requirements of 
the stipulated agreement continue to be met. The Applicant has not demonstrated 
that the current situation involves an unnecessary hardship, as defined in Village 

Page 234



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Variance for Parking   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  4 

Code Chapter 3, as follows: 
 

Hardship, unnecessary. Arduous restrictions upon the uses of a particular property, which are 

unique and distinct from that of adjoining property owners. Granting of relief from an unnecessary 

hardship should not violate sound zoning principles, including considerations that: adjacent 

properties will not be substantially reduced in value, it is not granting a special privilege not to be 

enjoyed by others in similar circumstances, and the public interest is maintained, including 

following the spirit of this chapter and the comprehensive master plan. Invalid and nonjustifiable 

bases for pleading unnecessary hardship include but are not limited to: 

A. Loss of the "best" use of the land, and business competition. 

B. Self-created hardships by the applicant's own acts. 

C. Neighboring violations and nonconformities. 

D. Claims of inability to sell the property. 

E. General restrictions of this chapter. 

 (4) That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 
privilege that is denied by the Unified Land Development Code to other land, structures, 
or buildings in the same zoning district.  

  
Applicant Response: Granting the variance will not confer on the Applicant any 
special privilege that is denied to other land, structures or buildings in the same 
zoning district. Granting the variance will not confer on Grandview Palace any 
special privilege. In actuality, Grandview Palace has, since it began utilizing the K-
Lot, provided more than its required parking. Based on the uses and parking 
requirements at the time, Grandview Palace was required to provide 1,119 parking 
spaces, but was providing 1,165 parking spaces with the K-Lot. Approval of the 
variance will not allow Grandview Palace to make any changes, nor will it eliminate 
its requirement to provide adequate parking. The reduction, simply, acknowledges 
the blend of uses located on the Property and actual parking usage rates. The 
Variance Request reduces the parking requirement, but still requires Grandview 
Palace to pay monthly for 75 off-site parking spaces, which is above actual usage 
and 14 spaces more than the need demonstrated in the Parking Analysis, but 
ensures it can, at all times, meet its worst-case scenario Peak Hour demand.  
 
Staff Comments:  The stipulated agreement already confers a special privilege 
upon the applicant, allowing the majority of the uses at Grandview Palace to exist 
without providing parking in conformance with the current Village Code. Since the 
time of the stipulated agreement, Grandview Palace has expanded several uses 
above what was grandfathered by the stipulated agreement. According to the 
Applicant’s parking study (and verified by staff), the expansion of those uses requires 
an additional 71 parking spaces above the 1,119 required by the stipulated 
agreement, for a total of 1,190 parking spaces now required. According to the 
surveys provided by the Applicant, the total number of parking spaces provided on 
the K-lot and Grandview Palace properties is 1,165, which is 25 spaces short of the 
required amount. Additionally, many of those existing spaces do not meet the 
minimum dimensional requirements of the stipulated agreement and the Village 
Code. Approval of the requested variance would allow a further reduction in the total 

Page 235



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Variance for Parking   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  5 

number of parking spaces and would confer additional special privileges upon the 
applicant. 

 

(5) That the variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, structure, or building.  

  
Applicant Response:  The variance requested is the minimum variance that will 
make possible the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building. Approval of the 
variance and the Baranof Site Plan will allow redevelopment of the K-Lot in a way 
that allows for the provision of new public parking, which can alleviate parking 
shortages in the surrounding neighborhood without creating any shortage on the 
Grandview Palace property. 
 
Staff Comments:  No variance is necessary to make possible the reasonable use of 
the land. The owners of the property have been leasing the property to Grandview 
Palace and may continue to do so. 

 

(6) That granting the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
chapter, and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise 
detrimental to the public welfare.  

  
Applicant Response:  Approval of the variance is in harmony with the general intent 
and purpose of the Village Zoning Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood 
or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. The approval of the variance in 
conjunction with the redevelopment of the K-Lot will still provide sufficient Grandview 
Palace parking to meet their Peak Hour demand, but will also provide a significant 
benefit to the neighborhood and improve the public welfare by providing 26 new 
parking spaces available to the public. 
 
Staff Comments:  Utilization of the existing parking facilities will increase when the 
remaining 70 unsold condominium units are sold. Additionally, if in the future there is 
a change in the demographics of Grandview Palace residents or the business 
located in Grandview Palace, parking utilization could increase and impacts on the 
surrounding neighborhood could be significant as the demand for the already limited 
street parking will increase. 

 

(7) The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of 
development.  

  
Applicant Response:  Approval of the variance is not based exclusively upon a 
desire to reduce the cost of development. It is true that the reduction of the parking 
requirement will reduce annual costs for the Grandview Palace Condominium 
members; however, the more crucial element is the ability of the Baranof Site Plan to 
provide for redevelopment of the K-Lot in a manner that improves the streetscape, 
Village economic base, and most significantly, provides critically needed publicly 
available parking. 
 

Page 236



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Variance for Parking   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

 

  6 

Staff Comments:  Reduction of costs is likely a major factor in the reasoning behind 
this variance request. Parking facilities are typically costly to construct and maintain. 
Allowing for a reduction in the number of parking spaces that are required to be 
provided on the K-Lot would allow the applicant to construct less parking spaces and 
significantly reduce building costs and maintenance costs. 

 

Planning & Zoning Board 
 
All three of the Applicant’s requests (site plan, parking variance, parking waiver) were heard by 
the Village Planning & Zoning Board at their February 5, 2019 meeting. The Board 
recommended denial of all three requests (including the parking variance) by a vote of 4-0.  
 
 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff finds that the requested variance generally does not meet the requirements of 
Section 7.3. Consequently, staff cannot recommend approval of the requested variance 
to allow reduction of the total number of parking spaces required by the 1992 stipulated 
agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on shared parking and parking 
utilization analysis. 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
March 26, 2019 
 
 

Hearing: Commission, April 9, 2019 

Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



VARIANCE REQUEST APPLICATION EOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 3 of 3

Office Use Only:

Date Submitted: ( 2^ 2b

Tentative Meeting Date:_ Feb
Fee Paid; $ . OO

Cash T or Cheek^# \ OQ^

Mayor Vice Mayor Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Brent Latham Andreana Jackson Jose R. Alvarez Julianna Strout Marvin Wilmoth

Page 240



BARANOF HOLDINGS LLC
2305 CEDAR SPRINGS RD, STE 200

DALLAS, TX 75201

;! PAY TO THE /" l „ , ,
j  ORDER OF VAVa,

Tioo s:v i„n
9 "<

@ Texas Capital Bank®
Dallas, Texas

|J FOR ^

FL

i>r>

DATE ^^/l°t/lg

.Prof<!Clioafa-ikt5r>:^

32-1797/1110

-DOLLARS ? ■

Page 241



 
200 E. Broward Blvd., Suite 1900, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301  |  954-763-4242  |  www.wsh-law.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

KATHRYN MEHAFFEY, ESQ. 
KMEHAFFEY@WSH-LAW.COM 

 
 

December 28, 2018 
 
 
 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Interim Village Clerk 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, 3rd Floor 
North Bay Village, FL 33141 
 
VIA EMAIL 

Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
LaRue Planning and Management 
Village Planning 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, 3rd Floor 
North Bay Village, FL 33141 

 Re:  Parking Waiver Application for property generally located at 7601 East Treasure 
Drive, Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Master Folio 23-3209-011-0010  
 
Dear Ms. Mariot, Mr. LaRue, and Mr. Smith: 
 
 This is an application by Baranof Holdings, LLC (“Baranof” or the “Applicant”) for property 
located at 1850 79th Street Causeway, as off-site parking provider for Grandview Palace 
Condominiums (“Grandview Palace”) located at 7601 East Treasure Drive in North Bay Village.  This 
letter shall serve as the Applicant’s letter of intent for waiver to the parking requirements of 9.3.C 
based on shared parking and actual usage or, in the alternative, a variance to the parking requirements 
of 9.3.C. of the Village Code.  The reduction is requested in conjunction with an offer to provide public 
parking on the property at 1850 79th Street Causeway, the “K-Lot” and contingent on the sale of the 
K-Lot to Baranof Holdings, LLC (“Baranof”).  Upon sale of the K-Lot to Baranof Holdings, LLC, the 
waiver/variance is intended to run with the land and, pursuant to the Covenant and Stipulation as 
discussed below, the Grandview parking requirement on the K-Lot will be binding on Baranof and its 
successors in perpetuity unless modified by the Village.  Grandview Palace is in the process of 
completing a final review of supporting documentation referenced herein and verifying the accuracy 

Page 242



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 2 of 11 
 

 

of the numbers set forth and reserves the right to modify, correct, or respond with additional 
information or otherwise join or amend this application. 

Baranof presents this information based on its independent evaluation of the Grandview Palace 
property, historical documents and the K-Lot property, which information and analysis is under review 
by Grandview Palace. 

The Property.  The Grandview Palace Condominium property, consisting of 4.14 acres and 
zoned RM-70 Multiple Family Residential, is located at 7601 East Treasure Drive on the south side 
of the Causeway.  The Grandview Palace property was built a number of years ago as North Bay 
Landing in conjunction with an adjacent property (currently known as Caribbean Towers) under a 
shared parking arrangement.   For purposes of this application, the North Bay Landing/Grandview 
Palace property will be referred to as “Grandview Palace.”   As a result of a 1992 foreclosure action, 
the Grandview Palace property was separated from the adjacent property with which it shared parking 
and became non-conforming as to parking.  Litigation ensued during which the Court determined the 
legal number of parking spaces required for Grandview Palace, based on the then existing uses and 
Village Code parking requirements.   

The parties, including the City of North Bay Village, entered into a stipulated settlement agreement 
(the “Stipulation”), later ratified by the City in Resolution 92-39.  Based on the then existing uses and 
Village Code requirements, the Stipulation set a parking requirement of 1,119 spaces for Grandview 
Palace including handicapped and compact parking spaces.  The Stipulation, recognizing that the 
1,119 required parking spaces were not provided on-site, also acknowledged the anticipated purchase 
of a nearby property which would be utilized for additional off-site parking for Grandview Palace in 
order to provide the required 1,119 parking spaces.   The Stipulation required that in the event a 
property was purchased for off-site parking, a covenant committing the off-site property to provide 
the additional required parking for Grandview Palace in perpetuity would be required.   

Later, the property located at 1850 79th Street Causeway, the “K-Lot,” was purchased by the 
developer of the Grandview Palace and a covenant committing the K-Lot to provide off-site parking 
for Grandview Palace was executed.   In contrast to the requirements of the Stipulation, the covenant 
limited the K-Lot “solely” to parking for Grandview Palace, preventing the addition of any other uses 
on the property.   The covenant was recently amended to delete the word “solely” to allow 
redevelopment of the property in addition to the parking required for Grandview Palace.  The 
Resolution, Stipulation, Covenant and recent Covenant Amendment are attached as Exhibit A.    

Page 243



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 3 of 11 
 

 

Subsequent private litigation from 2012-2014, which the Village was not a party to, required 
the Grandview Palace Condominium Association to continue  paying rent to the owner of the K-Lot 
for all of the spaces in the K-Lot at a rate specified by the court.1 

The Stipulation required 1,119 parking spaces based on the following uses: 

 
Grandview Palace 1992 Uses 

 
1992 Stipulation Use 
(“Stipulation Use”) 

Square Foot/ 
Units/Slips 

Office 670 sq.ft. 
Retail/Shopping 15,200 sq.ft. 
Residential Condo – 2 Bedroom 506 units 
Marina 119 slips * 
*  In 1992 there were 106 slips plus 32 davits, which were located in 13 

additional slips (119 slips total) 

As with any property, over the years, changes occurred with tenants and uses since the original project 
development and since the 1992 Stipulation.   A number of the business uses have changed over the 
years consistent with the designated commercial use of the spaces and subject to permit review by the 
Village.  Additional changes, including a small number of residential reconfigurations, the addition of 
the health spa, club room, café, and various recreational features, occurred during the redevelopment 
period from 1996 to 2003 consistent with the Development Agreement approved by the Village in 
1996.  No substantive changes to the structural or floor plan layout of the property have occurred since 
the final creation of the condominium entity in 2003 which was all related to the Development 
Agreement.   The Grandview Palace property manager completes an annual survey of residential units 
to ensure no units have been improperly subdivided and has, when inappropriate changes have been 
found, worked with the Village Code Enforcement Department to address the changes and ensure the 
return of the unit to its approved condition.   

Current Grandview Palace Parking.  Grandview Palace currently provides 1,165 parking 
spaces consisting of 982 on-site parking spaces as striped, and 183 off-site parking spots located on 
the K-Lot. While subsequent engineering reports demonstrate that many additional parking spaces 
meeting all legal requirements could be added on the Grandview Palace site, no changes are proposed 
at this time.  (The existing Parking Survey is attached as Exhibit B).  Many of Grandview Palace’s 
residents use motor scooters or motorcycles rather than cars for transportation.  As such Grandview 

                                                 
1 Of the 1,119 required parking spaces, 982 are provided on-site, requiring 137 off-site parking spaces.  The K-Lot provides 
183 parking spaces. 

Page 244



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 4 of 11 
 

 

Palace’s existing on-site parking includes 52 designated motorcycle parking spaces, which are 
provided in addition to the 982 on-site automobile parking spaces discussed herein.2 

The 1,119 parking spaces required by the 1992 Stipulation were calculated based on the 1992 
Stipulation Use, as provided above.  Those uses are grandfathered at that parking requirement.  Based 
on various types of Village approvals for modifications, it may be helpful to evaluate the parking needs 
under today’s code considering the 1992 Stipulation approvals and the subsequent 1996 Development 
Agreement.  Based on Baranof’s understanding of these documents and its own current investigations 
an addition 71 parking spaces would be required if the same 1996 redevelopment occurred under 
today’s Code requirements, resulting in a Code based 1,190 spaces.   

Current Village Code parking requirements were applied to the Development Agreement changes in 
use, using the highest potentially applicable parking requirement and to all uses regardless of their 
accessory status3, and the resulting parking requirements for the Development Agreement use changes 
were added to the 1992 Stipulation required parking.    

       Parking Reduction Request.  The Applicant is requesting, pursuant to Section 9.3.D. 
Exceptions to parking requirements, a waiver from the parking requirements of Section 9.3.C of the 
Village Code based on shared parking and actual utilization (“Waiver Request”), or in the alternative, 
a variance of the parking requirements of Section 9.3.C. of the Village Code pursuant to Section 7.3 
Procedure for consideration of a hardship variance (“Variance Request”), to reduce the Grandview 
Palace parking requirement to 1057 parking spaces, including 75 off-site parking spaces provided on 
the K-Lot.  This request is for 14 spaces more than the need identified by the Parking Analysis study 
and significantly more than actual usage surveys indicate are required in order to ensure all parking 
needs are met at all times.  The Request is a companion application to the Site Plan Application by 
Baranof Holdings, LLC, for the K-Lot Redevelopment Proposal, briefly described below.  The K-Lot 
parking reconfiguration and availability of parking for public use is dependent on the sale of the 
property to Baranof Holdings, LLC and approval of the Site Plan Application.     

Approval of both of the companion Applications will permit redevelopment of the K-Lot in a 
way that will contribute to the Village’s economic base, improve the streetscape, accommodate 
Grandview Palace’s off-site parking, and provide up to 26 additional parking spaces available hourly 
or monthly to the public.  This Waiver Request or Variance Request is only related to required 
Grandview Palace parking.  There are no restriping or revisions to the Grandview Palace on-site 
parking configuration proposed at this time.  The K-Lot Redevelopment Proposal includes all required 
parking on-site for the new uses on the K-Lot without any reduction or shared parking request.   The 

                                                 
2 Motorcycle spaces are not included in the required parking count but are above and beyond all requirements. 
3 As an example, the Health Club was included, even though it is primarily used by residents. 

Page 245



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 5 of 11 
 

 

self-storage and first-floor retail parking requirements are met on-site and these uses will not utilize 
parking on the Grandview Palace property.   

The K-Lot Redevelopment Proposal.  The Site Plan Application for the K-Lot consists of a 
142,530 square foot Extra Space self-storage facility, with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail 
space.   In addition, the Project will include parking for the proposed on-site improvements, a number 
of parking spaces open to the public, and as required by the Stipulation and Covenant, off-site parking 
for Grandview.  The proposed uses are permitted by right under the Village Zoning Code and the 
Project complies with all Code requirements.    See the companion Site Plan application for more 
information. 

 Analysis Summary.  Approval of the request to reduce the Grandview Palace required 
parking, either by approval of the Waiver Request or the Variance Request, in conjunction with the 
proposed K-Lot redevelopment project, will allow the Village to utilize shared parking concepts and 
make adjustments in a manner that will provide new public parking spaces, a need frequently 
expressed by the Village.  The Village has the unique opportunity to analyze the request with the best 
possible real-time information – an already developed and operating property, evaluated under current 
industry shared parking standards, with parking needs that have been verified and validated by a 
current study of actual usage.  The study does not propose changes on the Grandview Palace property 
but demonstrates why the existing parking set-up works and fewer spaces are needed on the surplus 
K-Lot. 

In summary, the shared parking analysis, attached as Exhibit C, based on the Applicant’s 
understanding of current uses on the Grandview Palace property, demonstrates a need for a total of 
1,043 spaces for the Grandview Palace.  Under the reduction request, as supported by the parking 
analysis and the actual usage survey, 982 parking spaces are provided on-site (plus 52 extra motorcycle 
spots) which leaves 61 off-site parking spaces required to accommodate Peak Hour demand (7 p.m. 
weekday in February).  This Application proposes to provide not 61 parking spaces on the K-Lot, but 
75 parking spaces on the K-Lot.  The K-Lot Site Plan application provides 101 extra parking spaces 
above the required parking for the new on-site development.   If 75 of those 101 spaces are dedicated 
for Grandview Palace use, 26 spaces can be made available for public parking.  K-Lot development 
parking is provided entirely on the K-Lot and those uses will not be utilizing parking on the Grandview 
Palace Property. 

Parking Waiver Analysis.  Section 9.3.D.2 of the Village Code provides for a Waiver or 
reduction of parking requirements in any district whenever the character or use of the building makes 

Page 246



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 6 of 11 
 

 

the full provision of parking facilities unnecessary.4  The Applicant requests a waiver of the 
requirements from the 1,119 spaces, acknowledging the Village authorized changes pursuant to the 
1996 Development Agreement, to provide 1,057 parking spaces (982 on-site and 75 off-site), based 
on shared parking and actual usage. 

 Shared Parking.   Shared parking is a parking management system when a property is 
utilized by several different types of uses – for instance, residential, retail, and office.  Most parking 
spaces are only used part time by any particular group of users, leaving a number of spaces open at 
any given time.   These cycles of usage are predictable following daily, weekly, and annual cycles, 
which when evaluated together allows parking spaces to be shared by multiple users in order to 
increase efficiency.   

 Shared parking methodology was developed in the 1980s and has been a widely-
accepted industry standard for rightsizing parking facilities over the past 30+ years. 
Adopted by cities throughout the U.S., and codified in zoning ordinances as an 
acceptable practice, shared parking is endorsed by the Urban Land Institute (ULI), the 
American Planning Association (APA), the National Parking Association (NPA), and 
International Council of Shopping Centers (ICSC), as an acceptable method of parking 
planning and management. 

 Shared parking allows for the sharing of parking spaces among uses in a mixed-use 
environment—in lieu of providing a minimum number of parking spaces for each 
individual use. 

Shared Parking Analysis Extra Space Storage, North Bay Village, Florida, 11/24/2018 
pg.4, Walker Consultants. 

A shared parking analysis was completed for Grandview Palace as well as the K-Lot Project.  
For Grandview Palace, the calculation starts with the base 1992 Stipulation required parking (1,119 
spaces), adds the parking that today’s Code would require for changes in use described above (+71 
spaces), and, using the total required parking of 1,190 parking spaces, evaluates the shared parking 
needs based on the normal hours and patterns of parking space utilization for each of the existing land 
                                                 
4 Village Code Section 9.3 - Off-street parking requirements. 
* * * 
D.  Exceptions to parking requirements.  
* * * 

2.  Waiver or reduction of parking requirements: To waive or reduce the parking and loading requirements 
in any district whenever the character or use of the building is such as to make unnecessary the full provision of 
parking or loading facilities. 

 

Page 247



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 7 of 11 
 

 

uses.  The methodology assumed a 100% occupancy and did not apply a vacancy rate reduction for 
any uses.   Peak Hour demand was determined to be at 7:00 p.m. on a weekday in February.  The 
shared parking analysis for Grandview Palace demonstrates a need for 1,043 parking spaces during 
the Peak Hour demand.   With 982 of those parking spaces located on-site, the analysis demonstrates 
a need for 61 additional spaces, which must be provided off-site.  The Applicant requests to reduce 
the off-site parking to 75 as opposed to 61 to alleviate any concerns of parking shortage.  

The shared parking analysis for the K-Lot was conducted in the same manner, although no 
reduction in the parking requirement is requested for that application.  The K-Lot and Grandview 
Palace shared parking analyses provided in the study were not linked together because the application 
does not anticipate the K-Lot uses sharing or utilizing the  Grandview Property in any way.   The 
required parking for the proposed redevelopment on the K-Lot is 38 parking spaces.  The shared 
parking analysis demonstrated a Peak Hour demand5 of 17 parking spaces.  However, to address the 
Village’s concerns with parking, this is not included in the Grandview Palace shared parking analysis 
and no reduction in the K-Lot redevelopment required parking is proposed.  The K-Lot Redevelopment 
Project provides all 38 required parking spaces, plus 101 spaces dedicated to Grandview Palace off-
site parking and public parking.  The public parking is available only with purchase of the property by 
Baranof Holdings, LLC and approval of the Baranof K-Lot site plan. 

 Actual Utilization.  An on-site parking usage survey was conducted on November 1, 
2018.  Counts were taken at 9:30 a.m. and 1:30 p.m.  On-site Grandview Palace parking was 43% 
occupied at 9:30 a.m. and 29% occupied at 1:30 p.m.  The K-Lot had 35 vehicles at 9:30 a.m. and 40 
vehicles at 1:30 p.m.; however, 12 of those parking spaces are leased to a neighboring property.  Not 
including the leased spaces, Grandview Palace was utilizing 23 parking spaces at 9:30 a.m. and 28 
parking spaces at 1:30 p.m., all of which could easily have been parked on-site at Grandview Palace.  

Based on the actual parking usage of the K-Lot and of the on-site Grandview Palace parking, 
there is an ample supply of parking for the uses at Grandview Palace on-site, and the proposed 75 off-
site parking spaces is sufficient to handle all Peak Hour demand. 

Variance Analysis.   In the event the Village Commission determines a Waiver of the parking 
requirements is not the appropriate mechanism to address a parking reduction, the Applicant 
respectfully requests approval of a variance from the requirements of Section 9.3.C to require 1,057 
parking spaces for Grandview Palace.   The current 1992 Stipulation requirement is 1,119 parking 
spaces.  However, in recognition of changes related to the 1996 Development Agreement, which 
although consistent with prior Village authorizations may not have been incorporated into prior 
parking calculations, 1,190 parking spaces is consistent with the current Code requirements as 
                                                 
5 Peak Hour demand for the K-Lot on-site redevelopment project, based on the uses, is 11:00 a.m. on a weekday in 
February. 

Page 248



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 8 of 11 
 

 

discussed above.  Section 7.3.C. provides procedures and criteria for consideration of a hardship 
variance.   

The criteria the Planning and Zoning Board and Village Commission must evaluate when 
considering a variance are discussed below: 

1. That there are special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to the land, 
structure, or building involved and which are not generally applicable to other lands, structures, or 
buildings in the same zoning district.  

 
Applicant response:  The off-site parking requirement creates a unique burden 

restricting the use of the off-site property, the K-Lot.  No other property in the Village is 
burdened in a similar way.  The K-Lot cannot transfer the Grandview Palace burden 
elsewhere and there is not available land that the Grandview Palace may move its off-site 
parking to.  The K-Lot must, unlike any other property in the village, add the Grandview 
Palace’s off-site parking burden to its own development and parking requirements.  When 
combined with the on-site development and the related on-site parking requirement, it adds 
a significant burden making redevelopment virtually impossible, given the other 
development parameters on the lot. 

2.  That the special circumstances and conditions were not self-created by any person having 
an interest in the property.  

Applicant response:  The special circumstances were not self-created, nor were they 
created by any person having an interest in the property.   The circumstances were created 
by financial failures and the resulting subdivision of the Grandview Palace and Caribbean 
Towers buildings that occurred more than 30 years ago, which forced the creation of alternate 
parking arrangements.   

 
3.  That the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the applicant of 

the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building for which the variance is sought; and would 
involve an unnecessary hardship for the applicant.  

Applicant response:  This Variance Request is submitted in conjunction with the K-
Lot Site Plan Application and is a unique situation where the Grandview Palace parking 
requirement creates an unreasonable burden not just for Grandview Palace, but for the off-
site K-Lot as well.  Redevelopment of the K-Lot is severely compromised by the requirement 
to provide such a large number of parking spaces for Grandview Palace in addition to any 
redevelopment and the on-site parking for that redevelopment.  The proposed K-Lot self-

Page 249



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 

storage facility, given its low parking need and requirement, also allows for the tremendous 
benefit of public parking. 

4.  That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by the Unified Land Development Code to other land, structures, or buildings in the 
same zoning district.  

Applicant response: Granting the variance will not confer on the Applicant any 
special privilege that is denied to other land, structures or buildings in the same zoning 
district.  Granting the variance will not confer on Grandview Palace any special privilege.  
In actuality, Grandview Palace has, since it began utilizing the K-Lot, provided more than 
its required parking.  Based on the uses and parking requirements at the time, Grandview 
Palace was required to provide 1,119 parking spaces, but was providing 1,165 parking spaces 
with the K-Lot.  Approval of the variance will not allow Grandview Palace to make any 
changes, nor will it eliminate its requirement to provide adequate parking.  The reduction, 
simply, acknowledges the blend of uses located on the Property and actual parking usage 
rates.  The Variance Request reduces the parking requirement, but still requires Grandview 
Palace to pay monthly for 75 off-site parking spaces, which is above actual usage and 14 
spaces more than the need demonstrated in the Parking Analysis, but ensures it can, at all 
times, meet its worst-case scenario Peak Hour demand. 

5.  That the variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable 
use of the land, structure, or building.  

Applicant response:  The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make 
possible the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building.   Approval of the variance and 
the Baranof Site Plan will allow redevelopment of the K-Lot in a way that allows for the 
provision of new public parking, which can alleviate parking shortages in the surrounding 
neighborhood without creating any shortage on the Grandview Palace property. 

6.  That granting the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
chapter, and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to 
the public welfare.  

Applicant response: Approval of the variance is in harmony with the general intent 
and purpose of the Village Zoning Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or 
otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.  The approval of the variance in conjunction 
with the redevelopment of the K-Lot will still provide sufficient Grandview Palace parking 
to meet their Peak Hour demand, but will also provide a significant benefit to the 

Page 250



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 

neighborhood and improve the public welfare by providing 26 new parking spaces available 
to the public. 

7.  The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of 
development.  

Applicant response:  Approval of the variance is not based exclusively upon a desire 
to reduce the cost of development.  It is true that the reduction of the parking requirement 
will reduce annual costs for the Grandview Palace Condominium members; however, the 
more crucial element is the ability of the Baranof Site Plan to provide for redevelopment of 
the K-Lot in a manner that improves the streetscape, Village economic base, and most 
significantly, provides critically needed publicly available parking.    

Other Documentation.  As described above, the K-Lot is subject to the 1992 Stipulation 
adopted by Resolution of the Village Commission.  The Stipulation will require revision and provides 
that the number of parking spaces may be revised upon approval by Resolution of the Village 
Commission.  In addition, a Covenant running with the land may be revised to incorporate the 
Resolution changing the stipulated number of parking spaces.  Both of these documents will need to 
be revised by the Village Commission concurrent with approval of the parking waiver or variance, 
and effective upon sale of the property to Baranof Holdings, LLC.  That request will be a separate 
application for consideration at the same meeting, but only after approval of this application. 

Conclusion.  The K-Lot has been utilized for years for off-site parking for Grandview Palace.  
The Property has gone through various stages of disrepair and recovery, but has never contributed 
more to the Village than to provide minimal parking for Grandview Palace guests and occasionally, 
random public users who wrongly assume they can use the open parking which is currently not allowed 
under the Village approvals.  Parking on the K-Lot is severely underutilized.  Much of it is not needed 
by Grandview Palace but excess spaces cannot be made available to the public.  The property 
contributes only minimally to the tax base and provides no social benefit to the Village.  Approval of 
the Waiver Request, or alternatively, the Variance Request to require 1,057 parking spaces for 
Grandview Palace would not only permit Grandview Palace to still provide sufficient off-site parking 
to accommodate Peak Hour demand, but will also allow redevelopment on the K-Lot to provide 26 
parking spaces for public use. Additionally, it will allow for redevelopment of the property with a use 
that will contribute more positively to the tax base, improve the streetscape, and provide ground floor 
neighborhood commercial in addition to the self-storage which will provide a service to Village 
residents and draw in consumers from the beach communities.   

Therefore, based on: (1) the aforementioned analyses and inventories; (2) the difficulty of 
providing 183 parking spaces on the K-Lot in conjunction with redevelopment, and; (3) Grandview 

Page 251



 
Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 26, 2018 
Page 11 of 11 
 

 

Palace’s contention (validated by the attached study) that the majority of the 183 parking spaces on 
the K-Lot are not utilized, the Applicant respectfully requests a reduced parking requirement of 1,057 
parking spaces for Grandview Palace, conditionally tied to the K-Lot Redevelopment Site Plan 
application by Baranof Holdings which provides the off-site parking for Grandview Palace and will, 
as a result of this approval, provide 26 parking spaces available for public use.  With this Application, 
of the 1057 required spaces, 982 spaces will be provided on-site at Grandview Palace and 75 spaces 
will be provided off-site on the K-Lot.  An additional 52 motorcycle spaces will also be provided on-
site.     

Based on the forgoing, we look forward to your favorable recommendation.  Should you have 
any questions or concerns regarding this Application, please do not hesitate to call me at 954-763-
4242. 

     Very truly yours, 
 

 

Kathryn M. Mehaffey 

 

Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



16914_870_1.tif

EXHIBIT A

Page 267



16914_870_2.tif

Page 268



16914_870_3.tif

Page 269



16914_870_4.tif

Page 270



16914_870_5.tif

Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



 

 

SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 
 
 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE  
North Bay Village, Florida 
 
12/27/2018 
 
Baranof Holdings 
2305 Cedar Springs Road, Suite 200 
Dallas, TX  75201 
 

Page 284



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS  

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

  

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ii 
 Findings and Conclusions ii 
 1992 Stipulation Parking Allocation – 1,119 Spaces iii 

   
 SECTION 1-INTRODUCTION 1 
 
 SECTION 2-SHARED PARKING 4 

 Shared Parking Methodology 4 
 Shared Parking Analysis  6 

 Land Use Units:  Building Program Description 6 
Base Parking Ratios and Minimum Parking Requirements 7 

 Presence Factors 8 
 Driving Ratio Adjustment 9 
 Non-Captive Adjustment Ratio 10 
 Summary and Overall Recommendations 12 

     LIST OF EXHIBITS  
 Exhibit 1: Grandview Palace Condominiums and –  
 Proposed Extra Space Storage Development Land Use Quantities  1 
 Exhibit 2: Minimum Off-Street Parking Requirements –  
 North Bay Village 2 
 Exhibit 3: Shared Parking Analysis 5 
 List of Shared Parking Steps 6 
 Exhibit 4: Summary of Grandview Palace Condominium –   
 Land Uses 7 
 Exhibit 5: Summary of Extra Space Storage Land Uses 7 
 Exhibit 6: Minimum Parking Requirements 8 
 Exhibit 7: Grandview Palace Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table 11 
 Exhibit 8: Extra Space Storage Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table  11 
 Exhibit 9: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekday 12 
 Exhibit 10: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekend 13 
 Exhibit 11: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekday 14 
 Exhibit 12: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis –  
 Typical Peak Weekend  14  
  
 

Page 285



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS  

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

  

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  ii 

 
FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

 

• The preliminary development plans for the Extra Space Storage development include a proposed 40± 
space parking structure and 99± surface parking spaces for a total planned parking inventory of 139± 
parking spaces.  
 

• A Grandview Palace legal stipulation dated December 28, 1992 required 1,119 parking spaces be 
available for the existing and approved for completion land uses.  As of the date of the stipulation, the 
land uses included: 

▪ 506 two-bedroom apartment units 
▪ 670 sf of office space 
▪ 15,200 sf of retail space 
▪ Marina facility with 106 slips and 32 davits in an additional 13 slips, for a total of 119 slips   

 

• A Walker site visit on Thursday, November 1, 2018 revealed the following land use changes to the 
original 1992 stipulation: 
 

Summary of Grandview Palace Condominium Land Use    
 

Land Use Type 1992 Stipulation 
Current Unit/ 

Square Footage 
(sf) 

Change (+/-) 

Office  600-sf 5,239-sf +4,569-sf 

Retail/Shopping 15,200-sf 7,685-sf -7,515-sf 

Fine/Casual Dining (Includes Yacht Club) 0-sf 3,626-sf +3,626-sf 

Health Club 0-sf 4,444-sf +4,444-sf 

Specialty Grocery 0-sf 2,014-sf +2,014-sf 

Marina 119 Slips 117 Slips -2 Slips 

Residential Condo    

1-bedroom  15 units +15 units 

2-bedroom 506 units 479 units -27 units 

3-bedroom  12 units +12 units 

Source: Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Inc; Walker Consultants, 2018 
 

• The proposed land use quantities for the Extra Space Storage development site are defined as follows: 
 

Summary of Extra Space Storage Land Use   
 

Land Use Type Unit/Square Foot 

Office  900-sf 

Retail/Shopping 4,000-sf 

Mini-Storage Warehouse 141,900-sf 

Source: Baranof Holdings; Walker Consultants, 2018 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 286



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | iii 

• To remain current with North Bay Village parking code requirements, the following minimum base 
parking ratios have been used to calculate the typical peak demand for new uses, and any expansions of 
use, above the grandfathered uses identified in the 1992 Stipulation. 
 

Minimum Off-Street Parking Requirements – North Bay Village 

 
Residential Uses:  

Multi-family: 1.5 parking spaces for each efficiency unit 

 2 parking spaces for 1- and 2-bedroom units 

 3 parking spaces for 3-bedroom units 

Residential Guest 10% of total required residential spaces 

Commercial Uses:  

Fitness Center 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Retail 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Restaurant 1 parking space for every 75-sf (CSA)  

Office 1 parking space for every 300-sf (GFA) 

Marina 1 parking space for every boat slip or berth 

 
Source: North Bay Village, Florida – Unified Land Development Code; Chapter 9 - Off-Street Parking Requirements  

 
1992 STIPULATION PARKING ALLOCATIONS – 1,119 SPACES 
 

Land Use Type 
Allocation of 

1992 Stipulation Spaces 

Additional (or 
Reduced) 

Requirement 
Based on 
Change 

Total (Unadjusted 
Demand) 1992 Stipulation 

adjusted for subsequent land use 
changes 

Office  2 Spaces +15 Spaces 17 Spaces 

Retail/Shopping 76 Spaces -37 Spaces 39 Spaces 

Fine/Casual Dining (Includes Yacht Club)  +49 Spaces 49 Spaces 

Health Club  +22 Spaces 22 Spaces 

Specialty Grocery  +10 Spaces 10 Spaces 

Marina 29 Spaces 0 Spaces 29 Spaces 

Residential Condo    

1-bedroom    

2-bedroom 1,012 Spaces   

3-bedroom  +12 Spaces 1,024 Spaces 

Total 1,119 Spaces  1,190 Spaces 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 
 

Page 287



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | iv 

• Based on the model for Grandview Palace Condominiums, projected typical peak hour demand is 
projected to occur on a weekday in February during the 7:00pm hour.  
 

Grandview Palace Condominiums Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak (Weekday)  
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 
 

Key Finding: When typical peak weekday parking projections for Grandview Palace Condominiums (1,043± 
spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 1,165± spaces, Walker’s analysis provides a parking 
surplus of 122± spaces. 
 

• Walker assumes 100% occupancy for all land use quantities in this analysis. It is understood that an 
additional 50% to 70% vacancy rate reduction may apply to residential utilization as a factor of seasonal 
occupancy and expected turnover. It should be recognized that we have not factored the 50% to 70% 
reduction into our model result as our model is designed to represent the busiest hour of the year, 
busiest day of the year, and busiest month of the year, at an 85th percentile level relative to similar 
properties with reasonable means of transportation available to the site users. 
 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio February February

Land Use Demand February 7:00 PM Evening Evening 7:00 PM 5:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 39 100% 95% 85% 98% 31 33

Specialty Grocery 10 100% 27% 80% 98% 2 2

Fine/Casual Dining 49 100% 100% 80% 98% 38 29

Health Club 22 95% 90% 40% 98% 7 7

   Residential Reserved - Condo 522 100% 100% 100% 95% 498 498

   Residential Unreserved - Condo 502 100% 97% 100% 95% 464 407

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 0 100% 2% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 17 100% 10% 100% 85% 1 6

Marina 29 100% 25% 22% 98% 2 4

Subtotal Customer/Guest 149 80 71

Subtotal Employee/Resident 519 465 413

Subtotal Reserved Resident - Condo 522 498 498

Total Parking Spaces Required 1,190 1,043 986

% reduction 12%

Weekday

Page 288



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | v 

• Based on the model for Extra Space Storage, projected typical peak hour demand is projected to occur on 
a weekday in February during the 11:00am hour. 
 

Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak (Weekday)  

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Key Finding: When typical peak weekday parking projections for Extra Space Storage (17± spaces) are 
compared against the planned inventory of 140± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 123± 
spaces. Overlaying projected weekday peak hour demand for Extra Space Storage on projected weekday 
peak hour demand for Grandview Palace Condominiums adds 7± additional spaces at the 7:00pm hour for 
a total projected need of 1,050± spaces. 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio January January

Land Use Demand January 12:00 PM Daytime Daytime 12:00 PM 6:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 12 95% 25% 100% 98% 3 3

  Employee 3 95% 100% 100% 75% 2 2

Mini-Storage Warehouse 20 91% 55% 100% 98% 10 4

  Employee 0 95% 100% 100% 75% 0 0

Office <25,000sq ft 0 100% 15% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 3 100% 90% 100% 80% 2 1

Subtotal Customer/Guest 32 13 7

Subtotal Employee 6 4 3

Total Parking Spaces Required 38 17 10

% reduction 55%

Weekday

Page 289



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | vi 

 

• The following exhibits reflect time of day usage for the Extra Space Storage development on a weekday in 
February. 
 

Extra Space Storage Estimated Peak Hour Demand by Time of Day (Weekday)    

 
 

 
 

 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

• During a site visit to the Grandview Palace property on Thursday, November 1st, Walker observed the 
following onsite parking occupancy levels, to include the use of the existing 183± parking spaces in the 
neighboring K-lot. 

Extra Space Storage 6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:00 PM 1:00 PM 2:00 PM

Consumer/Patron 0 4 6 6 6 12 13 10 7

Employee 0 1 3 4 4 4 4 4 4

0 5 9 10 10 16 17 14 11

Extra Space Storage 3:00 PM 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 7:00 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM 10:00 PM 11:00 PM 12:00 AM

Consumer/Patron 6 9 8 7 6 6 5 2 1 0

Employee 4 4 3 3 1 0 0 0 0 0

10 13 11 10 7 6 5 2 1 0

Page 290



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | vii 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Key Finding: Utilization levels captured at this time reflect resident and retail levels consistent with 50% in 
the main building and resident and tenant levels consistent with 30% in the north building. K lot utilization 
was observed at 13% to 15% when third-party lease spaces with the neighboring property were removed 
from utilization levels. 

 

Nov. 1 Nov. 1

Observed Percent Observed Percent

9:30am Occupied 1:30pm Occupied

Promenade

(ADA and Time Limited) 11 5 45% 9 82%

Garage 

Main Buliding

Tenant (Gated) 517 249 48% 145 28%

Garage

North Building

Retail (Non-gated) 81 40 49% 42 52%

Tenant (Gated) 306 98 32% 63 21%

South Lot

(Permit) 67 30 45% 25 37%

Subtotal 982 422 43% 284 29%

K-Lot¹ 183 35 19% 40 22%

(Guest Permit)

Total 1165 457 39% 324 28%

¹Grandview Palace leases twelve (12) permitted spaces to neighboring property

Location Inventory

Grandview Palace Parking Inventory 

Page 291



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Introduction 

Section 
 

01 

Page 292



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  1 

Baranoff Holdings (Client) is in the process of preparing a preliminary development plan for submittal to the City 
of North Bay Village, Florida. Located at 1850 79th Street Causeway in North Bay Village, Florida, the 
development plan is being designed to include the requirements outlined in the K-lot parking covenent from the 
neighboring Grandview Palace Condominiums (GVP) located at 7601 East Treasure Drive. At full build-out, the 
development plan will not only consider the Grandview Palace overflow parking needs, but also provide parking 
needs for the list of new land use elements (shown on right) in the following exhibit. 
 
Exhibit 1: Grandview Palace Condominiums and Proposed Extra Space Storage Development Land Use Quantities 

 
 

Source: Baranof Holdings; Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Inc; and Walker Consultants 2018 

 
To assist with the plan submittal, Baranof Holdings is seeking the use of a shared parking analysis to help 
confirm the number of spaces that may be required to adequately serve the development and meet the 
covenant agreement of the Grandview Palace Condominium Association. This analysis consists of a review of the 
City’s land development code requirements and the development of a shared parking analysis consistent with 
the City of North Bay Village’s off-street parking requirements. 
 
  

Retail 
4,000 - sf 

Mini-Storage Warehouse 
141,900 - sf 

Office 
900 - sf 

Community Retail 
7,685 - sf 

Specialty Grocery 
2,014 - sf 

Fine/Casual Dining 
3,626 - sf 

Resident Condo 
1-bedroom (15) 

2-bedroom (479) 
3-bedroom (12) 

Office 
5,239 - sf 

Fitness Center 
4,444 - sf 

Marina 
117 Slips 

Page 293



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  2 

In accordance with Chapter 9 - General Site Design Standards; Division 2. – Off-Street Parking and Loading; 
Section 9-3. – Off-Street Parking Requirements; B. – Plan required; All proposed off-street parking facilities shall 
be subject to site plan review and approval. Whenever site plan review is otherwise required in conjunction with 
a specific use, that review shall satisfy the requirements of this section.1   
 

Site plans shall include the following:  

a.  All off-street parking facilities shall be designed with consideration given to surrounding street 
patterns, adjacent properties, and other neighborhood improvements. Consideration shall be given 
to the number of vehicles to be accommodated, hours of operation, and types of uses served.  

b.  All site plans shall show the location, size, dimensions, and design of:  

(1)  On-site buildings and structures.  

(2)  Parking spaces, loading spaces, driveways, and accessways.  

(3)  Directional markings, traffic-control devices, and signs.  

(4)  Walls, fences, pervious areas, berms, changes of grade, and planting materials.  

(5)  Number of parking spaces required, and number provided, amount of landscaping required, 
and amount of landscaping provided.  

(6)  Any other related information that may be reasonably required by the Village.  

c.  When off-street parking facilities are located within an enclosed structure or upon the roof of a 
building, the site plan shall also include interior circulation patterns, slope of ramps, and location of 
interior structural columns.  

 
Walker’s review of the City’s minimum number of off-street parking spaces required has revealed the following 
list of relevant uses and their parking requirements. 
 

Exhibit 2: Minimum Off-Street Parking Requirements – North Bay Village 

 
Residential Uses:  

Multi-family: 1.5 parking spaces for each efficiency unit 

 2 parking spaces for 1- and 2-bedroom units 

 3 parking spaces for 3-bedroom units 

Residential Guest 10% of total required residential spaces 

Commercial Uses:  

Fitness Center 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Retail 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Restaurant 1 parking space for every 75-sf (CSA)  

Office 1 parking space for every 300-sf (GFA) 

Marina 1 parking space for every boat slip or berth 

 
Source: North Bay Village, Florida – Unified Land Development Code; Chapter 9 - Off-Street Parking Requirements 

                                                           
1 City of North Bay Village Unified Land Development Code 

Page 294



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  3 

In accordance with Chapter 9 - General Site Design Standards; Division 2. – Off-Street Parking and Loading; 
Section 9-3. – Off-Street Parking Requirements; D. – Exceptions to parking requirements;2 Walker recognizes the 
following exceptions: 
 

 1.  Off-site parking areas adjacent to or within a reasonable distance (the reasonableness of the distance to 
be determined by the Village Commission) from the premises on which parking areas are required by the 
parking regulations of this subchapter, where practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships are 
encountered in locating such parking area on the premises and where the purpose of these regulations 
to relieve congestion in the streets would be best served by permitting such parking off the premises.  

2.  Waiver or reduction of parking requirements: To waive or reduce the parking and loading requirements in 
any district whenever the character or use of the building is such as to make unnecessary the full provision 
of parking or loading facilities.  

 
As defined by this section of the code, the Village Commission has the authority to waive or reduce parking 
requirements based upon the character or use of the building or property. 
 

                                                           
2 City of North Bay Village Unified Land Development Code 

Page 295



 

  

 

Shared Parking 

Section 
 

02 

Page 296



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  4 

 
SHARED PARKING METHODOLOGY 
 

Shared parking methodology was developed in the 1980s and has been a widely-accepted industry standard for 
rightsizing parking facilities over the past 30+ years. Adopted by cities throughout the U.S., and codified in 
zoning ordinances as an acceptable practice, shared parking is endorsed by the Urban Land Institute (ULI), the 
American Planning Association (APA), the National Parking Association (NPA), and International Council of 
Shopping Centers (ICSC), as an acceptable method of parking planning and management. 
 
Shared parking allows for the sharing of parking spaces among uses in a mixed-use environment—in lieu of 
providing a minimum number of parking spaces for each individual use. Shared parking commonly results in a 
reduction of required parking spaces. This reduction, which is sometimes significant, depends on the quantities 
and mix of uses and local code requirements. 
 
Shared Parking is defined as the ability to use the same parking resource by multiple nearby or adjacent land 
uses without encroachment. Shared parking takes into account the parking demand for more than 45 different 
land uses; the availability and use of alternative modes of transportation; captive market effects3; and daily, 
hourly, and seasonal variations. In the case of the Grand Palace Condominiums and the Extra Space Storage 
development, a shared parking analysis recognizes the interrelationship of parking among primary uses and on-
site, accessory uses such as retail, office and restaurant activity.  A shared parking model generates 456 parking 
demand computations as follows: 
 

• 19 hours during a day, beginning at 6 a.m. and concluding at midnight 

• 2 days per week, a weekday and a weekend day 

• 12 months of the year 

• 19 x 2 x 12 = 456 different calculations 
 
The recommended parking capacity is derived based on the highest figure generated from these 456 
computations. Therefore, the intent is to design for the busiest hour of the year, busiest day of the year, and 
busiest month of the year, at an 85th percentile level relative to similar properties. 
 

A shared parking analysis begins first by taking the land use quantities of each site, e.g., retail square footage, 
and multiplying by a base parking demand ratio and monthly and hourly adjustment factors. All base ratios and 
hourly and monthly adjustments are industry standards that are based on thousands of parking occupancy 
studies, vetted by leading parking consultants and real estate professionals, and documented within the Second 
Edition of ULI/ICSC’s Shared Parking. 
 

                                                           
3Recognition of a user group already on site for another primary purpose and not generating incremental parking demand 

for an accessory use. For example, a sandwich shop located in a residential tower generates very little, if any, outside 
parking demand. Since the parking demand for the Grandview Palace residents has already been accounted for, to avoid 
double counting, a non-captive adjustment factor is applied to the parking demand calculation for the sandwich shop. In 
this extreme example, the non- captive ratio may be 0 percent. 
  

SHARED PARKING SHARED PARKING 

Page 297



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  5 

Walker, as the analyst for this study and in accordance with standard shared-parking methodology, applies two 
additional adjustments to the base parking demand ratios, one to reflect an estimate of the local transportation 
modal split (called the driving ratio) and another to account for the best estimate of captive market effects4 
(called the non-captive ratio). These will all be described in more detail in the sections to follow. 
 

The following graphic provides an illustrative view of the steps involved in the shared parking analysis. This 
graphic is used within this document to help the reader understand the shared parking process and to also assist 
in communicating the step of the analysis that is being described within this report. The Shared Parking Analysis 
section of this report follows this graphic in consecutive order, moving from left to right, and in subsequent 
report sections, the gray highlighted section of the graphic (note: all sections are highlighted in Exhibit 3) 
designates the step that is being described. 
 

Exhibit 3: Shared Parking Analysis            

             

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 
square footage, etc.) 

X 
Standard or Base 
Parking Generation 
Ratio 

X 
Monthly 
Factor 

X 
Hourly 
Factor 

X 
Driving 
Ratio 

X 
Non-

Captive 
Ratio 

= TOTAL 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

For most land uses, shared parking is based on the 85th percentile of peak-hour observations, a standard 
espoused by the ITE, the NPA’s Parking Consultants Council, and renowned parking planners. This 85th 
percentile is a significant and high threshold to meet in terms of supplying parking capacity in that it is provides 
a parking supply that will not be needed by a majority of developments. The 85th percentile recommendation is 
informed by field data counts in the fourth edition of ITE’s Parking Generation4 and this threshold represents 
the 85th percentile of peak-hour observations supplied during the study.  
 

The key goal of a shared parking analysis is to find the balance between providing adequate parking to support a 
development from a commercial and operational standpoint and protect the interests of neighboring property 
owners, while minimizing the negative aspects of excessive land area or resources devoted to parking. The 
ultimate goal of a shared parking analysis is to find a peak period, reasonably predictable worst-case scenario, or 
design day condition. 
 

Allowing multiple land uses and entities to share parking spaces has allowed for and led to the creation of many 
popular real estate developments and districts, resulting in the combination of office, residential, retail, hotel, 
and entertainment districts that rely heavily on shared parking for economic viability while providing parking 
accommodations to meet the actual demand generated by the development. Traditional downtowns in large 
and small cities alike have depended on the practice in order to be compact, walkable and economically viable. 
In the same way, mixed-use projects have also benefited from the shared-parking principle, which offers 
multiple benefits to a community, not the least of which is a lesser environmental impact due to the reduction in 
required parking needed to serve commercial developments, as well as the ability to create a more desirable 
mix of uses at one location, all the while ensuring that parking supply is designed for the busiest hour of the 
year, busiest day of the year, and busiest month of the year, at an 85th percentile relative to similar properties. 

                                                           
4Captive market means attendees who are on-site for more than one reason and are not creating additive parking demand. 
  

Page 298



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   |  6 

SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 
 
In accordance with accepted shared-use methodology, this section of the report documents the steps taken to 
appropriately determine a recommended parking capacity for each of the sites. Base parking generation ratios, 
representing weekday and weekend conditions, are taken verbatim from the Second Edition of ULI/ICSC’s 
Shared Parking and multiplied by each site’s land use quantities, yielding a product which is then adjusted by 
multiplying by hourly and monthly factors for each of the development’s respective land uses. These are called 
“presence factors”. Two final adjustments are made to the standard or base parking generation ratios. One 
adjustment discounts the demand to account for local transportation modal split characteristics, recognizing 
that not everyone drives an automobile for every trip, and a second adjustment is made to avoid double 
counting attendees who are on-site for more than one reason and are therefore not creating additive parking 
demand. These last two calculations are referred to as the “driving ratio” and “non-captive” adjustments. The 
balance of this section of the report documents the math that underlies this analysis, following the steps listed 
below. 
 

List of Shared Parking Steps          Page 
 

Step 1:  Identification and Quantification of Project Land Use Components ............................................................ 6 
 
Step 2:  Application of Standard or Base Parking Generation Ratios ......................................................................... 6 
 
Step 3:  Application of Presence Factors .................................................................................................................... 7 
 
Step 4:  Application of Driving Ratio ........................................................................................................................... 8 
 
Step 5:  Application of Non-Captive Ratio .................................................................................................................. 8 
 

 
 
LAND USE UNITS:  BUILDING PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
 
The following exhibits document the proposed land uses associated with each of the project sites. Office 
building and residential amenities that will not generate additive parking demand have been excluded from the 
parking calculations and typically include the common areas in and around each building. These uses are 
typically defined as employee and guest amenities and, in this context, would not be expected to generate any 
outside demand for parking. 

Page 299



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 7 

Step 1: Identification and Quantification of Project Land Use Components 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 

Standard or 
Base Parking 
Generation 

Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Non- Captive 

Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 
TOTAL 

 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Exhibit 4: Summary of Grandview Palace Condominium Land Uses  
 

Land Use Type 1992 Stipulation 
Current Unit/ 

Square Footage 
(sf) 

Change (+/-) 

Office  600-sf 5,239-sf +4,569-sf 

Retail/Shopping 15,200-sf 7,685-sf -7,515-sf 

Fine/Casual Dining (Includes Yacht Club) 0-sf 3,626-sf +3,626-sf 

Health Club 0-sf 4,444-sf +4,444-sf 

Specialty Grocery 0-sf 2,014-sf +2,014-sf 

Marina 119 Slips 117 Slips -2 Slips 

Residential Condo    

1-bedroom  15 units +15 units 

2-bedroom 506 units 479 units -27 units 

3-bedroom  12 units +12 units 

Source: Grandview Palace Condominium Association, Inc; Walker Consultants, 2018 
 
Exhibit 5: Summary of Extra Space Storage Land Uses   

 
Land Use Type Unit/Square Foot 

Office  900-sf 

Retail/Shopping 4,000-sf 

Mini-Storage Warehouse 141,900-sf 

Source: Baranof Holdings; Walker Consultants, 2018 
 
BASE PARKING RATIOS AND MINIMUM PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
 

Simply put, the base parking ratios, or the minimum off-street parking requirements, represent how many 
spaces should be supplied to each use if the spaces are unshared, and the project is located in a context were 
the driving ratio is at or near 100 percent. The following exhibit documents the minimum parking requirements 
employed by North Bay Village.  
 

Page 300



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 8 

Step 2: Application of Standard or Base Parking Generation Ratios 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of 
rooms, square 
footage, etc.) 

 
 

X 

Standard or 
Base Parking 
Generation 

Ratio 

 
 

X 

 

Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 

Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 

Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Non- 

Captive 
Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 

TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

Exhibit 6: Minimum Parking Requirements  
 

Residential Uses:  

Multi-family: 1.5 parking spaces for each efficiency unit 

 2 parking spaces for 1- and 2-bedroom units 

 3 parking spaces for 3-bedroom units 

Residential Guest 10% of total required residential spaces 

Commercial Uses:  

Fitness Center 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Retail 1 parking space for every 200-sf (GFA) 

Restaurant 1 parking space for every 75-sf (CSA)  

Office 1 parking space for every 300-sf (GFA) 

Marina 1 parking space for every boat slip or berth 

 
Source: Shared Parking, Second Edition, Urban Land Institute and International Council of Shopping Centers, 2005; ITE Parking Generation 4th Edition, 2010. 

 
PRESENCE FACTORS 
 
After each site’s land uses have been quantified and standard or base parking generation ratios have been 
applied to these land use quantities, adjustments are made to account for parking demand variability by hour of 
day and month of year. This is referred to as a “presence” adjustment. 
 
Step 3: Application of Presence Factors 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 
Standard or Base 

Parking 
Generation Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Non- Captive 
Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 

TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Presence is expressed as a percentage of peak potential demand modified for both time of day and month of the 
year. The fact that parking demand for each component may peak at different times generally means that fewer 

Page 301



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 9 

parking spaces are needed for the project than would be required if each component were a freestanding 
development.  
 
DRIVING RATIO ADJUSTMENT 
 
A driving ratio adjustment is the percentage of patrons, employees, and residents that are projected to drive to 
the site in a personal vehicle, expressed as a ratio. This excludes all non- driving modes of transportation 
including shuttle bus, taxi, ride-hailing (Lyft/Uber), walking, and carpooling passengers. Driving-ratio 
adjustments were made to the base ratios based on U.S. Census data (American Community Survey). 
 
Step 4: Application of Driving Ratio 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 
Standard or Base 

Parking 
Generation Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 
 

Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 
 

Non- Captive 
Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 
TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
The employee driving ratios were derived from the 2016 Five-Year American Community Survey data set found 
through the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and Census 
Transportation Planning Products (CTPP). The Census data concluded that North Bay Village, Florida has an 
80.20 percent commuter drive ratio and therefore, we have modeled the drive ratio for employees at 80.20 
percent. We recognize in doing so, that in this type of development, some employees will bike to work, some 
will carpool, and some will take local transit to the nearest drop off/ pick up spot and then walk to the site.  
 
When combined with the Census data for residents (95 percent) and consumers (98 percent), we’ve modeled 
the comprehensive driving ratio for employees, residents and consumers at 91 percent, allowing for a nine (9) 
percent means of transportation reduction for the Grandview Palace Condominiums and the Extra Space 
Storage development site. 
 

Page 302



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 10 

NON-CAPTIVE ADJUSTMENT RATIO 
 
A shared parking analysis recognizes that people often visit two or more land uses housed within the same 
development site, without increasing their on-site parking use. For example, an office employee who dines at 
the restaurant and arrived by automobile creates parking demand for one, not two parking spaces. A non-
captive ratio allows for an adjustment to the shared parking analysis by taking into account the portion of on-
site visitors who are already accounted for as office employee parking demand and are therefore not creating 
additional parking demand. In this example, the restaurant demand is captive to the office employee demand 
and therefore care must be taken in the shared parking analysis to avoid double counting. This double counting 
is avoided by applying what is referred to as a “non-captive ratio.” 
 
Non-captive ratios can vary from one property to the next and from one function to the next within the same 
property. Typically, a reduction ranging from 20 to 50 percent has been used by parking and transportation 
professionals to fine tune the parking requirements for mixed-use accessory uses such as restaurants and retail 
shops. The non-captive ratios included herein are intended to be reasonable and appropriate adjustments. 
 
Step 5: Application of Non-Captive Ratio 
 

Land Use Units 
(Number of rooms, 

square footage, 
etc.) 

 
 

X 

Standard or 
Base Parking 
Generation 

Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Monthly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Hourly 
Factor 

 
 

X 

 
Driving 
Ratio 

 
 

X 

 
Non- Captive 

Ratio 

 
 

= 

 
 

TOTAL 

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Since the Extra Spaces Storage patrons are modeled as the primary demand generator for the storage facility 
site, a 100 percent non-captive rate was applied for storage patrons and storage employees. This means that 
100 percent of storage patrons are arriving on site with the intention of visiting a storage unit. Additionally, 
Grandview Palace resident parking across all uses was kept at a 100 percent non-captive ratio because they 
would be arriving on site with the intention of occupying a residential unit. For accessory uses, including retail, 
dining, and health club, adjustments were applied. A summary of the non-captive ratios is shown in the 
following exhibit. 
 

Page 303



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 11 

Exhibit 7: Grandview Palace Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table5 
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
Exhibit 8: Extra Space Storage Non-Captive Ratio Summary Table 
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

                                                           
5 Use of the onsite health club is estimated at 60% resident use, projecting a 40% non-captive ratio. 

Land Use Notes Quantity Daytime Evening Daytime Evening

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 7,685 GLA 90% 85% 90% 78%

  Employee 100% 100% 47% 0%

Specialty Grocery 2,014 GLA 85% 80% 85% 73%

  Employee 83% 83% 83% 83%

Fine/Casual Dining 3,626 GLA 80% 80% 66% 79%

  Employee 83% 83% 83% 83%

Health Club 4,444 GLA 40% 40% 40% 40%

  Employee 83% 83% 83% 83%

Residential Guest 506 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

Residential Condo 51% Reserved 100% 100% 100% 100%

  1 bedroom 15 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

  2 bedroom 479 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

  >3 bedroom 12 units 100% 100% 100% 100%

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 5,239 GFA 100% 100% 100% 100%

  Employee 85% 100% 100% 100%

Marina 117 slips 22% 22% 22% 22%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Non Captive Ratio

Weekday Weekend

Land Use Quantity Daytime Evening Daytime Evening

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 4,000 GLA 100% 100% 99% 100%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Mini-Storage Warehouse 141,900 GLA 100% 100% 100% 100%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Office <25,000sq ft 900 GFA 100% 100% 100% 100%

  Employee 100% 100% 100% 100%

Non Captive Ratio

Weekday Weekend

506 

Page 304



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 12 

SUMMARY AND OVERALL RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
GRANDVIEW PALACE CONDOMINIUM 

Walker’s model evaluates the projected parking demand from 6:00am to midnight6 for each month of the year 
for a weekday and weekend. Based on the model for Grandview Palace Condominium, typical weekday peak 
hour demand is projected to occur in February during the 7:00pm hour and the typical weekend peak hour 
demand is projected to occur in March during the 8:00pm hour. The following exhibits provide a summary of 
Walker’s typical weekday and weekend peak hour parking projections for the existing Grandview Palace 
Condominium. 
 

Exhibit 9: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekday)  
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 

Walker assumes 100% occupancy for all land use quantities in this analysis. It is understood that an additional 
50% to 70% vacancy rate reduction may apply to residential utilization as a factor of seasonal occupancy and 
expected turnover. It should be recognized that we have not factored the 50% to 70% reduction into our model 
result as our model is designed to represent the busiest hour of the year, busiest day of the year, and busiest 
month of the year, at an 85th percentile level relative to similar properties with limited means of transportation 
available to the site users. 
 
When typical peak weekday parking projections (1,043± spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 
1,165± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 122± spaces.  
 

                                                           
6 For this analysis, daytime hours are from 6:00am to 6:00pm and evening hours are from 6:00pm to midnight.  

  

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio February February

Land Use Demand February 7:00 PM Evening Evening 7:00 PM 5:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 39 100% 95% 85% 98% 31 33

Specialty Grocery 10 100% 27% 80% 98% 2 2

Fine/Casual Dining 49 100% 100% 80% 98% 38 29

Health Club 22 95% 90% 40% 98% 7 7

   Residential Reserved - Condo 522 100% 100% 100% 95% 498 498

   Residential Unreserved - Condo 502 100% 97% 100% 95% 464 407

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 0 100% 2% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 17 100% 10% 100% 85% 1 6

Marina 29 100% 25% 22% 98% 2 4

Subtotal Customer/Guest 149 80 71

Subtotal Employee/Resident 519 465 413

Subtotal Reserved Resident - Condo 522 498 498

Total Parking Spaces Required 1,190 1,043 986

% reduction 12%

Weekday

Page 305



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 13 

Exhibit 10: Grandview Palace Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekend)  
 

 
 

Source: Walker Consultants 2018 
 

When typical peak weekend parking projections (1,028± spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 
1,165± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 137± spaces. 
 
 
EXTRA SPACE STORAGE DEVELOPMENT SITE 

 
Based on the model for Extra Space Storage, typical weekday peak hour demand is projected to occur in January 
during the noon hour and the typical weekend peak hour demand is also projected to occur in January during 
the same noon hour. The following exhibits provide a summary of Walker’s typical weekday and weekend peak 
hour parking projections for the existing Extra Space Storage development site. 
 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio Mar February

Land Use Demand Mar 8:00 PM Evening Evening 8:00 PM 5:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 39 100% 65% 78% 98% 19 31

Specialty Grocery 10 100% 25% 73% 98% 2 2

Fine/Casual Dining 49 100% 100% 79% 98% 38 19

Health Club 22 85% 30% 40% 98% 2 8

   Residential Reserved - Condo 522 100% 100% 100% 95% 498 498

   Residential Unreserved - Condo 502 100% 98% 100% 95% 469 407

Office Visitor <25,000sq ft 0 100% 0% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 17 100% 0% 100% 90% 0 1

Marina 29 100% 5% 22% 98% 0 4

Subtotal Customer/Guest 149 61 64

Subtotal Employee/Resident 519 469 408

Subtotal Reserved Resident - Condo 522 498 498

Total Parking Spaces Required 1,190 1,028 970

% reduction 14%

Weekend

Page 306



SHARED PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 WALKER CONSULTANTS   | 14 

Exhibit 11: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekday)  

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
When typical peak weekday parking projections (17± spaces) are compared against the planned inventory of 
140± spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 123± spaces.  
 

Exhibit 12: Extra Space Storage Shared Parking Analysis – Projected Typical Peak Demand (Weekend)  

 
Source: Walker Consultants 2018 

 
When typical peak weekend parking projections (14± spaces) are compared against the current inventory of 140± 
spaces, Walker’s analysis shows a parking surplus of 126± spaces. 
 

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio January January

Land Use Demand January 12:00 PM Daytime Daytime 12:00 PM 6:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 12 95% 25% 100% 98% 3 3

  Employee 3 95% 100% 100% 75% 2 2

Mini-Storage Warehouse 20 91% 55% 100% 98% 10 4

  Employee 0 95% 100% 100% 75% 0 0

Office <25,000sq ft 0 100% 15% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 3 100% 90% 100% 80% 2 1

Subtotal Customer/Guest 32 13 7

Subtotal Employee 6 4 3

Total Parking Spaces Required 38 17 10

% reduction 55%

Weekday

Demand Demand

Unadj Month Adj Pk Hr Adj Non Captive Drive Ratio February January

Land Use Demand February 12:00 PM Daytime Daytime 12:00 PM 6:00 PM

Community Retail (<400 ksf) 13 100% 25% 99% 98% 3 3

  Employee 3 100% 100% 100% 80% 2 2

Mini-Storage Warehouse 16 100% 55% 100% 98% 9 3

  Employee 0 100% 100% 100% 80% 0 0

Office <25,000sq ft 0 100% 90% 100% 98% 0 0

  Employee 0 100% 90% 100% 85% 0 0

Subtotal Customer/Guest 29 12 6

Subtotal Employee 3 2 2

Total Parking Spaces Required 32 14 8

% reduction 56%

Weekend

Page 307



 

WALKERCONSULTANTS .COM 

 

Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 1 

 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 3 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY BARANOF 4 

HOLDINGS LLC AND GRANDVIEW PALACE CONDOMINIUM 5 

ASSOCIATION, INC CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6 

1850 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY AND 7601 EAST TREASURE 7 

DRIVE; FOR A VARIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 7.3 OF 8 

THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 9 

CODE TO ALLOW REDUCTION OF THE TOTAL NUMBER OF 10 

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED BY THE 1992 STIPULATED 11 

AGREEMENT FROM 1,119 TO 1,057 PARKING SPACES, BASED 12 

ON SHARED PARKING AND PARKING UTILIZATION 13 

ANALYSIS; PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR 14 

GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; 15 

PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; 16 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 17 

 18 

 WHEREAS, Baranof Holdings, LLC. and Grandview Palace Condominium Assoc. has 19 

applied to North Bay Village for a Variance pursuant to Section 7.3 of the Village Unified Land 20 

Development Code in connection with the development of a 98 foot tall, 142,530 square foot self-21 

storage facility with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail space and off-site parking included 22 

for Grandview Palace to allow a reduction of the total number of parking spaces required by the 23 

1992 stipulated agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on shared parking and 24 

parking utilization analysis; and 25 

 26 

 WHEREAS, Section 7.3 of the Village Unified Land Development Code and Section 4.9 27 

of the Unified Land Development Code sets forth the authority of the Village Commission to 28 

consider and act upon an application for a variance. 29 

 30 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the North Bay Village Unified Land 31 

Development Code, a public hearing by the Planning and Zoning Board was noticed for  February 32 

5, 2019 at 7:30 P.M. at Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, Florida 33 

33141 and the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application, conducted a public hearing 34 

and recommended denial of the request; and 35 

 36 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the North Bay Village Unified Land 37 

Development Code, a public hearing by the Village Commission was noticed for April 9, 2019 at 38 

6:30 p.m. at Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 and 39 

all interested parties have had the opportunity to address their comments to the Village 40 

Commission; and  41 

 42 

 WHEREAS, the Village Commission has determined that the stipulated development 43 

Page 317



Page 2 of 3 

agreement which was approved according to Village Resolution 92-39 should be modified to 44 

accommodate the requested variance. 45 

 46 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 47 

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 48 

 49 

 Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this 50 

Resolution by this reference.  51 

 52 

 Section 2. Findings.  In accordance with Section 7.3 of the Unified Land 53 

Development Code, the Village Commission finds: 54 

 55 

1. That there are special circumstances and conditions which are peculiar to the land, 56 

structure, or building involved and which are not generally applicable to other 57 

lands, structures, or buildings in the same zoning district.  58 

2. That the special circumstances and conditions were not self-created by any person 59 

having an interest in the property.  60 

3. That the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the 61 

applicant of the reasonable use of the land, structure, or building for which the 62 

variance is sought; and would involve an unnecessary hardship for the applicant.  63 

4. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 64 

privilege that is denied by the Unified Land Development Code to other land, 65 

structures, or buildings in the same zoning district. 66 

5. That the variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 67 

reasonable use of the land, structure, or building.  68 

6. That granting the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose 69 

of this chapter, and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or 70 

otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.  71 

7. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of 72 

development. 73 

 74 

 Section 3. Grant.  The Variance requested to allow a reduction of the total number of 75 

parking spaces required by the 1992 stipulated agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, 76 

based on shared parking and parking utilization analysis, in connection with the Site Plan 77 

submitted to the Village on     March 22, 2019 is hereby approved. 78 

 79 

 Section 4. Conditions.  The Variance is approved subject to the following condition: 80 

 81 

1. Pursuant to the Site Plan approval, the Applicant shall obtain a building permit for 82 

all requests approved herein within two years of the date of the Site Plan approval.  83 

If a building permit is not obtained or an extension granted within the prescribed 84 

time limit, then this approval shall become null and void. 85 

 86 

Page 318



Page 3 of 3 

2. Pursuant to Section 7.5 of the Village Unified Land Development Code, the 87 

Variance shall lapse after two years of Commission approval if no substantial 88 

construction takes place. 89 

 90 

 Section 5. Appeal.  In accordance with Section 4.6 of the Village Unified Land 91 

Development Code, the Applicant, or any aggrieved property owner, may appeal the decision of 92 

the Village Commission by filing a Writ of Certiorari to the Circuit Court of Miami-Dade County, 93 

Florida, in accordance with the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. 94 

 95 

 Section 6. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 96 

adoption. 97 

 98 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by ___________, who moved for its adoption.   99 

 100 

This motion was seconded by ____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 101 

as follows: 102 

 103 

FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 104 

 105 

Mayor Brent Latham   ____________ 106 

Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth  ____________ 107 

Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez ____________  108 

Commissioner Andreana Jackson ____________ 109 

Commissioner Julianna Strout ____________ 110 

 111 

PASSED and ADOPTED this ____ day of _______ 2019. 112 

 113 

 114 

____________________________ 115 

BRENT LATHAM 116 

MAYOR 117 

ATTEST: 118 
 119 

_______________________________ 120 

ELORA RIERA, CMC 121 

Village Clerk 122 

 123 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE SOLE USE 124 

AND RELIANCE OF THE VILLAGE: 125 
 126 

_______________________________ 127 

JAMES D. STOKES, BCS 128 

Special Counsel for the Village 129 

Page 319



 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Staff Report   
Site Plan  

 

 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village,  
Commission 

Applicant:    Baranof Holdings, LLC 

Site Address:  1850 Kennedy Causeway 

Request: Site Plan Approval for a New Structure 
Containing Self Storage, Retail 
Commercial, and Off-site Parking for 
Grandview Palace 

    

Page 320



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  1 

General Information 
 

Owner: The Atkinson Trust, LLC 

Applicant: Baranof Holdings, LLC 

Applicant Address: 2305 Cedar Spring Road, Suite 200, Dallas, TX 75201 

Site Address: 1850 Kennedy Causeway 

Contact Person: Andrew Aiken 

Phone Number: 972-402-5707 

E-mail Address aaiken@baranofholdings.com 

 
 Existing 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG 

Use of Property Off-site Parking for Grandview Palace 

Acreage 1.93 acre (84,128 sq ft) 
 

Legal Description of Subject Property 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 321

mailto:aaiken@baranofholdings.com
mailto:aaiken@baranofholdings.com


Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  2 

Adjacent Land Use Map Classifications and Zoning District 
 

North 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Multifamily Residential 

   

East 
Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Retail Commercial 

   

South 

Future Land Use  Educational Recreational 

Zoning District RS-2 Medium Density Single Family Residential 

Existing Land Use Elementary School 

   

West 

Future Land Use  Commercial 

Zoning District CG Commercial 

Existing Land Use Multifamily Residential 

 

Description of Requests 
 
The applicant is requesting site plan approval pursuant to section 5.4(C) of the North Bay 
Village Unified Land Development Code for development of a 98 foot tall, 142,530 square foot 
self-storage facility with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail space, garage parking, and 
surface parking. A portion of the parking in intended as off-site parking for Grandview Palace. In 
addition to the request for site plan approval, the Applicant is requesting approval for at least 
one of the following: 
 
1. A variance pursuant to section 7.3 of the North Bay Village Unified Land Development Code 

to allow reduction of the total number of parking spaces required by the 1992 stipulated 
agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on shared parking and parking 
utilization analysis. 

 
2. A parking waiver according to section 9.3(D) of the North Bay Village Unified Land 

Development Code to allow reduction of the total number of parking spaces required by the 
1992 stipulated agreement from 1,119 to 1,057 parking spaces, based on shared parking 
and parking utilization analysis.  

 
Staff reports for the variance request and parking waiver request have been provided in addition 
to this site plan staff report. 
 
 
 

Page 322



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  3 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan 
 
The self-storage use and the retail commercial use are allowable uses in the Commercial Future 
Land Use category. However, the self-storage use is not consistent with Future Land Use 
Objective 2.2 or the associated policies: 
 

Objective 2.2: Develop a program and policies to promote the Village’s character as an attractive 

waterfront community and direct future development and redevelopment to be 

consistent with the desired community character and goals, objectives, and policies 

within the Plan. 

 

Policy 2.2.3: The Village shall continue to develop and implement the goals of the various 

Redevelopment/Revitalization Plans for the Kennedy Causeway Redevelopment Area 

through a strategic planning process.  

 

Policy 2.2.5: The Village shall continue to encourage all future land use development and 

redevelopment to emphasize aesthetic quality and overall acceptability to local residents. 

 
The above policies speak to strategic planning and the overall acceptability of development to 
local residents. In 2016, the Village created a strategic plan for business development. As part 
of the strategic planning process, residents were surveyed regarding business and service 
needs. The results of the multiple choice portion of the survey indicated a clear demand for 
casual dining, grocery, and a gym/fitness center located within close proximity to their homes. In 
addition to the multiple choice portion of the survey, write in responses were encouraged. Many 
of the write-in responses focused on retail and service commercial, but not a single response 
indicated support for additional self storage located within the Village. It is important to note that 
there already exists a self storage facility within the Village. So, while the retail commercial 
portion of the proposed development is supported by the residents, there is no evidence of 
community support for the self-storage portion of the project, which represents over 97% of the 
non-parking floor area. 
 
 

Adequacy of Public Facilities 
 
Water & Sewer 
 
Potable water will be provided by Miami-Dade County. Wastewater treatment will also be 
provided by Miami Dade County, though the Village sewer system will be used to transport 
wastewater to the Miami Dade sewer facilities. This project will be required to meet Sewer 
Concurrency requirements as prescribed by the Public Works Director of North Bay Village.  
 
Traffic 
 
The Applicant provided a traffic impact study (TIS) for this project. The trip generation summary 
indicates that, after the subtraction of assumed “pass-by” retail trips, the retail and storage uses 
together will generate a total of 18 vehicle trips during the AM peak hour and 58 vehicle trips 
during the PM peak hour. Further, a 22.8% reduction adjustment was applied to those figures to 
account for patrons using other modes of transportation, for a total of 14 AM peak hour trips and 

Page 323



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  4 

45 PM peak hour trips. However, staff does not agree that other modes of transportation are 
likely to be used for patrons of the storage facility. If that 22.8% reduction is not applied to the 
trips generated by the storage use, there are still 18 vehicle trips during the AM peak hour and 
50 vehicle trips generated during the PM peak hour. 
 
Access to the proposed facility is provided only on Kennedy Causeway. In addition to the 
existing curb cut, which is roughly in the middle of the Causeway frontage, a new curb cut is 
proposed at the West side of the Causeway frontage. The additional vehicle trips generated by 
the proposed development should not impact the Village’s local roadways but will have some 
minor impacts on the Causeway with an increase in the number of vehicles turning into the site 
at the trip rates projected above.  
 
 

Comparison of Submitted Site Plan with Land Development Regulations 
 

Section Regulation Required Provided 
 
North Bay Village ULDC CG District Regulations 

8.10(E)(2)(o) Uses permitted 

Storage facilities in 
connection with 
permitted uses or non-
industrial mini-storage 
facilities in conjunction 
with other retail, 
commercial or mixed 
uses 

In compliance 

8.10(E)(5)(a) Minimum lot area 10,000 sq ft 84,128 sq ft 

8.10(E)(5)(a) Minimum frontage 75 ft 420 ft 

8.10(E)(5)(b) 
Minimum front 
setback 

60 ft 60 ft 

8.10(E)(5)(b) 
Minimum side 
setbacks 

15, plus five feet for 
each story over three 
 
40 ft setback required 
from each side 
property line 

40 ft on east side 
 
Over 40 ft on west 
side 

8.10(E)(5)(b) Minimum rear setback 25 ft Over 25 ft 

8.10(E)(5)(c) 
Maximum building 
height 

130 ft or 12 stories, 
whichever is less 

98 ft and 8 stories 

8.10(E)(5)(c) 
Maximum parking 
levels 

2 stories In compliance 

Page 324



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  5 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

8.10(E)(5)(d) 
Minimum pervious 
area 

20% of total parcel 
 
20% of 84,128 = 
16,826 sq ft 

15,405 sq ft of 
landscaped pervious 
area 
 
4,772 sq ft of pavers 
with 40% 
perviousness  
 
4,772 x 0.4 = 1,909 
 
15,405 + 1,909 = 
17,314 

 

North Bay Village ULDC Design Standards 

8.13(E)(1)(a)(2) 
Dumpster enclosure 
required 

Commercial, office or 
multifamily uses, trash 
and garbage facilities 
shall be within an 
enclosed, cross-
ventilated garbage 
room. 

Provided exterior 
dumpster enclosure 

8.13(E)(1)(d) 
Dumpster enclosure 
locations 

Dumpster enclosures 
shall be placed in such 
a manner as to allow 
sanitation trucks to 
pick up garbage in a 
manner they are 
designed for. 

In compliance 

8.13(E)(1)(e) 
Screening of roof 
mounted mechanical 
equipment 

Roof-mounted 
mechanical equipment 
and elevator shafts 
shall be screened by a 
parapet wall or grills, 
and shall be painted in 
muted colors or match 
the building, and shall 
not be visible from the 
street. 

In compliance 

8.13 (N)(3) 
Screening of 
mechanical 
equipment 

All mechanical 
equipment must be 
screened from public 
view 

In compliance 

Page 325



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  6 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

9.13(C) 
Storefront 
coordination 

Facade treatments 
shall be coordinated 
between storefronts. 
Such facade 
treatments include: 
building colors, 
windows, storefronts, 
signage and awnings. 

In compliance 

10.5(B)(2)(a) 
First finished floor 
minimum elevation 

1 ft above base flood 
elevation 

Notated FFF at 10’ 

 

North Bay Village ULDC Parking Standards 

8.10(E)(2)(o) 
Minimum number of 
parking spaces for 
storage facility 

One space for every 
8,000 square feet of 
storage area 
 
142,530 / 8,000 = 18 

39 parking spaces 
provided within 
garage and 98 
surface parking 
spaces provided 
outside of the garage. 9.3(C)(3)(h) 

Minimum number of 
parking spaces for 
retail commercial 

One space for each 
200 square feet of 
gross floor area 
 
4,000 / 200 = 20 

Florida Accessibility 
Code 208.2 

Minimum number of 
ADA parking spaces 
for commercial 
facilities 

Facilities with 26 to 50 
parking spaces must 
provide at least 2 ADA 
parking spaces. 

6 ADA parking 
spaces provided for 
surface parking. 
 
No ADA parking 
spaces provided 
within garage. 

Florida Accessibility 
Code 208.2.3 

Minimum number of 
ADA spaces for 
residential facilities 

2% of total number 
resident parking 
spaces must be ADA 
compliant. 
 
98 x 0.02 = 2 ADA 
spaces required for 
residents 

9.3(D)(2) Parking waiver 

Applicant may request 
parking waiver to 
permit less parking 
spaces than required. 

Applicant has 
requested parking 
waiver. See parking 
waiver staff report. 

Page 326



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  7 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

9.3(E)(4) 
Minimum standard 
parking space 
dimensions 

9 ft by 18 ft 

Not all exterior 
spaces in 
compliance. 15 
exterior spaces are 
compact spaces. 
Presumably, these 
compact spaces 
would be provided in 
conformance with the 
requested parking 
waiver modifying the 
requirements of the 
stipulated agreement. 

9.3(E)(4) 
Minimum compact 
parking space 
dimensions 

8 ft by 16 ft In compliance 

Florida Accessibility 
Code 502 

Minimum ADA 
parking space 
dimensions 

12 ft wide adjacent to 
a 5 ft wide aisle 

In compliance 

9.3(E)(11) 
Minimum setback of 
ROW from parking 
spaces 

20 ft In compliance 

9.3(E)(13) 
Minimum separation 
of parking from 
walkways and streets 

Parking spaces shall 
be separated from 
walkways, sidewalks, 
streets, or alleys by an 
approved wall, fence, 
curbing, or other 
protective device 

In compliance 

9.3(E)(16) 
Back-out parking 
prohibition 

Parking spaces shall 
be designed so that no 
vehicle shall be 
required to back into a 
public ROW to obtain 
egress 

In compliance 

9.3(E)(17) 
Minimum width of 
maneuvering aisle for 
90 degree parking 

23 ft In compliance 

9.3(E)(17) 
Minimum width of 
maneuvering aisle for 
45 degree parking 

13 ft In compliance 

9.3(E)(17) 
Minimum width of 
2-way access aisle 

23 ft In compliance 

Page 327



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  8 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

9.4(A)(4) 
Loading and standard 
parking space 
restriction 

No areas supplied to 
meet required off-
street parking facilities 
may be utilized to 
meet the requirements 
for loading spaces. 

N/A 

9.4(B)(1) 
Minimum number of 
loading spaces for 
retail commercial 

Gross 
floor area 

Spaces 

Under 
10,000 

0 

10,000-
20,000 

1 

20,000-
40,000 

2 

40,000-
60,000 

3 

Over 
60,000 

4 

 
4,000 sq ft of gross 
floor area, 0 loading 
spaces required 

N/A 

9.4(C)(1) 
Minimum  loading 
space dimensions 

12 ft by 30 ft, and at 
least 14.5 ft of vertical 
clearance 

N/A 

9.4(D) 
Loading space joint 
usage 

Loading spaces for 
two or more uses may 
be collectively 
provided if so located 
as to be usable by all.  

N/A 

9.21(C) 
Light pole maximum 
height 

20 ft 
Compliance notated 
on plans 

 

North Bay Village ULDC Sign Standards 

Page 328



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  9 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

11.9(C)(2) 
Maximum number of 
façade signs 

A flat illuminated or 
nonilluminated sign 
may be erected on 
one facade of a 
building or each 
portion of a building 
occupied by a 
separate commercial 
or office use, provided 
the sign does not 
exceed an area equal 
to ten percent of the 
area of the facade 
upon which it is 
erected 

Signs not depicted 

11.9(C)(2)(b) 
Maximum façade sign 
area for existing 
establishments  

10% of façade area Signs not depicted 

11.9(C)(3) 
Maximum façade sign 
area for bay frontage  

10% of the façade 
area, with lettering not 
to exceed 100 sq ft 

N/A 

11.9(C)(5) 
Maximum detached 
sign area 

100 sq ft per side Signs not depicted 

11.9(C)(5) 
Detached sign 
location 

Shall not be placed in 
side or rear yards 

Signs not depicted 

11.9(C)(5) 
Minimum detached 
sign front setback 

10 ft Signs not depicted 

11.9(C)(5) 
Detached sign 
maximum height 

24 ft Signs not depicted 

 

Miami-Dade Landscaping Chapter 18A 

18A-4(C) Vegetative survey 

A vegetation survey 
shall be provided for 
all sites at the same 
scale as the landscape 
plan. 

Not yet provided  

18A-4(D) Irrigation plan 

An Irrigation Plan shall 
be submitted. Where a 
landscape plan is 
required, an irrigation 
plan shall be 
submitted 
concurrently. 

Not yet provided 

Page 329



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  10 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(A)(5) Maximum lawn area 

20% of the net lot 
area, less the area 
covered by buildings. 
 
22,000 sq ft building 
on 84,128 sq ft lot 
 
62,128 x 0.2 = 12,425 

11,423 sq ft 

18A-6(C)(1) Tree height 

Except street trees, all 
trees shall be 
minimum 10’ high with 
minimum 2” caliper, 
except that 30% of 
tree requirement may 
be met by native 
species with a 
minimum 8’ height. 

 

18A-6(C)(2) Street trees 

Street trees shall be 
provided along all 
roadways at a 
maximum average 
spacing of 35’ on 
center (25’ for palms). 
 
With 420 linear feet of 
frontage, either 12 
trees or 17 palms are 
required. 

8 mahoganies, 
6 royal palms, and 
2 crepe myrtles 
provided along street 

18A-6(C)(3) 
Trees under power 
lines 

Where overhead 
power lines require 
low growing trees, 
street trees shall have 
a minimum height of 
8’, 1.5” caliper, and a 
maximum average 
spacing of 25 feet on 
center. 

 

18A-6(C)(4) Palms 

Palms which are 
spaced no more than 
25 feet on center and 
have a 14 foot 
minimum height or 4 
inches minimum 
caliper diameter may 
count as a required 
tree. 

 

Page 330



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  11 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(C)(5) 
Number of required 
trees 

22 trees per acre of 
net lot area 
 
22 x 1.93 = 43 
required trees 

53 trees and  
19 palms provided 

18A-6(C)(11) 
Limitations on 
required trees 

Of the required trees: 
 
At least 30% shall be 
native species. 
 
At least 50% shall be 
low maintenance and 
drought tolerant. 
 
No more than 30% 
shall be palms 

 
 
 

18A-6(C)(12) 
Limitations on 
required trees 

80% of required trees 
shall be listed in the 
Miami-Dade 
Landscape Manual, 
the Miami-Dade Street 
Tree Master Plan 
and/or the University 
of Florida’s Low 
Maintenance 
Landscape Plants for 
South Florida list. 

 

Page 331



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  12 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(D)(1) Shrubs 

All shrubs must be a 
minimum of 18 inches 
at time of planting. 
 
10 shrubs are required 
for each required tree. 
 
30% shall be native 
species 
 
50% shall be low 
maintenance and 
drought tolerant 
 
80% of required 
shrubs shall be listed 
in the Miami-Dade 
Landscape Manual, 
the Miami-Dade Street 
Tree Master Plan 
and/or the University 
of Florida’s Low 
Maintenance 
Landscape Plants for 
South Florida list. 

All required shrubs 
are at least 18 
inches. 
 
In compliance 
 
 
 
 
 

18A-6(D)(2) Shrub buffers 

When used as a visual 
screen, buffer, or 
hedge, shrubs shall be 
planted at a maximum 
average spacing of 30” 
on center or if planted 
at a minimum height of 
36”, shall have a 
maximum average 
spacing of 48” on 
center 

 

Page 332



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  13 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(H) Use buffers 

Where dissimilar land 
uses exist on adjacent 
properties, that area 
shall be provided with 
a buffer consisting of 
trees spaced to a 
maximum average of 
35’ on center with 
shrubs which are at 
least 30” at time of 
planting and normally 
grow to a height of 6’, 
or a 6’ wall with trees, 
within a 5’ wide 
landscape strip. 
 
Shrubs shall be a 
minimum of 30” high 
and planted at a 
maximum of 36” on 
center; or if planted at 
a minimum height of 
36”, shall have a 
maximum average 
spacing of 48” on 
center. 

Buffering should be 
provided between the 
multifamily residential 
use to the west and 
the elementary 
school to the south. 
 
5 ft wide buffers 
provided 
 
Buffer trees provided 
in compliance along 
south side buffer 
 
Insufficient number of 
buffer trees provided 
along west side buffer 
 
 
 

18A-6(I) Parking lot buffers 

All parking lots 
adjacent to a right of 
way shall be screened 
by a continuous 
planting with a 7’ 
landscape strip 
incorporating said 
planting 
 
Shrubs shall be a 
minimum of 18” high 
and planted at a 
maximum of 30” on 
center; or if planted at 
a minimum height of 
36”, shall have a 
maximum average 
spacing of 48” on 
center. 

7 ft wide buffer 
provided 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 333



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  14 

Section Regulation Required Provided 

18A-6(J) 
Parking lot 
landscaping 

10 sq ft of landscaped 
area per parking 
space shall be 
provided within a 
parking lot. 
 
Trees shall be planted 
within the parking lot 
at a minimum density 
of 1 tree per 80 sq ft of 
landscaped area, 
exclusive of parking lot 
buffers. 
 
Each tree shall have a 
minimum of 5’ of 
planting area width, 
exclusive of curb 
dimension. 

In compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In compliance 

 
 
 
 
 

Planning & Zoning Board 
 
All three of the Applicant’s requests (site plan, parking variance, parking waiver) were heard by 
the Village Planning & Zoning Board at their February 5, 2019 meeting. The Board 
recommended denial of all three requests (including the site plan) by a vote of 4-0. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 334



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  15 

Staff Findings and Recommendations 
 
PARKING WAIVER: 
Staff cannot recommend approval of the requested parking waiver for the reasons outlined in 
the accompanying parking waiver staff report. 
 

PARKING VARIANCE: 
Staff cannot recommend approval of the requested parking variance for the reasons outlined in 
the accompanying parking variance staff report. 
 

SITE PLAN: 
Due to the 1992 stipulated agreement and a covenant on the subject property, approval of this 
site plan is contingent upon the approval of either of the Applicant’s parking waiver request or 
the Applicant’s parking variance request. Staff review of those requests is provided in the 
accompanying staff reports. Approval of either request is not recommended by Staff at this time. 
If neither of those requests are approved by the Village, then the submitted site plan fails to 
meet the legal requirements of the 1992 stipulated agreement. In addition to our 
recommendation of denial of both the parking waiver and the parking variance, there is no 
community support for the proposed public storage use, which conflicts with the community 
vision for the Kennedy Causeway commercial corridor. It is for all these reasons that staff 
cannot recommend approval of the proposed site plan. However, if the Commission does 
decide to recommend approval of the site plan, that approval should be based on the following 
conditions being met prior to the issuance of a building permit: 
 

1) Approval of either the Applicant’s requested parking waiver or the requested 

parking variance. 

2) Submittal of a vegetative survey which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A 

requirements. 

3) Submittal of an irrigation plan which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A requirements. 

4) Submittal of a landscape plan which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A 

requirements. 

5) Payment of any applicable impact fees. 

6) Tie-in to Village’s wastewater system at a Village designated location (proposed 

connection point) and payment of pro-rata costs involved in tying into appropriate 

connection point. 

7) Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 5.12. Specifically, no new 

development application shall be accepted and no building permit or certificate of 

occupancy shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery 

deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees 

Page 335



Staff Report     Applicants: Baranof Holdings, LLC. 
Site Plan   Grandview Palace Condo Assoc 

  16 

related to any previous development proposal applications on the property), have 

been paid in full. 

8) Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 

prior to commencement of construction. 

9) Approval of this site plan does not in any way create a right on the part of the 

applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create 

liability on the part of the Village for approval if the applicant fails to obtain requisite 

approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or 

undertakes action that result in a violation of federal or state law. 

10) All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 

construction. 

11) Staging of construction materials shall not occur in the public right-of-way. 

 
 

Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP 
Planning Consultant 
 
March 26, 2019 
 
 

Hearing: Village Commission, April 9, 2019 
 
 
Attachments: Aerial photograph  
 Future Land Use Map 

 Zoning Map 
 

Page 336



S
ta

ff
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
A

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

: 
B

a
ra

n
o
f 
H

o
ld

in
g
s
 L

L
C

 
S

ite
 P

la
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ra

n
d
v
ie

w
 P

a
la

c
e
 C

o
n
d
o
 A

s
s
o
c

 

 
 

1
7
 

A
ER

IA
L 

SU
B

JE
C

T 
SI

TE
 A

N
D

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

S 
 

 
 

Page 337



S
ta

ff
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
A

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

: 
B

a
ra

n
o
f 
H

o
ld

in
g
s
 L

L
C

 
S

ite
 P

la
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ra

n
d
v
ie

w
 P

a
la

c
e
 C

o
n
d
o
 A

s
s
o
c

 

 
 

1
8
 

FU
TU

R
E 

LA
N

D
 U

SE
 

SU
B

JE
C

T 
SI

TE
 A

N
D

 E
N

VI
R

O
N

S 
 

 
 

Page 338



S
ta

ff
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
A

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

: 
B

a
ra

n
o
f 
H

o
ld

in
g
s
 L

L
C

 
S

ite
 P

la
n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ra

n
d
v
ie

w
 P

a
la

c
e
 C

o
n
d
o
 A

s
s
o
c

 

 
 

1
9
 

ZO
N

IN
G

 
SU

B
JE

C
T 

SI
TE

 A
N

D
 E

N
VI

R
O

N
S 

 

 

Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



16914_870_1.tif

EXHIBIT A

Page 354



16914_870_2.tif

Page 355



16914_870_3.tif

Page 356



16914_870_4.tif

Page 357



16914_870_5.tif

Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



 
200 E. Broward Blvd., Suite 1900, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301  |  954-763-4242  |  www.wsh-law.com 

 

 
KATHRYN MEHAFFEY, ESQ. 

KMEHAFFEY@WSH-LAW.COM 
 

December 27, 2018 
 
 
 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Interim Village Clerk 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, 3rd Floor 
North Bay Village, FL 33141 
 
VIA EMAIL 

Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
LaRue Planning and Management 
Village Planning 
1666 Kennedy Causeway, 3rd Floor 
North Bay Village, FL 33141 

RE:  Resubmittal of Site Plan Application for property generally located at 1850 79th 
Street Causeway, for Extra Space Storage with retail and off-site parking for 
Grandview  

Dear Ms. Mariot, Mr. LaRue, and Mr. Smith: 

This law firm represents Baranof Holdings, LLC, the Applicant, for property located at 1850 
79th Street Causeway in North Bay Village, commonly known as the K-Lot (the “Property”).  This letter 
shall serve as the Applicant’s letter of intent for Site Plan Application to develop the Property with an 
Extra Space Storage facility, ground level retail and off-site parking for Grandview Palace 
Condominiums (“Grandview”).   A concurrent waiver application, pursuant to Section 9.3.D. of the 
Village Code, will address Grandview’s parking requirement in more detail. 

Revisions.  At the time of the original site plan submittal, the Village was considering zoning 
code amendments which proposed to change the front setback along the South side of Kennedy 
Causeway   from 60 feet to 30 feet.  Those changes are not currently scheduled for second reading and 
so adjustments to the site plan have been made to shift the front setback from approximately 57 feet to 
60 feet to meet the existing front setback requirement.   This shift revises the traffic flow in the rear of 
the Property and the angle of the parking behind the building.   There are no changes to the building 
layout or other site features.   In addition, the parking waiver application which was being developed 

Page 371



Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 27, 2018 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 

has been adjusted to provide 20 extra parking spaces for Grandview Palace (total of 75 parking spaces 
as detailed in the separate parking waiver application), which allows 26 parking spaces which can be 
made available for public use on an hourly or monthly basis.    

The Property.  The Property, consisting of 1.93 acres and zoned CG General Commercial (“CG”), 
is located at 1850 79th Street Causeway on the south side of the Causeway, just north of Treasure Island 
Elementary School.   The Property is currently used as a surface parking lot for Grandview pursuant to 
a 1992 Stipulation, approved by the Village in Resolution 92-39, and a subsequent Covenant, which 
requires that the Property provide parking for Grandview in perpetuity.    The Resolution, Stipulation, 
Covenant and recent Covenant Amendment are attached as Exhibit “A.” 

The Project.  The proposed Project consists of a 142,530 square foot Extra Space self-storage 
facility, with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail space.   In addition, the Project will include parking 
for the proposed on-site improvements, a number of parking spaces open to the public, and as required 
by the Stipulation and the Covenant, off-site parking for Grandview.  The proposed uses are permitted 
by right under the Village Zoning Code and the Project complies with all Code requirements under the 
existing Village Code.   

The Project, as a self-storage facility, offers a unique opportunity for the Village.  Currently the 
site is developed as a surface parking lot with 183 parking spaces which may be used only by 
Grandview Palace residents and guests.  The site has little aesthetic appeal and does not contribute to 
the creation of a walkable, neighborhood oriented environment which the Village has been striving for.  
In order for the Property to contribute to the enhancement of the character and walkability of the 
Village, there must be conscientious redevelopment of the site that is inclusive of the Grandview 
parking – in a manner that will provide character, interest, and compatibility in scale with surrounding 
uses.  

Under the Village Code, self-storage facilities have a parking requirement of 1 space per 8,000 
square feet of storage area.  Based on the proposed 142,530 square foot self-storage facility and the 
4,000 square feet of on-site ground level retail, 38 parking spaces are required.  The same amount of 
office development would require 488 parking spaces.   A more traditional project (office or retail 
which has an even higher parking requirement) would be required to build a much larger structure 
that increases the building envelope and height in order to accommodate all the required parking for 
the on-site development and the additional Grandview parking. It is uncertain whether this can be 
accomplished at all. In contrast, the proposed self-storage Project provides ample setbacks, meets its 
on-site parking requirement, provides parking for Grandview in addition to a number of public parking 
spaces, and maintains the height at just under 98 feet, well below both the existing 130 feet and 
proposed 150+ height maximums.  The proposed uses will provide necessary services to area residents 
and will draw visitors from the east where the outer island communities have no storage facilities 
available.  

Page 372



Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 27, 2018 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 

Site Plan Review.  The Project is classified as a major development under Section 5.4 of the 
Village Code.   In addition to reviewing the Project under the requirements of the Code, Section 5.8 
B.9.c. of the Village Code provides the Project should have a design and arrangement which: 

(1) Protects against and minimizes any undesirable effects upon contiguous and nearby 
property.  

Response:  The proposed Project provides a community service, will offer quality ground-
floor retail space, meet the Grandview parking requirements as determined by the 
Commission, provide some public parking, and maintain a structure with ample setbacks 
and a height of 98 feet, well below the current and proposed maximums (130 
current/150+proposed). Loading/Unloading for the storage facility is behind the ground 
floor retail, inside the structure and thus not visible from the Causeway or adjoining 
properties. 

(2) Provides sufficient off-street parking and loading facilities so that it will not be necessary to 
use the streets in the vicinity for this purpose. 

Response:  The proposed Project provides all on-site parking required by the code, in 
addition to off-site parking for Grandview Palace and some public parking as well.  All site 
circulation, loading, and unloading is provided on-site.   In contrast to the open surface 
parking, the Project incorporates covered garage parking, significant landscaping and 
convenient ground level parking for ground floor retail uses.  Loading/unloading docks are 
located inside the structure, behind the ground floor retail to eliminate visual impacts and 
ensure there are no impacts on Kennedy Causeway.  

(3) Provides sufficient setbacks, open space, and landscaping in order to protect and enhance 
the appearance and character of the neighborhood.  

Response:  The proposed Project provides significant building setbacks and at 98 feet, is 
well below maximum height limits. Façade treatment and site landscaping are intended to 
complement the visual character of the Village.   

(4) Can be accommodated by existing community roads, services, and utilities, or the necessary 
additions are provided by the developer.  

Response:  The Analysis of Services and Traffic Analysis Reports included with this 
Application demonstrate there are adequate water and sewer services available to maintain 

Page 373



Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 27, 2018 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 

the Village’s adopted levels of service.  The Traffic Analysis demonstrates the Project will 
not have an impact on the transportation network.  

Concurrent Application.   In the course of performing due diligence during the contracting 
process, the Applicant was made aware of the K-Lot relationship with Grandview and the obligations 
that will remain on the site.  The Grandview parking requirement can, to some degree, be incorporated 
into the site design, because of the low trip generation rates for the proposed self-storage use.  It also 
became evident during the site review that the K-Lot, which currently consists of 183 surface parking 
spaces, was significantly underutilized.    

In addition to the traditional traffic study for the Project itself, the Applicant undertook a 
detailed parking analysis evaluating the Grandview Palace parking needs considering the historic and 
current uses, the grandfathered parking requirements for grandfathered uses and the current parking 
requirements for new and expanded uses.  The study also included a study of utilization rates of both 
the K-Lot (Grandview off-site parking) and Grandview on-site parking.   Peak hour demand was 
calculated and considered throughout the process.  The grandfathered uses include 506 two-bedroom 
apartment units, 670 square feet of office space, 15,200 square feet of retail, and a marina with 106 
slips and 32 davits.  These grandfathered uses have a court determined parking requirement of 1,119 
parking spaces, based on then existing code requirements, per the Stipulation and Village Resolution.   
Parking requirements were calculated for uses that were added, changed or expanded after 1992, 
based on the current Code requirements.   Due to the mixed use nature of the Grandview development 
and recognition that some of the retail and office uses serve only the residents, a shared parking 
analysis for the Grandview property was also conducted.   Parking for Grandview will be provided on 
the Grandview property and on the K-Lot.  All parking for the redevelopment on the K-Lot will be 
provided on-site on the K-Lot property. 

Based on: (1) the aforementioned analyses and inventories;  (2) the difficulty of providing 183 
parking spaces while maintaining a lower impact site design and; (3) Grandview’s contention 
(validated by an independent study) that they do not utilize the majority of the 183 parking spaces 
located on the K-Lot, Grandview is applying for a waiver of parking requirements, pursuant to Section 
9.3D. of the Village Code.  That waiver application (or in the alternate a variance request) will be filed 
under separate cover, but is conditionally related to this Site Plan Application.    

Utilization rates demonstrate significant underutilization of the K-Lot parking areas.  This is 
true even though, for pure convenience and consistency, Grandview currently requires all guests to 
park on the K-Lot.    The waiver requests a reduction in the number of K-Lot spaces from 183 to 75 
which exceeds the maximum peak hour usage and demand by 20 spaces, ensuring there is never a 
shortage.  With the reduction of Grandview required K-Lot spaces, the Applicant can provide an 
additional 26 spaces which can be made available for public parking.   These are in addition to the 38 
required parking spaces for the new self-storage and retail space development, all of which are located 

Page 374



Ms. Graciela Mariot 
Mr. Jim LaRue 
Mr. Ben Smith 
December 27, 2018 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 

on the K-Lot Property.  The detailed documentation and findings are provided in the Waiver 
Application.  That Waiver Application requires a separate public hearing and application but is directly 
related to and conditioned on this Site Plan Application.   

In summary, the Applicant believes that the proposed Site Plan provides a Project that is a 
compatible and valuable addition to the Village that will not only increase the tax-base and economic 
vitality, but continue to meet the Grandview parking needs, increase available public parking, and 
contribute effectively to the quality and character of North Bay Village.   Based on the forgoing, we look 
forward to your favorable recommendation.  Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this 
Application, please do not hesitate to call me at 954-763-4242. 

Very truly yours, 

 

Kathryn Mehaffey 

Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



16914_870_1.tif

EXHIBIT A

Page 390



16914_870_2.tif

Page 391



16914_870_3.tif

Page 392



16914_870_4.tif

Page 393



16914_870_5.tif

Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



N

N
O

 T
O

 S
C

A
L
E

P
R

O
JE

C
T

  
S

IT
E

9
3
4

9
3
2

9
2
2

A
1
A

9
0
7 1
1
2

2
7

9
5

7
9
T

H
 S

T
 C

A
U

S
E

W
A

Y

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:09:57 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

TITLE SHEET A
S

0
.1

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

O
C

E
A

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 I
N

C
.

D
A

N
N

Y
 V

U
O

N
G

8
1

0
1

 B
IS

C
A

Y
N

E
 B

L
V

D
 S

T
E

. 
5

0
8

P
H

: 
(7

8
6

) 
5

1
8
-2

0
0

8

M
IA

M
I,
 F

L
 3

3
1

3
8

W
IT

K
IN

 H
U

L
T

S
 D

E
S

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P
K

E
L

L
Y

 H
U

L
T

S

3
0

7
 S

. 
2

1
S

T
 A

V
E

N
U

E
P

H
: 

(9
5
4

) 
9

2
3
-9

6
8

1

H
O

L
L

Y
W

O
O

D
, 
F

L
 3

3
0

2
0

F
A

X
: 

(9
5

4
) 

9
2

3
-9

6
8

9

O
W

N
E

R

B
A

R
A

N
O

F
 H

O
L

D
IN

G
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

T
B

D

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

O
W

N
E

R
'S

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T

S
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
'S

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T

S
V

IC
IN

IT
Y

 M
A

P

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
C

IV
IL

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R

S
H

E
E

T
 I

N
D

E
X

2
3

0
5

 C
E

D
A

R
 S

P
R

IN
G

S
 R

O
A

D
, 

S
U

IT
E

 2
0

0
N

O
L

A
N

 B
O

R
D

E
N

D
A

L
L

A
S

, 
T

X
 7

5
2

0
1

P
H

: 
(9

7
2

) 
4

0
2
-5

7
0

5

F
IR

M
 N

A
M

E
N

A
M

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

P
H

: 
(0

0
0

) 
0

0
0
-0

0
0

0

C
IT

Y
. 

S
T

A
T

E
 Z

IP
 C

O
D

E
F

A
X

: 
(0

0
0

) 
0

0
0

-0
0

0
0

P
 9

4
9
.6

6
0
.9

1
2
8

1
0
 E

d
e
lm

a
n

Ir
v
in

e
, 
C

A
 9

2
6
1
8

F
 9

4
9
.8

6
3
.1

5
8
1

D
E

N
N

IS
 E

D
G

E
T

T

N
O

R
T

H
 B

A
Y

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

S
E

L
F

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E

1
8
5
0
 7

9
T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 C

A
U

S
E

W
A

Y
N

O
R

T
H

 B
A

Y
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

, 
F

L
 3

3
1
4
1

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L

A
S

0
.1

T
IT

L
E

 S
H

E
E

T

A
S

1
.0

S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

A
S

2
.1

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

A
S

2
.2

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

A
S

2
.3

T
H

IR
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

A
S

2
.4

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

A
S

2
.5

F
IF

T
H

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

A
S

2
.6

S
IX

T
H

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

A
S

2
.7

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

A
S

2
.8

E
IG

H
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

A
S

3
.1

R
O

O
F

 P
L

A
N

A
S

4
.1

N
O

R
T

H
 E

X
T

E
R

IO
R

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

A
S

4
.2

S
O

U
T

H
 E

X
T

E
R

IO
R

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

A
S

4
.3

E
A

S
T

 &
 W

E
S

T
 E

X
T

E
R

IO
R

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

O
U

N
T

: 
1

4

S
U

R
V

E
Y

1
A

L
T

A
/N

S
P

S
  

L
A

N
D

  
T

IT
L

E
  

S
U

R
V

E
Y

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 S
H

E
E

T
 C

O
U

N
T

: 
1

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

L
-1

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

L
-2

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

L
-3

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N

L
-4

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 N

O
T

E
S

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 S

H
E

E
T

 C
O

U
N

T
: 

4

Page 407



VAN

50'-0"

RIGHT-OF-WAY

2
4

'-
0

"

T
Y

P
2

4
'-
0

"12'-0"

5'-0"

12'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

T
Y

P
.

12'-0"
5'-0"

12'-0"

1
8

'-
0

"

T
Y

P
.

2
4
'-
0
"

15'-0"

15'-0"

9'-0"

TYP.

1
8

'-
0

"

T
Y

P
.

4'-0"
UTILITY

EASEMENT

IN
G

R
E

S
S

&
 E

G
R

E
S

S

E
A

S
T

E
M

E
N

T

8'
-0

"

16
'-0

"

60'-0"
MIN SETBACK

5
0

'-
2

"

4
0

'-
0
" 

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

25'-0" MIN SETBACK

50'-0"

RIGHT-OF-WAY

50'-0"
RIGHT-OF-WAY

50'-0"
RIGHT-OF-WAY

7'-0"
18'-0"

24'-0"

5
'-
6
"

9'-3"

5
'-
0
"

7'-0"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

8
'-
6
"

1
0

'-
2
"

8
'-
9
"

6'-0"

6'-8"

8'-9"

9'-2"

12'-0"

11'-8"

9'-0"

8'-6"

6'-8"

5'-7"

12'-0" 5'-0" 12'-0"

SCHOOL SCHOOL
SCHOOL

x

x

U
P

JO
H

N
 F

 K
E

N
N

E
D

Y
 C

A
U

S
E

W
A

Y
T

Y
P

.

1

3

T
Y

P
.

2

3

2 T
Y

P
.

6

T
Y

P
.

5

T
Y

P
.

4

S
E

L
F

-S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
1
7
3
,2

0
0
 S

F
8
 S

T
O

R
IE

S

6
8

9

1
0

9

2

8

5

5

6
7

9

8

6

4
,0

0
0
 S

F
R

E
T

A
IL

2
6

T
Y

P
.

2
7

2
8

F
IR

E
 L

A
N

E
 (

H
A

T
C

H
E

D
)

P
O

L
E

 M
O

U
N

T
E

D
 L

IG
H

T
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
. 

LI
G

H
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 IN
 C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

 
W

IT
H

 V
IL

LA
G

E
 C

O
D

E
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 9

.2
1

 (
C

).

W
A

L
L
P

A
C

K
 L

IG
H

T
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
.

1
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

T
A

L
L

 C
O

U
N

T
 T

O
T

A
L

F
IR

E
 H

Y
D

R
A

N
T

 

P
.I
.V

. 
W

IT
H

 T
A

M
P

E
R

T
R

A
N

S
F

O
R

M
E

R
 W

IT
H

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 P
A

D
. 

(P
R

O
V

ID
E

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 

B
O

L
LA

R
D

S
 P

E
R

 L
O

C
A

L 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 O
R

 P
U

B
L

IC
 W

O
R

K
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

)
T

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L
E

 P
A

T
H

 O
F

 T
R

A
V

E
L

. 
1

:2
0
 M

A
X

. 
S

L
O

P
E

, 
2

%
 M

A
X

. 
C

R
O

S
S

 S
L

O
P

E
.

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 A

N
D

 I
R

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 A
R

E
A

.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
.

L
E

G
E

N
D

N
O

T
E

S
-

S
IT

E
 D

A
T

A

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/22/2019 9:40:03 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

SITE PLAN A
S

1
.0

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/1

6
" 

=
 1

'-
0

"

S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
N

0
8 '

1
6
'

3
2
'

6
4
'

1
/1
6
"=
1
'-
0
"

1
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 L

IN
E

, 
S

E
E

 C
IV

IL
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

.

2
A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

L
E

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
T

A
L

L
 W

IT
H

 S
IG

N
A

G
E

.

3
V

A
N

 A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

T
A

L
L

 W
IT

H
 S

IG
N

A
G

E
.

4
P

A
IN

T
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

T
R

IP
IN

G
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

.

5
A

C
C

E
S

S
IB

L
E

 P
A

T
H

 O
F

 T
R

A
V

E
L

. 
1

:2
0

 M
A

X
. 

S
L

O
P

E
, 

2
%

 M
A

X
. 

C
R

O
S

S
 S

L
O

P
E

,
S

E
E

 C
IV

IL
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

.

6
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

E
A

, 
S

E
E

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

.

2
6

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 T
R

U
C

K
 A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H
.

2
7

P
E

R
V

IO
U

S
 P

A
V

E
R

S
 -

 T
U

R
F

 B
L

O
C

K
.

2
8

T
R

A
S

H
 E

N
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

, 
P

R
O

V
ID

E
 C

R
O

S
S

-V
E

N
T

IL
A

T
E

D
 A

S
 P

E
R

 N
O

R
T

H
 B

A
Y

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 C
O

D
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 8
.1

3
(E

).

Z
O

N
IN

G
: 

G
C

S
IT

E
 A

R
E

A
: 

1
.9

3
 A

C
R

E
S

 (
8

4
,1

2
8
 S

F
)

O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
:

1
8
,0

6
2
 S

F
 (

2
1

.5
%

)

P
E

R
V

IO
U

S
 S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 A
R

E
A

:
  

1
5

,4
0
5

 S
F

P
E

R
V

IO
U

S
 P

A
V

E
R

S
 (

4
,7

7
2

 S
F

 x
 4

0
%

):
  

  
  

1
,9

0
9
 S

F
T

O
T

A
L
 P

E
R

V
IO

U
S

 A
R

E
A

: 
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

1
7

,3
1
4

 S
F

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

:
G

R
O

U
N

D
 F

L
O

O
R

:
R

E
T

A
IL

:
  

4
,0

0
0

 S
F

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
:

1
0

,5
3

0
 S

F
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 G

A
R

A
G

E
:

  
4

,6
7

0
 S

F
 (

N
O

T
 A

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 F
.A

.R
.)

2
N

D
 F

L
O

O
R

 (
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 G

A
R

A
G

E
):

2
2

,0
0

0
 S

F
 (

N
O

T
 A

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 F
.A

.R
.)

3
R

D
 F

L
O

O
R

:
2

2
,0

0
0

 S
F

4
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

:
2

2
,0

0
0

 S
F

5
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

:
2

2
,0

0
0

 S
F

6
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

:
2

2
,0

0
0

 S
F

7
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

:
2

2
,0

0
0

 S
F

8
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

:
2

2
,0

0
0

 S
F

G
R

O
S

S
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
:

  
  

 
1

7
3
,2

0
0
 S

F

N
E

T
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
 (

L
E

S
S

 G
A

R
A

G
E

)
1

4
6
,5

3
0
 S

F

F
.A

.R
.:

1
.7

4

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 H
E

IG
H

T
:

9
7

'-
8
"

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
:

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
:

1
8
 S

T
A

L
L

S
R

E
T

A
IL

 (
1
/2

0
0
 S

F
):

2
0
 S

T
A

L
L

S
T

O
T

A
L

:
3

8
 S

T
A

L
L

S

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
:

G
R

O
U

N
D

 L
E

V
E

L
:

9
8

2
N

D
 L

E
V

E
L

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

:
3

9
T

O
T

A
L

:
1

3
7

F
IN

IS
H

 F
L
O

O
R

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 =

 1
0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0
" 

A
B

O
V

E
 B

A
S

E
 F

L
O

O
D

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 -

F
L

O
O

D
 Z

O
N

E
 A

E
 (

E
L

 9
),

 R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 L

A
N

D
 T

IT
L

E
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 P

L
A

N
.

N
O

R
T

H
 B

A
Y

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 N
O

T
E

S
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

 L
IG

H
T

 P
O

L
E

S
 T

O
 B

E
 I
N

 C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 C
O

D
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 9
.2

1
(C

).

S
IG

N
A

G
E

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 T
O

 B
E

 I
N

 C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 C
O

D
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
1

.9
(C

)(
2

)(
b

).
 

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 B

U
F

F
E

R
 T

O
 B

E
 I
N

 C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 M
IA

M
I-

D
A

D
E

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

8
A

-6
(H

),
 1

8
A

-6
(I

),
 A

N
D

 1
8
A

-6
(J

).

1
. 

2
.  

3
. 

Page 408



U
P

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

1
1

%
 U

P
5

%
 U

P

R
E

T
A

IL

1
0

0

O
F

F
IC

E

1
0

1

B
R

E
A

K
 R

M

1
0

2

J
A

N

1
0

3

R
E

S
T

R
O

O
M

1
0

4

R
E

S
T

R
O

O
M

1
0

5

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

T
Y

P
.

8

T
Y

P
.

8

T
Y

P
.

9

T
Y

P
.

2
3

T
Y

P
.

1
0

1
3

T
Y

P
.

1
4

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

1
1

1

E
L

E
V

A
T

O
R

E
Q

U
IP

. 
R

O
O

M

1
1

2

N
O

T
E

S
-

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:18 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

FIRST FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.1

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

F
IR

S
T

 F
L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N
N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

8
C

O
N

C
E

R
E

T
E

 S
L

A
B

, 
P

R
O

V
ID

E
 V

A
P

O
R

 V
A

R
R

IE
R

 O
V

E
R

 S
A

N
D

 P
E

R
 S

O
IL

S
R

E
P

O
R

T
.

9
A

L
U

M
IN

U
M

 S
T

O
R

E
F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

T
R

Y
 D

O
O

R
.

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
3

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 R
A

M
P

.

1
4

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

L
L

, 
P

A
IN

T
E

D
.

2
3

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 U

N
IT

, 
S

IZ
E

 V
A

R
IE

S
.

Page 409



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

P
A

R
K

IN
G

G
A

R
A

G
E

3
0

0

T
Y

P
.

4

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
4

T
Y

P
.

1
0

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

1
7

9

5

6

2

1
3

5
%

1
1

%

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:19 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

SECOND FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.2

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N

4
P

A
IN

T
E

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

T
R

IP
IN

G
 P

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

.

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
2

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

O
O

R
.

1
3

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 R
A

M
P

.

1
4

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

L
L

, 
P

A
IN

T
E

D
.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 410



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
0

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

T
Y

P
.

2
3

T
Y

P
.

1
1

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:20 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

THIRD FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.3

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

T
H

IR
D

 F
L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
1

R
O

L
L

-U
P

 D
O

O
R

.

1
2

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

O
O

R
.

2
3

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 U

N
IT

, 
S

IZ
E

 V
A

R
IE

S
.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 411



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
0

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

T
Y

P
.

2
3

T
Y

P
.

1
1

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:22 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.4

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
1

R
O

L
L

-U
P

 D
O

O
R

.

1
2

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

O
O

R
.

2
3

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 U

N
IT

, 
S

IZ
E

 V
A

R
IE

S
.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 412



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
0

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

T
Y

P
.

2
3

T
Y

P
.

1
1

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:23 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.5

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

F
IF

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
1

R
O

L
L

-U
P

 D
O

O
R

.

1
2

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

O
O

R
.

2
3

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 U

N
IT

, 
S

IZ
E

 V
A

R
IE

S
.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 413



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
0

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

T
Y

P
.

2
3

T
Y

P
.

1
1

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:25 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

SIXTH FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.6

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

S
IX

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
1

R
O

L
L

-U
P

 D
O

O
R

.

1
2

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

O
O

R
.

2
3

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 U

N
IT

, 
S

IZ
E

 V
A

R
IE

S
.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 414



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
0

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

T
Y

P
.

2
3

T
Y

P
.

1
1

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:26 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

SEVENTH FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.7

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
1

R
O

L
L

-U
P

 D
O

O
R

.

1
2

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

O
O

R
.

2
3

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 U

N
IT

, 
S

IZ
E

 V
A

R
IE

S
.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 415



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
2

T
Y

P
.

1
0

S
T

A
IR

 #
1

1
0

7

E
L

E
V

 #
1

1
0

8

E
L

E
V

 #
2

1
0

9

S
T

A
IR

 #
2

1
1

0

T
Y

P
.

2
3

T
Y

P
.

1
1

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:28 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

EIGHTH FLOOR PLAN A
S

2
.8

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

E
IG

H
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L
A

N

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
1

R
O

L
L

-U
P

 D
O

O
R

.

1
2

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

O
O

R
.

2
3

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 U

N
IT

, 
S

IZ
E

 V
A

R
IE

S
.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 416



N
O

T
E

S
-

11

99

A
A

E
E1

A
S

4
.3

1

A
S

4
.1 1

A
S

4
.2

2

A
S

4
.3B

B

22

33

44

55

66

77

88

C
C

D
D

A
.1

A
.1

D
.9

D
.9

8
.9

8
.9

1
.1

1
.1

100'-0"

2
2

0
'-
0

"

1
'-
0

"
1

9
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
3

0
'-
0

"
2

9
'-
0

"
1

'-
0

"

1'-0"

19'-0" 30'-0" 20'-0" 29'-0"

1'-0"

SLOPE

1/4" PER FOOT MIN. SLOPE

1/4" PER FOOT MIN.

1/4" / 1'-0"

T
Y

P
.

3
0

1

T
Y

P
.

3
0

1
T

Y
P

.

3
0

4

T
Y

P
.

3
0

7

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:29 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

ROOF PLAN A
S

3
.1

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

R
O

O
F

 P
L
A

N

3
0

1
C

L
A

S
S

-A
 S

IN
G

L
E

-P
L

Y
 R

O
O

F
IN

G
 O

V
E

R
 R

IG
ID

 I
N

S
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 O

V
E

R
 M

E
T

A
L

 D
E

C
K

.

3
0

4
R

O
O

F
 M

O
U

N
T

E
D

 M
E

C
H

A
N

IC
A

L
 U

N
IT

S
.

3
0

7
E

L
E

V
A

T
O

R
 P

E
N

T
H

O
U

S
E

.

N

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

Page 417



N
O

T
E

S
-

F
IR

S
T

 F
L
O

O
R 0
"

T
.O

.P
.

9
7
'-
8
"

1
9

2
3

4
5

6
7

8

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
L
O

O
R

1
6
'-
0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
L
O

O
R

2
6
'-
8
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

3
7
'-
4
"

F
IF

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

4
8
'-
0
"

S
IX

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

5
8
'-
8
"

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

6
9
'-
4
"

E
IG

H
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

8
0
'-
0
"

8
.9

1
.1

T
.O

.P
.

9
4
'-
1
0
"

T
Y

P
.

1
4

T
Y

P
.

1
8

T
Y

P
.

9

T
Y

P
.

1
5

T
Y

P
.

1
9

T
Y

P
.

1
6

T
Y

P
.

2
0

T
Y

P
.

1
7

T
Y

P
.

2
1

T
Y

P
.

2
4

T
Y

P
.

2
5

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:30 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

NORTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION A
S

4
.1

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

N
O

R
T

H
 E

X
T

E
R

IO
R

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

9
A

L
U

M
IN

U
M

 S
T

O
R

E
F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

T
R

Y
 D

O
O

R
.

1
4

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

L
L

, 
P

A
IN

T
E

D
.

1
5

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
G

R
E

E
N

).

1
6

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
D

A
R

K
 G

R
A

Y
).

1
7

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
W

H
IT

E
).

1
8

H
IG

H
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 G
L

A
Z

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 A

N
O

D
IZ

E
D

 A
L

U
M

IN
U

M
 M

U
L

L
IO

N
S

.

1
9

V
IS

IO
N

 G
L

A
S

S
 W

IT
H

 F
A

U
X

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 R

O
L

L
 U

P
 D

O
O

R
 S

E
T

 B
A

C
K

 F
R

O
M

G
L

A
S

S
.

2
0

E
X

P
O

S
E

D
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

.

2
1

A
L

U
M

IN
U

M
 M

E
T

A
L

 P
A

N
E

L
 (

W
H

IT
E

).

2
4

M
E

S
H

 S
C

R
E

E
N

 A
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 G
A

R
A

G
E

 V
E

N
T

IL
A

T
IO

N
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

.

2
5

W
A

L
L

 M
O

U
N

T
E

D
 L

IG
H

T
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
.

Page 418



N
O

T
E

S
-

F
IR

S
T

 F
L
O

O
R 0
"

T
.O

.P
.

9
7
'-
8
"

1
9

2
3

4
5

6
7

8

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
L
O

O
R

1
6
'-
0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
L
O

O
R

2
6
'-
8
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

3
7
'-
4
"

F
IF

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

4
8
'-
0
"

S
IX

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

5
8
'-
8
"

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

6
9
'-
4
"

E
IG

H
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

8
0
'-
0
"

8
.9

1
.1

T
.O

.P
.

9
4
'-
1
0
"

T
Y

P
.

1
4

T
Y

P
.

1
5

T
Y

P
.

1
6

T
Y

P
.

2
1

T
Y

P
.

2
4

T
Y

P
.

2
5

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:31 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

SOUTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION A
S

4
.2

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

S
O

U
T

H
 E

X
T

E
R

IO
R

 E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

1
4

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

L
L

, 
P

A
IN

T
E

D
.

1
5

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
G

R
E

E
N

).

1
6

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
D

A
R

K
 G

R
A

Y
).

2
1

A
L

U
M

IN
U

M
 M

E
T

A
L

 P
A

N
E

L
 (

W
H

IT
E

).

2
4

M
E

S
H

 S
C

R
E

E
N

 A
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 G
A

R
A

G
E

 V
E

N
T

IL
A

T
IO

N
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

.

2
5

W
A

L
L

 M
O

U
N

T
E

D
 L

IG
H

T
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
.

Page 419



N
O

T
E

S
-

F
IR

S
T

 F
L
O

O
R 0
"

T
.O

.P
.

9
7
'-
8
"

A
E

B
C

D

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
L
O

O
R

1
6
'-
0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
L
O

O
R

2
6
'-
8
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

3
7
'-
4
"

F
IF

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

4
8
'-
0
"

S
IX

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

5
8
'-
8
"

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

6
9
'-
4
"

E
IG

H
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

8
0
'-
0
"

A
.1

D
.9

T
.O

.P
.

9
4
'-
1
0
"

T
Y

P
.

1
4

T
Y

P
.

2
0

T
Y

P
.

1
5

T
Y

P
.

1
9

T
Y

P
.

1
7

T
Y

P
.

1
6

T
Y

P
.

2
1

T
Y

P
.

1
8

T
Y

P
.

1
0

T
Y

P
.

2
5

F
IR

S
T

 F
L
O

O
R 0
"

T
.O

.P
.

9
7
'-
8
"

A
E

B
C

D

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
L
O

O
R

1
6
'-
0
"

T
H

IR
D

 F
L
O

O
R

2
6
'-
8
"

F
O

U
R

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

3
7
'-
4
"

F
IF

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

4
8
'-
0
"

S
IX

T
H

 F
L
O

O
R

5
8
'-
8
"

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

6
9
'-
4
"

E
IG

H
T

H
 F

L
O

O
R

8
0
'-
0
"

A
.1

D
.9

T
.O

.P
.

9
4
'-
1
0
"

T
Y

P
.

1
6

T
Y

P
.

2
1

T
Y

P
.

1
0

T
Y

P
.

1
8

T
Y

P
.

9

T
Y

P
.

2
0

T
Y

P
.

2
4

T
Y

P
.

1
5

T
Y

P
.

1
9

T
Y

P
.

1
7

T
Y

P
.

2
5

architecture

planning

interiors

graphics

civil engineering

10 Edelman

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.660.9128

F 949.863.1581

J
O

B
 N

O
.:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
.:

P
A

/P
M

:

S
H

E
E

T

THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY AND COPYRIGHT OF WARE MALCOMB AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY OTHER WORK EXCEPT BY AGREEMENT WITH WARE MALCOMB. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS AND SHALL BE VERIFIED ON THE JOB SITE. ANY DISCREPANCY SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE NOTICE OF WARE MALCOMB PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK

C
A

U
T

IO
N

:
IF

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 3

0
"x

4
2
" 

IT
 I
S

 A
 R

E
D

U
C

E
D

 P
R

IN
T

C:\_Revit\0141_ARCH_enamisniak@waremalcomb.com.rvt

3/21/2019 9:05:32 AM

D
. 

E
D

G
E

T
T

E
.N

.

IR
V

1
8

-0
1

4
1

-0
0

EAST & WEST EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS A
S

4
.3

NORTH BAY VILLAGE
SELF STORAGE

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

DATEREMARKS

11/19/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW

12/21/2018SITE PLAN REVIEW RESUBMITTAL

02/15/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

03/21/2019PLANNING RESUBMITTAL

9
A

L
U

M
IN

U
M

 S
T

O
R

E
F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

T
R

Y
 D

O
O

R
.

1
0

H
O

L
L

O
W

 M
E

T
A

L
 D

O
O

R
.

1
4

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

L
L

, 
P

A
IN

T
E

D
.

1
5

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
G

R
E

E
N

).

1
6

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
D

A
R

K
 G

R
A

Y
).

1
7

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T

E
D

 M
E

T
A

L
 P

A
N

E
L

 (
W

H
IT

E
).

1
8

H
IG

H
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 G
L

A
Z

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 A

N
O

D
IZ

E
D

 A
L

U
M

IN
U

M
 M

U
L

L
IO

N
S

.

1
9

V
IS

IO
N

 G
L

A
S

S
 W

IT
H

 F
A

U
X

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 R

O
L

L
 U

P
 D

O
O

R
 S

E
T

 B
A

C
K

 F
R

O
M

G
L

A
S

S
.

2
0

E
X

P
O

S
E

D
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

.

2
1

A
L

U
M

IN
U

M
 M

E
T

A
L

 P
A

N
E

L
 (

W
H

IT
E

).

2
4

M
E

S
H

 S
C

R
E

E
N

 A
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 G
A

R
A

G
E

 V
E

N
T

IL
A

T
IO

N
 O

P
E

N
IN

G
S

.

2
5

W
A

L
L

 M
O

U
N

T
E

D
 L

IG
H

T
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
.

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

0
4
'

8
'

1
6
'

3
2
'

1
/8
"=
1
'-
0
"

S
C

A
L

E
: 

 1
/8

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"
1

E
A

S
T

 E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

C
A

L
E

: 
 1

/8
" 

=
 1

'-
0

"
2

W
E

S
T

 E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

Page 420



SCHOOL SCHOOL
SCHOOL

V
A

N

J
O

H
N

 
F

 
K

E
N

N
E

D
Y

 
C

A
U

S
E

W
A

Y
 

3
0

3
9

3
0

3
8

3
0

3
7

3
0

3
3

3
0

3
1

3
0

2
9

3
0

2
8

3
0

2
7

3
0

2
6

3
0

2
3

3
0

2
2

3
0

1
6

3
0

1
4

3
0

0
9

3
0

0
8

3
0
2
4

3
0

4
4

3
0

4
3

3
0

4
2

3
0

4
1

3
0

1
3

3
0

1
4

3
0

1
8

3
0

1
9

3
0

2
0

3
0

2
1

3
0

3
2

3
0

1
7

*
I
l
e

x
 
x
 
a

t
t
e

n
u

a
t
a
 
'
E

a
s
t
 
P

a
l
a

t
k
a

'
 
E

a
g

l
e

s
t
o

n

E
A

G
L

E
S

T
O

N
 
E

A
S

T
 
P

A
L

A
T

K
A

 
H

O
L

L
Y

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.

F
.
G

.
,
 
5

'
 
C

L
E

A
R

 
T

R
U

N
K

1
0

6

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2
"
 
D

B
H

.
L

a
g

e
r
s
t
r
o

e
m

i
a

 
s
p

e
c
i
o

s
a

Q
U

E
E

N
'
S

 
C

R
E

P
E

 
M

Y
R

T
L

E
F

.
G

.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
Q

U
A

N
.

S
Y

M
B

O
L

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L

S
H

R
U

B
S

 
A

N
D

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
R

S

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
Q

U
A

N
.

S
Y

M
B

O
L

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L

T
R

E
E

S

*
 
D

E
N

O
T

E
S

 
N

A
T

I
V

E
 
S

P
E

C
I
E

S

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
L
I
S

T
 

S
T

.
 
A

U
G

U
S

T
I
N

E
 
G

R
A

S
S

S
t
e

n
o

t
a

p
h

r
u

m
 
s
e

c
u

n
d

a
t
u

m
 
'
F

l
o

r
a

t
a

m
'

S
O

L
I
D

 
E

V
E

N
 
S

O
D

L
A

W
N

A
s

R
e
q
u
i
r
e
d

8

F
.
G

.

M
A

H
O

G
A

N
Y

*
S

w
i
e
t
e

n
i
a
 
m

a
h

a
g

o
n

i
1

2
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
5

'
 
S

P
R

.
,
 
2
"
 
D

B
H

.

1
8

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.
*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s
 
'
s
e

r
i
c
e

u
s
'

S
I
L

V
E

R
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D
F

.
G

.
 

6

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.
*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s
 

G
R

E
E

N
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D
F

.
G

.
 

F
.
G

.
,
 
S

T
A

G
G

E
R

E
D

.
T

R
I
P

L
E

 
M

O
N

T
G

O
M

E
R

Y
 
P

A
L

M

V
e
i
t
c
h

i
a

 
m

o
n
t
g

o
m

e
r
y
a

n
a

 
'
T

r
i
p

l
e

'

1
8

'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.
,
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

F
.
G

.
,
 
M

A
T

C
H

E
D

 
H

T
S

.
R

O
Y

A
L

 
P

A
L

M

*
R

o
y
s
t
o

n
e

a
 
e

l
a

t
a

2
0

-
2

2
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.
,
 
8
'
 
G

.
W

.

6

1
3

3

7
 
G

A
L

.

3
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.

P
U

R
P

L
E

 
C

R
I
N

U
M

 
L

I
L

Y

C
r
i
n

u
m

 
a

u
g

u
s
t
u

m
 
'
Q

u
e

e
n

 
E

m
m

a
'

C
A

5
5
4

3
 
G

A
L

.

2
4

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
2

4
"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
2

4
"
 
O

.
C

.

G
R

E
E

N
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D

*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s

C
E

*
C

l
u

s
i
a

 
g

u
t
t
i
f
e

r
a

S
M

A
L

L
 
L

E
A

F
 
C

L
U

S
I
A

C
G

3
 
G

A
L

.

2
4

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
2
4

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
2

4
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
6
2

9
3

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

D
u

r
a

n
t
a
 
e

r
e

c
t
a

 
'
G

o
l
d
 
M

o
u

n
d

'

G
O

L
D

 
M

O
U

N
D

 
D

U
R

A
N

T
A

D
E

F
i
c
u

s
 
m

i
c
r
o

c
a

r
p

a
 
'
G

r
e

e
n

 
I
s
l
a

n
d

'

G
R

E
E

N
 
I
S

L
A

N
D

 
F

I
C

U
S

F
M

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
5

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
5

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

5
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

4
3

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

I
x
o

r
a

 
'
N

o
r
a
 
G

r
a

n
t
'

I
X

O
R

A

I
N

1
4
3

3
 
G

A
L

.

3
0

 
G

A
L

.
 
,
 
F

U
L

L

6
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.

J
a

t
r
o

p
h

a
 
i
n

t
e

g
e

r
r
i
m

a

J
A

T
R

O
P

H
A

 
T

R
E

E

J
I

4

S
c
h
e

f
f
l
e

r
a

 
a
r
b

o
r
i
c
o

l
a
 
'
T

r
i
n

e
t
t
e
'

V
A

R
I
E

G
A

T
E

D
 
S

C
H

E
F

F
L

E
R

A

S
V

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
2
6

[
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
E

E
S

]

9
"
 
P

O
T

3
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.

A
l
c
a

n
t
a

r
e
a

 
o

d
o

r
a

t
a

B
R

O
M

E
L

I
A

D
 
S

P
.

A
O

1
8

D
W

A
R

F
 
P

E
N

T
A

S

P
e

n
t
a

s
 
l
a

n
c
e

o
l
a

t
a

 
"
N

e
w

 
L

o
o

k
 
W

h
i
t
e

"

P
L

1
 
G

A
L

.

1
2

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1

2
"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

2
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
3
7

5

T
a

b
e

b
u

i
a
 
c
a

r
a

i
b

a
 
 

Y
E

L
L

O
W

 
T

R
U

M
P

E
T

 
T

R
E

E

1
0
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.

F
.
G

.

1
0
0
0

1
0
0

1
8
,
0
6
2

1
2
,
4
2
5
.
6

G
C

S
E

E
 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 

7
1
6

1
9
5

1
,
1
0
3

6
5
0

6
5

6
5

N
/
A

N
/
A

3
6
7

1
1
*
*

1
1

4
8

1
6

3
7
*
/
*
*
*
*

1
6

5
4

2
8

6
0

2
0

8
4
,
1
2
8

1
.
9
3

B
.
 
N

o
.
 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
a

l
l
o

w
e

d
 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

 
N

o
.
 
o

f
 
n

a
t
i
v
e

 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d

A
.
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
x
 
1

0
 
=

 
N

o
.
 
o

f
 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
a

l
l
o

w
e

d

S
H

R
U

B
S

A
 
+

 
D

 
+

 
E

 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
T

r
e

e
s

F
.
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
T

r
e

e
s
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d

E
.
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
d

i
r
e

c
t
l
y
 
b

e
n

e
a

t
h

 
p

o
w

e
r
 
l
i
n

e
s

(
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
a

v
e

r
a

g
e

 
s
p

a
c
i
n

g
 
o

f
 
2

5
'
 
o

.
c
.
)
:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
l
i
n

e
a

r
 
f
e

e
t
 
a

l
o

n
g

 
s
t
r
e

e
t
 
/
 
2

5
 
=

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
l
i
n

e
a

r
 
f
e

e
t
 
a

l
o

n
g

 
s
t
r
e

e
t
 
=

D
.
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
(
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
a

v
e

r
a

g
e

 
s
p

a
c
i
n

g
 
o

f
 
3

5
'
 
o

.
c
.
)
:

C
.
 
%

 
N

a
t
i
v
e

s
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d
:
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
p

r
o

v
i
d

e
d

 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

B
.
 
%

 
P

a
l
m

s
 
A

l
l
o

w
e

d
:
 
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

=
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
t
r
e

e
s
 
x
 
n

e
t
 
l
o

t
 
a

c
r
e

s
 
=

L
e

s
s
 
e

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
 
o

f
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
m

e
e

t
i
n

g
 
m

i
n

i
m

u
m

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

m
e

n
t
s

A
.
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
p

e
r
 
n

e
t
 
l
o

t
 
a

c
r
e

T
R

E
E

S

A
.
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
t
o

t
a

l
 
s
.
f
.
 
o

f
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

d
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3

B
.
 
M

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
l
a

w
n

 
a

r
e

a
 
(
s
o

d
)
 
p

e
r
m

i
t
t
e

d
 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
%

 
x
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

s
.
f
.
 
=

L
A

W
N

 
A

R
E

A
 
C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N

C
.
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
s
.
f
.
 
o

f
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

d
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3
:
 
 
A

 
+

 
B

 
=

N
o

.
 
o

u
t
s
i
d

e
/
g

r
o

u
n

d
-
l
e

v
e

l
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
s
p

a
c
e

s
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
x
 
1

0
 
s
.
f
.
 
p

e
r
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
s
p

a
c
e

s
 
=

B
.
 
S

q
u

a
r
e

 
F

e
e

t
 
o

f
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
l
o

t
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3
,

a
s
 
i
n

d
i
c
a

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
s
i
t
e

 
p

l
a

n
:

N
e

t
 
l
o

t
 
a

r
e

a
 
=

 
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
 
s
.
f
.
 
x
 
_

_
_

_
_

 
%

 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
s
.
f
.

A
.
 
S

q
u

a
r
e

 
F

e
e

t
 
o

f
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
,
 
a

s
 
i
n

d
i
c
a

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
s
i
t
e

 
p

l
a

n
:

P
R

O
V

I
D

E
D

R
E

Q
U

I
R

E
D

O
P

E
N

 
S

P
A

C
E

s
.
f
.

a
c
r
e

s
N

e
t
 
L

o
t
 
A

r
e

a
Z

o
n

i
n

g
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
:

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
L

E
G

E
N

D
 
I
n

f
o

r
m

a
t
i
o

n
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
P

e
r
m

a
n

e
n

t
l
y
 
A

f
f
i
x
e

d
 
t
o

 
P

l
a

n

6
5

1
0
0
0

6
0
*
*
*

6
2
,
1
4
6

1
9
,
0
6
2

1
2
,
4
2
5
.
6

1
3
,
4
2
5

1
7
,
7
9
9

1
1
,
4
3
7

1
1
,
4
2
3

1
9
,
0
6
2

*
O

N
L

Y
 
1

6
 
P

L
A

M
S

 
C

O
U

N
T

 
T

O
W

A
R

D
S

 
T

H
E

 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 
O

F
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

.

*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
3

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

*
*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
7

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

*
*
*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
1

8
 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
P

A
L

M
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

/
 
T

O
 
R

E
L

O
C

A
T

E

R
e

l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
t
r
e

e
s

S
Y

M
B

O
L

 
L

E
G

E
N

D

#
x

T
r
e

e
 
C

a
n

o
p

y
 
S

p
r
e

a
d

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

Thu, 21 Mar 2019 Thursday, 21 Mar 2019

-

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

SELF STORAGE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

J
O

B
 
N

O
.
:

P
A

 
/
 
P

M
:

REMARKS DATE DATEREMARKS

irvine. california 92618

10 edelman

graphics

planning

architecture

interiors

p 949.660.9128

f 949.863.1581

civil engineering

M
A

V

L
-
1

K
H

2
0

1
8

-
0

7
8

S
c
a

l
e

:
 
N

T
S

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

N
O

R
T

H

L
-
2

L
-
3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

4

4

4 4 4

N

L
A

W
N

Page 421



SCHOOL SCHOOL
SCHOOL

V
A

N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L

A

W

N

L

A

W

N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

LAWN

LAWN

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

J

O

H

N

 
F

 
K

E

N

N

E

D

Y

 
C

A

U

S

E

W

A

Y

I
N 5

S
V

6

A
O

3

I
N 5

F
M

1
0

C
G

6
6

I
N 5

S
V

5

I
N 5

S
V

5

S
V

7

I
N 7

S
V

8

S
V

1
1

I
N

1
1

S
V

1
1

S
V

8

I
N 8

J
I

1

P
L

2
0

D
E

8

A
O

3

D
E

3
8

J
I

1

P
L

2
0

C
E

1
6
0

A
O

3

C
E

8
0

C
E

4
3

1
0
'
X

1
0
'
 
S

A
F

E

S
I
G

H
T

 
T

R
I
A

N
G

L
E

3
0
3
9

3
0
3
8

3
0
3
7

3
0
0
9

3
0
0
8

3
0
4
4

3
0
4
3

3
0
4
2

3
0
4
1

3
0
1
3

3
0
1
4

3
0
1
8

3
0
1
7

S
V

5

I
N 5

*
I
l
e

x
 
x
 
a

t
t
e

n
u

a
t
a
 
'
E

a
s
t
 
P

a
l
a

t
k
a

'
 
E

a
g

l
e

s
t
o

n

E
A

G
L

E
S

T
O

N
 
E

A
S

T
 
P

A
L

A
T

K
A

 
H

O
L

L
Y

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.

F
.
G

.
,
 
5

'
 
C

L
E

A
R

 
T

R
U

N
K

1
0

6

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2
"
 
D

B
H

.
L

a
g

e
r
s
t
r
o

e
m

i
a

 
s
p

e
c
i
o

s
a

Q
U

E
E

N
'
S

 
C

R
E

P
E

 
M

Y
R

T
L

E
F

.
G

.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
Q

U
A

N
.

S
Y

M
B

O
L

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L

S
H

R
U

B
S

 
A

N
D

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
R

S

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
Q

U
A

N
.

S
Y

M
B

O
L

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L

T
R

E
E

S

*
 
D

E
N

O
T

E
S

 
N

A
T

I
V

E
 
S

P
E

C
I
E

S

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
L
I
S

T
 

S
T

.
 
A

U
G

U
S

T
I
N

E
 
G

R
A

S
S

S
t
e

n
o

t
a

p
h

r
u

m
 
s
e

c
u

n
d

a
t
u

m
 
'
F

l
o

r
a

t
a

m
'

S
O

L
I
D

 
E

V
E

N
 
S

O
D

L
A

W
N

A
s

R
e
q
u
i
r
e
d

8

F
.
G

.

M
A

H
O

G
A

N
Y

*
S

w
i
e
t
e

n
i
a
 
m

a
h

a
g

o
n

i
1

2
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
5

'
 
S

P
R

.
,
 
2
"
 
D

B
H

.

1
8

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.
*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s
 
'
s
e

r
i
c
e

u
s
'

S
I
L

V
E

R
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D
F

.
G

.
 

6

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.
*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s
 

G
R

E
E

N
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D
F

.
G

.
 

F
.
G

.
,
 
S

T
A

G
G

E
R

E
D

.
T

R
I
P

L
E

 
M

O
N

T
G

O
M

E
R

Y
 
P

A
L

M

V
e
i
t
c
h

i
a

 
m

o
n
t
g

o
m

e
r
y
a

n
a

 
'
T

r
i
p

l
e

'

1
8

'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.
,
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

F
.
G

.
,
 
M

A
T

C
H

E
D

 
H

T
S

.
R

O
Y

A
L

 
P

A
L

M

*
R

o
y
s
t
o

n
e

a
 
e

l
a

t
a

2
0

-
2

2
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.
,
 
8
'
 
G

.
W

.

6

1
3

3

7
 
G

A
L

.

3
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.

P
U

R
P

L
E

 
C

R
I
N

U
M

 
L

I
L

Y

C
r
i
n

u
m

 
a

u
g

u
s
t
u

m
 
'
Q

u
e

e
n

 
E

m
m

a
'

C
A

5
5
4

3
 
G

A
L

.

2
4

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
2

4
"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
2

4
"
 
O

.
C

.

G
R

E
E

N
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D

*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s

C
E

*
C

l
u

s
i
a

 
g

u
t
t
i
f
e

r
a

S
M

A
L

L
 
L

E
A

F
 
C

L
U

S
I
A

C
G

3
 
G

A
L

.

2
4

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
2
4

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
2

4
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
6
2

9
3

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

D
u

r
a

n
t
a
 
e

r
e

c
t
a

 
'
G

o
l
d
 
M

o
u

n
d

'

G
O

L
D

 
M

O
U

N
D

 
D

U
R

A
N

T
A

D
E

F
i
c
u

s
 
m

i
c
r
o

c
a

r
p

a
 
'
G

r
e

e
n

 
I
s
l
a

n
d

'

G
R

E
E

N
 
I
S

L
A

N
D

 
F

I
C

U
S

F
M

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
5

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
5

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

5
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

4
3

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

I
x
o

r
a

 
'
N

o
r
a
 
G

r
a

n
t
'

I
X

O
R

A

I
N

1
4
3

3
 
G

A
L

.

3
0

 
G

A
L

.
 
,
 
F

U
L

L

6
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.

J
a

t
r
o

p
h

a
 
i
n

t
e

g
e

r
r
i
m

a

J
A

T
R

O
P

H
A

 
T

R
E

E

J
I

4

S
c
h
e

f
f
l
e

r
a

 
a
r
b

o
r
i
c
o

l
a
 
'
T

r
i
n

e
t
t
e
'

V
A

R
I
E

G
A

T
E

D
 
S

C
H

E
F

F
L

E
R

A

S
V

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
2
6

[
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
E

E
S

]

9
"
 
P

O
T

3
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.

A
l
c
a

n
t
a

r
e
a

 
o

d
o

r
a

t
a

B
R

O
M

E
L

I
A

D
 
S

P
.

A
O

1
8

D
W

A
R

F
 
P

E
N

T
A

S

P
e

n
t
a

s
 
l
a

n
c
e

o
l
a

t
a

 
"
N

e
w

 
L

o
o

k
 
W

h
i
t
e

"

P
L

1
 
G

A
L

.

1
2

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1

2
"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

2
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
3
7

5

T
a

b
e

b
u

i
a
 
c
a

r
a

i
b

a
 
 

Y
E

L
L

O
W

 
T

R
U

M
P

E
T

 
T

R
E

E

1
0
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.

F
.
G

.

1
0
0
0

1
0
0

1
8
,
0
6
2

1
2
,
4
2
5
.
6

G
C

S
E

E
 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 

7
1
6

1
9
5

1
,
1
0
3

6
5
0

6
5

6
5

N
/
A

N
/
A

3
6
7

1
1
*
*

1
1

4
8

1
6

3
7
*
/
*
*
*
*

1
6

5
4

2
8

6
0

2
0

8
4
,
1
2
8

1
.
9
3

B
.
 
N

o
.
 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
a

l
l
o

w
e

d
 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

 
N

o
.
 
o

f
 
n

a
t
i
v
e

 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d

A
.
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
x
 
1

0
 
=

 
N

o
.
 
o

f
 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
a

l
l
o

w
e

d

S
H

R
U

B
S

A
 
+

 
D

 
+

 
E

 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
T

r
e

e
s

F
.
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
T

r
e

e
s
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d

E
.
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
d

i
r
e

c
t
l
y
 
b

e
n

e
a

t
h

 
p

o
w

e
r
 
l
i
n

e
s

(
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
a

v
e

r
a

g
e

 
s
p

a
c
i
n

g
 
o

f
 
2

5
'
 
o

.
c
.
)
:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
l
i
n

e
a

r
 
f
e

e
t
 
a

l
o

n
g

 
s
t
r
e

e
t
 
/
 
2

5
 
=

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
l
i
n

e
a

r
 
f
e

e
t
 
a

l
o

n
g

 
s
t
r
e

e
t
 
=

D
.
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
(
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
a

v
e

r
a

g
e

 
s
p

a
c
i
n

g
 
o

f
 
3

5
'
 
o

.
c
.
)
:

C
.
 
%

 
N

a
t
i
v
e

s
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d
:
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
p

r
o

v
i
d

e
d

 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

B
.
 
%

 
P

a
l
m

s
 
A

l
l
o

w
e

d
:
 
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

=
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
t
r
e

e
s
 
x
 
n

e
t
 
l
o

t
 
a

c
r
e

s
 
=

L
e

s
s
 
e

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
 
o

f
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
m

e
e

t
i
n

g
 
m

i
n

i
m

u
m

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

m
e

n
t
s

A
.
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
p

e
r
 
n

e
t
 
l
o

t
 
a

c
r
e

T
R

E
E

S

A
.
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
t
o

t
a

l
 
s
.
f
.
 
o

f
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

d
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3

B
.
 
M

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
l
a

w
n

 
a

r
e

a
 
(
s
o

d
)
 
p

e
r
m

i
t
t
e

d
 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
%

 
x
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

s
.
f
.
 
=

L
A

W
N

 
A

R
E

A
 
C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N

C
.
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
s
.
f
.
 
o

f
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

d
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3
:
 
 
A

 
+

 
B

 
=

N
o

.
 
o

u
t
s
i
d

e
/
g

r
o

u
n

d
-
l
e

v
e

l
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
s
p

a
c
e

s
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
x
 
1

0
 
s
.
f
.
 
p

e
r
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
s
p

a
c
e

s
 
=

B
.
 
S

q
u

a
r
e

 
F

e
e

t
 
o

f
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
l
o

t
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3
,

a
s
 
i
n

d
i
c
a

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
s
i
t
e

 
p

l
a

n
:

N
e

t
 
l
o

t
 
a

r
e

a
 
=

 
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
 
s
.
f
.
 
x
 
_

_
_

_
_

 
%

 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
s
.
f
.

A
.
 
S

q
u

a
r
e

 
F

e
e

t
 
o

f
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
,
 
a

s
 
i
n

d
i
c
a

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
s
i
t
e

 
p

l
a

n
:

P
R

O
V

I
D

E
D

R
E

Q
U

I
R

E
D

O
P

E
N

 
S

P
A

C
E

s
.
f
.

a
c
r
e

s
N

e
t
 
L

o
t
 
A

r
e

a
Z

o
n

i
n

g
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
:

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
L

E
G

E
N

D
 
I
n

f
o

r
m

a
t
i
o

n
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
P

e
r
m

a
n

e
n

t
l
y
 
A

f
f
i
x
e

d
 
t
o

 
P

l
a

n

6
5

1
0
0
0

6
0
*
*
*

6
2
,
1
4
6

1
9
,
0
6
2

1
2
,
4
2
5
.
6

1
3
,
4
2
5

1
7
,
7
9
9

1
1
,
4
3
7

1
1
,
4
2
3

1
9
,
0
6
2

*
O

N
L

Y
 
1

6
 
P

L
A

M
S

 
C

O
U

N
T

 
T

O
W

A
R

D
S

 
T

H
E

 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 
O

F
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

.

*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
3

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

*
*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
7

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

*
*
*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
1

8
 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
P

A
L

M
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

/
 
T

O
 
R

E
L

O
C

A
T

E

R
e

l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
t
r
e

e
s

S
Y

M
B

O
L

 
L

E
G

E
N

D

#
x

T
r
e

e
 
C

a
n

o
p

y
 
S

p
r
e

a
d

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

Thu, 21 Mar 2019 Thursday, 21 Mar 2019

-

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

SELF STORAGE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

J
O

B
 
N

O
.
:

P
A

 
/
 
P

M
:

REMARKS DATE DATEREMARKS

irvine. california 92618

10 edelman

graphics

planning

architecture

interiors

p 949.660.9128

f 949.863.1581

civil engineering

M
A

V

L
-
2

K
H

2
0

1
8

-
0

7
8

S
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

"
=

1
0

'
-
0

"

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

N
O

R
T

H

MATCH LINE (SEE SHEET L-2)

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

4

4

4 4 4

N

Page 422



L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

J
O

H
N

 
F

 
K

E
N

N
E

D
Y

 
C

A
U

S
E

W
A

Y

L
A

W
N

L
A

W
N

C
A

3

I
N

2
1

F
M

3
3

I
N 5

S
V

5

I
N 5

S
V

5

I
N 5

S
V

5

S
V

7

I
N 7

C
G

6
1

I
N

1
1

S
V

1
1

S
V

1
4

I
N

1
3

S
V

1
3

I
N

1
4

C
G

3
5

I
N

1
1

D
E

1
0

P
L

2
3

A
O

3

J
I

1

J
I

1

P
L

2
3

A
O

3

D
E

1
8

C
E

2
1
3

D
E

1
9

P
L

5
1

A
O

3

C
E

5
8

1
0
'
X

1
0
'
 
S

A
F

E

S
I
G

H
T

 
T

R
I
A

N
G

L
E

3
0

3
3

3
0

3
1

3
0

2
9

3
0

2
8

3
0

2
7

3
0

2
6

3
0

2
3

3
0

2
2

3
0

1
6

3
0

1
4

3
0
2
4

3
0

1
8

3
0

1
9

3
0

2
0

3
0

2
1

3
0

3
2

*
I
l
e

x
 
x
 
a

t
t
e

n
u

a
t
a
 
'
E

a
s
t
 
P

a
l
a

t
k
a

'
 
E

a
g

l
e

s
t
o

n

E
A

G
L

E
S

T
O

N
 
E

A
S

T
 
P

A
L

A
T

K
A

 
H

O
L

L
Y

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.

F
.
G

.
,
 
5

'
 
C

L
E

A
R

 
T

R
U

N
K

1
0

6

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2
"
 
D

B
H

.
L

a
g

e
r
s
t
r
o

e
m

i
a

 
s
p

e
c
i
o

s
a

Q
U

E
E

N
'
S

 
C

R
E

P
E

 
M

Y
R

T
L

E
F

.
G

.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
Q

U
A

N
.

S
Y

M
B

O
L

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L

S
H

R
U

B
S

 
A

N
D

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
R

S

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
Q

U
A

N
.

S
Y

M
B

O
L

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L

T
R

E
E

S

*
 
D

E
N

O
T

E
S

 
N

A
T

I
V

E
 
S

P
E

C
I
E

S

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
L
I
S

T
 

S
T

.
 
A

U
G

U
S

T
I
N

E
 
G

R
A

S
S

S
t
e

n
o

t
a

p
h

r
u

m
 
s
e

c
u

n
d

a
t
u

m
 
'
F

l
o

r
a

t
a

m
'

S
O

L
I
D

 
E

V
E

N
 
S

O
D

L
A

W
N

A
s

R
e
q
u
i
r
e
d

8

F
.
G

.

M
A

H
O

G
A

N
Y

*
S

w
i
e
t
e

n
i
a
 
m

a
h

a
g

o
n

i
1

2
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
5

'
 
S

P
R

.
,
 
2
"
 
D

B
H

.

1
8

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.
*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s
 
'
s
e

r
i
c
e

u
s
'

S
I
L

V
E

R
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D
F

.
G

.
 

6

1
0

'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.
*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s
 

G
R

E
E

N
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D
F

.
G

.
 

F
.
G

.
,
 
S

T
A

G
G

E
R

E
D

.
T

R
I
P

L
E

 
M

O
N

T
G

O
M

E
R

Y
 
P

A
L

M

V
e
i
t
c
h

i
a

 
m

o
n
t
g

o
m

e
r
y
a

n
a

 
'
T

r
i
p

l
e

'

1
8

'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.
,
 
T

R
I
P

L
E

F
.
G

.
,
 
M

A
T

C
H

E
D

 
H

T
S

.
R

O
Y

A
L

 
P

A
L

M

*
R

o
y
s
t
o

n
e

a
 
e

l
a

t
a

2
0

-
2

2
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.
,
 
8
'
 
G

.
W

.

6

1
3

3

7
 
G

A
L

.

3
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.

P
U

R
P

L
E

 
C

R
I
N

U
M

 
L

I
L

Y

C
r
i
n

u
m

 
a

u
g

u
s
t
u

m
 
'
Q

u
e

e
n

 
E

m
m

a
'

C
A

5
5
4

3
 
G

A
L

.

2
4

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
2

4
"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
2

4
"
 
O

.
C

.

G
R

E
E

N
 
B

U
T

T
O

N
W

O
O

D

*
C

o
n

o
c
a

r
p

u
s
 
e

r
e

c
t
u

s

C
E

*
C

l
u

s
i
a

 
g

u
t
t
i
f
e

r
a

S
M

A
L

L
 
L

E
A

F
 
C

L
U

S
I
A

C
G

3
 
G

A
L

.

2
4

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
2
4

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
2

4
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
6
2

9
3

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

D
u

r
a

n
t
a
 
e

r
e

c
t
a

 
'
G

o
l
d
 
M

o
u

n
d

'

G
O

L
D

 
M

O
U

N
D

 
D

U
R

A
N

T
A

D
E

F
i
c
u

s
 
m

i
c
r
o

c
a

r
p

a
 
'
G

r
e

e
n

 
I
s
l
a

n
d

'

G
R

E
E

N
 
I
S

L
A

N
D

 
F

I
C

U
S

F
M

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
5

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
5

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

5
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

4
3

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

I
x
o

r
a

 
'
N

o
r
a
 
G

r
a

n
t
'

I
X

O
R

A

I
N

1
4
3

3
 
G

A
L

.

3
0

 
G

A
L

.
 
,
 
F

U
L

L

6
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.

J
a

t
r
o

p
h

a
 
i
n

t
e

g
e

r
r
i
m

a

J
A

T
R

O
P

H
A

 
T

R
E

E

J
I

4

S
c
h
e

f
f
l
e

r
a

 
a
r
b

o
r
i
c
o

l
a
 
'
T

r
i
n

e
t
t
e
'

V
A

R
I
E

G
A

T
E

D
 
S

C
H

E
F

F
L

E
R

A

S
V

3
 
G

A
L

.

1
8

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1
8

"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

8
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
2
6

[
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
E

E
S

]

9
"
 
P

O
T

3
'
 
O

.
A

.
 
H

T
.

A
l
c
a

n
t
a

r
e
a

 
o

d
o

r
a

t
a

B
R

O
M

E
L

I
A

D
 
S

P
.

A
O

1
8

D
W

A
R

F
 
P

E
N

T
A

S

P
e

n
t
a

s
 
l
a

n
c
e

o
l
a

t
a

 
"
N

e
w

 
L

o
o

k
 
W

h
i
t
e

"

P
L

1
 
G

A
L

.

1
2

"
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
1

2
"
 
S

P
R

.
 
/
 
1

2
"
 
O

.
C

.
 

1
3
7

5

T
a

b
e

b
u

i
a
 
c
a

r
a

i
b

a
 
 

Y
E

L
L

O
W

 
T

R
U

M
P

E
T

 
T

R
E

E

1
0
'
 
H

T
.
 
X

 
4

'
 
S

P
R

.
 
2

"
 
D

B
H

.

F
.
G

.

1
0
0
0

1
0
0

1
8
,
0
6
2

1
2
,
4
2
5
.
6

G
C

S
E

E
 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 

7
1
6

1
9
5

1
,
1
0
3

6
5
0

6
5

6
5

N
/
A

N
/
A

3
6
7

1
1
*
*

1
1

4
8

1
6

3
7
*
/
*
*
*
*

1
6

5
4

2
8

6
0

2
0

8
4
,
1
2
8

1
.
9
3

B
.
 
N

o
.
 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
a

l
l
o

w
e

d
 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

 
N

o
.
 
o

f
 
n

a
t
i
v
e

 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d

A
.
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
x
 
1

0
 
=

 
N

o
.
 
o

f
 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
a

l
l
o

w
e

d

S
H

R
U

B
S

A
 
+

 
D

 
+

 
E

 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
T

r
e

e
s

F
.
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
T

r
e

e
s
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d

E
.
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
d

i
r
e

c
t
l
y
 
b

e
n

e
a

t
h

 
p

o
w

e
r
 
l
i
n

e
s

(
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
a

v
e

r
a

g
e

 
s
p

a
c
i
n

g
 
o

f
 
2

5
'
 
o

.
c
.
)
:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
l
i
n

e
a

r
 
f
e

e
t
 
a

l
o

n
g

 
s
t
r
e

e
t
 
/
 
2

5
 
=

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
l
i
n

e
a

r
 
f
e

e
t
 
a

l
o

n
g

 
s
t
r
e

e
t
 
=

D
.
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
(
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
a

v
e

r
a

g
e

 
s
p

a
c
i
n

g
 
o

f
 
3

5
'
 
o

.
c
.
)
:

C
.
 
%

 
N

a
t
i
v
e

s
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d
:
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
p

r
o

v
i
d

e
d

 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

B
.
 
%

 
P

a
l
m

s
 
A

l
l
o

w
e

d
:
 
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
x
 
3

0
%

 
=

=
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
t
r
e

e
s
 
x
 
n

e
t
 
l
o

t
 
a

c
r
e

s
 
=

L
e

s
s
 
e

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
 
o

f
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
m

e
e

t
i
n

g
 
m

i
n

i
m

u
m

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

m
e

n
t
s

A
.
 
N

o
.
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
p

e
r
 
n

e
t
 
l
o

t
 
a

c
r
e

T
R

E
E

S

A
.
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
t
o

t
a

l
 
s
.
f
.
 
o

f
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

d
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3

B
.
 
M

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
l
a

w
n

 
a

r
e

a
 
(
s
o

d
)
 
p

e
r
m

i
t
t
e

d
 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
%

 
x
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

s
.
f
.
 
=

L
A

W
N

 
A

R
E

A
 
C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N

C
.
 
T

o
t
a

l
 
s
.
f
.
 
o

f
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

d
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3
:
 
 
A

 
+

 
B

 
=

N
o

.
 
o

u
t
s
i
d

e
/
g

r
o

u
n

d
-
l
e

v
e

l
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
s
p

a
c
e

s
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
x
 
1

0
 
s
.
f
.
 
p

e
r
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
s
p

a
c
e

s
 
=

B
.
 
S

q
u

a
r
e

 
F

e
e

t
 
o

f
 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
l
o

t
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
C

h
a

p
t
e

r
 
3

3
,

a
s
 
i
n

d
i
c
a

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
s
i
t
e

 
p

l
a

n
:

N
e

t
 
l
o

t
 
a

r
e

a
 
=

 
 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
 
 
s
.
f
.
 
x
 
_

_
_

_
_

 
%

 
=

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 
s
.
f
.

A
.
 
S

q
u

a
r
e

 
F

e
e

t
 
o

f
 
o

p
e

n
 
s
p

a
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
,
 
a

s
 
i
n

d
i
c
a

t
e

d
 
o

n
 
s
i
t
e

 
p

l
a

n
:

P
R

O
V

I
D

E
D

R
E

Q
U

I
R

E
D

O
P

E
N

 
S

P
A

C
E

s
.
f
.

a
c
r
e

s
N

e
t
 
L

o
t
 
A

r
e

a
Z

o
n

i
n

g
 
D

i
s
t
r
i
c
t
:

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
L

E
G

E
N

D
 
I
n

f
o

r
m

a
t
i
o

n
 
R

e
q

u
i
r
e

d
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
P

e
r
m

a
n

e
n

t
l
y
 
A

f
f
i
x
e

d
 
t
o

 
P

l
a

n

6
5

1
0
0
0

6
0
*
*
*

6
2
,
1
4
6

1
9
,
0
6
2

1
2
,
4
2
5
.
6

1
3
,
4
2
5

1
7
,
7
9
9

1
1
,
4
3
7

1
1
,
4
2
3

1
9
,
0
6
2

*
O

N
L

Y
 
1

6
 
P

L
A

M
S

 
C

O
U

N
T

 
T

O
W

A
R

D
S

 
T

H
E

 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 
O

F
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

.

*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
3

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

*
*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
7

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

*
*
*
*
 
I
N

C
L

U
D

E
S

 
1

8
 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
P

A
L

M
 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
R

E
M

A
I
N

/
 
T

O
 
R

E
L

O
C

A
T

E

R
e

l
o

c
a

t
e

d
 
t
r
e

e
s

S
Y

M
B

O
L

 
L

E
G

E
N

D

#
x

T
r
e

e
 
C

a
n

o
p

y
 
S

p
r
e

a
d

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

Thu, 21 Mar 2019 Thursday, 21 Mar 2019

-

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

SELF STORAGE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

J
O

B
 
N

O
.
:

P
A

 
/
 
P

M
:

REMARKS DATE DATEREMARKS

irvine. california 92618

10 edelman

graphics

planning

architecture

interiors

p 949.660.9128

f 949.863.1581

civil engineering

M
A

V

L
-
3

K
H

2
0

1
8

-
0

7
8

S
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

"
=

1
0

'
-
0

"

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

N
O

R
T

H

MATCH LINE (SEE SHEET L-1)

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

4

4

4 4 4

L
A

W
N

Page 423



P
L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
S

O
I
L

D
I
S

T
A

N
C

E
 
T

O
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
L
I
N

E

W
I
L
L
 
V

A
R

Y
 
A

C
C

O
R

D
I
N

G
 
T

O

S
P

E
C

I
E

S
 
A

N
D

 
H

A
B

I
T

A
T

 
O

F

G
R

O
W

T
H

 
S

O
 
T

H
A

T
 
M

A
T

U
R

E

P
L
A

N
T

S
 
W

I
L
L
 
N

O
T

 
O

V
E

R
 
L
A

P

O
N

T
O

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

,

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

,

P
A

V
E

D
 
A

R
E

A
S

,
 
E

T
C

.

D
I
S

T
A

N
C

E
 
B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 
P

L
A

N
T

S

S
H

O
U

L
D

 
B

E
 
F

A
R

 
E

N
O

U
G

H
 
T

O
 
A

L
L
O

W

P
L
A

N
T

S
 
T

O
 
R

E
A

C
H

 
M

A
T

U
R

E
 
S

I
Z

E

W
I
T

H
O

U
T

 
I
N

T
E

R
F

E
R

I
N

G
 
W

I
T

H

G
R

O
W

T
H

 
O

F
 
A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 
P

L
A

N
T

M
A

T
E

R
I
A

L
S

S
P

A
C

I
N

G
 
A

S

P
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
S

R
O

O
T

B
A

L
L

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

B
A

C
K

F
I
L
L
 
S

U
B

S
O

I
L

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

U
B

S
O

I
L

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 
2
"
 
x
 
2
"
 
x
 
2
"
 
x
 
0
"
 
P

.
T

.
 
 
P

I
N

E

W
O

O
D

 
S

T
A

K
E

 
O

R
 
#
5
 
R

E
-
B

A
R

 
2
'
-
0
"

L
O

N
G

.
 
P

O
S

I
T

I
O

N
 
T

O
 
S

E
C

U
R

E
L
Y

S
T

A
B

I
L
I
Z

E
 
T

R
E

E

R
E

I
N

F
O

R
C

E
D

 
R

U
B

B
E

R

H
O

S
E

B
L
A

C
K

 
W

E
L
L
I
N

G
T

O
N

 

1 2

"

W
I
D

E
 
N

Y
L
O

N
 
T

A
P

E

B
L
A

C
K

 
W

E
L
L
I
N

G
T

O
N

 

1 2

"

W
I
D

E
 
N

Y
L
O

N
 
T

A
P

E

R
O

O
T

 
B

A
L
L

T
R

E
E

 
P

I
T

2
"
x
2
"
x
 
2
'
-
0
"
 
P

.
T

.
 
P

I
N

E

W
O

O
D

 
S

T
A

K
E

 
O

R
 
#
5

R
E

-
B

A
R

 
2
'
-
0
"
 
L
O

N
G

9
"

P
L
A

N
T

B
A

L
L

9
"

F
I
N

I
S

H
 
G

R
A

D
E

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 
2
"
 
x
 
2
"
 
x
 
6
"
 
 
P

.
 
T

.

P
I
N

E
 
W

O
O

D
 
S

T
A

K
E

S

O
R

 
#
5
 
R

E
-
B

A
R

 
T

W
O

 
P

E
R

T
R

E
E

 
-
 
P

O
S

I
T

I
O

N
 
T

O

S
E

C
U

R
E

L
Y

 
S

T
A

B
I
L
I
Z

E
 
T

R
E

E

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

U
B

S
O

I
L

B
A

C
K

F
I
L
L

T
Y

P
I
C

A
L

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
R

 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

T
Y

P
I
C

A
L

 
C

O
N

T
A

I
N

E
R

 
S

P
A

C
I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

T
Y

P
I
C

A
L

 
S

H
R

U
B

 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

C
U

R
V

E
D

 
T

R
U

N
K

 
P

A
L

M
 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S
T

R
A

I
G

H
T

 
T

R
U

N
K

 
P

A
L

M
 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

T
Y

P
I
C

A
L

 
T

R
E

E
 
G

U
Y

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S
M

A
L

L
 
T

R
E

E
 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

L
A

R
G

E
 
T

R
E

E
 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

1
2

0
1

2
0

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G

S
U

B
S

O
I
L

P
A

V
E

D
 
W

A
L
K

S
P

A
C

I
N

G
 
O

F
 
P

L
A

N
T

S

A
S

 
I
N

D
I
C

A
T

E
D

 
O

N
 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G

P
L

A
N

3
"
 
 
M

U
L
C

H
 
 
L
A

Y
E

R
,

G
R

A
D

E
 
"
A

"

CLEAR TRUNK

GREY WOOD

1/3 HEIGHT

OF TRUNK

E
X

C
A

V
A

T
E

 
T

O
 
A

 
M

I
N

 
D

E
P

T
H

O
F

 
1
2
"
 
 
A

N
D

 
B

A
C

K
F

I
L
L
 
W

I
T

H

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
S

O
I
L

T
R

I
A

N
G

U
L

A
R

 
S

P
A

C
I
N

G

EQUAL

P
L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
S

O
I
L
 
M

I
X

 
A

S

S
P

E
C

I
F

I
E

D

S
Q

U
A

R
E

 
S

P
A

C
I
N

G

M
U

L
C

H
 
E

D
G

I
N

G
 
-
 
A

L
L
 
P

L
A

N
T

B
E

D
S

 
A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 
T

O
 
S

O
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

S
H

A
L
L
 
R

E
C

E
I
V

E
 
A

 
 
3
"
 
 
D

E
E

P

L
A

Y
E

R
 
O

F
 
M

U
L
C

H

L
I
M

I
T

 
O

F
 
S

O
D

 
L
I
N

E
 
-
 
A

L
L

S
O

D
 
I
S

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
L
A

I
D

 
A

S
 
P

E
R

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

 
(
S

E
E

 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

P
L
A

N
)

N
O

T
E

:
 
I
N

 
M

O
S

T
 
C

A
S

E
S

,
 
T

R
I
A

N
G

U
L
A

R
 
S

P
A

C
I
N

G
 
I
S

 
P

R
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

.

U
S

E
 
S

Q
U

A
R

E
 
S

P
A

C
I
N

G
 
O

N
L
Y

 
I
N

 
S

M
A

L
L
 
R

E
C

T
I
L
I
N

E
A

R
 
A

R
E

A
S

.

4
"
 
 
E

A
R

T
H

 
B

E
R

M

2
"
 
x
 
4
"
 
x
 
1
2
"
 
 
P

I
N

E
 
F

O
O

T
P

A
D

F
O

R
 
S

O
F

T
 
S

O
I
L
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

U
C

H

A
S

 
S

A
N

D
,
 
B

U
R

I
E

D
 
3
"
 
 
B

E
L
O

W
 
G

R
A

D
E

2
"
 
 
L
A

Y
E

R
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

 
T

O
P

S
O

I
L

E

Q

U

A

L

E

Q

U

A

L

W
R

A
P

 
(
5
)
 
L
A

Y
E

R
S

 
O

F
 
B

U
R

L
A

P
 
T

O

T
R

U
N

K
 
A

T
 
P

O
I
N

T
 
O

F
 
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

(
3
)
 
2
"
 
x
 
4
"
 
x
 
6
"
 
 
P

.
 
T

.

P
I
N

E
 
W

O
O

D
 
C

L
E

A
T

S
 
.
 
W

I
R

E
 
 
W

I
T

H

G
A

L
V

A
N

I
Z

E
D

 
M

E
T

A
L
 
S

T
R

A
P

 
A

S

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 
F

O
R

 
W

O
O

D
 
B

R
A

C
E

R
S

 
-

D
O

 
N

O
T

 
N

A
I
L
 
B

R
A

C
E

S
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
T

R
U

N
K

(
3
)
 
2
"
 
x
 
4
"
 
 
P

.
 
T

.
 
P

I
N

E

W
O

O
D

 
B

R
A

C
E

 
@

 
1
2
0
 
D

E
G

R
E

E
S

 
 
A

P
A

R
T

.

P
A

I
N

T
 
T

O
 
M

A
T

C
H

 
T

R
U

N
K

 
C

O
L
O

R

I
F

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

T
O

P
 
O

F
 
M

U
L
C

H

S
H

A
L
L
 
B

E
 
1
/
2
"

B
E

L
O

W
 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

N
O

T
E

:
 
A

L
L
 
P

A
L
M

S
 
W

I
T

H
 
A

C
L
E

A
R

 
T

R
U

N
K

 
H

E
I
G

H
T

 
O

F

6
'
 
 
F

E
E

T
 
O

R
 
M

O
R

E
 
A

R
E

 
T

O

B
E

 
S

T
A

K
E

D
.

R
E

M
O

V
E

 
B

U
R

L
A

P
 
F

R
O

M
 
T

O
P

O
F

 
R

O
O

T
 
B

A
L
L

4
"
 
E

A
R

T
H

 
B

E
R

M

3
"
 
 
M

U
L
C

H
 
 
L
A

Y
E

R
,

G
R

A
D

E
 
"
A

"

2
"
 
 
L
A

Y
E

R
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

 
T

O
P

S
O

I
L

S
P

A
C

I
N

G
 
A

S

P
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
S

P
L
A

N
T

B
A

L
L

6
"

M
U

L
C

H
 
E

D
G

I
N

G
 
-
 
A

L
L
 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G

B
E

D
S

 
A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 
T

O
 
S

O
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

S
H

A
L
L
 
R

E
C

E
I
V

E
 
A

 
4
"
-
6
"
 
 
D

E
E

P

L
A

Y
E

R
 
O

F
 
M

U
L
C

H

P
L
A

N
T

 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L
 
S

H
A

L
L
 
N

O
T

 
B

E

P
R

U
N

E
D

 
P

R
I
O

R
 
T

O
 
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
A

T
I
O

N
 
-

A
F

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
T

 
H

A
V

E
 
B

E
E

N
 
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
E

D
,

E
A

C
H

 
P

L
A

N
T

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
B

E
 
P

R
U

N
E

D
 
F

O
R

U
N

I
F

O
R

M
I
T

Y

B
A

C
K

F
I
L
L
 
S

O
I
L

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

U
B

S
O

I
L

T
Y

P
I
C

A
L
 
C

U
R

B
 
A

N
D

 
G

U
T

T
E

R

6
"

S
I
D

E
W

A
L
K

6"

*

G
U

Y
 
W

I
R

E
 
-
 
#
1
2
 
D

O
U

B
L
E

 
S

T
R

A
N

D

T
W

I
S

T
E

D
 
-
 
W

R
A

P
 
T

W
I
C

E
 
A

R
O

U
N

D
 
T

R
E

E

T
R

U
N

K
 
W

I
T

H
 
T

W
O

-
P

L
Y

 
R

U
B

B
E

R
 
H

O
S

E

A
T

 
A

L
L
 
P

O
I
N

T
S

 
O

F
 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

 
-

A
T

T
A

C
H

 
W

I
R

E
 
T

O
 
S

T
A

K
E

S
.

6
0
 

D
E

T
A

I
L

P
L
A

N

1/3 VERTICAL

HEIGHT

W
R

A
P

 
(
5
)
 
L
A

Y
E

R
S

 
O

F

B
U

R
L
A

P
 
T

O
 
T

R
U

N
K

 
A

T

P
O

I
N

T
 
O

F
 
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

R
O

O
T

B
A

L
L

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

B
L
A

C
K

 
W

E
L
L
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
1
/
2
"
 
 
W

I
D

E

N
Y

L
O

N
 
T

A
P

E

3
"
 
 
M

U
L
C

H
 
L
A

Y
E

R
,
 
G

R
A

D
E

 
"
A

"

2
"
 
L
A

Y
E

R
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

 
T

O
P

S
O

I
L

R
E

M
O

V
E

 
B

U
R

L
A

P
 
F

R
O

M
 
T

O
P

 
O

F

R
O

O
T

 
B

A
L
L

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

R
O

O
T

 
B

A
L
L

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

U
B

S
O

I
L

B
R

A
C

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

2
"
 
X

 
4
"
 
C

R
O

S
S

M
E

M
B

E
R

S

N
A

I
L
E

D
 
T

O
 
B

R
A

C
E

S

2
 
(
2
"
 
x
 
4
"
)
 
W

O
O

D

B
R

A
C

E
R

S
 
I
N

 
"
 
X

"

S
H

A
P

E
 
N

A
I
L
E

D

T
O

G
E

T
H

E
R

 
(
s
e
e

d
e
t
a
i
l
 
a
b
o
v
e
)

B
A

C
K

F
I
L
L
 
S

O
I
L

3
"
 
 
M

U
L
C

H
 
 
L
A

Y
E

R
,

G
R

A
D

E
 
"
A

"

2
"
 
 
L
A

Y
E

R
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

T
O

P
S

O
I
L

4
"
 
 
E

A
R

T
H

 
B

E
R

M

F
O

O
T

 
P

A
D

T
R

U
N

K

C
R

O
S

S
M

E
M

B
E

R

B
R

A
C

E
R

S

1
2
"

M
I
N

.

VERTICAL HEIGHT

2
"
x
 
4
"
x
 
1
2
"
 
F

O
O

T
 
P

A
D

F
O

R
 
S

O
F

T
 
S

O
I
L

C
O

N
D

I
T

I
O

N
S

 
S

U
C

H
 
A

S

S
A

N
D

;
 
B

U
R

I
E

D
 
3
"

B
E

L
O

W
 
G

R
A

D
E

.

L
I
M

I
T

 
O

F
 
S

O
D

 
L
I
N

E
 
-
 
A

L
L

S
O

D
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
L
A

I
D

 
A

S
 
P

E
R

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
S

(
S

E
E

 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
)

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

U
B

S
O

I
L

4
"
 
E

A
R

T
H

 
B

E
R

M

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 
2
"
 
x
 
2
"
 
x
 
2
"
 
x
 
0
"
 
P

.
T

.
 
 
P

I
N

E

W
O

O
D

 
S

T
A

K
E

 
O

R
 
#
5
 
R

E
-
B

A
R

 
2
'
-
0
"

L
O

N
G

.
 
P

O
S

I
T

I
O

N
 
T

O
 
S

E
C

U
R

E
L
Y

S
T

A
B

I
L
I
Z

E
 
T

R
E

E

3
"
 
 
M

U
L
C

H
 
A

S
 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
E

D

O
V

E
R

 
A

L
L
 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
B

E
D

S

T
H

I
N

 
B

R
A

N
C

H
E

S
 
B

Y
 
2
5
%

 
-

R
E

T
A

I
N

 
N

A
T

U
R

A
L
 
S

H
A

P
E

 
O

F

P
L
A

N
T

 
-
 
P

A
I
N

T
 
A

L
L
 
C

U
T

S
 
O

V
E

R

4
"
 
D

I
A

.
 
W

I
T

H
 
T

R
E

E
 
P

A
I
N

T
 
-
 
D

O

N
O

T
 
C

U
T

 
C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 
L
E

A
D

E
R

T
R

E
E

S
 
O

F
 
S

A
M

E
 
S

P
E

C
I
E

S
 
T

O

B
E

 
M

A
T

C
H

E
D

 
I
N

 
G

R
O

W
T

H
 
C

H
A

R
A

C
T

E
R

*

*

D
O

 
N

O
T

 
C

U
T

 
C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 
L
E

A
D

E
R

T
H

I
N

 
B

R
A

N
C

H
E

S
 
B

Y
 
2
5
%

 
-
 
R

E
T

A
I
N

N
A

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

H
A

P
E

 
O

F
 
P

L
A

N
T

.
 
P

A
I
N

T

A
L
L
 
C

U
T

S
 
O

V
E

R
 
1
/
2
"
 
D

I
A

M
E

T
E

R

W
I
T

H
 
T

R
E

E
 
P

A
I
N

T

B
L
A

C
K

 
W

E
L
L
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
1
/
2
"

W
I
D

E
 
N

Y
L
O

N
 
T

A
P

E

1
2

0

OVERALL HEIGHT

T
R

I
M

 
O

N
L
Y

 
D

E
A

D
 
A

N
D

 
B

R
O

K
E

N

F
R

O
N

D
S

 
-
 
D

O
 
N

O
T

 
C

U
T

 
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

L
E

A
D

E
R

B
U

R
L
A

P

P
L

A
N

T
I
N

G
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

-
A

l
l
 
p

l
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
F

l
o

r
i
d

a
 
N

u
m

b
e

r
 
1

 
o

r
 
b

e
t
t
e

r
 
p

u
r
s
u

a
n

t
 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
F

l
o

r
i
d

a
 
D

e
p

a
r
t
m

e
n

t
 
o

f
 
A

g
r
i
c
u

l
t
u

r
e

'
s
 
 
G

r
a

d
e

s
 
a

n
d

S
t
a

n
d

a
r
d

s
 
f
o

r
 
N

u
r
s
e

r
y
 
P

l
a

n
t
s
.

-
A

l
l
 
p

l
a

n
t
s
 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
t
o

p
 
d

r
e

s
s
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
a

 
m

i
n

i
m

u
m

 
3

"
 
 
l
a

y
e

r
 
o

f
 
M

e
l
a

l
e

u
c
a

 
m

u
l
c
h

,
 
 
E

u
c
a

l
y
p

t
u

s
 
m

u
l
c
h

 
o

r
 
e

q
u

a
l
.

-
P

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
p

l
a

n
s
 
s
h

a
l
l
 
t
a

k
e

 
p

r
e

c
e

d
e

n
c
e

 
o

v
e

r
 
p

l
a

n
t
 
l
i
s
t
 
i
n

 
c
a

s
e

 
o

f
 
d

i
s
c
r
e

p
a

n
c
i
e

s
.

-
N

o
 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
m

a
d

e
 
w

i
t
h

o
u

t
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
i
o

r
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
a

n
d

 
O

w
n

e
r
.
 
A

d
d

i
t
i
o

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
o

r

d
e

l
e

t
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
p

l
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
 
m

u
s
t
 
b

e
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
e

d
 
b

y
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
o

j
e

c
t
 
 
e

n
g

i
n

e
e

r
.

-
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 
C

o
n

t
r
a

c
t
o

r
 
i
s
 
r
e

s
p

o
n

s
i
b

l
e

 
f
o

r
 
p

r
o

v
i
d

i
n

g
 
t
h

e
i
r
 
o

w
n

 
s
q

u
a

r
e

 
f
o

o
t
a

g
e

 
t
a

k
e

o
f
f
s
 
a

n
d

 
f
i
e

l
d

 
v
e

r
i
f
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
 
f
o

r
 
1

0
0

%

s
o

d
 
c
o

v
e

r
a

g
e

 
f
o

r
 
a

l
l
 
a

r
e

a
s
 
s
p

e
c
i
f
i
e

d
.

-
 
A

l
l
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
a

r
e

a
s
 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
p

r
o

v
i
d

e
d

 
w

i
t
h

 
a

u
t
o

m
a

t
i
c
 
s
p

r
i
n

k
l
e

r
 
s
y
s
t
e

m
 
w

h
i
c
h

 
p

r
o

v
i
d

e
 
1

0
0

%
 
c
o

v
e

r
a

g
e

,
 
a

n
d

 
5

0
%

o
v
e

r
l
a

p
.

-
 
A

l
l
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
i
n

 
l
a

w
n

 
a

r
e

a
s
 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
r
e

c
e

i
v
e

 
a

 
2

4
"
 
d

i
a

m
e

t
e

r
 
m

u
l
c
h

e
d

 
s
a

u
c
e

r
 
a

t
 
t
h

e
 
b

a
s
e

 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
t
r
u

n
k
.

-
 
T

r
e

e
s
 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
p

l
a

n
t
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

i
n

 
p

a
r
k
i
n

g
 
i
s
l
a

n
d

s
 
a

f
t
e

r
 
s
o

i
l
 
i
s
 
b

r
o

u
g

h
t
 
u

p
 
t
o

 
g

r
a

d
e

.
 
 
D

e
e

p
l
y
 
s
e

t
 
 
r
o

o
t
 
b

a
l
l
s
 
a

r
e

 
n

o
t

a
c
c
e

p
t
a

b
l
e

.

-
 
P

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
s
o

i
l
 
f
o

r
 
t
o

p
s
o

i
l
 
a

n
d

 
b

a
c
k
f
i
l
l
 
s
h

a
l
l
 
b

e
 
5

0
/
5

0
 
m

i
x
,
 
n

e
m

a
t
o

d
e

 
f
r
e

e
.
 
 
P

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
s
o

i
l
 
f
o

r
 
a

n
n

u
a

l
 
b

e
d

s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
c
o

m
p

r
i
s
e

d

o
f
 
5

0
%

 
C

a
n

a
d

i
a

n
 
p

e
a

t
 
m

o
s
s
,
 
2

5
%

 
s
a

l
t
 
f
r
e

e
 
c
o

a
r
s
e

 
s
a

n
d

 
a

n
d

 
2

5
%

 
A

e
r
o

l
i
t
e

.

-
 
T

r
e

e
 
a

n
d

 
s
h

r
u

b
 
p

i
t
s
 
w

i
l
l
 
b

e
 
s
u

p
p

l
e

m
e

n
t
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
"
A

g
r
i
f
o

r
m

 
P

e
l
l
s
"
,
 
2

1
 
g

r
a

m
 
s
i
z
e

 
 
w

i
t
h

 
a

 
2

0
-
1

0
-
5

 
a

n
a

l
y
s
i
s
,
 
o

r
 
s
u

b
s
t
i
t
u

t
e

a
p

p
l
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
 
a

c
c
e

p
t
e

d
 
b

y
 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
.
 
 
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
 
i
n

 
m

a
n

u
f
a

c
t
u

r
e

r
'
s
 
s
t
a

n
d

a
r
d

 
c
o

n
t
a

i
n

e
r
s
 
s
h

o
w

i
n

g
 
w

e
i
g

h
t
,
 
a

n
a

l
y
s
i
s

a
n

d
 
n

a
m

e
 
o

f
 
m

a
n

u
f
a

c
t
u

r
e

r
.

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

-
T

h
e

 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 
C

o
n

t
r
a

c
t
o

r
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
l
o

c
a

t
e

 
a

n
d

 
v
e

r
i
f
y
 
a

l
l
 
u

n
d

e
r
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
a

n
d

 
o

v
e

r
h

e
a

d
 
u

t
i
l
i
t
i
e

s
 
 
p

r
i
o

r
 
t
o

 
b

e
g

i
n

n
i
n

g
 
w

o
r
k
.

C
o

n
t
a

c
t
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
 
u

t
i
l
i
t
y
 
c
o

m
p

a
n

i
e

s
 
a

n
d

 
/
 
o

r
 
G

e
n

e
r
a

l
 
C

o
n

t
r
a

c
t
o

r
 
p

r
i
o

r
 
 
t
o

 
d

i
g

g
i
n

g
 
f
o

r
 
f
i
e

l
d

 
v
e

r
i
f
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
.
 
T

h
e

 
O

w
n

e
r
 
a

n
d

 
t
h

e

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
s
h

a
l
l
 
n

o
t
 
b

e
 
r
e

s
p

o
n

s
i
b

l
e

 
f
o

r
 
a

n
y
 
d

a
m

a
g

e
s
 
t
o

 
u

t
i
l
i
t
y
 
o

r
 
i
r
r
i
g

a
t
i
o

n
 
l
i
n

e
s
 
(
s
e

e
 
R

o
a

d
w

a
y
 
P

l
a

n
s
 
f
o

r

m
o

r
e

 
 
u

t
i
l
i
t
y
 
n

o
t
e

s
)
.

-
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 
C

o
n

t
r
a

c
t
o

r
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
v
e

r
i
f
y
 
a

l
l
 
c
u

r
r
e

n
t
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
 
a

n
d

 
c
h

e
c
k
 
f
o

r
 
d

i
s
c
r
e

p
a

n
c
i
e

s
 
a

n
d

 
b

r
i
n

g
 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
a

t
t
e

n
t
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
p

r
i
o

r
 
t
o

 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
w

o
r
k
.

-
A

l
l
 
u

n
a

t
t
e

n
d

e
d

 
a

n
d

 
u

n
p

l
a

n
t
e

d
 
t
r
e

e
 
p

i
t
s
 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
l
y
 
b

a
r
r
i
c
a

d
e

d
 
a

n
d

 
f
l
a

g
g

e
d

 
d

u
r
i
n

g
 
i
n

s
t
a

l
l
a

t
i
o

n
.

-
A

l
l
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
p

l
a

n
s
 
a

r
e

 
i
s
s
u

e
d

 
a

s
 
d

i
r
e

c
t
i
v
e

s
 
f
o

r
 
s
i
t
e

 
l
a

y
o

u
t
.
 
A

n
y
 
d

e
v
i
a

t
i
o

n
s
,
 
s
i
t
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
,
 
e

t
c
e

t
e

r
a

 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
b

r
o

u
g

h
t
 
t
o

t
h

e
 
a

t
t
e

n
t
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
f
o

r
 
c
l
a

r
i
f
i
c
a

t
i
o

n
 
p

r
i
o

r
 
t
o

 
 
i
n

s
t
a

l
l
a

t
i
o

n
.

S
O

D
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

-
S

o
d

 
i
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
g

r
a

d
e

 
"
A

"
 
w

e
e

d
 
f
r
e

e
.

-
A

l
l
 
a

r
e

a
s
 
m

a
r
k
e

d
 
"
L

A
W

N
"
 
s
h

a
l
l
 
b

e
 
s
o

l
i
d

 
s
o

d
d

e
d

 
w

i
t
h

 
S

t
.
 
A

u
g

u
s
t
i
n

e
 
'
F

l
o

r
a

t
a

m
'
 
s
o

l
i
d

 
s
o

d
.
 
S

e
e

 
l
i
m

i
t
 
o

n
 
p

l
a

n
.
 
A

l
l
 
a

r
e

a
s

m
a

r
k
e

d
 
'
B

a
h

i
a

 
G

r
a

s
s
'
 
s
h

a
l
l
 
b

e
 
s
o

l
i
d

 
s
o

d
d

e
d

 
w

i
t
h

 
P

a
s
p

a
l
u

m
.

-
P

r
o

v
i
d

e
 
a

 
2

"
 
d

e
e

p
 
b

l
a

n
k
e

t
 
o

f
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
s
o

i
l
 
a

s
 
d

e
s
c
r
i
b

e
d

 
i
n

 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
n

o
t
e

s
 
t
h

i
s
 
s
h

e
e

t
.
 
P

r
i
o

r
 
t
o

 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
,
 
r
e

m
o

v
e

 
s
t
o

n
e

s
,

s
t
i
c
k
s
,
 
e

t
c
.
 
f
r
o

m
 
t
h

e
 
s
u

b
 
s
o

i
l
 
s
u

r
f
a

c
e

.
 
E

x
c
a

v
a

t
e

 
e

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
n

o
n

-
c
o

n
f
o

r
m

i
n

g
 
s
o

i
l
 
a

s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
s
o

 
t
h

a
t
 
t
h

e
 
f
i
n

i
s
h

 
g

r
a

d
e

 
o

f
 
s
o

d

i
s
 
f
l
u

s
h

 
w

i
t
h

 
a

d
j
a

c
e

n
t
 
p

a
v
e

m
e

n
t
 
o

r
 
t
o

p
 
o

f
 
c
u

r
b

 
a

s
 
w

e
l
l
 
a

s
 
a

d
j
a

c
e

n
t
 
s
o

d
 
i
n

 
t
h

e
 
c
a

s
e

 
o

f
 
s
o

d
 
p

a
t
c
h

i
n

g
.

-
P

l
a

c
e

 
s
o

d
 
o

n
 
m

o
i
s
t
e

n
e

d
 
s
o

i
l
,
 
w

i
t
h

 
e

d
g

e
s
 
t
i
g

h
t
l
y
 
b

u
t
t
e

d
,
 
i
n

 
s
t
a

g
g

e
r
e

d
 
r
o

w
s
 
a

t
 
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
g

l
e

s
 
t
o

 
s
l
o

p
e

s
.

-
K

e
e

p
 
e

d
g

e
 
o

f
 
s
o

d
 
b

e
d

 
a

 
m

i
n

i
m

u
m

 
o

f
 
1

8
"
 
a

w
a

y
 
f
r
o

m
 
g

r
o

u
n

d
c
o

v
e

r
 
b

e
d

s
 
a

n
d

 
2

4
"
 
a

w
a

y
 
f
r
o

m
 
e

d
g

e
 
o

f
 
s
h

r
u

b
 
b

e
d

s
 
a

n
d

3
6

"
 
a

w
a

y
 
f
r
o

m
 
t
r
e

e
s
,
 
m

e
a

s
u

r
e

d
 
f
r
o

m
 
c
e

n
t
e

r
 
o

f
 
p

l
a

n
t
.

-
S

o
d

 
S

h
a

l
l
 
b

e
 
w

a
t
e

r
e

d
 
i
m

m
e

d
i
a

t
l
e

y
 
a

f
t
e

r
 
i
n

s
t
a

l
l
a

t
i
o

n
 
t
o

 
u

n
i
f
o

r
m

i
l
y
 
w

e
t
 
t
h

e
 
s
o

i
l
 
t
o

 
a

t
 
l
e

a
s
t
 
2

"
 
b

e
l
o

w
 
t
h

e
 
b

o
t
t
o

m
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
s
o

d

s
t
r
i
p

s
.

-
E

x
c
a

v
a

t
e

 
a

n
d

 
r
e

m
o

v
e

 
e

x
c
e

s
s
 
s
o

i
l
 
s
o

 
t
o

p
 
o

f
 
s
o

d
 
i
s
 
f
l
u

s
h

 
w

i
t
h

 
t
o

p
 
o

f
 
c
u

r
b

 
o

r
 
a

d
j
a

c
e

n
t
 
p

a
v
e

m
e

n
t
 
o

r
 
a

d
j
a

c
e

n
t
 
e

x
i
s
t
i
n

g

s
o

d
.

1850 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141

Thu, 21 Mar 2019 Thursday, 21 Mar 2019

-

NORTH BAY VILLAGE

SELF STORAGE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

J
O

B
 
N

O
.
:

P
A

 
/
 
P

M
:

REMARKS DATE DATEREMARKS

irvine. california 92618

10 edelman

graphics

planning

architecture

interiors

p 949.660.9128

f 949.863.1581

civil engineering

M
A

V

L
-
4

K
H

2
0

1
8

-
0

7
8

Page 424



K:\DWG1\180898.dwg, 10/2/2018 10:28:20 AM, german

INGRESS AND EGRESS EASEMENT PER

OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 13387, PAGE 2185

4.
0’

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
P

E
R

 O
.R

.B
. 1

00
0,

 P
G

. 4
89

OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 13220, PAGE 2712 N 02°25’20" W 

S 02°25’20" E 
205.67’

S
 8

7°
53

’3
8"

 W
68

.9
5’

S
 0

2°
25

’2
0"

 E
18

.1
8’

F
O

U
N

D
 N

A
IL

 &
 D

IS
K

LB
36

53
 (

7/
27

/1
8)

F
O

U
N

D
 1

/2
" 

P
IP

E
N

O
 I.

D
. (

7/
27

/1
8)

LB
36

53
 (

7/
27

/1
8)

F
O

U
N

D
 1

/2
" 

P
IP

E
 &

 C
A

P

LB
36

53
 (

7/
27

/1
8)

F
O

U
N

D
 1

/2
" 

P
IP

E
 &

 C
A

P

LB
36

53
 (

7/
27

/1
8)

F
O

U
N

D
 1

/2
" 

P
IP

E
 &

 C
A

P

238.48’ 

A
 =

 3
7°

02
’1

7"
R

 =
 6

50
.4

8’
L 

= 
42

0.
49

’
N

.E
.

C
A

U
S

E
W

A
Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

EAST  TREASURE  DRIVE

P
O

IN
T

 O
F

 B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G

LB
36

53
 (

7/
27

/1
8)

F
O

U
N

D
 1

/2
" 

P
IP

E
 &

 C
A

P

P
O

IN
T

 O
F

 C
O

M
M

E
N

C
E

M
E

N
T

E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
 +

7.
28

S
C

H
O

O
L 

 Y
A

R
D

1−
S

T
O

R
Y

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

3−STORY BUILDING

P
LA

T
 B

O
O

K
 2

5 
P

A
G

E
 7

0

S
T

A
T

E
R

O
A

D
#9

34

1 
 S

T
O

R
Y

  B
U

IL
D

IN
G

  (
N

O
T

  L
O

C
A

T
E

D
)

A
 =

 1
2°

58
’5

5"
R

 =
 8

53
.9

8’
L 

= 
19

3.
48

’
C

B
 =

 S
86

°4
4’

27
"W

C
H

 =
 1

93
.0

7’

(1
00

’  
P

U
B

LI
C

  R
IG

H
T

−O
F

−W
A

Y
)

79
th

A
 =

 2
7°

36
’5

7"
R

 =
 3

24
.9

8’
L 

= 
15

6.
64

’
C

B
 =

 N
72

°5
8’

40
"W

C
H

 =
 1

55
.1

1’

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

’S
 N

O
T

E
S

:

S
C

H
E

D
U

LE
 B

−I
I

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

’S
 N

O
T

E
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
A

T
IO

N
):

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

’S
 N

O
T

E
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
A

T
IO

N
):

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

’S
 N

O
T

E
S

 (
C

O
N

T
IN

U
A

T
IO

N
):

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

A
LT

A
/N

S
P

S
 L

A
N

D
 T

IT
LE

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 N
O

T
E

S
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

’S
 C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
:

T
O

:
F

irs
t A

m
er

ic
an

 T
itl

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

C
om

pa
ny

B
ar

an
of

 H
ol

di
ng

s,
 L

LC

"N
ot

 v
al

id
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 s
ig

na
tu

re
 a

nd
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 r

ai
se

d
se

al
 o

f a
 F

lo
rid

a 
Li

ce
ns

ed
 S

ur
ve

yo
r 

an
d 

M
ap

pe
r"

F
O

R
T

IN
, L

E
A

V
Y

, S
K

IL
E

S
, I

N
C

., 
LB

36
53

LE
G

A
L 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
:

ALTA/NSPS  LAND  TITLE  SURVEY
1850  79th  STREET  CAUSEWAY

NORTH  BAY  VILLAGE,  MIAMI−DADE  COUNTY,  FLORIDA

7/
27

/1
8

1"
 =

 2
0’

JJ
B

/G
E

M

18
08

98

18
08

98

20
18

−1
36

29
4−

34
9−

1

47
4−

33
 &

 F
.S

. R
LL

1
1

10
/2

/1
8 

10
:2

7a

Page 425



Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 1 

 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 3 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA APPROVING A REQUEST BY BARANOF 4 

HOLDINGS LLC FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL PURSUANT TO 5 

SECTION 5.4(C) OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE UNIFIED 6 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A 98 7 

FOOT TALL, 142,530 SQUARE FOOT SELF STORAGE 8 

FACILITY WITH 4,000 SQUARE FEET OF GROUND FLOOR 9 

RETAIL SPACE AND OFF-SITE PARKING INCLUDED FOR 10 

GRANDVIEW PALACE, IN THE CG GENERAL COMMERCIAL 11 

ZONING DISTRICT, AT 1850 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, 12 

TREASURE ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; 13 

PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR GRANTING 14 

THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING 15 

FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND 16 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  17 

 18 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5.4(C) of the North Bay Village Unified Land 19 

Development Code, Baranof Holdings, LLC. has applied to North Bay Village for approval of a 20 

Site Plan to construct a 98 foot tall, 142,530 square foot self-storage facility with 4,000 square 21 

feet of ground floor retail space and off-site parking included for Grandview Palace, in the CG 22 

(General Commercial) Zoning District, at 1850 Kennedy Causeway; 23 

 24 

 WHEREAS, approval of the proposed site plan is contingent upon either a parking 25 

waiver according to Section 9.3(D)(2) or a parking variance according to Section 7.3; either of 26 

which are requested by the applicant to permit a reduction in the amount of parking spaces 27 

required to be provided on the subject property for Grandview Palace at 7601 East Treasure 28 

Drive. 29 

 30 

 WHEREAS, Section 5.8(B)(9) and Section 4.9(B)(2) of the North Bay Village Unified 31 

Land Development Code set forth the authority of the Village Commission to consider and act 32 

upon an application for Site Plan approval. 33 

 34 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the North Bay Village Unified Land 35 

Development Code, a public hearing by the Planning and Zoning Board was noticed for February 36 

5, 2019 at 7:30 P.M. at Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, Florida 37 

33141 and the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application, conducted a public hearing 38 

and recommended denial of the request; and 39 

 40 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the North Bay Village Unified Land 41 

Development Code, a public hearing by the Village Commission was noticed for April 9, 2019 at 42 

6:30 p.m. at Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 and 43 

all interested parties have had the opportunity to address their comments to the Village 44 

Commission; and  45 

Page 426



Page 2 of 4 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 46 

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  47 

 48 

 Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this 49 

Resolution by this reference.  50 

 51 

 Section 2. Finding.  In accordance with Section 5.8(B)(9) of the Village Code, the 52 

Village Commission finds that the proposed Site Plan for construction of a 98 foot tall, 142,530 53 

square foot self-storage facility with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail space and off-site 54 

parking included for Grandview Palace, in the CG (General Commercial) Zoning District, at 1850 55 

Kennedy Causeway: 56 

 57 

1) Protects against and minimizes any undesirable effects upon contiguous and nearby 58 

property. 59 

 60 

2) Provides sufficient off-street parking and loading facilities so that it will not be 61 

necessary to use the streets in the vicinity for this purpose. 62 

 63 

3) Provides sufficient setbacks, open space, and landscaping in order to protect and 64 

enhance the appearance and character of the neighborhood. 65 

 66 

4) Can be accommodated by existing community roads, services, and utilities, or the 67 

necessary additions are provided by the developer. 68 

 69 

 Section 3. Grant.  The Site Plan to construct a 98 foot tall, 142,530 square foot self-70 

storage facility with 4,000 square feet of ground floor retail space and off-site parking included 71 

for Grandview Palace, in the CG (General Commercial) Zoning District, at 1850 Kennedy 72 

Causeway, Treasure Island, North Bay Village, Florida, as submitted to the Village on March 22, 73 

2019 is hereby approved. 74 

 75 

 Section 4. Conditions.  The Site Plan is approved with the condition that the 76 

following items are met prior to issuance of a Building Permit: 77 

 78 

1) Approval of either the Applicant’s requested parking waiver or the requested 79 

parking variance. 80 

 81 

2) Submittal of a vegetative survey which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A 82 

requirements. 83 

 84 

3) Submittal of an irrigation plan which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A 85 

requirements. 86 

 87 

4) Submittal of a landscape plan which meets Miami-Dade Chapter 18A 88 

requirements. 89 

 90 

Page 427



Page 3 of 4 

5) Payment of any applicable impact fees. 91 

 92 

6) Tie-in to Village’s wastewater system at a Village designated location (proposed 93 

connection point) and payment of pro-rata costs involved in tying into appropriate 94 

connection point. 95 

 96 

7) Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 5.12. Specifically, no new 97 

development application shall be accepted and no building permit or certificate of 98 

occupancy shall be issued for the property until all application fees, cost recovery 99 

deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to the property (including fees 100 

related to any previous development proposal applications on the property), have 101 

been paid in full. 102 

 103 

8) Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 104 

prior to commencement of construction. 105 

 106 

9) Approval of this site plan does not in any way create a right on the part of the 107 

applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create 108 

liability on the part of the Village for approval if the applicant fails to obtain 109 

requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or 110 

undertakes action that result in a violation of federal or state law. 111 

 112 

10) All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before commencement of 113 

construction. 114 

 115 

11) Staging of construction materials shall not occur in the public right-of-way. 116 

 117 

 Section 5. Appeal.  In accordance with Section 4.6 of the North Bay Village Unified 118 

Land Development Code, the Applicant, or any aggrieved property owner, may appeal the 119 

decision of the Village Commission by filing a Writ of Certiorari to the Circuit Court of Miami-120 

Dade County, Florida, in accordance with the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. 121 

 122 

 Section 6. Violation of Conditions.  Failure to adhere to the terms and conditions 123 

contained in this Resolution in Section 4, if any, shall be considered a violation of this Resolution 124 

and persons found violating the conditions shall be subject to the penalties prescribed by the 125 

Village Code, including but not limited to, the revocation of any of the approval(s) granted in this 126 

Resolution.  The Applicant understands and acknowledges that it must comply with all other 127 

applicable requirements of the Village Code before it may commence construction or operation, 128 

and that the foregoing approval in this Resolution may be revoked by the Village at any time upon 129 

a determination that the Applicant is in non-compliance with the Village Code. 130 

 131 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 132 

 133 

 134 

 135 

Page 428



Page 4 of 4 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by ___________, who moved for its adoption.   136 

 137 

This motion was seconded by ____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as 138 

follows: 139 

 140 

FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 141 
 142 

Mayor Brent Latham   ____________ 143 

Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth  ____________ 144 

Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez ____________ 145 

Commissioner Andreana Jackson ____________ 146 

Commissioner Julianna Strout ____________ 147 

 148 

 149 

PASSED and ADOPTED this ____ day of _______ 2019. 150 

 151 

 152 

 153 

____________________________ 154 

MAYOR BRENT LATHAM 155 

 156 

       157 

ATTEST: 158 
 159 

_______________________________ 160 

ELORA RIERA, CMC 161 

Village Clerk 162 

 163 

 164 

APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR THE SOLE USE 165 

AND RELIANCE OF THE VILLAGE: 166 
 167 

_______________________________ 168 

JAMES D. STOKES, BCS 169 

Special Counsel for the Village 170 

 171 

 172 

 173 

 174 

 175 

 176 

 177 

 178 

 179 

 180 

Page 429



 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Staff Report   
Waiver for Dock and Boat Lift 

 

 

Prepared for:  North Bay Village Commission 

Applicant:    Hilda Pelayo Trust 

Site Address: 7544 West Treasure Drive 

Request: Waiver for Dock and Boat Lift Construction 
Beyond the D-5 Triangle 

Page 430



Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   1 
 

General Information 

 
Owner Hilda Pelayo Trust 

Applicant Address 
7544 West Treasure Dr 
North Bay Village, Fl. 33141 

Site Address 7544 West Treasure Drive 

Contact Person Henry Albelo 

Contact Phone Number 305-316-5032 

E-mail Address bibi@tridentenv.com 

Zoning District RS-2 

Use of Property Single Family Home 

 
 

General Description 
 
There is an existing 12-foot by 12-foot dock at the subject property, which is a residence 
in the RS-2 zoning district. The applicant is requesting a permit to construct a new dock 
which would extend from the existing dock and would include a 7,500 lb capacity boat 
lift. The existing and proposed dock extends 12 feet from the existing seawall into 
Biscayne Bay. The proposed boat lift will extend an additional 10.5 feet into the bay 
from the dock. The total length of the proposed structures will be 22.5 feet from the 
seawall. 
 
 

Applicable Code Provisions 
 

The construction or alteration of docks, piers, etc is governed by Section 9.12 of the Village 

Unified Land Development Code. Section 9.12(B) reads as follows:  

1. No person, firm, or corporation shall construct any docks, piers, dolphins, wharfs, pilings, boat lifts, or 

similar structures of any kind more than 25 feet perpendicular from the seawall or shoreline into any 

waterway within the corporate limits of the Village without first obtaining a waiver from the Village 

Commission after a public hearing.  However, the furthermost distance seaward from the seawall or 

shoreline shall not exceed 75 feet including all dolphins or pilings installed beyond the seaward most 

line of the dock or pier but not including required rip-rap. 

2. No dock, pier, wharf, dolphin, piling, or similar structure shall be erected in the Village unless the 

structure is set back at least 7½ feet from the lot line on each side. 

3. No person, firm, or corporation shall build, extend, or make any structural alteration on any building, 

dock, pier, dolphin, wharf, piling, bulkhead, seawall, or similar structure within the corporate limits of 

Page 431

mailto:bibi@tridentenv.com
mailto:bibi@tridentenv.com


Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   2 
 

the Village, or do any filling, excavating, or dredging in the waters without first obtaining a building 

permit to do so from the Village Building Department. 

4. Application for any permit or the transfer of any permit required by this section shall be made to the 

Village Building Department in writing on forms provided therefore. The permit shall constitute an 

agreement by the applicant to comply with all conditions imposed upon granting of the permit. The 

application shall be accompanied by plans and specifications setting forth in detail the work to be 

done. 

5. Permits for seawalls and dock structures can be approved administratively and do not require a hearing 

or approval of the Village Commission if:  

a. All proposed dock structures, including but not limited to boat lifts and mooring piles, are not 

placed more than 25 feet measured perpendicular from the seawall. 

b. All proposed dock structures, including but not limited to boat lifts and mooring piles, are 

entirely within the D-5 triangle as described in Section D5 of the Miami-Dade Public Works 

Manual. 

6. Applications for docks, boat lift, mooring piles or other similar structures that do not meet the 

administrative approval criteria of Section 6 above shall be heard by the Village Commission at a 

public hearing. If an applicant seeks a dock or pier length greater than 25 feet measured perpendicular 

from the seawall (including boat lifts, mooring piles or other structures), the Village Commission shall 

consider the following criteria to determine if a distance waiver shall be granted: 

a. If the Applicant has provided to the Village notarized letter(s) of consent from adjoining 

riparian property owners, and 

b. If the Village has received any letter(s) of objection from adjoining riparian property owners; 

and 

c. Any other factors relevant to the specific site. 

7. The Village Commission may deny, approve, or modify the request and/or impose conditions in the 

permit, or granting of a distance waiver, which it deems necessary to protect the waterways of the 

Village in accordance with the public safety and the general welfare. The requirement of approval by 

the Village Commission shall not include applications for repair of existing structures. 

8. A public hearing held pursuant to this Section shall be quasi-judicial. 

9. Repair or reconstruction of existing structures shall not require approval of the Village Commission 

but may be approved administratively. However, the provisions of subsections 4 and 5 above shall be 

complied with. 

10. A safety light shall be placed on the part of the structure (either dock, mooring pile, or boat lift) which 

is furthest from the seawall. The light shall be illuminated from one half hour prior to sunset to one 

half hour after sunrise. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 432



Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   3 
 

Staff Comments 

There is an existing unpermitted dock structure at the subject property. Historical aerials 
indicate that this dock was constructed between November 2007 and December 2009. 
The existing dock is 12 foot by 12 foot and is located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks 
from the property lines are met. 

The proposed dock and boat lift structures extend 22.5 feet from the seawall and are 
located so that the 7.5 foot side setbacks from the property lines are met. 

Since the dock and boat lift extend outside the D-5 triangle, a waiver must be granted 
by the Village Commission at a public hearing in order for the VIlalg to grant approval of 
the Applicant’s proposed plans. It is the Commission’s decision to grant or deny a 
waiver for these plans. 

Miami-Dade DERM has provided pre-approval for the current plans. 

At this time, the Applicant has not provided any documentation regarding the state of 
the current seawall structures. However, a Village seawall inspection was performed for 
all waterfront properties in the Village in 2016. Notes from that inspection indicate that 
the seawall at this property had visible rust and cracking. 

No letters of consent or letters of objection from adjacent property owners have been 
submitted with the current application or submitted separately as of the writing of this 
report. 

 

Staff Recommendations 
 

The proposed dock meets applicable standards and staff has not received any 
objections to the Applicant’s request. However, if there are any objections submitted 
prior to the public hearing or at the public hearing, the Village Commission should 
consider those objections in their decision to approve or deny the Applicant’s plans, 
according to Village Code Section 9.12(B)(6). Additionally, the most recently available 
inspection of the seawall indicates that repairs should be made. If the Commission 
chooses to approve the Applicant’s request, the approval should be subject to the 
following conditions being met prior to the issuance of a building permit: 

1. A safety light shall be placed on at least one of the boat lift pilings which is furthest 
from the seawall. The light shall be illuminated from one half hour prior to sunset to 
one half hour after sunrise. 

2. Completion of any necessary seawall repairs and provision of a seawall inspection 
report verifying that the current seawall structures are in good repair. 

3. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited 
to, compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the 

Page 433



Staff Report  Applicant: Hilda Pelayo Trust 
Dock Waiver Request   7544 West Treasure Drive 

   4 
 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be 
obtained before commencement of construction. 

4. Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official 
prior to commencement of construction. 

5. Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 5.12. Specifically, no new 
development application shall be accepted, and no building permit shall be issued 
for the property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees 
and fines related to the property (including fees related to any previous development 
proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

6. Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way 
create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal 
agency, and does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a 
building permit if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the 
obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes action that results in 
a violation of federal or state law. 

 
Submitted by: 
 
James G. LaRue, AICP  
Planning Consultant 
March 28, 2019 
 
Hearing: Village Commission, April 9, 2019 
 
Attachments: Aerial of Subject Property 
 
 
 

Page 434



S
ta

ff
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

A
p
p
lic

a
n
t:
 H

ild
a
 P

e
la

y
o
 T

ru
s
t 

D
o
c
k
 W

a
iv

e
r 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
 

 
7
5
4
4
 W

e
s
t 
T

re
a
s
u
re

 D
ri
v
e
 

 
 

 
5
 

 A
er

ia
l o

f S
ub

je
ct

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
 

 
     

Page 435



S
ta

ff
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

A
p
p
lic

a
n
t:
 H

ild
a
 P

e
la

y
o
 T

ru
s
t 

D
o
c
k
 W

a
iv

e
r 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
 

 
7
5
4
4
 W

e
s
t 
T

re
a
s
u
re

 D
ri
v
e
 

 
 

 
6
 

 A
er

ia
l o

f S
ub

je
ct

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
 

 

Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



It ■ mm 'W North Bay Village
I ̂ B Administrative Offices

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300 North Bay Village. FL 33141

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com

DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page I of3

Site Address

Owner Namedm cL ImWJ ^^/fowner Phone #

Owner Mailing Address

Applicant Name Applicant Phone #

Applicant Mailing Address

Contact Person /P! O Contact Phone # ^ ̂  3gi-

Contact Email Address

Legal Description of Property Pl^

Existing Zoning Lot Size Folio Number oL 3 "" 3 ~0'^c^€^

Legal Description Pf^ Syj (-(p-h /

Project Description ^
/ -hy i

Dock Length Measured Perpendicular from Seawall / cX

Mandatory Submittals (Applicant must check that each item is included with this application)

□ Site plans whicli depict: □ Property survey
North point □ Elevations
Scale at 1/16 inch to the foot, or larger □ DERM approval
Date of preparation □ Application fees
Dock structures □ recovery deposit
Any mechanical equipment
Any exterior lighting
Any other physical features

Mayor Vice Mayor Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Connie Leon-Kreps Eddie Lim Dr. Richard Chervony Wendy Duvall Jorge Gonzalez

Page 441



DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 2 of3

Applications are incomplete until all mandatory submittals have been received by the Village Clerk.

All requests for dock approval fix>m the North Bay Village Code shall be considered at Public Hearings before the
Village Commission. Notice of Hearing shall be given by publishing and posting on the property (which is the
subject of the request), the time, the place and the nature of the hearing at least 10 days before the hearing. The
Village Clerk shall certify that the petition is complete before the hearing is legally advertised. All applications shall
be submitted to the Village Clerk on or before the deadline implemented by the Village.

All persons, firms, or corporations requesting dock approval from the Village Commission necessitating the
publication of notices in the newspaper, and all relative thereto, dte payment of such money in advance to the
Village Clerk shall be deemed a condition precedent to the consideration of such a variance request, pursuant to
Section IS2.110 of the Village Code.

All new and substantial improvements must comply with the Florida Building Code, Department of Environmental
Resource Management (DERM), and FEMA regulations.

I (We) the undersigned, am (are) the (owner, tenant, agent, attorney) (designate one) of the subject property herein
described. I (We) acknowledge and agree that during the consideration of the application before the Staff of North
Bay Village, no rights shall vest on behalf of the applicant, which would be enforceable against the Village until
after a Public Meeting is held by the Village Commission has voted fovorable on the proposed request.

I (We) further acknowledge that I (We) have read and understand the conditions for appearance before the Planning
and ^ning Board and the Village Conrnai^n pursuant to the Village Code Section 152.096. Any person
submitting false information or misrepre^tipg In their presentation shall have all privileges granted to them by the
Village Commission revoked.

Authorized Signature

kPrint Name,

(In case of corporate ownership, the authorized signature shall be accompanied by a notation of the signer's position
in the corporation and embossed with the corporate seal.)

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF ' VctJ^

Sworn to and subscribed to before me this

by P<^l
P  day of _.20.

who is personally known to me or who has produced _

Notary Public Signature <r"

as identification.

Commission Number/Expiratii BIBIANAVILLAZON
MY COMMISSION jIFF 988184

EXPIRES: November 22.201«
Bonded Thru Public Underwritem

Mayor
Connie Leon-Kreps

Vice Mayor
Eddie Lim

Commissioner

Dr. Richard Chervony
Commissioner

Wendy Duvall
Commissioner

Jorge Gonzalez

Page 442



h->

C-4

CM
»;n

DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 3 of 3

Office Use Onlv;

Date Submitted: 'Ml
Tentative Meeting Date:_ .jyjSitaoB
Fee Paid: $

Cash or Check # in

Date Paid:

Mayor Vice Mayor Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
Connie Leon-Kreps Eddie Lim Dr. Richard Chervony Wendy Duvall Jorge Gonzalez

Page 443



NBV Cost Recovery Transmittal Form

Property Address:

Name:

Mailing Address:

Email Address:

Date Received by

Clerk's Office:

Clerk Office

Signature:

7544 West Treasure Drive

Hilda Peiayo/Hllda Pelayo Rev Trust

7544 West Treasure Drive, Miami Beach, FL 33141

BIBI@TRIDENTENV.COM

Type of Request:

Application Amount: $300.00

Telephone:

Check Name:

Timber B

(305) 24

Jose S P

oat Dock and 7,500 Capacity Elevator Boatlift

Cost Recovery Fee: $2,000.00

4-0545

elayo, 1231 NE 88*^ St, Miami. FL 33138

Date Submitted to

02/22/2019 Finance: 02/22/2019

Finance Office

Signature:

Page 444



sr.

a.

CM
CM

CO
Ui

DOCK APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING
Page 3 of3

Office Use Only;

Date Submitted:

Tentative Meeting Date: <!3|
Fee Paid: $ 2..-0^co

-f-

Cash or Check #

Date Paid: 2-1
in

2-2-12£3\'^

JOSE S PELAYO
.\231NE88TH STREET
MIAMI, FL 33138 117

63-751/631 10931
1090007592915

VyelhFar9o8ank,NA
Fionda

wellsftrgcwrom

J $
'

-SoJlars

<03

':0"l075l3.:i090007S959ll; JO 117

Mayor
Connie Leon-Kreps

Vice Mayor
Eddie Lim

Commissioner

Dr. Richard Chervony
Commissioner

Wendy Duvall
Commissioner

Jorge Gonzalez

Page 445



Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING A REQUEST BY HILDA PELAYO TRUST 
CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7544 WEST TREASURE 
DRIVE FOR A DOCK WAIVER PURSUANT TO SECTION 9.12(B) OF 
THE VILLAGE UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ALLOW 
MARINE CONSTRUCTION BEYOND THE LIMITS OF THE D5 
TRIANGLE; PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING 
THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Hilda Pelayo Trust has applied to North Bay Village for a Dock Waiver 

pursuant to Section 9.12(B) of the Village Unified Land Development Code to allow 

construction of a dock and boat lift which will extend beyond the D5 Triangle, as defined by 

Miami Dade Department of Environmental Resources Management; and 

WHEREAS, Section 9.12(B) of the Village Unified Land Development Code and 

Section 4.9 of the Village Unified Land Development Code sets forth the authority of the Village 

Commission to consider and act upon an application for a Dock Waiver; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 4.4 of the North Bay Village Unified Land 

Development Code, a public hearing by the Village Commission was noticed for April 9, 2019 at 

6:30 p.m. at Village Hall, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 and 

all interested parties have had the opportunity to address their comments to the Village 

Commission; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Commission has reviewed the application, and comments from 

the public, and determined that the proposed marine structures are safe, compatible, and 

appropriate; and 

 

Page 446



 

Page 2 of 4 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. Recitals.  
 

The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this Resolution by this reference.  
 
Section 2. Finding. 
 

In accordance with Section 9.12(B) of the Village Unified Land Development Code, the Village 
Commission, having considered the testimony and evidence in the record presented by all parties, 
finds that the proposed Dock Waiver to allow construction of a dock and boat lift which will 
extend beyond the D5 Triangle is safe, compatible and appropriate.  

 
 
Section 3. Grant. 
 

In accordance with Section 9.12(B) of the Village Unified Land Development Code and the plans 
provided to the Village Clerks Office, The Village Commission grants approval of a Dock 
Waiver to install a new dock and boatlift beyond the D5 triangle at 7544 West Treasure Drive, 
with conditions. 
 

Section 4. Conditions. 
 

Approval of the Dock Waiver is granted with the condition that the following items are met prior 
to issuance of a Building Permit: 
 
1. A safety light shall be placed on at least one of the boat lift pilings which is furthest from the 

seawall. The light shall be illuminated from one half hour prior to sunset to one half hour 
after sunrise. 

2. Completion of any necessary seawall repairs and provision of a seawall inspection report 
verifying that the current seawall structures are in good repair. 

3. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited to, 
compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before 
commencement of construction. 

4. Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official prior to 
commencement of construction. 

5. Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 5.12. Specifically, no new 
development application shall be accepted, and no building permit shall be issued for the 
property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines 
related to the property (including fees related to any previous development proposal 

Page 447



 

Page 3 of 4 

applications on the property), have been paid in full. 

6. Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way create a 
right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does 
not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a building permit if the applicant 
fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal 
agency or undertakes action that results in a violation of federal or state law. 

 
Section 4. Appeal. 
 

In accordance with Section 4.6 of the North Bay Village Unified Land Development Code, the 
Applicant, or any aggrieved property owner, may appeal the decision of the Village Commission 
by filing a Writ of Certiorari to the Circuit Court of Miami-Dade County, Florida, in accordance 
with the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. 

 
Section 5. Effective Date.   
 

This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was offered by ___________, who moved for its adoption.   
 
This motion was seconded by ____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 
as follows: 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Brent Latham   ____________ 
Vice Mayor Marvin Wilmoth  ____________ 
Commissioner Jose R. Alvarez ____________ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson ____________ 
Commissioner Julianna Strout ____________ 

 
 
    PASSED and ADOPTED this ____ day of _______ 2019. 

 
____________________________ 
MAYOR BRENT LATHAM 
 
 

        
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
ELORA RIERA, CMC 
Village Clerk 
 

Page 448



 

Page 4 of 4 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. ESPINO 
Interim Village Attorney 

 
North Bay Village Resolution:  Dock Waiver for 7544 West Treasure Dr. 

 
 
 
 

Page 449


	2A2 - Education and Sharing Day Proclamation
	2B - Pelican Harbor Seabird Station Budget and Annual Report
	6Bi - 03-25-19 BDAB Meeting Minutes
	6Ei - 03-26-19 SRTF Meeting Minutes
	9A - FIND Grant Application
	9B - Neat Streets Grant Application
	9C - Mayor's Climate Pledge
	10A - Planning and Zoning Board Composition
	10B - Amend the Stipulation Adopted in Resolution 92-39 for Property Generally Located at 7601 East Treasure Drive to Amend the Parking Requirements
	10C - Establishing a Moratorium for a Period of One Hundred Eighty (180) Days from the Effective Date of this Ordinance on the Acceptance of Applications for Administrative Review, Site Plan Approval, and Building Permits for the Use of Land for New Public Self Storage Facilities
	10D - Mitigation Process for Code Enforcement Fines
	10E - Approval of Deputy Village Clerk Position
	11A1 - Parking Waiver
	11A2 - Parking Variance
	11B - Site Plan
	11C - 7544 West Treasure Drive



